e malliss gy z

«t | It R R EE
™| svEaRRERE T
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China)

(RhEARAMBEEMAZHBRHERAR)

Stock Code %1 X5%: 0814

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 ##k



Contents B %%

Corporate Information
NGIR- 22

Grou 79 Structure
2R

i
B2

s Statement

IS
D
13
S
of

agerm

QO
(0]
3

t Discussion and Analysis
Eaxii

mE<
HBS
IElS
EIL
2
XA

overnance Report

O
e
o
o
Oh—
o
(@)

2 B
o

he Board of Directors

[©)
#S
5=t
Lo,
Off—

he Supervisory Committee

[l
o
et
#o
O

B

Profiles of Directors, Sue rvisors and Senior Management
CeE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RN @ RERWME

>
c
Q.
=
o
_<-.
[}
X
@
°
o
=t

Balance Sheets

D9 #
KD
(92
o
Q
=8
D

=
m T
Pt
oy
St

Balance Shee%% of the Company

Consolidated Income Statement

BHMER

Income Statement of the Company
NSIFAINEES

Consohd ated
EHEeRER
S

Statement of Cha i%es in Shareholders’ Equity of the Company

NI R )

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

2-5

11-32

33-58

59-74

75-77

78-85

86-101

102-115

116-117

118-119

120-121

122

123-124

125-126

127-128

129-130

131-347

348

2019 F#f
I RRREEEEERNERAF]

2

*

*

»



CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEVEM

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman)

Mr. Shang Yongtian

Ms. Li Chunyan

Mr. Liu Yuejin (ceased to be an executive director of the
Company since 24 May 2019)

Mr. Zhang Liwei (appointed as an executive director of the

Company since 24 May 2019)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhang Yan
Mr. Li Shunxiang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Choi Onward, CPA

Mr. Wang Liping

Mr. Chen Liping

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Choi Onward, CPA (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Liping
Mr. Chen Liping

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wang Liping (Chairman)
Mr. Li Jianwen

Mr. Chen Liping

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chen Liping (Chairman)
Mr. Li Jianwen

Mr. Wang Liping
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
RAEVEM

SUPERVISORS BE=x

Ms. Liu Wenyu (Chairman) B+ (F/E)
Mr. Chen Zhong PR 68 5L A=

Mr. Yang Baogun GEETE

Ms. Fu Yanjun B

Ms. Niu Hongyan 4T+

Ms. Li Chunyi FERBRET
COMPANY SECRETARY AEME

Mr. Li Bo, CPA FIFLE - CPA
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES BRRERAEK

Ms. Li Chunyan THEMZE

Mr. Li Bo, CPA FIELE - CPA
AUDITORS =B AR

Ruihua Certified Public Accountants LLP

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong law:

Reed Smith Richards Butler

As to PRC law:

Grandall Law Firm (Beijing)

INVESTORS AND MEDIA RELATION CONSULTANT

Unicorn Financial Company Limited
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China
Beijing Guanghua Road Branch
4 Guanghua Road

Chaoyang District

Beijing, PRC

Bank of Beijing

Jiulongshan Branch

117th Building

Jinsong Dongkou Nongguang Lane

Beijing, PRC

H SHARES REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Block No. 45
XinYuan Street
Chaoyang District
Beijing, PRC

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

17th Floor

One Island East

Taikoo Place

18 Westlands Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.jkl.com.cn

SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES CONTACT
INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Department of Investor Relations
Tel: 0086-10-64688238

Fax: 0086-10-64611370

Email: jingkelong@jkl.com.cn

Address: Block No. 45, XinYuan Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC

STOCK CODE

814
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GROUP STRUCTURE
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s ot the it of this report, the sharshoidrs and fhe princioal subsidrie of Befing dingidlons Gompany Limied wer as

follows:

RARER @ AR ERAXEERNDARARZEREEIEMBARNT

Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary
Food Company

EtRHHEERRAD R

Other domestic shareholders H shareholders

HitmERRR HARBR R

40.61% 16.20% 44.19%

Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited
TREEEBXEEROBR QA

100.00% 55.66% 79.85% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Beijing Jingkelong Beijing Xinyang Tongli Beijing Chaopi Beijing Jingkelong Beijing Jingkelong Beijing Chaoyang Beijing Lianchao
Shouchao Commercial Facilities Trading Company (Langfang) Supermarket Chain Jingkelong Vocational Company Limited

Company Limited Company Limited Limited Company Limited Company Limited Skills Training School
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Beijing Jingkelong
Company Limited (the “Company” or “Jingkelong”), | am delighted to
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Reporting
Period”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The national disposable income per capita increased to RMB30,733 from
RMB18,311 for the period from 2013 to 2019, the year-on-year growth
rates taking no consideration of the price factor were 8.1%, 8.0%, 7.4%,
6.3%, 7.3%, 6.5% and 5.8%, respectively, which indicated that the
household consumption improved as the household income increases.
Moreover, the growth of disposable income per capita declined, the
physical retail industry encountered the bottleneck and gradually
conducted transformation and upgrade for expanding new development
space under the background of fierce shockwaves of the E-commerce
industry. In 2019, the Group as a traditional offline enterprise, actively
conducted transformation and upgrade. By taking advantage of Internet,
mobile Internet, big data and payment technologies, it integrated the
online business development while grasping the physical outlet business,
and maintained the sustainable development through a series of initiatives
including product development and replacement, marketing service,

quick payment, logistics and distribution as well as continuous reforms.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERWME

During the Reporting Period, the Group achieved the following results:  $REHIR - NEBEZEYS 7 a0 T 24 -

Revenue from principle business was RMB10,555,189,765,
representing an increase of approximately 1.0% as compared to

2018;

Gross profit was RMB1,534,280,678, representing an increase of

approximately 1.3% as compared to 2018;

Gross profit margin was approximately 14.5%, which almost

maintained the same level as compared to 2018;

Total profit was RMB178,802,243, representing an increase of
approximately 0.7% as compared to 2018;

Profit attributable to shareholders of parent company was

RMB52,935,436, representing a decrease of approximately 16.4%

as compared to 2018;

Basic earnings per share was RMB0.13 (2018: RMBO0.15); and

The proposed final dividend per share was RMBO0.08 (2018:
RMBO0.08).
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OUTLOOK

In 2020, China’s economy is at the critic period of downturn growth
and structural reform and upgrade, the unexpected novel coronavirus
epidemic will have certain impact on the macro economy. During the
epidemic, by virtue of the integrated online and offline development,
solid supply chain infrastructure and high efficient logistics distribution
system, the Group actively implemented the guaranteed market supply
and epidemic prevention and control in responding to the epidemic, and

earnestly performed the social responsibilities.

Centering on “Products + Service”, the Group will continue to introduce
the technology means including new technology, digital and cloud
service, to supplement the businesses of the Group as a traditional offline
enterprise. The Group will optimize the online and offline connection,
and expand the depth and coverage of online and offline integration
via connecting the application systems such as inventory, payment,
membership and service. In response to the changes in consumption
groups, consumption habit, consumption methods and consumption
demand in the consumption market, the Group will grasp the development

opportunities to expand the room of development.

In 2020, we care for employees and customers, and commit to become
a whole sale and retail sale enterprise recognized by employees and

consumers.

The Group always upholds the cultural concept of “friendship outweighing
interests, dedication outweighing taking”, and make customers satisfied
as our common objectives of the Group. The Group will make every effort

to bring continuous and stable returns for the shareholders.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere gratitude to our
shareholders for their trust and support; to all business partners, suppliers
and customers for their support and assistance, and our appreciation to
all staff and the management team for their hard work and contribution

to the Group during the Reporting Period.

Li Jianwen

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
22 April 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2019, with the continuous increasing downward pressure on the global
and domestic economies, the Chinese government paid more attention
to the role of household expenditure in driving high quality economic
development, and thus introduced measures such as tax reduction
and lowering social security contribution rates, so as to further increase
residents’ disposable income and encourage consumption. Consumption
concepts and behaviors have also shifted from physical goods to service-
oriented, information-based, and quality-oriented: consumer demands
are more diversified and stratified. Returning to the nature of retail and
adhering to the concept of “commodity + service”, offline retailers,
including the Group, focused on consumer experience, accelerated the
pace in adjusting structures and innovation of the development model,
explored online and offline integration, continuously improved the supply
capacity and efficiency for goods and services so as to actively adapt
to the changes in consumption environment and consumption trend. By
actively adjusting the mix of the commodities, optimizing the shop layout,
upgrading management of service, adopting internet technology and
mobile technology, facilitating online and offline integrated development,
improving logistics and distribution, as well as employing other measures,
the Group has enhanced operation efficiency and steadily developed its

wholesale and retail businesses.

RETAIL BUSINESS

Continuously promoting the transformation and upgrade of

stores

During the Reporting Period, in view of the changes in consumption
environment and consumption trend, the Group has adopted measures
such as store upgrading and transformation and layout adjustment,
and on the basis of commodities mix adjustment and new shopping
scene creation, introduced various types of IT products including self-
service cashiers and electronic price tags to further enhance consumers’

shopping experience.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to promote the
expansion of small sized community live and fresh produce stores. A
total of 21 traditional convenience stores were upgraded to “Jingjie”
Live and Fresh Produce Convenience Stores, and three “Jingjie” Live
and Fresh Produce Convenience Stores and two “Ai Jia” Community
Live and Fresh Produce Convenience Stores were newly opened, which
serve family shopping in the community, meet the basic consumption
needs of three meals a day, eating well and eating enough, and satisfy
the demands for goods for family kitchens, living rooms and bathrooms.
As of 31 December 2019, there were 40 “Jingjie” Live and Fresh Produce
Convenience Stores and 13 “Ai Jia” Community Convenience Stores.

In order to cooperate with the government in promoting diversion,

PR i *‘.4’, i 4 O
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complementing the services, and improving service quality of the daily
service industry, as well as creating an integrated service platform to
meet the basis frequent and inelastic demands for daily services such
as laundry and maintenance, five supermarkets and 12 “Jingjie” Live and
Fresh Produce Stores have introduced in form of either the “embedded”
or the “independent” mini community convenience service centers, where
community residents are provided with convenience services including
laundry, lock repairing and key pairing, mobile phone repairing and quick
haircut. Through the provision of community convenience services to
better cater for the need of consumers, the brand image of Jingkelong

and customer loyalty would be enhanced.

HINZER T1I7TREHONRERETE(E1H
ArmRI6MENE) - 2FHHEEMNECR(E
SHIEERAERARMBEAE) - EELRIEHA
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% - 2R a T - 22 E EE M5 R oM
BRE -

During the Reporting Period, the Group renovated and upgraded 17 ¥R
stores (including one supermarket and 16 convenience stores), opened
six convenience stores (including five directly-operated stores and one
franchise-operated retail store). Due to the expiration of the lease term,
modifications to the operation strategy, during the Reporting Period, the
Group closed down one department store, two supermarkets, 22 directly-
operated convenience stores and nine franchise-operated convenience

stores.

L

* 1 ANNUAL REPORT 2019
* BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

«



(i 24k

) .. &
7 EE Y

A ’ * &
'é‘
s *
[ U
Am IS »}:‘.'F"

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The total number of the Group’s retail outlets was 178 as at 31 December
2019. The following table sets out the number and net operating area of

the Group’s retail outlets as at 31 December 2019:

BT Mo

BE-FT-NFT-A=T—0  AEETEE
ABYA178H - FREMESIAEMR=F N
F+ A=+ ROTEFIEHE WFLBEE

Department Convenience
Stores Hypermarkets Supermarkets stores Total
BE®ES RE%S mAEEm EFE &t
Number of retail outlets: TEMEHE
Directly-operated BEE 1 1 57 83 152
Franchise-operated RN - - 1 25 26
Total ait 1 1 58 108 178
Net operating area FEEEE
(square metres): (FHK)
Directly-operated BEEE 27,800 78,817 127,736 17,028 251,381
Franchise-operated RN - - 880 6,976 7,856
Total A&t 27,800 78,817 128,616 24,004 259,237
Accelerating the iteration of products IR mEHTIER

During the Reporting Period, being customer-oriented, the Group has re-
categorised products according to the shopping habits and preferences
of consumers, and through frequent market research and inspection of
origins, the Group continued to introduce new supplier channels, new
brands and new products, accelerate the speed of replacement and
upgrade of product, and constantly improve category management.
For live and fresh produce, snacks, non-staple food, household and
daily goods, the Group put more efforts in development of customized,
buyout, private label products, and purchase of products recommended
by internet celebrities or which are new to the market, striving to create
a new shopping scene for consumers and meeting the personalized and
diversified needs of consumers to ensure that they could buy anything
they want in our stores. Instead of displaying goods in a way that
largely determined by resources invested by suppliers as in the past,
consumers were given top priority so that interaction with customers
were enhanced and their participation were encouraged. Goods were
displayed with consideration to allow them “speak for themselves” to

ensure that consumers could explore everything in the stores.
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Constantly strengthening the live and fresh produce business

During the Reporting Period, the Group has continued to adhere to the
strategy of direct procurement from the source, explore new vegetable
bases, and adopted dual-channel procurement strategy for vegetables,
while constantly expanded the range of produce supplied from the bases
in order to ensure the high quality and low price of the produce. The Group
kept on optimising operation standards of the live and fresh produce.
Integrated procedure comprised of planting, harvesting, processing,
pre-cooling, packaging, receiving order, cold chain direct delivery and
other stages for more than ten types of vegetables, such as Chinese
cabbage, celery, white radish and broccoli, was achieved. The Group
also continued with the implementation of procurement and storage,
year-round supply, locking source and price of the fruit and vegetable
products harvested in one season in order to raise the operating capacity

for live and fresh produce.

Strengthening the online and offline integrated development

During the Reporting Period, the Group enriched the product categories
on our own shopping APP, stimulated sales with live and fresh produce
and best-selling products, and constantly improved users’ loyalty and
repurchase rate. The function of the Jingkelong WeChat “Mini Program”
leveraged the comprehensive advantages of live and fresh produce, as
well as the price advantages of dry goods to attract consumption. Delivery
time for orders made on our own shopping APP and the Mini Program
shortened from 3 hours to 1 to 2 hours. The Group actively explored the
potentials of online sales through third-party platforms and connected
multiple logistics channels. The Group constantly optimized order placing
and pick-up of goods functions at the stores and solved problems such
as long pick-up lines, low efficiency of picking staff, certain overlaps
between online and offline business during peak hours, and improved the
operational efficiency of stores. The Group implemented the commodity
inventory tracking mechanism to reduce the discrepancies in terms of
online and offline inventory and improved the order picking rate. The
Group maintained stable growth for its online sales volume and average

transaction value during the Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Constantly promoting innovation in marketing and services

During the Reporting Period, the Group implemented the annual
marketing plan to ensure the seamless connection of sales promotion
activities throughout the year. The Group strengthened the integration
of marketing resources and the unity of activity themes. Based on the
key marketing plans in relation to major holidays and anniversaries, the
Group launched large-scale promotional activities in various forms and
with flexible arrangements, such as the 24 solar terms and hotspots,
and the recipes of internet celebrities, to attract customers. At the
same time, the Group strengthened its marketing performance analysis,
evaluated the effectiveness of marketing activities from various aspects
such as sales, customer flow and expenses, and carried out precision
marketing according to the needs of different consumer groups, so
as to maximize efficiency. During the Reporting Period, the Group
offered consumers various discounts and promotional activities, such
as coupon code scanning, online coupon collection for offline use, rebate
for payment, advertising coupons in WeChat stories, “money off”, “hot

» o«

item seckilling”, “posters discount”, and “Jingkelong Brand Day”, which
presented the brand image of Jingkelong and were generally welcomed by
consumers; the Group adjusted the layout of traditional posters, bringing
in related goods promotion through interactions with the customers on
the points such as food recommendations and knowledge about home
and living, and expanded the coverage of promotion through online
platforms to fulfill the curiosity of consumers. The Group launched the
“Enhancing Service Plan” in respect of its facilities and services, and
fashionable, comfortable and modernized elements, from changes in
lighting to creation of highlighted staircase, were added in the stores,
effectively building a relaxing shopping environment for the consumers,
improving the service quality and standards of the stores, and attracting

the customers to come.
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I\/IANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Paying high attention on food safety

Food safety is a top priority for people’s livelihood. The Group has
always attached great importance to food safety and regarded it as its
most important task. During the Reporting Period, the Group provided
on-site practical training on food safety to food safety administrators of
the stores in batches, and invited professionals to conduct training at the
business site, which involved acceptance of goods, commodity storage,
personnel management and food exhibitions. Good training results were
achieved; the Group continuously improved the Group’s food safety
management system, and standardized its food safety management work
from various aspects such as the manufacturer’s food safety assessment
standards, food safety management system, food hazard control, and
food safety crisis resolution. In addition to strengthening quality control
through the transportation link from transportation loading, distribution,
and vehicle temperature at the time of unloading, the live and fresh
produce logistics centre monitored the temperature of the incoming
goods from the suppliers at the same time to ensure the quality of live
and fresh produce; the Group’s normal temperature logistics centre
continuously increased the intensity of inspection, strictly inspected the
dates of arrival and quality of products, and carried out various measures

to keep food safety.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Strengthening logistics and distribution resources

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s normal temperature logistics
centre continuously optimized the inventory management and controlled
the inventory properly to reduce the shortage rate of the stores. The Group
also optimized the systems of warning management of the commodity
shelf life and management of zero sales goods; and exercised strict
control to all aspects, including acceptance of goods, storage and
shipping, and the procedures such as keeping delivery records, using
pallets, using distribution cages and packing were strictly carried out in
accordance with the operating standards to ensure the safe delivery of
products to stores; the Group continuously improved the efficiency of
automatic sorting equipment to enhance the sorting efficiency; the live
and fresh produce logistics centre strictly managed the temperature of the
workshop, the vehicle temperature at arrival, inventory quality and product
protection measures to ensure the product quality, and it strengthened
product sampling, optimized process operations and continuously
improved the professional skill level of employees to effectively control

the quality of live and fresh produce.

Operating results of retail business

An analysis of the retail principal operating income contributed by the
Group’s directly-operated hypermarkets, supermarkets, convenience

stores, department stores and the gross profit margin is set out as follows:

EEJI nTuFFH& *ﬁ
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Increase/
2019 2018 _  (Decrease)
—E-NEF —Z=-)N\&FE S CRd)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Retail business TEEK:
Hypermarkets RES 1,145,451 1,182,633 (8.1%)
Supermarkets fRE T 2,583,997 2,667,112 (3.1%)
Convenience stores EFE 347,959 363,132 (4.2%)
Department stores AERES 27,457 38,330 (28.4%)
(including commissions) i el A 22,311 32,601 (31.6%)
Total retail principal operating CZETEERKBAEF
income 4,104,864 4,251,207 (8.4%)
Gross profit margin of directly- HEKEL  GAaBmh
operated hypermarkets, EFE %’Eﬁ‘ ?( 6)
supermarkets and convenience
stores (%) 17.2% 16.4%  0.8p.p/BENE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

During the Reporting Period, the retail principal operating income of the
Group decreased by approximately 3.4%. This was mainly attributable to
(i) the same store sales growth (the “SSSG”) was -3.01%, as compared
to -0.44% for the year ended 31 December 2018; and (i) the impact of
the closure of two supermarkets in the second half year of 2018 and two
supermarkets and a department store in year of 2019, which caused the

decrease in the retail principal operating income.

The gross profit margin generated from the directly-operated retalil
business (excluding department stores) increased from approximately
16.4% in 2018 to approximately 17.2% in the Reporting Period, mainly
because of: (i) the optimisation of the commodities mix by gradually
increasing the proportion of the customized, buyout and private label
brand products during the Reporting Period; and (ii) the steady increase

of the online sales.

WHOLESALE BUSINESS

Steadily promoting the introduction and development of channel

resources

During the Reporting Period, in addition to strengthening the cooperation
with traditional sales channels, the Group continued to develop new
channel relationships and strengthened the integration of upstream and
downstream channel resources. The Group also further strengthened
in-depth cooperation with major e-commerce platforms and enhanced
overall competitiveness. Through the establishment of transportation
data monitoring and sharing platform, and implementing measures
such as improvement of right of vehicle access and implementation of
transportation policies, the Group further optimized its logistics service
model for serving the upstream suppliers and the downstream customers
by the overall logistics operation capability, and expanded its market

share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Enhancing the supply chain advantage continuously

During the Reporting Period, with the transformation and upgrading
of retail terminals caused by the Internet and mobile technologies, the
Group, as distributor, continued to optimize and adjust the product
structure according to factors such as sales volume, profit, brand
influence and accelerated the replacement and iteration of products.
At the same time, the Group paid close attention to the changes in the
consumer market and consumption trends, seized the opportunities of
participating in large-scale conventions and exhibitions, such as the
Spring Sugar and Alcoholic Commodities Fair, Shanghai Import Expo
and SIAL China, to continuously attract new suppliers and promote
the cooperation with international manufacturers and suppliers, to build
overseas supply chains and introduce overseas direct-purchased product
brands and categories. The Group made efforts to improve marketing
planning services and information sharing services to suppliers, further
improved the brand loyalty of suppliers, and cooperated with suppliers

in market development and marketing.

Expanding the online and offline distribution channels

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to explore distribution
channels, added online and offline sales channels, and improved the
professional precision marketing services and logistics and distribution
services for the existing e-commerce platforms and offline sales terminals
to enhance market competitiveness. Taking into account the Group’s
development strategic, a professional company was established focusing
on the development and marketing management of private label products
SO as to increase the number of categories of private label products.
In addition to the original sales coverage of 12 provinces and cities in
North China, Central China, South China and Northwest China, the Group
continued to expand the product sales ares and the distribution network

of private label products during the Reporting Period.
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Promoting the development of logistics operation

During the Reporting Period, the Group gained benefit from the resource
allocation through dynamic allocation of logistics resource data monitoring
and analysis. In order to further consolidate and enhance the logistics and
distribution capacity and efficiency of the Groups’s wholesale business,
the construction of the intelligent logistics project commenced during
the Reporting Period. The project is located at the intersection of West
6th Ring Road, Fangshan District, Beijing, Jinggang’ao Expressway and
Jingkun Expressway. The project has a total construction area of over
36,000 square meters, and has approximately 30,000 storage spaces
with a maximum storage capacity of 1.35 million boxes. The project
includes automatic equipment such as automatic warehouses, sorting
machines for goods and sorting machines for boxes. Multi-level in-store
picking are introduced to improve picking capacity and box conveyor belts
are used to interconnect the operations in each area, aiming at creating
a modern logistic and distribution center of high sales per unit area, high
degree of automation, low operating cost and low error rate. The project
is positioned as a all-rounded regional distribution center which supports
the storage and distribution services of wholesale business well-rounded
[E17 7] ). During

the Reporting Period, the construction and acceptance of the first phase

SKU (abbreviation for the “Stock Keeping Unit”

of the warehouse and the installation and adjustment commissioning
of the first phase of automatic warehouse have been completed. The
construction of the fire extinguishing equipment and power distribution
room are in progress simultaneously and civil engineering construction

of the second phase of the warehouse is in the preliminary stage.

2 ANNUAL REPORT 2019
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

i e ide i

HEMREBNERR

BEHRAN - AREEREBEEEIN B
ERFER HEREE®LPAIR: REE—
BB KR AR S B L B SR TS 6 W O X R B R AR

CRREHARAETEERYRAEBNER

ZEBMRIERMEILEANER - RS EE
RESERBIER - REEEEBI.68FHK
BAKEERL - RAERAZI138ME - A
BEMEUEE  RESRE  BEREOIRKSED

nE
OH]

S

L& SIAZEEEREEXERERED
MAERABXREEREEXREER  BRES
IERHR - ®EL  KELRA - EEHX

IR AR PRE X R - 3ZIE B TR E 2R
XA - AT IS HE E B 2 mEESKU (&
TFE7 | “Stock Keeping Unit” 2 78 ) ) 2 i BC X
RS - MEBNB TR T —BERER LB -
BB E BN EMAS - BEMAENRE
REBEIEOELET RS _HEFLET
BRUOEAVT EHRE -




R o ¥’, & ™ "; & o "i &
<« * . * *« * = *« - = +*«

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Operating results of wholesale business

The wholesale principal operating income and gross profit margin are

analyzed as follows:

BT Mo

BBEEXE
AREBR BT EEBWARENEH DTN -

Increase/
2019 2018 (Decrease)
—E-hEF ZZE-NFE #EmS OR)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBEFT
Wholesale principal operating LS EER R
income recognized by FEEBPA
Chaopi Group* 6,842,393 6,652,101 2.9%
Less: Intersegment Sales W D EEEE (433,286) (497,502) (12.9%)
Sales to franchisees $HE T NS 2,652 3,048 (13.0%)
Total wholesale principal HBEFEEBBRAST
operating income 6,411,759 6,157,647 4.1%
Gross profit margin**(%) FEF (%) 11.8% 11.7%  0.1p.p/ADE

* Chaopi Group represents Beijing Chaopi Trading Company Limited (the
“Chaopi Trading”) and its subsidiaries.
- This represents gross profit margin recognized by Chaopi Trading and its

subsidiaries including intersegment sales.

During the Reporting Period, the wholesale principal operating income
recognized by Chaopi Group increased by approximately 2.9% and was
mainly due to (i) the adjustment of the commodities mix being sold on
e-commerce platforms during the Reporting period; (i) the sale recovery
of liquor sale, and the growth in sales of daily-chemical commodities

obtained by the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin of wholesale business
recognized by Chaopi Group was approximately 11.8%, which almost

maintained the same level as compared to 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Principal operating income FEEBRA
Gross profit EH

Gross profit margin (%) FEHE (%)
Earnings before interest and tax B AR
Net profit A

FREE (%)
BBNE R RN

Net profit margin (%)

Net profit attributable to shareholders
of the parent company

Net profit margin attributable
to shareholders of the parent
company (%)

BRENE R AEFEE%)

PRINCIPAL OPERATING INCOME

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s principal operating income
increased by approximately 1.0%, of which retail principal operating
income decreased by approximately 3.4%, and wholesale principal

operating income increased by approximately 4.1%.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin of the Group was

14.5% (2018: 14.5%).

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Other operating income mainly comprises income from promotional
activities, rental income from leasing and sub-leasing of properties and

counters.

The Group’s other operating income decreased from RMB1,204,735,274
in 2018 to RMB1,103,032,165 by approximately 8.4% during the
Reporting Period, mainly due to the decrease in income generated from
e-commence promotional activities, as a result of the adjustment of the
commodities mix and the marketing model for sales to e-commerce
platforms in wholesale business, while the promotion and marketing fees

from the selling expenses being reduced correspondingly.
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2019 2018 (Decrease)
—E-hEF —E-N\F o, md
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBFT
10,555,190 10,445,548 1.0%
1,534,281 1,514,844 1.3%
14.5% 14.5% -
374,200 339,546 10.2%
97,087 106,377 (8.7%)
0.9% 1.0% ONp.p/BEDE
52,935 63,312 (16.4%)
0.5% 0.6% (0.1)p.p/BDE
FEEBBRA

MEBE - AEENEEEBRALEFAL1.0% -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SELLING EXPENSES

Selling expenses mainly comprise of salary and welfare, depreciation
and amortization, energy fee, rental expenses, repair and maintenance
expenses, transportation expenses, software service fee, packing

expenses, and advertising and promotion expenses.

The Group’s selling expenses were RMB1,952,250,721 during the
Reporting Period, representing a decrease of approximately 5.9%
compared to the corresponding period in 2018. The decrease was
primarily due to (i) the decreased in advertisement fees and promotional
fees targeted at the terminals of the wholesale business, along with
the adjustment of the commodities mix and the marketing model for
sales to e-commerce platforms mentioned above; (i) the adjustment
under the lease guidelines which caused a decrease in the sales
expenses of RMB47,670,253 and an increase in the financial expenses

of RMB23,980,277.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses mainly comprise salary and welfare, social
security costs (including retirement benefit contribution) and entertainment

expense.

The Group’s administrative expenses were RMB301,068,109 during the
Reporting Period, representing a slight increase of approximately 0.9% as
compared to 2018. The increase was mainly because of the increased
costs involving retirement benefit contribution, house reserves and other

social insurance relating to the wages.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Financial expenses include interests on bank loans and debentures,

interest income, bank charges and exchange gains or losses.

The Group’s financial expenses increased from RMB172,697,916 in 2018
to RMB196,678,193 in 2019. The increase is mainly due to the adjustment
of lease guidelines which affected the financial expenses increased by
RMB23,980,277 mentioned above, without taking into account such
effect, the financial expenses decreased by RMB30,632,993 actually,

as compared to 2018.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group’s subsidiaries, Chaopi Maolisheng (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (the “Maolisheng (Hong Kong)”) and Hong Kong Asia Company
Limited (the “Chaopi Hong Kong”), were registered and established in
Hong Kong. In accordance with Hong Kong taxation law, the relevant

corporate income tax rate was 16.5%.

Except for Maolisheng (Hong Kong) and Chaopi Hong Kong, other
members of the Group were subject to corporate income tax at a rate
of 25% during the Reporting Period on their respective taxable profit

pursuant to the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations.

Income tax expense increased from RMB71,212,617 in 2018 to
RMB81,715,652 in 2019, primarily due to the increase in 2019 taxable
profits.

NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE PARENT COMPANY

The net profit attributable to shareholders of the parent company
decreased by approximately 16.4% from RMB63,312,317 in 2018 to
RMB52,935,436 in 2019. This was mainly attributable to the adjustment
under the lease guidelines, without taking into account such effect,
the net profit attributable to shareholders of the parent company was
RMB68,772,365 during the Reporting Period, representing an increase
of 8.62% as compared to 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Group recorded basic earnings per share of approximately RMB0.13
for 2019, which was calculated on the basis of the number of 412,220,000
shares. The basic earnings per share for 2018 was RMBO0.15. The
decrease in earning per share was main due to the decrease of net
profit attributable to shareholders, which was affected by the adjustment

under the lease guidelines.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the Reporting Period, the Group mainly financed its operations

through internally generated cash flows, bank borrowings and debentures.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had non-current assets of
RMB3,338,177,696 (comprising of fixed assets, investment properties
and land right-of-use assets of RMB1,365,218,369), and non-current
liabilities of RMB1,423,848,149 (comprising of bonds payable of
RMB402,326,607).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had current assets of
RMB5,163,380,275. Current assets mainly comprised of cash and cash
equivalents of RMB864,849,804, inventories of RMB1,564,435,396,
accounts receivable of RMB1,197,382,479 and prepayments and other
receivables of RMB1,316,223,839. The Group had current liabilities of
RMB4,893,352,084. Current liabilities mainly comprised of accounts
payable and notes payables of RMB1,340,165,313, short-term borrowings
of RMB2,232,0083,496, contract liabilities of RMB428,557,184 and other

current liabilities of RMB328,520,621.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

INDEBTEDNESS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had bank loans of RMB2,232,003,496,
which consisted of accounts receivable factored bank loans of
RMB48,566,497 and unsecured bank loans of RMB2,183,436,999. All
the Group’s bank loans bear interest rates ranging from3.90% to 5.39%

per annum.

Certain of the Group’s margin deposits of RMB84,571,190 were pledged
for notes payable of RMB433,117,591 as at 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s gearing ratio* is approximately
74.3%, which is slightly higher than that of 71.7% as at 31 December

2018, mainly due to the result of the adjustment under the lease guidelines.

*

Calculated by: total liabilities/total assets

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’s operating revenues and expenses are principally denominated

in RMB.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not encounter any material
effect on its operation or liquidity as a result of fluctuation in currency

exchange rates.

EMPLOYEES AND TRAINING

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed 5,669 employees in the
PRC (31 December 2018: 6,010). The total staff costs (including directors’
and supervisors’ remunerations) of the Group for the Reporting Period
amounted to approximately RMB750,557,336 (2018: RMB748,945,515).
The staff emolument (including directors and supervisors) of the Group
are based on position, duty, experience, performance, and market rates,

in order to maintain their remunerations at a competitive level.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As required by the PRC laws and regulations, the Group participates in the
defined contribution retirement benefits scheme for its employees operated
by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC. The Group is
required to make contributions for those employees who are registered
as permanent residents in the PRC at a rate of 16% (2018: 20%) of the
employees’ salaries, bonuses and certain allowances. The Group has no
further obligation associated with the said defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme beyond the above mentioned annual contributions. The
Group’s contributions to the defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes amounted to approximately RMB66,757,466 for the Reporting
Period (2018: RMB70,101,635).

During the Reporting Period, the Group hosted trainings with various
format and topics for its employees to improve their skills and professional
knowledge. The Group held 62 seminars during the year, and 6,000

employees have benefited from them.

THE ISSUANCE OF BONDS

Pursuant to the “Approval on Issuance of Corporate Bonds of Beijing
Jingkelong Company Limited” (Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2019] No. 303) issued
by the China Securities Regulatory Commission, on 6 March 2019, the
Company was approved to publicly issue corporate bonds with a total
par value of no more than RMB800 million to qualified investors. The lead
underwriter and the bond trustee of this public issuance of corporate

bonds is Zhong De Securities Company Limited.

The Company finished the public issuance of 2019 corporate bonds (first
phase) in an aggregate amount of RMB400 million on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange on 22 August 2019. The maturity period of the corporate bonds
is five years, with an option to increase the coupon interest rate by the
issuer and a repurchase option by the investors at the end of the third

year. The coupon rate of the corporate bonds is 3.77%.

BT Mo

RBPBREEERNETER AEE2MPH
IR AT S PIAE B A R KB R E KRG E o KEE
RREFAELA/ATHEETERHNEIRRET
MIE - HERETRUMI6% (ZE—NF:
20%) BILL PIS AR AESR o BR Fa SF R ERRRON - A&k
BB ATUR KBRS EREME— S EE o
REHA - REEGAT IR KR RETE HX
AT ARY66,757,466TL( ZF—N\F : AR
70,101,6357T) °

o
%

BEHA - AEEBRBZRIEABRZRER
HEM

ANTHE - RS B THRE N EEME
E3IFE621E - H53FIA 86,0008 AKX ©

BITES

BIEPEFEZEZ201943A68 TEMCEMNIZEL
RREEERESERNERATMAKKREER
R AT RIEH AT ) (B B A1[2019]3035% ) #
BESFRTE - HEARARAERIEEE AR
HEAETRBETHNARIES - RRXARET
NEMEHFMEREHNEFZTERARRES
HBRETAF °

H
1
o

RoZE-AFENA-+-HRRTELSE
HR B AREIT20190FRAIEHR(FE—H) %
T2BERIMBETHNRRES  RARFAWE=
FRETAAREMARERRERIREEDBER
B ZEMER3TT% o

Ud

Xt

-]
ko

2019 F#f 27
I RRREEEEERNERAF]




®

«

4

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

ESTABLISHMENT OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 16 August 2019, the Group, through its non-wholly owned subsidiary
Chaopi Trading, established a subsidiary, Baoding Chaopi Trading
Company Limited (“Baoding Chaopi”), with an independent third party,
Mr. Wang Kang, to mainly engage in the wholesale and agency business
of the fast moving consumer goods such as liquor, grain and edible oil,
household chemicals and snacks. The registered capital of Baoding
Chaopi was RMB10,000,000, which has been fully paid up. The capital
contribution of Chaopi Trading was RMB7,000,000 and Chaopi Trading
became the holder of 70% of the equity interest in Baoding Chaopi.
The Company held an indirect equity interest of approximately 55.89%
in Baoding Chaopi.

SPECIAL MATTER

Jinan Chaopi Linda Trading Co., Ltd. (the “Jinan Chaopi Company”) is
a second-level subsidiary of the Group. Since its establishment, Jinan
Chaopi Company’s financial statements have been included in the

Group’s consolidation scope.

Currently, there is an unresolved dispute between the minority shareholders
of Jinan Chaopi Company (formerly the general manager of Jinan Chaopi
Company) and the major shareholder, Chaopi Trading, which is a first-
level subsidiary of the Group. Thus, the minority shareholders refused
to hand over the items and materials such as the company’s business
license, bank account opening permit, company seal, financial seal,
financial books and vouchers, etc. As at the date of this annual report, the
legal proceedings for Chaopi Trading to request the minority shareholders

to return the misappropriated items and materials are in progress.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The financial data of Jinan Chaopi Company in December 2019 was not
included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2019 due to the above actions of the minority
shareholders. Even through the management of the Company made some
adjustments to these consolidated financial statements based on the
bank statement of Jinan Chaopi Company provided as at 31 December
2019, the Group cannot guarantee the completeness and accuracy of
data related to Jinan Chaopi Company in the 2019 consolidated financial
statements of the Group. In addition, such dispute has resulted in the
inability to perform some of the audit procedures that are related to Jinan
Chaopi Company, such as issuance of letter of verification and inspection
of vouchers, which are necessary for the issue of audit opinion on the

Group’s 2019 financial statements.

According to the financial statements ended 30 November 2019 provided
by Jinan Chaopi Company, and based on the adjustment mentioned
above, the total assets and net assets of the Jinan Chaopi Company
merged into the Group’s 2019 consolidated financial statements were
RMB108.6571 million and RMB5.4677 million, which account for the
Group’s corresponding amounts in the consolidated balance sheet on 31
December 2019, 1.28% and 0.25% of respectively; the operating income
and net profit of 2019 were RMB36.0441 million and RMB-7.7177 million
respectively, which account for 0.31% and -7.95% of the corresponding
amounts in the Group’s consolidated income statement for 2019

respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

In addition, such dispute has resulted in the inability to perform some of
the audit procedures that are related to Jinan Chaopi Company, such
as issuance of letter of verification and inspection of vouchers, which
are necessary for the issue of audit opinion on the Company’s 2019
financial statements. Thus, the auditor of the Company is unable to
obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence on the possible impact
of Jinan Chaopi Company’s 2019 financial data on the Company’s 2019
consolidated financial statements, nor can the auditor determine whether
it is necessary to adjust its amount. At the same time, it is impossible to
judge whether there are other matters that may have an impact on the
financial statements. Thus, the auditor of the Company issued a qualified
audit report on the Group’s 2019 consolidated financial statements based

on matters about Jinan Chaopi Company.

The legal proceedings for Chaopi Trading, the subsidiary of the Company,
to request the minority shareholders of the Jinan Chaopi Company
to return the company’s business license, company seal and other
misappropriated items and materials are in progress. In order to safeguard
the interests of the Group and the shareholders of the Company, the
Group has strived to resolve the disputes and has taken various steps
and measures, including seeking advice from its legal advisers (“PRC
Legal Advisers”) as to the laws of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), collecting and handling the relevant evidence in support of the
legal proceedings together with the PRC Legal Advisers, and considering
other legal remedies. As disclosed above and under the section headed
“Auditor’s report” in this annual report, the management of the Company
made some adjustments to these financial statements based on the bank
statement of Jinan Chaopi Company provided as at 31 December 2019,
and after the adjustment mentioned above, the amounts of the total
assets, net assets, the operating income and net profit of the Jinan Chaopi
Company were small when compared to the corresponding amounts in
the Company’s consolidated balance sheet and consolidated income
statement, respectively. The audit committee of the Company confirmed
that it has reviewed and agreed with the management’s position and the

accounting treatment of the Company set out above.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2019, the Group had the following significant

events:

Repayment of short-term financing bonds

Approved by the China Association of Banking Market Dealers (CPI No.
[2018] CP153), on 21 March 2019, the Group completed the public
issuance of short-term financing bonds in the value of RMB300 million
and a term of one year in China. The issuance interest rate is 3.90%,
the value date is 25 March 2019, and the interest payment date is 24
March 2020. The lead underwriter is Bank of Beijing Co., Ltd.

As of 24 March 2020, the above-mentioned short-term financing bond
value of RMB300 million and interest expenses of RMB11.668 million
had been paid by through the settlement account at the Clearing House

Financial Markets Co., Ltd. and were fully settled.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BT Mo

STRATEGIES AND PLANS

In 2020, the epidemic of the novel coronavirus (the “COVID-19”) spread
in China at the beginning of the year. In face of the sudden epidemic, the
Group actively maintains the supply of goods with advantage of supply
chain and logistics network to ensure stable supply of daily necessities
in the market of the capital, including protective masks, disinfection
supplies, grain, edible oils, non-staple food, meat, eggs, fruits, vegetables,
and milk, so as to reduce consumption panic; leveraging the technical
foundation of online and offline integration and development, the Group
meets the demand in a contactless manner through online orders during
the epidemic; at the same time, the Group concerns and cares about the
employees, strengthens their protective measures during the epidemic,
leads them to take up social responsibilities mutually, to earnestly ensure
the market supply, implement epidemic prevention and control measures
in stores to stabilise the market and the public. The sudden outbreak of
novel coronavirus epidemic will bring impacts to China 's macro-economy
and the development environment of the Group. The Group will carefully
analyze the experience gained from this epidemic and identify the impacts
on the lifestyle and behavior of the consumers to cope with the new
challenges as well as opportunities.

Retail Business

In 2020, the Group will further develop innovative thinking, explore and
grasp the market and innovation opportunities, and will actively introduce
the new technologies, experiences, culture and other initiatives to meet
the needs of consumption upgrade; focusing on the consumers’ needs
and relying on the continuous improvement of technology and retail
infrastructure, the Group will take advantage of existing offline resources
to integrate online and offline boundary, customer boundary and supply
chain boundary, strengthen multi-format linkage to meet consumption
in different shopping scenarios. In this way the consumers can not only
choose to enter the stores with more confidence relievedly and happily,
but also can easily choose to shop online conveniently.

Wholesale Business

In 2020, on the basis of steadily consolidating the existing upstream
and downstream channel resource, the Group will further enhance
its capabilities in marking, information services and logistics services
as a distributor; the Group will promote the development of logistics
intelligence based on the operation model of a well-rounded warehouse,
with the support of technological innovation and the goal of improving the
level of logistics services. Aiming at expanding its business, the Group
will improve logistics intelligence to maximize efficiency and enhance
the logistics service capability, which will enable the Group to keep its
competitiveness as a comprehensive wholesale distributor.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group recognizes the importance of a robust governance framework
to drive the strategy for sustainable development of the Company and long-
term sustainable value for the shareholders. The Group has adopted the
principles of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with the objective of enhancing the quality
of corporate governance of the Group and the conduct of its business
in a fair, transparent and ethical way. This corporate governance report
describes the corporate governance practices of the Group and explains

the applications of the principles of the Corporate Governance Code.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has applied the principles of
and complied with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange
during the Reporting Period, save for the directors’ retirement by rotation

as explained below.

Code provision A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code requires that
every director (including those appointed for a specific term) of a listed
issuer shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. The Articles of Association of the Company stipulate that each
director shall be elected by the general meeting of the Company for a
term of not more than three years, and be eligible for re-election upon
the expiry of the term. Having taken into account of the continuity of the
Group’s operation and management policies, the Company’s Articles of
Association contain no express provision for the director’s retirement
by rotation and thus deviate from the aforementioned provision of the

Corporate Governance Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. All the directors with whom specific
enquiries have been made have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code and
code of conduct regarding their securities transactions throughout the

Reporting Period.

THE BOARD

The board of directors (the “Board”) takes the responsibility for leadership
and control of the Group and is collectively responsible for safeguarding
the best interest of the Group and accountable to the shareholders.
Matters that are required to be determined or considered by the Board
include overall group strategies of the Group, substantial acquisitions
and disposals, capital transactions, annual, interim and quarterly results,
distribution of dividends and other substantial operational and financial
matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the
Board to the Group’s management include the preparation of financial
accounts for the Board’s approval, execution of business strategies and
initiatives approved by the Board, implementation of an adequate system
of internal controls and risk management procedures, and compliance

with the relevant statutory requirements, rules and regulations.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed at the 2018 annual general
meeting (the “2018 Annual General Meeting”) held on 24 May 2019,
each of Mr. Li Jianwen, Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li Chunyan, Ms. Zhang
Yan, Mr. Li Shunxiang, Mr. Wang Liping, Mr. Chen Liping and Mr. Choi
Onward has been re-elected as a director and Mr. Zhang Liwei has been
elected as an executive director, the said directors were appointed for
a three-year term, and such term will expire upon the end of the annual
general meeting for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “2021
Annual General Meeting”). Accordingly, the Board currently consists of

four executive directors (Mr. Li Jianwen, Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li
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Chunyan and Mr.Zhang Liwei), two non-executive directors (Ms. Zhang
Yan and Mr. Li Shunxiang) and three independent non-executive directors
(Mr. Wang Liping, Mr. Chen Liping and Mr. Choi Onward), with Mr. Li
Jianwen serving as the chairman of the Board. All of the directors have

fulfilled their responsibilities as directors throughout the Reporting Period.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationships) among members of the Board.

Each of Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Zhang Liwei will
not receive a director’s fee, but is entitled to remuneration based on his/
her executive duties and responsibilities (other than being a director) in
the Company. Each of them is entitled to a fixed annual basic salary,
a performance based bonus (to be determined by reference to the
Company’s annual financial results) and other allowance and benefits
in kind under applicable PRC law and regulations. Their respective
fixed annual basic salaries for each of the forthcoming three-year term
shall be reviewed by the remuneration committee of the Company and
subject to the Board’s approval. The chairman of the Board is entitled to
remuneration (including an annual basic salary and a performance-based
bonus to be determined by reference to the Company’s annual financial
results, granted and approved by the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the Beijing Chaoyang District Government),
and other allowance and benefits in kind under the applicable PRC
law and regulations. The non-executive directors will not receive any
remuneration. Mr. Choi Onward, an independent non-executive director
is entitled to receive a fixed director’s fee of RMB154,758 per annum (tax
inclusive). Each of the other two independent non-executive directors is
entitled to receive a fixed director’'s fee of RMB41,850 per annum (tax
inclusive). The aforesaid remunerations of the directors of the Company
have been considered and approved by an ordinary resolution passed

at the 2018 Annual General Meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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During the Reporting Period, the Board fulfilled the requirement of having
at least three independent non-executive directors (Mr. Wang Liping, Mr.
Chen Liping and Mr. Choi Onward) and having appointed independent
non-executive directors representing at least one-third of the Board as
required by the Listing Rules. The Company also met the requirement of
having at least one independent non-executive director (Mr. Choi Onward)
who has the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Company has received
from each of the three independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation in respect of their independence. The Company is of the
opinion that all the independent non-executive directors are independent

pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Reasonable notice periods and sufficient relevant information have been
given to all directors so as to enable them to attend the Board meetings
and make appropriate decisions in relation to matters to be discussed.
All directors are entitled to include matters of their concern in the agenda
of all Board meetings. All directors are entitled to inspect all relevant

corporate information.

The biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 78 to 81

of this annual report.

Mr. Li Jianwen, acting as the chairman and executive director of the

Company, is responsible for operation of the Board.

Mr. Shang Yonggtian, acting as the general manager and executive
director of the Company, is responsible for daily business development

and management of the Company.

The other two executive directors, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Zhang Liwei,
are responsible for the financial affairs and retail operation of the Group,

respectively.
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Each executive director has sufficient experience to hold the position so

as to accomplish his/her duties effectively and efficiently.

Pursuant to the code provision A.1.8 of the Corporate Governance Code,

the Company should arrange appropriate insurance to cover potential

legal actions against its directors. To comply with such code provision,

the Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance for the

directors to indemnify their liabilities arising from their corporate activities.

During the Reporting Period, five Board meetings (not including written

Board resolutions) were held and the attendance records of the directors

attending such meetings in person are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman)
Mr. Shang Yongtian

Ms. Li Chunyan

Mr. Zhang Liwei*

Mr. Liu Yuejin**

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Zhang Yan
Mr. Li Shunxiang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Choi Onward

Mr. Chen Liping

Mr. Wang Liping

with effect from 24 May 2019.

ke

effect from 24 May 2019.

BITES
FREXSEE (BEFER)
oK E
FEELL

SRALIR ST
iy

FHUITES
RERL
FBHE A

BYFHITES
Bkt
BRSSP oE 4
TR RE

Mr. Zhang Liwei has been appointed as an executive director of the Board

Mr. Liu Yuejin has ceased to be an executive director of the Board with
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ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTOR AT THE GENERAL
MEETING

During the Reporting Period, one annual general meeting was held and

the attendance records of the directors attending such meeting in person

are set out below:

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman) FRENEE(EFR)
Mr. Shang Yongtian K E A

Ms. Li Chunyan FHEBELL

Mr. Zhang Liwei* SR (B S A
Mr. Liu Yuejin** BIRRME S A
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Ms. Zhang Yan wEZT

Mr. Li Shunxiang e E
Independent Non-executive Directors BNYFHITES
Mr. Choi Onward BRERE

Mr. Chen Liping BRI A

Mr. Wang Liping ERFRE

* Mr. Zhang Liwei has been appointed as an executive director of the Board

with effect from 24 May 2019.

> Mr. Liu Yuejin has ceased to be an executive director of the Board with

effect from 24 May 2019.

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF

DIRECTORS

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the directors are

updated with the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and

other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time to ensure

compliance of the same by all directors. All directors are encouraged to

attend external forums or training courses on relevant topics which may

count towards continuous professional development training.
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Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
all directors should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
During the Reporting Period, all directors have participated in in-house
training courses and workshops in respect of corporate governance
and regulations organized by the Company or, by perusing materials
relevant to the Company’s business or to their duties and responsibilities,
the relevant directors have participated in appropriate continuous
development activities. All the directors have provided a record of the

training they received to the Company.

Pursuant to the code provision C.1.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the management of the Company also provides all members of
the Board with monthly updates which presents information in respect
of the Company’s performance and financial position, and changes and
development in laws, regulations, business and the market, to assist

each director in the discharge of their duties.

The participation by individual directors in the professional development

programs in 2019 is recorded in the table below.

Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman) FENALE(EEFR)
Mr. Shang Yongtian ok A SE A

Ms. Li Chunyan TEHERLL

Mr. Zhang Liwei* SRR SR
Mr. Liu Yuejin*™ S B o o A
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Ms. Zhang Yan REX T

Mr. Li Shunxiang B S A
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHITES
Mr. Choi Onward LR SEE

Mr. Chen Liping Bz S A

Mr. Wang Liping ERFEE

*

Mr. Zhang Liwei has been appointed as an executive director of the Board
with effect from 24 May 2019.

* Mr. Liu Yuejin has ceased to be an executive director of the Board with
effect from 24 May 2019.
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CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

Mr. Li Jianwen and Mr. Shang Yongtian are the chairman of the Board
and the general manager of the Company respectively, which are two
clearly defined positions. The chairman is responsible for the effective
operation of the Board while the general manager is in charge of the
Group’s daily business development and management. The Company’s
Articles of Association set out the respective duties and powers of the

chairman and the general manager in detail.

Board committees

There are currently three Board committees, namely, the audit committee,
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee, to assist the

Board in carrying out its responsibilities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on 24 May
2019, the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the sixth session
of the Board was established. The Audit Committee wholly consists of
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Choi Onward who was
appointed as the chairman and Mr. Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping

who were both appointed as members.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are set in line with
the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. The Audit Committee
provides an important link between the Board and the external auditors
in matters falling within the scope of the audit of the Group, and is
responsible for the review of financial information of the Company, the
oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system and internal control
procedures, and exercises the corporate governance functions delegated
by the Board. It reviews the effectiveness of the external audit, internal
controls and risk evaluation, and provides comments and suggestions

to the Board.
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Pursuant to the code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the Audit Committee performed the corporate governance functions
delegated by the Board during the Reporting Period, including, to develop
and review the policies and practices of the Company on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board; to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management; to review and monitor the policies and practices
of the Company on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the directors and employees; and to review
the compliance by the Company with the Corporate Governance Code

and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the Reporting Period
for reviewing the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, discussing internal controls, financial reporting matters and
corporate governance functions including a review of the 2018 annual
report and the 2019 quarterly and interim results, and discussing relevant
matters including matters relating to annual auditing plans of 2019 and
corporate governance. The attendance records of the members of the

Audit Committee attending such meetings in person are set out below:

Mr. Choi Onward (chairman) BRERE(TE)
Mr. Chen Liping PR S A
Mr. Wang Liping F AT A

As at 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee had performed the

following work:

1. reviewed annual and interim financial statements and the related
results announcements, documents and other matters or issues

raised by external auditors;
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2. reviewed the findings of external auditors; Ruihua Certified Public
Accountants LLP has been the auditor of the Company during the
Reporting Period, and the Board approved the appointment of the
auditors by the Audit Committee;

3. reviewed the independence of the external auditors and the

engagement of external auditors for annual audit;

4. and supervised financial reporting and risk management and internal

control systems of the Group;

5.  reviewed annual audit plan of the Group;

6. reviewed the Corporate Governance Report of the Group;

7.  other governance functions granted by the Board

Minutes of meetings of Audit Committee shall be kept by Secretary to

the Board.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s 2019 audited annual
results and discussed with the management and the external auditors on
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, internal

control and financial reporting matters.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on 24 May
2019, the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) of
the sixth session of the Board was established, in which Mr. Wang Liping
(an independent non-executive director) was appointed as the chairman,
and Mr. Li Jianwen (an executive director) and Mr. Chen Liping (an

independent non-executive director) were both appointed as members.
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The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are in line
with the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. The main duties
of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations to the
Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure for the Directors’
and senior management of the Company, and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for determining remuneration policies;
to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives. In accordance
with the code provision B.1.2(c)(i) of the Corporate Governance Code,
the Remuneration Committee has been delegated with responsibilities by
the Board, and is responsible for determining the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
directors, and to ensure that no director or any of his associates is

involved in deciding his own remuneration.

During the Reporting Period, a meeting of the Remuneration Committee
were held for discussing and considering the performance-based bonus
of the Company’s directors and senior management for 2018, being
proposed the remuneration of the new directors and supervisors. The
attendance records of the members of the Remuneration Committee

attending such meeting in person are set out below:

THRFRE(EE)
BRSPSt
FREXEE”

Mr. Wang Liping (chairman)
Mr. Chen Liping
Mr. Li Jianwen*

* Mr. Li Jianwen was not involved in deciding his performance-based bonus

during the meeting.
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As at 31 December 2019, the Remuneration Committee had performed

the following work:

1 Reviewed remuneration policies and structures of directors and

senior executives in 2019, and proposed suggestions and advice;

2.  Reviewed whether the remuneration policies and structures are

appropriate.

3. Evaluated the performance of executive directors and make sure
that all executive directors perform their duties pursuant to service

contract of directors.

In accordance with code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code, by 31 December 2019, the remuneration list of senior executives

classified by remuneration bands is as follows:

BE_ZT-NFT_A=+t—H FHZEEE
TTEV ARSI T -

53
ne

Rl —E-NFRES SREEBNHMH
HRERBERMNER  YAEFSEMHR

R

tﬂ]H

2. WIHMBERIREEEIRE KEY

3. HHMITEEMIIERBETHE  EREHR
TEEOHRKEZRBEH)ES -

RIBEZCTRDETRIGEXEBALKRHRE - BE—
—NFTZA=+—RIEFE  &NRAIRE
ARlgDmRERABNEFMEINNT :

Number of individuals

Remuneration band (RMB/month) FMAR(AEE T H) AE

0 to 1,000,000 0%£1,000,000

Minutes of meetings of Remuneration Committee shall be kept by

Secretary to the Board.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on 24 May
2019, the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the
sixth session of the Board was established, in which Mr. Chen Liping
(an independent non-executive director) was appointed as the chairman,
and Mr. Li Jianwen (an executive director) and Mr. Wang Liping (an

independent non-executive director) were both appointed as members.
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The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
in line with the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for nominating potential candidates
for directorships, reviewing the nomination of directors and making
recommendations to the Board on such appointments, reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy, and assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive directors, and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning
(in particular the chairman of the Board and the general manager) for
directors. The Diversity Policy of the Members of the Board was adopted
at the Board meeting on 23 August 2013, pursuant to which all the
nominations of any member of the Board should be made in accordance
with the Diversity Policy by taking into account certain objective criteria
(including without limitation, the gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of

service) and having due regard to the benefits of a diversified Board.

During the Reporting Period, two meetings of the Nomination Committee
has held for discussing and recommending the candidate to be proposed
for election/appointment as the Board, reviewing relevant matters
including the structure and composition of the Board of the Company
and assessing the of independence of the independent non-executive
directors. The attendance records of the members of the Nomination

Committee attending such meetings in person are set out below:

Mr. Chen Liping (chairman) BRI TR (/)
Mr. Wang Liping F AT A
Mr. Li Jianwen TEXEE
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As at 31 December 2019, the Nomination Committee had performed

the following work:

1. Reviewed structure, number and composition of the Board, and
proposed suggestions on changes of the Board according to
development strategy of the Group; the Nomination Committee
assessed the current structure of the Board from diversification
policies on the number and composition, skills, knowledge,
experience and other respects of its members and compare it with
listed companies in the same industry. As for current structure of
the Board, the composition conforms to the Company’s business
development and each director has properly required skills and
experience, diversified opinions and perspectives; the combination
of executive directors, non-executive directors, and independent
directors are also kept in balance. Among the three independent
non-executive directors, one is a professional accountant with
accounting management experience. Each director has sufficient
experience and ability necessary to fulfill his duties, regularly check
the Company’s business and financial position, and participate in

the training on directors’ continuing professional development.

2. Reviewed and assessed the independence of independent non-
executive director; Each independent director should sign written
documents to confirm with the Company that none of the condition
in paragraph 3.13 of the Listing Rules existed. If there are any
questions, the independent directors should promptly inform the

Company.

3. Adopted the Diversity Policy of the Members of the Board and took
various factors into consideration, including educational background,

age, knowledge, skills and etc, when making the nominations.

Minutes of meetings of Nomination Committee shall be kept by Secretary

to the Board of Directors.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

During the Reporting Period, the supervisory committee of the Company
(the “Supervisory Committee”) consists of two shareholder-appointed
supervisors (Ms. Liu Wenyu and Mr. Yang Baoqun), two independent
supervisors (Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Fu Yanjun) and two staff-appointed
supervisors (Ms. Niu Hongyan and Ms. Li Chunyi). Ms. Liu Wenyu serves

as the chairman of the Supervisory Committee.

The supervisors have performed their work in a dedicated and diligent
manner and carried out effectively the functions of supervising the legal
and regulatory compliance relating to financial matters and overseeing

the directors and senior management of the Group during their offices.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the
auditors’ independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the auditing
process. It receives letter from the auditors confirming their independence
and objectivity and holds meetings with representatives of the auditors to
consider the scope of their audit, approve their fees, and the scope and
appropriateness of non-audit services, if any, to be provided by them.
The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on the

appointment and retention of the independent auditors.

Ruihua Certified Public Accountants LLP (rEE@TRIEMAT (kY
BA¥) ) has been appointed as the auditors of the Company for
the period from the conclusion of the 2018 annual general meeting to
the conclusion of the 2019 Annual General Meeting of the Company.
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company agreed to pay
Ruihua Certified Public Accountants LLP (@ :tESEHAT (k@
A%) )RMB1,100,000 as 2019 auditing fees and RMB200,000 for non-
audit services in respect of reviewing the Group’s 2019 interim financial
statements. Ruihua undertake the audits of the subsidiaries of the Group,
therefore the total audit expenses paid by the Group is disclosed in note

(VI) 40 on page 274 of this report.
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RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARATION OF
ACCOUNTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements
in compliance with the relevant regulations and applicable accounting

standards.

The responsibility of the auditors with respect to the financial reporting
are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 102 to 115

of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The clear-cut governance structure, policy and procedure, and report
mechanism of the Group’s, risk management and internal control system

enables the Group to conduct the relevant risk management.

Responsibility

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
system, the Board should review the effectiveness of the system. The
management is responsible for designing and executing the internal
control system in order to manage the risks that the Company is faced
with to recognize and manage risks to minimize, relieve, transfer or
avoid these risks. The Board elaborates on the above risk management
and internal control system to make clear that it aims to manage risks
rather than eliminate the risks leading to failure of achieving business
objectives. Thus, the system can only make reasonable, rather than

absolute, guarantee against material misrepresentation or loss.
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Risk management structure

The risk management structure composed of the Board, the Audit
Committee, and an internal control department (the “Internal Control

Department”) has been set up.

The Board undertakes the responsibility of continuous supervision of the
risk management and internal control system of the Group. It will annually

review the effectiveness of the system through the Audit Committee.

The Internal Audit Department, established in 2009, which has been
reorganized into the Internal Control Department in 2018, assists the
Board of Directors and the Audit Committee in continuously reviewing
the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management and internal control
of the Group, recognizing shortcomings of the design and operation of
internal control and proposing suitable improvement suggestions. Major
risks or serious internal control mistakes discovered, the Internal Audit
Department should report to the Audit Committee and the Board in a
timely manner, and it should make correction plan and clarify the persons

responsible for the things, and follow up to ensure the improvement.

All functional departments take responsibilities for executing risk
management procedure and internal control measures in daily operation
and management, and report the risks within their operation and functions

to the management.

The management assists the Board in implementing policies and
procedures related to risks and control to determine and evaluate risks.
In addition, it participates in the design, operation and supervision of

suitable internal control measures to minimize and control those risks.

The Group has formulated and adopted a corporate risk management
system, so it can provide the policy procedure of effectively recognizing,
evaluating and managing major risks. The risk management group should
at least annually recognize the risks affecting the business objectives,
and make risk mitigation plans and designate certain persons to address

these risks through standard evaluation and ranking mechanism.
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Risk management procedure

All functional departments should clarify their business process, and
recognize and evaluate the risks within their business. They should
propose and implement risk management solutions and annually report

recognized major risks to the management.

The Audit Committee should annually check and discuss possible risks
that affecting future development or major strategies of the Group, and
review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control

system.

All functional departments should recognize and evaluate risks in finance
and other fields in such aspects as investment examination and approval,
financial management, laws and regulations, and form regular risk
evaluation mechanism. They should recognize, evaluate and analyze all
risks in the operation and development, and follow the risk change trend

and their control improvement and effect in a timely manner.

Conducting comprehensive risk evaluation and assessment before major
events such as stock acquisition and major asset sales can effectively

control business risks.

Conducting annual risk review can institutionalize and standardize internal

audit.

Internal control

The Internal Control Department annually evaluates and reviews the internal
control and risk management system, and evaluates the effectiveness
and adequacy of the internal control and risk management system from
perspectives of controlling environment, risk assessment, internal control

activity, monitoring measure as well as information and communication.

Boasting an organizational structure with clear-cut responsibilities and
specific report procedures, the Group defines clearly the rights and
liabilities of all business and operation departments, and ensures the

effective check and balance through approval and review procedures.
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The Company also conducts the internal control through comprehensive
budget management, management of new and additional budget, financial
reporting and analysis, business and operation analysis meeting. In
particular, it can recognize risks, and monitor implementation of correction

measures through data mining, collection and comparison.

Control environment

The Group focuses on institution and standardization construction,
and regularly clarifies, revises and optimizes business procedures and
regulations. In particular, it improves relevant systems to address new
problems emerging in risk management in a timely manner, strengthens
training and education of relevant procedures, and achieves management

objectives through implementing all procedures and systems.

Risk assessment

The Internal Control Department regularly clarifies and recognizes
systematic risks; relevant functional departments recognize and evaluate
business risks within their responsibilities, and they recognize, evaluate
and analyze risks in finance and other fields from such perspectives
as investment examination and approval, financial management, laws
and regulations, and form a regular risk evaluation mechanism. They
should recognize, evaluate and analyze all risks in the operation and

development.

Supervision measures

The Audit Commitment Conducts regular internal compliance inspection,

risk management and internal control review;

The securities and legal department and the company secretary ensure
observation of the Listing Rules and supervise compliance of applicable

laws and regulations;

The Internal Control Department independently reviews risk management

and internal control.
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Information and communication

The Company continuously develops and maintains information
management systems, including Store MIS System, Logistics Management
System, Human Resources Management System, Financial Management
System, Fixed Assets Management System, Capital Management System,
to support business, operation, financial reporting and information

disclosure of the Group.

Timely communication and exchange with each other can be achieved

through intranet, OA Office System and Email System.

Shareholders can acquire information of relevant enterprises through

the Company’s official website and the investor relations department.

Internal audit

The Internal Control Department annually makes internal audit priorities
and internal audit plans according to corporate strategy, operation and
management needs and annual work plan of the Company. Matters of

internal audit include the following:

Audit contents
AR

Audit types
EitER

Audit during corporate operation
EELIREET

Economic responsibility audit
KOEREET

Post-evaluation audit

®EHERA

completion of projects

i
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Review effectiveness of risk management and internal control

system

According to the above risk management and internal control system, the
Internal Control Department conducts regular review (one to three months)
and reports from three aspects, namely risk management, internal control
and internal audit. After discovering shortcomings of internal control, the
Internal Control Department will communicate with relevant functional
departments in a timely manner, and propose correction measures
and improve regulations and procedures after discussion with the
management. The Internal Control Department regularly (one to three
months) reports the effectiveness of the risk management and internal

control system to the Audit Committee.

In 2019, the Audit Committee and the Internal Control Department
reviewed the risk management and internal control system, including
finance, operation and compliance control, especially upgrading
management, inventory management, cost accounting, fixed assets
management, intangible assets management, taxation management,
budget management, and large-amount capital expenditure of information
management system; all functional departments clarified and optimized
business procedures, discovered and assessed risks within their business
scope, and controlled risks through standardization building. The annual
review included resources of the Group in accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting, employees’ qualifications and experience, and
budget related to training courses. The Audit Committee and the Board
discovered no major shortcoming that could pose serious impact on
the finance and operation of the Group. The Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control methods. The Board holds that the
risk management and internal control is adequate and effective for the
year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of the annual report

and financial report, and it can fully safeguard the rights and interests

of shareholders and employees as well as the Group.
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Procedures and internal control measures of treatment and

disclosure of inside information

The Group complies with requirements of Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses inside
information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless the

information falls within any of the safe harbors as provided in the SFO.

The Board manages inside information of the Company. The chairman of
the Board is the principal of inside information management. The chairman
of the Board and other directors are responsible for management
and disclosure of inside information. The Company requires that all
departments and individuals should keep secrete of all inside information,
and no one is allowed to disclose and report any content related to
inside information without permission of the Board. If the Board decides
to disclose inside information (if necessary), the information disclosure
of inside information should be undertaken by the securities and legal

department.

GOING CONCERN

There were no uncertain events or conditions of a material nature that
would affect the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern during

the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.

LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Group has bought liability insurance for directors and senior executives

to ensure they take no any potential legal liability.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Bo, who was appointed as the company secretary of the Company
on 18 March 2011, fulfills the requirement under Rules 3.28 and 3.29
of the Listing Rules. As an employee of the Company, the company
secretary supports the Board, ensures good information flow within the
Board and that Board policies and procedures are followed; advises
the Board on corporate governance matters, facilitates induction of
the directors and, monitors the training and continuous professional
development of directors. He has attained not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the Reporting Period. His biography is
set out in the “Directors’ Supervisor’s and Senior Management’s Profiles”

section of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company, where
shareholder(s) holding 10% (including 10%) or more of the Company’s
issued and outstanding shares carrying the right to vote request(s) in
writing for the convening of an extraordinary general meeting, the Board

shall convene an extraordinary general meeting within two (2) months.

Pursuant to Article 60 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
whenever the Company convenes a general meeting, shareholder(s)
individually or collectively holding 3% or more of the shares carrying the
right to vote of the Company shall have the right to propose new motions
to the general meeting by submitting the same to the convener in writing.
The Company shall include in the agenda for the meeting the matters
in the motions that fall within the scope of duties of the shareholders’

general meeting.
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Pursuant to Article 78 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
shareholders shall comply with the following procedures when they
propose to convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting:
(1) shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or more (including 10%)
of the shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting proposed to be held
for 90 consecutive days or more may sign one or more written request(s),
the form and substance of which are the same, to propose to the Board
for holding an extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting, and shall
list out clearly the agenda of the meeting in the request. The Board shall,
upon receipt of the aforesaid written request, convene the extraordinary
general meeting or the class general meeting as soon as possible. The
shareholdings mentioned above shall be calculated on the date when the
shareholders make such written request. (2) If the Board does not serve
a notice of such meeting within 30 days upon receipt of the aforesaid
written request, shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or more
(including 10%) of the Company’s shares carrying the right to vote at
the meeting proposed for 90 consecutive days or more may sign one or
more written request(s), the form and substance of which are the same,
to propose to the Supervisory Committee for holding an extraordinary
general meeting or a class meeting, and shall list out clearly the agenda of
the meeting in the request. The Supervisory Committee shall, upon receipt
of the aforesaid written request, convene and preside the extraordinary
general meeting or the class meeting in a timely manner. (3) If the
Supervisory Committee does not serve a notice of such meeting within
30 days upon receipt of the aforesaid written request, the shareholders
making such request may convene the meeting by themselves within
two months upon receipt of the request by the Supervisory Committee,
and the procedures for convening such meeting shall be as similar to
those for convening a general meeting by the Board as possible. Any
reasonable cost incurred in connection with the convening and holding
of the meeting by the shareholders themselves as result of the failure
on the part of the Board and the Supervisory Committee to hold such
meeting as required above shall be borne by the Company, and shall
be deducted from the amount due to the directors and supervisors of

the Company who are in default.
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RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group is committed to maintaining a stable and constructive
communication with shareholders, adhering to the principles of integrity,
regularity and high transparency, and disclosing the required information
in compliance with the Listing Rules. Information of the Group is

disseminated to its shareholders in the following manners:

—  delivery of results and reports to shareholders;

- publication of announcements and shareholders’ circulars on the
websites of The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and
the Company in accordance with the Listing Rules; on the Group’s
website, investors can query the fundamental information, public
announcements and other the information since the Company
become listed, including annual reports, interim reports, quarterly
results, price-sensitive information, circulars, announcements
and notices. All the information above is available in the “Investor

Relations” section on the Company’s website;

— arranging general and extraordinary meetings with its shareholders
as an effective communication channel between the Board and

shareholders.

- the Department of Investor Relations of the Company is responsible
for liaison with investors and analysts by answering their questions,
organizing field trips to the stores and the distribution centers of the
Group, and gathering, in a timely manner, opinions and comments
from analysts and investors on the operation of the Group, and

selectively adopting them in the Group’s operation; and

—  communicating actively with various parties, in particular, convening
briefing sessions, press conferences and one-on-one meetings with
institutional investors upon the announcement of results and material

investments.
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The amount of the share-holdings of the senior executives of the Group ~ AEBESHREIEA EFBEMENT -

is as follows:
Approximate

percentage of Approximate
Total number total issued  percentage of
of domestic domestic total issued
shares held shares shares
HERTRER WHERTEREK
Name =4 Capacity g% FERERBRE BHED BHOEDE
Li Shenlin FEM Personal EA 430,100 0.19 0.10
Zhang Hongbo SRATE Personal fEA 100,000 0.04 0.02
Wang Hong 4T Personal fEA 186,696 0.08 0.05
Li Bo i) Personal A 0 0 0
Pan Xuemin EE Personal EA 0 0 0

The details of the classified shareholder and the number of total equities R BRI HFIE R EFRELN T -

are as follow:

The Group issued a total of 412,220,000 shares of domestic shares and < £ [# 877 & J& R HZ £ 5H412,220,0008%

H shares respectively: =3
Domestic shares: 230,060,000 WE&R% © 230,060,000
H shares: 182,160,000 HR% : 182,160,000

On 24 May 2019, the Company held the 2018 Annual General Meetingto AN /A T 2019F5 424 H BE2018FE E R HIEF
consider issued shares, repurchase shares, issue short term debentures, k& - |HEIITARG - DB - B{TEH@RE
issue corporate bonds and other resolutions (details of the contents have & « BT ARIELSEZR(HARNBTAIRE AN

been disclosed in the Company’s annual general circular dated 8 April 201944 A8 FE MR EEE K@ K) + B E

2019). Except repurchase shares, the other resolutions as described — BER% (5 3 ERESFEBLASD - Hipm=Ene
above have been adopted. FEEEE -
The Board always welcomes shareholders’ views and input sincerely. ZTEe@BHHEFOSURTHERRLHE o [REA

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to  BERFLAZR K « Tif HELEHBHRAHA D )
the Board by addressing them to the Investor Relations Department of i EEBEX MM ESSIREHEESRHLETE
the Company by letter, telephone, fax or email. Details of the contact & o Bt48 S RISFIESH A NEIRELE o

information can be found at page 5 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors hereby presents their annual report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the

Reporting Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group principally engages in the retail and wholesale distribution
of daily consumer products in the region covering the Beijing city and
certain parts of its periphery. There were no significant changes in the

nature of the Group’s principal activities during the Reporting Period.

The business review, risks, performance analysis using financial key
performance indicators and future prospects of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Chairman’s Statement on pages
7 to 10 of this report and the Management Discussion and Analysis on

pages 11 to 32 of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Detail information on the ESG practices adopted by the Company is set
out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 86

to 101 of this report

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Company has complied in material respects with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and

operation of the Company.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the Reporting Period and the state of affairs of
the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2019 are set out in the

financial statements on pages 116 to 347.
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The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.08
(2018: RMBO0.08) per share (tax inclusive) for the year ended 31 December
2019 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company at 4:30 p.m., the end of Monday, 6 July 2020. Subject to the
approval by the shareholders of the Company at the 2019 Annual General
Meeting on (i) the proposed amendment to the articles of association of
the Company as referred to in the announcement of the Company dated
22 April 2020, and (i) the payment of the final dividend, the said final
dividend is expected to be paid on or before 22 August 2020.

The dividends to be distributed will be denominated and declared in
Renminbi. Distribution of cash dividends for domestic shareholders will be
paid in Renminbi, while cash dividends for H-shareholders will be declared
in Renminbi but paid in Hong Kong dollars (based on the average of the
exchange rates for Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars as announced by
the People’s Bank of China for the five working days prior to the date
of the 2019 Annual General Meeting at which the final dividends would
be approved by the shareholders).

Pursuant to the “Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC” and the
“Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the Enterprise Income Tax Law
of the PRC”, commencing from 1 January 2008, any Chinese domestic
enterprise which pays dividends to a non-resident enterprise shareholder
(i.e. legal person shareholder) in respect of accounting periods beginning
from 1 January 2008 shall withhold and pay enterprise income tax for
such shareholder. Since the Company is a H-share listed company in
Hong Kong, the proposed 2019 final dividend distribution will be subject
to the aforesaid Enterprise Tax Laws. In order to properly carry out the
withholding and payment of income tax on dividends to non-resident
enterprise shareholders, the Company will strictly abide by the law and
identify those shareholders who are subject to the withholding and
payment of income tax based on the register of H-shareholders as at
the end of Monday, 6 July 2020. In respect of all shareholders whose
names appear on the register of H shareholders kept at Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the Company’s H-Shares Registrar
and Transfer Office in Hong Kong as at the end of Monday, 6 July 2020
who are not individuals (including HKSCC Nominees Limited, corporate
nominees or trustees, and other entities or organizations that are all
considered as non-resident enterprise shareholders), the Company will

distribute the 2019 final dividends after deducting income tax of 10%.
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Pursuant to the State Administration of Taxation Notice on Matters
Concerning the Levy and Administration of Individual Income Tax After
the Repeal of Guo Shui Fa [1993] No. 45 (Guo Shui Han [2011] No.
348) ( (BT H 4 BRI BT 3 [1993]04557 X (M EE LLIR B BAEAFT1S
RS MRER B (BFK[2011]3485%)) (the “SAT Notice”) dated 28
June 2011, and the letter titled “Tax Arrangements on Dividends Paid
to Hong Kong Residents by Mainland companies” issued by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange Letter”) dated 4
July 2011, the Company is required to withhold and pay the individual
income tax in respect of the 2019 Final Dividends paid to the Individual H
Shareholders whose names appear in the register of H-Shares Registrar
of the Company (“Individual H Shareholders”) when distributing the
2019 final dividends in accordance with the law, as a withholding agent
on behalf of the same. However, the Individual H Shareholders may
be entitled to certain tax preferential treatments pursuant to the tax
treaties between the PRC and the countries in which the Individual H
Shareholders are domiciled and the tax arrangements between Mainland
China and Hong Kong (Macau). The Company will finally withhold and
arrange for the payment of the withholding tax pursuant to the above the
SAT Notice and the Stock Exchange Letter and other relevant laws and
regulation, (including the “Public Notice on the Administrative Measures
on Non-resident Taxpayers Claiming Tax Treaty Benefits” (STA Public
Notice [2019] No. 35) (BRI RN EM<IEERMATAZZHEK
BEFBEEINESNAE) BIRMBLEAE2019F F355) (the “Tax
Treaties Notice”)). The Company will determine the country of domicile
of the Individual H Shareholders based on the registered addresses as
recorded on the register of members of the Company on Monday, 6
July 2020 (the “Registered Address(es)”). The Company assumes no
responsibility and disclaims all liabilities whatsoever in relation to the tax
status or tax treatment of the Individual H Shareholders and for any claims
arising from any delay in or inaccurate determination of the tax status
or tax treatment of the Individual H Shareholders or any disputes over
the withholding mechanism or arrangements. Details of arrangements

are as follows:
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For Individual H Shareholders who are Hong Kong or Macau residents
and those whose country of domicile is a country which has entered
into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of 10%,
the Company will finally withhold and pay individual income tax at

the rate of 10% on behalf of the Individual H Shareholder;

For Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a
dividend tax rate of less than 10%, the Company will finally withhold
and pay individual income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of the
Individual H Shareholders. If the relevant Individual H Shareholders
would like to apply for a refund of the additional amount of tax
withheld and paid, the Company can assist the relevant shareholder
to handle the application for the underlying preferential tax benefits
pursuant to the tax treaties, provided that the relevant shareholder
shall submit to the Company the information required under the Tax
Treaties Notice on or before the fifteen days of the month following
the actual payment date of the final dividend. Upon examination
and approval by competent tax authorities, the Company will assist

in refunding the additional amount of tax withheld and paid;

For Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a
dividend tax rate of more than 10% but less than 20%, the Company
will finally withhold and pay individual income tax at the actual tax

rate stipulated in the relevant tax treaty; and
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(iv)  For Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a
dividend tax rate of 20%, or a country which has not entered into
any tax treaties with the PRC, or under any other circumstances,
the Company will finally withhold and pay individual income tax at
the rate of 20% on behalf of the Individual H Shareholders. If the
domicile of an Individual H Shareholder is not the same as the
Registered Address or if the Individual H Shareholder would like to
apply for a refund of the additional amount of tax finally withheld
and paid, the Individual H Shareholder shall notify and provide
relevant supporting documents to the Company on or before the
fifteen day of the month following the actual payment date of the
final dividend. Upon examination of the supporting documents by
the relevant tax authorities, the Company will follow the guidance
given by the tax authorities to implement relevant tax withholding
provisions and arrangements. Individual H Shareholders may either
personally or appoint a representative to attend to the procedures
in accordance with the requirements under the Tax Treaties Notices
if they do not provide the relevant supporting documents to the

Company within the time period stated above.

Shareholders are recommended to consult their tax advisers regarding
PRC, Hong Kong and other tax implications arising from their holding

and disposal of H Shares of the Company.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and equity of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the Company’s

annual reports, is set out on page 348 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note

(VI) 8, 9 and 10 to the financial statements, respectively.
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SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the

Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the PRC which would oblige the

Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting Period

and up to the date of this report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves (including surplus reserve and
undistributed profits) of the Group during the Reporting Period are set
out in note (VI) 35, 36 to the financial statements and in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity, respectively.

UNDISTRIBUTED PROFITS

Details of undistributed profits are set out in note (VI) 36 to the financial

statements.

BANK BORROWINGS AND BONDS

Details of the Group’s bank borrowings at the reporting date are set out

in note (VI) 18, 26 and 27 to the financial statements.

6 ANNUAL REPORT 2019
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

A
WEMA - RDARAKRRELD -

BrBER

RRBZABERSKHBERIL EHI A B oR b
ARABRABBRRFBRULIAREEET R 2B
TRERIZARE -

BE  BEHERDTZ LHHES

BEMNERBERBEL A B - ARAREE
AL AMERE  WES LS EAART
S o

B 7l

BEMALEERE(SRBBRIBERRDENE)
ZBEFERR B IWMRME(S) 35 - 36RAHF

RO EFHE

RO BEHEH BN A B RER ()36 °

RITERRES

AEBNHERANETFBHR M EIREM T
MsE(7<)18 ~ 26 %27 °



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

THE ISSUANCE OF BONDS

During the Reprting Period, in order to raise working capital and reduce
financial costs of the Group, pursuant to the approval of CSRC, the
Company finished the public issuance of 2019 corporate bonds (first
phase) in an aggregate amount of RMB400 million on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange on 22 August 2019. The details of the issuance of
bonds are set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages

27 of this report.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s interest capitalized amounted

to RMB57,317 (2018: RMB53,172).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, operating income from the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for approximately 28% (2018: 29%) of the
total operating income for the year and operating income from the largest
customer accounted for approximately 13% (2018: 13%). Purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 23%
(2018: 20%) of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 7% (2018: 6%) during the
Reporting Period.

None of the directors or supervisors of the Company or any of their
close associates or any shareholders which, to the best knowledge of
the directors and supervisors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in any of the Group’s

five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the Reporting

Period and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman)

Mr. Shang Yongtian

Ms. Li Chunyan

Mr. Zhang Liwei (appointed as an executive director of the
Company since 24 May 2019)

Mr. Liu VYuejin (ceased to be an executive director of the

Company since 24 May 2019)

Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Zhang Yan
Mr. Li Shunxiang

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Choi Onward
Mr. Wang Liping
Mr. Chen Liping

Supervisors:

Ms. Liu Wenyu (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Zhong

Mr. Yang Baoqun

Ms. Fu Yanjun

Ms. Niu Hongyan

Ms. Li Chunyi

The Company has received the annual confirmations of independence
from each of its independent non-executive directors and is of the view

that they are independent.

@.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES

Profile details of the directors, supervisors and senior management of the

Company are set out on pages 78 to 85 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’
CONTRACTS

AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE

The Company has entered into service contracts with the directors,
including Mr. Li Jianwen, Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li Chunyan, Mr. Zhang
Liwei, Ms. Zhang Yan, Mr. Li Shunxiang, Mr. Wang Liping, Mr.Chen
Liping, Mr. Choi Onward, each of the directors pursuant to which they
have agreed to act as directors of the Company for a three-year term
with effect from the 2018 Annual General Meeting were held at 24 May
2019, in which they were is re-elected or elected as director of the
Company and expiring at the end of 2021 Annual General Meeting. Mr. Li
Jianwen, Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Zhang Liwei were
appointed as the executive directors from 24 May 2019 and have entered
into service contracts with the Company. Each of the executive directors,
Mr. Shang Yongtian, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Zhang Liwei (other than
the chairman of the Board, Mr. Li Jianwen), will not receive a director’s
fee, but is entitled to remuneration based on his/her executive duties
and responsibilities (other than being a director) in the Company which
comprises a fixed annual basic salary, a performance-based bonus which
is determined by reference to the Company’s annual financial results
and other allowance and benefits in kind under applicable PRC law and
regulations. Their respective fixed annual basic salary and performance-
based bonus for each of their term shall be approved by the Board and the
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Li Jianwen, the Chairman
of the Board, is entitled to remuneration (including an annual basic salary
and a performance based bonus to be determined by reference to the
Company’s annual financial results) which granted an approved by the
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the
Beijing Chaoyang District Government, and other allowance and benefits

in kind under the applicable PRC law and regulations.
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Each of the non-executive directors, Ms. Zhang Yan and Mr. Li Shunxiang,
has entered into a service contract with the Company pursuant to which
they have agreed to act as the non-executive director of the Company
with effect from the 2018 Annual General Meeting and expiring at the
end of the 2021 Annual General Meeting and Ms. They will not receive

any remuneration.

Each of the independent non-executive directors, Mr. Choi Onward, Mr.
Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping, has entered into a service contract with
the Company pursuant to which they have agreed to act as independent
non-executive directors for a three-year term with effect from the 2018
Annual General Meeting, which will expire at the end of the 2021 Annual
General Meeting. The terms of their service contracts are identical in all
material respects and they are entitled to receive fixed directors’ fees.
The director’s fee for Mr. Choi Onward is RMB154,758 per annum (tax
inclusive) and is RMB41,850 per annum (tax inclusive) for each of Mr.

Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping.

Each of the supervisors, Ms. Liu Wenyu, Mr. Yang Baoqun, Mr. Chen
Zhong and Ms. Fu Yanjun, has entered into a service contract or an
appointment letter with the Company pursuant to which each has agreed
to act as a supervisor for a three-year term with effect from the 2018
Annual General Meeting, and expiring at the end of the 2021 Annual
General Meeting. Pursuant to a resolution passed at the meeting of
representative of employees 2019 of the Company held on 29 March
2019, Ms. Niu Hongyan and Ms. Li Chunyi have been elected entered
into a service contract with the Company. Pursuant to a resolution passed
at the meeting of representative of employees of the Company held on
27 October 2017, Ms. Wang Hong has ceased to be a supervisor of the
Company, whereas Ms. Li Chunyi has been elected as the supervisor with
three-year term expiring upon the end of the meeting of representatives
of employees of 2022. Each of them has entered into a service contract
with the Company. The terms of the service contracts or appointment

letters are identical in all material respects save that:
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Mr. Yang Baoqun does not receive any supervisor’s fee;

ii. each of Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Fu Yanjun receives a fixed

supervisor’s fee of RMB35,100 per annum (tax inclusive);

ii. each of Ms. Liu Wenyu, Ms. Niu Hongyan and Ms. Li Chunyi
is entitled to remuneration based on their executive duties and
responsibilities (other than being a supervisor) in the Company
which comprises of a fixed basic salary, a performance-based bonus
which is determined by reference to the Company’s annual financial
results and other allowance and benefits in kind under applicable

PRC law and regulations.

None of the directors or supervisors had entered into or proposed to enter
into, any service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The directors’ and supervisors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board
with reference to directors’ and supervisors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group. The Company has established
a remuneration committee to formulate compensation policies and to
determine and manage the compensation of the Company’s senior
management. Details of the directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration are

disclosed in note (X)3(2) to the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEgWmE

DIRECTORS’
CONTRACTS

AND SUPERVISORS’ INTEREST IN

None of the directors or supervisors or any entities connected with
them had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, its
controlling shareholder, or any of their subsidiaries was a party during

or at the end of the Reporting Period.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance was entered into between the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries, and any of the controlling shareholders or any of

their subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2019.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into

or existed during the year ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS IN
ACQUIRING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or its subsidiaries granted to any directors and supervisors or their
respective associates, or were any such rights exercised by them; or
was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors and supervisors and other body corporate to

acquire such rights.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
directors, supervisors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”)), which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein, or which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix

10 of the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the domestic shares of the Company

Name Capacity
HE 54
Li Jianwen Personal
FEX fEA
Shang Yongtian Personal
oK H A
Li Chunyan Personal
FEH fEA
Zhang Liwei Personal
SRA(E f&A
Li Shunxiang Personal
ey (EPN
Yang Baogqun Personal
BB R fEA
Liu Wenyu Personal
21 H EA
Niu Hongyan Personal
HAT A
Li Chunyi Personal
FER fEA

&=

SHRE

EE  EERIETBRAERRKRS - HEAKR
7 R &R S

—NFE+ZA=+—H  ERFEE &

ER&

=
H N EFE GG EXVER AT RE & ) A D
MREEES

A

57 R E
BT

TTBRABRA R T R BB 8% B (12(E

« HHER AR

WA RB(GES LBEBKRADEXV
EREE7 M8 BB MG AN B K Bk A P B 2 Nk

EARRNERZHER

Total number
of domestic
shares held

FEFERERRE

2,022,579
989,451
505,992
150,000

5,210,428

1,042,086
365,151

70,000

50,000

Approximate
percentage of
total issued
domestic
shares
HERITRER
BHBEDE
(%)

0.88

0.43

0.22

0.07

2.26

0.45

0.16

0.03

0.02

R EEREEERNARAT

BRERE(ER RPEGHDABGRE - &
SREFARBEENERIAR)
# N HIE 16D )FE 352155 E
aC it A Ay A 28 Ko

AR BCE

BRARRRFAEE
A FRE LR RIS (R
RGN B S B AR P M s BOA

Approximate
percentage of
total issued
shares

hE BITRRA
BHBEDE
(%)

0.49

0.24

0.12

0.04

1.26

0.25

0.09

0.02

0.01
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the directors,
supervisors or chief executives of the Company nor any of their associates
and any interest and short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out

in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2019, so far as is known to the directors, supervisors
or chief executive of the Company, the persons (other than a director,
supervisor or chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed or
taken to have interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO

were as follows:

Long positions in the domestic shares of the Company

Name

e

Capacity
14

Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Beneficial owner
Food Company

ERTHAGERmE AR Eama A
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EFATBTBRAEMA > TIAL(ARAE
= EERTIZBTBABBRINRERRNBAD K
HEBROHEST  HEIEELSHEERBEGES
KRB GPIDEXVERE2 R EID RFAME AR F R
B SOR R - IRIBCESF LB E R
FIBIRALARNR AR ELMARERIAR
L

EARRNERZER

Approximate

percentage of Approximate

Total number total issued percentage of
of domestic domestic total issued
shares held shares shares

FFERER HERTRER HEBTHERSE
)ie BAEDL BAEDLE

(%) (%)

167,409,808 72.77 40.61
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Positions in the H shares of the Company

E=gWE

RRAFHRZ TR

Approximate

percentage of Approximate

Total number of total issued percentage
Name H shares held H shares of total
=z FEBEE®RT GHERTHRAH MDRITHERSE
HER IR & WA B DL BN BE D
(%) (%)
China Galaxy International Asset Management (Hong Kong)
Co., Limited (note 1) (Ff1z¥1) 18,080,000 (L) 9.93 4.39
China Galaxy International SPC (acting for and on behalf of
China Galaxy Value Fund | SP) (note 2) (F{{32) 16,690,000 (L) 9.16 4.05
(L) - Long Position L 4R
P3E

Notes:

1. These 18,080,000 H shares were held by China Galaxy International Asset
Management (Hong Kong) Co., Limited in its capacity as an investment

manager.

2.  These 16,690,000 H shares were held by China Galaxy International SPC
(acting for and on behalf of China Galaxy Value Fund | SP) in its capacity

as an investment manager.

Save as disclosed above, as far as is known to the directors, supervisors
or chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2019, no other
persons (not being a director, supervisor or chief executive of the
Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on public information and within the knowledge of the directors,
the Company’s public float complied with the applicable requirements of

the Listing Rules from 1 January 2019 and up to the date of this report.

1. 1£518,080,000/%HA B China Galaxy International
Asset Management (Hong Kong) Co., Limited A%
BIEBHENHEAER

2. £%16,690,000/%HM% B China Galaxy International
SPC (acting for and on behalf of China Galaxy
Value Fund | SP)IAREEIBEN & (7 55 Rz -

BEXFIBEEN  BARAES  EFEREER
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COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None of the directors, supervisors, the controlling shareholder or the
substantial shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates had engaged in any business that competed or might compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group, or had any

other conflict of interests with the Group during the Reporting Period.

AUDITORS

The financial statements in this annual report for the year ended 31
December 2019 have been audited by Ruihua Certified Public Accountants
LLP (hESFTAIEHA (R EBARE) ) (the “Ruihua CPA”), whose
term of appointment will expire at the conclusion of the forthcoming 2019
annual general meeting of the Company. There are not any changes in

the Company’s auditor in any of the preceding three years.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
Li Jianwen

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
22 April 2020
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
S

To the shareholders,

Since the incorporation of the Company, the supervisory committee of
the Company (the “Supervisory Committee”) adheres to principles of
honesty and integrity in discharging its supervisory duties and obligations
loyally and diligently in accordance with the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange, the requirements under the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC and Company’s Articles of Association to safeguard the interests

of the shareholders and the Company.

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the 2018 Annual General
Meeting or the worker’s congress (as case may be), Ms. Liu Wenyu,
Mr. Yang Baogun, Mr. Chenzhong, Ms. Fu Yanjun, Ms Niu Hongyan
and Ms Li Chunyi were re-elected or appointed as supervisors for a
three-year term, with effect from 2018 Annual General Meeting or the
worker’s congress and will expire at the end of 2021 Annual General

Meeting or the worker’s congress.

During the Reporting Period, five meetings of the Supervisory Committee
were held for reviewing the 2018 annual report, the report of the
Supervisory Committee for 2018, the 2019 quarterly and interim results.

The attendance records of the Supervisors are set out below:

Ms. Liu Wenyu (Chairman) 2w+ (FE)

Ms. Niu Hongyan AL ke
Ms. Li Chunyi THE BT
Mr. Chen Zhong PREESR A

Mr. Yang Baoqun HEREE
Ms. Fu Yanjun MEER+

PR

BARRBKRLZBE  ARREEG(EEF])

BRET EMHRA - FEBEERER AT

RAARER - BFHERA - EBET
R #ERRRARNR S o

/._,\ E

RE-_F-\EFERBFAEIBIRRAEE
BEORZERBERME) - BIXWE LT - HEERL
£ RBELE  NHERL  FABKTIRFE
BRITERERA/NREE  EHR=F B=%
—NFERRBFASEABIRERASGHEZA
RE-Z-_—FERRBFREIBIARKE
ERZBEW -

BEHRRN EFTEHERLIRESR  BRER
RARRZZE—N\FFH T \FEEFIR
T BR_ENEFEEER_T-NFHH

RE - AREFRELFELEOT

Attendance/Number of meetings

HE/ EERE

5/5
5/5
5/5
5/5
5/5
5/6
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The major work performed by the Supervisory Committee included the
attendance of Board meetings and general meetings; inspection of
resolutions made by the Board, review of internal control system, strict
and effective monitoring of whether the policies and decisions made by
the management of the Company had confirmed with the relevant laws
and regulations and the Company’s Articles of Association, safeguarding
the interest of the Company and shareholders. The Supervisory
Committee has also reviewed the performance of the directors and
senior management in their daily operation activities by various means,

and examined the Group’s financial affairs and connected transactions.

As a result of our work, the Supervisory Committee concluded that:

1. The decision-making process of the Company is in compliance
with the Company’s Article of Association. Proper and adequate
internal control system has been established. The directors and
senior management observed their fiduciary duties and worked
diligently, loyally and legally. The Supervisory Committee is not
aware of any breach of the relevant laws and regulations and the
Company’s Articles of Association or actions against the interests
of shareholders by the directors and senior management of the

Company.

2. The Company’s 2019 financial statements reflected a fair view of
the financial position and operating results of the Group in material

aspects.

3. All continuing connected transactions and connected transaction
conducted in the Reporting Period between the Group and its
connected persons were in the ordinary course of business
and carried out pursuant to the terms of the agreement for the
transactions, and no act that prejudiced the interests of the

Company and shareholders has been found.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
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4. The Group did not encounter any major litigation during the Reporting
Period.

We would like to express our appreciation to the strenuous supports of
the shareholders, directors and all staff to the Supervisory Committee

during the Reporting Period.

BY ORDER OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
Liu Wenyu

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
22 April 2020
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jianwen, aged 59, is the Chairman of the Board and an executive
director. He worked in Beijing Jingkelong Shang Sha (“Jingkelong Shang
Sha”), the predecessor of Beijing Jingkelong Supermarket Chain Group
Company Limited (“Jingkelong Supermarket”) (the predecessor of the
Company) as the deputy general manager from 1998 to 2002. From
2002 to 2004, he was a director and the deputy general manager of
Jingkelong Supermarket. From November 2004 to June 2013, he was
the managing director of the Company. He has been the Chairman of
the Board of the Company since June 2013. He is also the Chairman
of Beijing Chaopi Trading Company Limited, an approximately 79.85%

directly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Shang Yongtian, aged 58, is the General Manager of the Company
and an executive director. Mr. Shang acted as the manager of several
retail outlets and the department manager of Chaoyang Auxiliary from
1991 to 2004. From 2005 to 2009, he was the manager of Operation
Division of supermarket of the Company and the manager of Operation
Division of hypermarket of the Company. From January 2010 to April
2013, he was the assistant to the manager of the Company. From
April 2013 to May 2015, he was the assistant general manager of
the Company. He has been appointed as the general manager of the
Company since May 2015. Mr. Shang has been an executive director

of the Company since 5 November 2015.

Ms. Li Chunyan, aged 47, is an executive director. Ms. Li obtained a
bachelor’s degree in law and subsequently a master’s degree in private
international law from China University of Politics & Law of China. Ms.
Li is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
She was the Officer of the Bureau of Law of Jingkelong Shang Sha from
2001 to 2002. In addition, she was the Officer of the Bureau of Law
and the Secretary to the board of directors of Jingkelong Supermarket
from 2002 to 2004. Since November 2004, she has been one of the
executive directors of the Company. She has been appointed as the
Company’s Chief Financial Officer and deputy general manager since

December 2008.
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Mr. Liu Yuejin, aged 60, is an executive director. From 2000 to 2004,
he was the general manager of Jingkelong Langfang. Between 2002
and 2004, he was one of the directors of Jingkelong Supermarket.
Since November 2004, he has been an executive director of the
Company. From 2005 to 2009, Mr. Liu had held various positions in
the Company, including the manager of the First Operation Division,
the manager of the Jiuxiangiao Community Shopping Centre and the
manager of the Operation Division of Shopping Centre. From 2009
to 2012, he had been the manager of the First Operation Division of
Supermarkets of the Company. Since March 2012, he has been the
manager of the Operation Division of Hypermarkets of the Company.
Mr. Liu ceased to be an executive director of the Company since 24

May 2019.

Mr. Zhang Liwei, aged 42, is an executive director. Mr. Zhang obtained
his bachelor’s degree from Tianjin University of Commerce. From August
2000 to December 2013, Mr. Zhang had been appointed as the office
clerk, the assistant to officer, the manager, the Committee Secretary,
the assistant to the manager and the deputy manager of Beijing Xinyang
Tongli Commercial Limited (“Xinyang Tongli”), an non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. From December 2013 to May 2015, he
was the manager of the Equipment or Materials Purchasing Department
and the manager of the Equipment Division of the Company. From June
2015 to March 2017, he was the assistant to the general manager,
the team leader for “Xi Hong Men” and the manager of the Operation
Division of supermarket of the Company. Since April 2017, he has been
the assistant to the general manager and the Chief Operating Officer of
the Company. Since August 2017, he has been the assistant general
manager of the Company. Mr. Zhang has been an executive director of

the Company since 24 May 2019.
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Non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhang Yan, aged 39, is a non-executive Director. She graduated
from the 1t R EE 267 (Beijing Broadcasting Institute) (now known as
B {E 15 K2 (Communication University of China)) specializing in finance
and accounting. From July 2003 to October 2008, Ms. Zhang successively
served as a sales assistant of the Marketing Department, an officer and
the head of the Comprehensive Management Department of Beijing
Lizheng Software Design and Research Institute (1t I8 IEEL {4 3% 1A 95
B). From November 2008 to December 2016, Ms. Zhang successively
served as an officer of the Finance and Accounting Department, an officer
and the head of the Party Committee Office, and the deputy manager of
the General Office of Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Food Company. Since
December 2016, Ms. Zhang has been the manager of the General Office
of Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Food Company. Since October 2018, MS.

Zhang has been a non-executive director of the Company.

Mr. Li Shunxiang, aged 67, is a non-executive director. From 2000 to
2010, he was the general manager of Beijing Zhonglianjian Construction
Company Limited. From 2002 to 2004, he was a non-executive director
of Jingkelong Supermarket. Since November 2004, he has been a non-

executive director of the Company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Liping, aged 63, is an independent non-executive director.
Mr. Wang obtained a master’'s degree in Economics and a PhD in
Management from Renmin University of China in 1985 and 2004,
respectively. He is currently the professor and doctoral supervisor at the
Institute of Business Organisation and the faculty of Human Resources
Management at Renmin University of China. Since June 2010, he has

been an independent non-executive director of the Company.

Mr. Chen Liping, aged 58, is an independent non-executive director.
Mr. Chen obtained a master’s degree in Business Operation from Aichi
University of Japan in 1999 and a PhD in Economics from Circulation
University of Economics of Japan in 2008. He is currently the full professor
and master supervisor of the faculty of Marketing in the Institute of
Business Management at Capital University of Economics and Business
of China. Since September 2014, he has been an independent non-
executive director of 5154 Holding Group Co. Ltd. Since 10 June 2010, Mr.

Chen has been an independent non-executive director of the Company.

Mr. Onward Choi, aged 49, is an independent non-executive director and
the chairman of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Choi holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree in accountancy with honors from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University.Mr. Choi was the acting chief financial officer of
NetEase, Inc., a Nasdag-listed company, from July 2007 to June 2017.
Mr. Choi currently serves as an independent non-executive director
and the chairman of the audit committee of Wise Talent Information
Technology Company Limited, a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. Mr. Choi also serves as the independent director and the
chairman of the audit committee of Tuniu Corporation, a Nasdag-listed
company. Mr. Choi is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, CPA Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Choi has been an independent non-

executive director of the Company since June 2010.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BF  EFEkAQEREGN

SUPERVISORS

Ms. Liu Wenyu, aged 48, is the chairman of the Company’s supervisory
committee. Ms. Liu obtainted her bachelor’s degree from Renmin University
of China. During the period from 1999 to 2008, Ms. Liu has been
appointed as the vice-chairman of the labour union of Chaoyang Auxiliary
and the Company, the deputy manager of the First Operation Division and
the officer of the Office of the Jiuxiangiao Community Shopping Center
coordination team of the Company. Since October 2008, she has been
the chairman of the labour union of the Company. Since June 2010,

she has been the chairman of the Company’s Supervisory Committee.

Mr. Yang Baoqun, aged 67, is a supervisor of the Company. He was
a supervisor of Jingkelong Supermarket from 2002 to 2004. Since

November 2004, he has been a supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Chen Zhong, aged 56, is a supervisor of the Company. Mr. Chen
obtained his doctorate from Peking University in 1989. He is currently a
professor of the School of Electronics Engineering and Computer Science,
the Head of the Advanced Financial Information Research Centre at
Peking University. Since June 2002 to July 2010, he had been a professor
and the Head of the School of Software and Microelectronics, Peking

University. Since January 2005, he has been a supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Fu Yanjun, aged 40, is a supervisor of the Company. Ms. Fu obtained
her bachelor’s degree from Renmin University of China. She is a Chinese
certified public accountant. She had previously worked in Ernst & Young
Hua Ming and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. Since December 2014,
Ms. Fu joined China Resources Healthcare Holdings Company Limited.
She is currently an executive director and a vice general manager of the

company. Since May 2017, she has been a supervisor of the Company.

8 ANNUAL REPORT 2019
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

E=E

BIXHZ L 485  ARAZEFEER - B
TEFBEARKBELEM - B - ANANFE=
ZTN\FHRE - Lt RRETHRDARAR
ATERER  ZE-HNILEREIBBEYE
SERBERLEIEERML A _TTN\F+AE

CARRBIEER BZE—TFARE -
BEARREESESF -

BREBEAE 67THR  ARBZEFE -B_FTT_

FE_ZTWFHHE  HBELRECRTEBTE
= B-ZETMOF+ AR - EERRRES -

BREELLE @ 5658 ° ARBIZESE - RELER—N
JNEFEIERABE LR - REARFILERK

PESNERMERLE - LRABSBERL
ARFLEL : B PR FAAZR-F-FHFL

CEERABERHEMEFRERBE ki
BE-ZTRF AR FEARRES -

N|BLL - 4058 - ARBZESR - FLLES

BARKBELTEM - KPEEMEFE - %
TEERROKERSAMEBMREYEXE
SEEHBPT BT -WET AL - AT

AEBBFERERAT - BEXA
FEIBEET BT
EE -

AHITES
tFEAR  EEEARQ



PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Niu Hongyan, aged 47, is a supervisor of the Company. Ms. Niu
is an intermediate economist. From September 1992 to July 2017, Ms.
Niu has served as the director, deputy manager and manager of several
retail outlets of the Company. Since July 2017, she has been appointed
as the manager of the Party Committee Office of the Company. Since

August 2017, she has been a staff-appointed supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Li Chunyi, aged 47, is a supervisor of the Company. Ms. Li is an
intermediate economist. Between August 1995 and March 2008, Ms.
Li had worked in Beijing Hardware Machinery Company Limited, Beijing
Jinyu Da Sha and Beijing Shoulian Company Limited. From April 2008
to June 2009, she had been the deputy manager of the Labor Ministry.
From July 2009 to April 2018, she has been the deputy manager of the
Human Resources Department of the Company. Since April 2018 she
has been appointed as the manager of the Hunan Resources Department
of the Company.Since October 2017, she has been a staff-appointed

supervisor of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BF  EFEkAQEREGN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Shenlin, aged 56, is an assistant general manager of the Company.
Mr. Li acted as the manager of several retail outlets of the Company
from 1997 to 2007. From 2007 to 2009, he was the manager of the
Operation Division of Hypermarkets and the assistant to the manager
of the Company. Since August 2009, he has been the assistant general

manager of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Hongbo, aged 50, is an assistant general manager of the
Company. From November 1992 to October 1997, Mr. Zhang was the
deputy officer of Executive Office of the Silk Import & Export Group
Company of Hubei. From October 1997 to March 2003, he served as
the general manager of the Information Department of Shenzhen Huarun
Supermarket Company. From March 2003 to March 2006, he was the
Chief Information Officer and the Officer of the Information Center of the
Company. From June 2006 to August 2015, he was the assistant to the
manager of the Company and the Chief Information Officer. Since August

2015, he has been the assistant general manager of the Company.

Ms. Wang Hong, aged 49, is an assistant general manager of the
Company. Ms. Wang is a senior economist. She worked in Beijing Ruida
Frozen Foods Company Limited for about nine years and was appointed
as the assistant to general manager before joining the Company. Since
September 2003 to March 2011, she had been appointed as the deputy
officer of the Office of Managers, the purchase manager of the In-house
Brand Division of Purchase Center and the manager of the Marketing
Department of the Company. From March 2011 to July 2012, she had
been appointed as the deputy manager and the manager of the Human
Resources Department. Since August 2012, she has been the Chief
Human Resources Officer and the manager of the Human Resources
Department. From June 2010 to October 2017, she was a staff-appointed
supervisor of the Company. Since August 2017, she has been the

assistant general manager of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Bo, aged 41, is the Company Secretary of the Company. He
graduated from Capital University of Economics and Business with a
bachelor’s degree of economics in 2001 and obtained a master degree
of accounting from Macquarie University of Australia in 2004. Mr. Li is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and Certified Practising Accountant of Australia. Mr. Li worked for Bank
of Beijing, Deloitte Beijing office, the Audit office of New South Wales
in Australia, Sinolink securities and Yunnan Water Industry Investment
Company Ltd., respectively. Mr. Li joined the Company on 18 March
2011.

Ms. Pan Xuemin, aged 32, is the board secretary of the Company.
She graduated from law school of Inner Mongolia University of Finance
and Economics with a bachelor of law degree in 2011 and obtained a
master’s degree in civil and commercial law from Capital University of
Economics and Business in 2014. Since June 2014, Ms. Pan served as
an legal clerk in the Company’s securities and legal department. Since
November 2015, she served as director and deputy manager in the
Company’s securities and legal department. Since January 2019,she has
been appointed as the manager of the Company’s securities and legal
department.Since August 2016, she was appointed as board secretary

of the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B REARE

INTRODUCTION

As a player in the retail and wholesale industry of fast-moving
consumer goods, the Group has always valued corporate social
responsibility as one of the core values of its sustainable development,
and has strived to maintain a high standard of food safety. The Group
also maintains a constant awareness of the needs of society and has
proactively participated in community care activities, and has placed
emphasis on environmental protection by implementing low-carbon
operation and cutting energy consumption and emissions, so as to

fulfill corporate social responsibility.

This report is prepared with reference to the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules, summarizing the key areas of operation on environment and
society, and the implemented policies and strategies of the Group’s (i)
operational practices, (i) employment policies; and (i) environmental

protection measures.

OPERATING PRACTICES

Food Safety/Product Responsibility

The Group spares no efforts in promoting the knowledge of food
safety and offering trainings to procurement staff, store managers
and relevant employees on the relevant laws and regulations including
the “Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)”. To
better enforce the food safety management work and to eliminate
the hidden risks of food safety issues, the Group strictly monitors
the quality of the products pursuant to the “Food Safety Law of the
PRC”, the “Product Quality Law of the PRC” and the requirements of
other relevant laws and regulations. New channels and new products
are reviewed and approved strictly according to the Group’s quality
standards. On-site inspections on newly introduced channels and high-

risk channels are carried out to ensure that disqualified channels will
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

not be introduced. The distribution centre implements strengthened
measures on the management of the date of manufacture and shelf life
when receiving products and will refuses to accept any goods which
is unable to comply with the inspection requirements. The operation
headquarters have enhanced food safety inspections to ensure that
consumers are provided with safe and reliable food. The Group pays
close attention to the shelf life of goods kept in the warehouse or the
stores, strengthens the stores inspection and optimizes the packaging
and transportation standard of commodity according to different
seasons and requirements of storage and transportation in order to

guarantee the quality of the commodity.

The Group strictly abides by the provisions of the “Food Safety Law
of the PRC” and provides accurate and complete information such as

product labels.

The Group is also in compliance with the provisions of the “Advertising

Law of the PRC”, and there is no false advertising.

In March 2019, the Group organized “International Consumer Rights
Day” events with the theme of “High credibility makes consumption
at ease”. The stores invited relevant government agencies and well-
known manufacturers to promote food safety to consumers, and
distributed leaflets such as the “Protection of the Rights and Interests
of Consumers of the PRC”, “Electrical Maintenance Knowledge
Handbook”, “Healthy Food Selection and Food Essentials”, with an aim
to raise consumers’ awareness on legal and general knowledge. The
Group carried out activities such as on-site identification of genuine
products from fake ones, which guide consumers to have quality
consumption and healthy consumption, improve consumers’ trust in
the quality of the commodity offered by the Group, boost consumers’

confidence and were well responded by consumers.
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In May 2019, in order to further improve the Group’s service level,
understand the needs of consumers and their evaluation of consumers
on our enterprises, and as to better provide quality services to
consumers, the Group engaged a professional research team to
conduct research on 60 stores by combining the offline interviews and
online surveys, and conduct satisfaction assessment on six areas,
namely product operation, employee services, environmental facilities,
promotional activities, membership services and Jingkelong app. From
August to September of 2019, the Group rectified the operational
problems identified in the investigation and research, overcome the
weaknesses itself in all aspects and continuously improved through

continuous improvement.

In May 2019 and November 2019, the Company organized training
on food safety laws and regulations and on-site practice to enhance
food safety awareness of store staff, clarified food safety management
requirements, standards and specific operation procedures, and further

implemented the main responsibility of food safety management.

In August 2019, the Group launched the “Service Improvement Action
Plan” for relevant personnel in the operation department and store
management personnel, it focused on the core concept of improving
service quality, and aimed to improve the overall service level and
service quality of the Group and reflect the value of the enterprise and

employees.
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The Group has already established a series of product management
systems including the management instructions for the expiry date of
commodities and quality manuals, so as to guarantee the quality and

safety of the commodities to be sold.

The Group is highly concerned about the privacy protection of its
customers. The relevant data obtained through regular consumption

will never be disclosed or used for other purposes.

Supply Chain Management

In the course of selecting suppliers, the Group would strictly abide by
the company’s series of introduction systems, such as the “Supplier
Classification Management Measures”, the “Certificate of Claims
and Purchase Accounts”, the “Channel Introduction Supervision
Standards”, etc. and would consider a range of factors including the
product quality, the supply capacity, reasonableness of price, service
quality and business reputation while strictly reviewing information
such as operational qualifications, licenses and testing reports on
product quality in order to ensure that all products introduced by us
are safe and reliable. We have entered into an agreement for sale
and purchase with each supplier that we introduce, specifying the
rights, obligations and related responsibilities of the suppliers explicitly
and requesting the suppliers to provide regular testing reports of the

products that they offer.

The Group attaches great attention to the production environment of
the supply chain. For suppliers involving in food production, we strictly
abide by the provisions of the Food Safety Law of the PRC to ensure

a safe and reliable production environment.

s

AEEDHERMRENERNE HEEFME
BREREARREENERNEERERS -
AEESERIHNEFPOEMRE  HEB
EHBEROAERNEREE  BTEREX
RAREMmEH -

HrEgEs

AEEEEREERE - BRETAR - RIIN
SERE - IKHERD B BEEMRE)  (RE

REMEERREEHE)  CRESIEEBRE)
F o eETREMERERDE  HfERH  5EE
% ERRY  AEGEESRER  BREZMHE
BOEELEEE BB URERABRAIR
SEER  BEMSIENERLZE A%k - HE
s ENHERRIKBHEBZE)  BENER
ERENZER RAEBEE - EREER T BRRA
HEEmA RIS -

AEESERIMERNEERE  HRPER
fn 7 AR - AREE BREBRET(HE
REMBRIZE2FEINKRTE @ BREERRLR
A5 -

i
2019 @%& 89 *
IERREERNERERO AR *
»



! w

«

i

w

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - L8 RERWE

Intellectual Property Protection

The Group has been determined to actively maintain and protect the
intellectual property, and respecting the achievement of intellectual
property. Legal authorization has been obtained in respect of all types

of intellectual property rights.

Community Engagement

The Group has constantly paid attention to the needs of society. It
cares for people in the community through setting up convenience
stores in the community, contributing to society and thereby fulfilling

the coporate social responsibility.

In order to support the relief measures of the government, business
that improve completing and improving the quality of life service
business, services and meet rigid demand of low-frequency of
consumers such as laundry services and maintenance services, Jingjie
Fresh Store reasonably utilized spare housing area to create the
“community service micro center” for Jingjie Fresh on the premise of
providing enough spaces for displaying. During the Reporting Period,
twelve stores were equipped with convenience services including shoe
repair, laundry, key distribution, hair care and simple meals to better
meet the needs of surrounding people and enhance the brand image

to increase customer cohesion.
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In order to provide the community with fresh and high-quality products,
let the people in the community eat without worrying about the quality
of food, and implement the “vegetable basket” project for them, the
Group strived to create a model supermarket for reassuring meat and
vegetables. During the Reporting Period, a total of eight stores of the
Group were named as “Exemplary Supermarket for Reassuring Meat

and Vegetables”.

The Group has been distributing the “red heart service card” (“E /L
BR#ER") to the needy in the community for nine years, during which
over 600 people with the “red heart service card” have received
assistance, such as home delivery for free, hairdressing, bills and
living expenses payment, picking up the medicine at the community
hospitals, housekeeping, laundry, postal and other services. They will

also obtained its blessing during festivals.

From July to October 2019, the Group carried out a promotional
activity of product knowledge with the theme of “Health and Quality
(EHEERED

communication and cooperation with the community through product

C ZEFREAEJE) in the community, to strengthen

knowledge seminar and on-site interaction, with a view to achieving
harmonious and healthy development between the stores of the Group

and surrounding residents.

The Group has formulated special promotional activities for specific
consumer groups in the community on proper occasions, such as
the “Silver Hair Month (88£ A)” promotional activities and emotional
promotional activities with the theme of “Home” including the Mother’s
Day, Father’s Day and Chung Yeung Festival, with an aim to build the
connection within the community, facilitate serving the community and
create benefit for the community, which gained wide excellent social

recognition.
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The Group encourages employees to care for people in need in
society, promotes its corporate culture and fulfills corporate social

responsibility.

Poverty Alleviation

The Group actively responded to the government’s call for poverty
alleviation, and was responsible for assisting Mazhuanger Village,
Tang County, Baoding City, Hebei Province in the targeted poverty
alleviation action of “Ten thousand enterprises help ten thousand
vilages (B1EEEBM)” of Chaoyang District, by constructing a small-
sized processing plant, stimulating the enthusiasm of villagers in
planting and breeding, increasing the collective income of the village,
contributing to the collective poverty alleviation of villagers. In addition,
the Group accelerated the introduction of poverty alleviation products
and the implementation of poverty alleviation counters, strived to
expand the sales coverage of poverty alleviation products, increased
the publicity and promotion of poverty alleviation products, strived to
improve the sales results and earnestly fulfilled its corporate social

responsibility.

Consumer Right and Interest Protection

The Group strictly adheres to the requirements under the “the
Protection of the Rights and Interests of Consumers of the PRC”
and other relevant laws and regulations, and pays attention to the
protection of the consumers privacy and other rights in the daily
business activities. The Group also set up a special functional

department to handle issues with consumers.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Anti-corruption

The Group expects all staff to remember and strictly comply with
the relevant laws and regulations including the “Anti-corruption and
Bribery Act of the PRC”, the “Anti- Money laundering Law of the PRC”
and the “Discipline Inspection and Supervision Law of the PRC”, and
requires all employees to be self-disciplined and upright that they
would not accept any corruption and kickback. No one is allowed to
take advantage of their position to misappropriate funds and property

or abuse power for personal gains.

The Group has established the Discipline Inspection and Supervision
Department to accept reports, conduct investigations, and investigate
and handle certain cases, in an attempt to prevent the staff from

corruption.

During the Reporting Period, the Group and its employees are not
involved in any lawsuits involving corruption, bribery and money

laundering.

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES

Working Environment

The Group is strictly in compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations including the “Labour Law of the PRC” and the “Labour
Contract Law of the PRC” to create a fair and legitimate working
environment as well as a healthy and safe working environment.
Reasonable working hours and resting time are arranged for our
employees. The Group has also established a labour union to protect

various rights of all its employees.
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In accordance with the “Labour Law of the PRC” and the “Labour
Contract Law of the PRC”, the Group established the “Staff
Management Mechanism”, the “Objective Management System”
and the “Education and Training Administration System” in respects
of the employees’ recruitment, promotion and dismissal policies.
The Group will adjust employee compensation in strict accordance
with the position, responsibilities, experience, achievement and
performance of employees, and refer to the market rate to maintain
the competitiveness of the salary. Further, the Group will arrange the
training courses and promotion plan, and offer pre-job training and
on-the-job training courses, so as to fully utilize and stimulate staff’s

potential to maintain the competitiveness of the corporation.

The Group respects and safeguards the rights of female employees. It
arranges positions for female employees reasonably according to the
job nature, so that female employees can enjoy equal and competitive
remuneration and benefits as well as equal opportunities to develop
their career. The Group also provides a “Mothers’ Room” especially for
the convenience of female employees in need, thereby embodying the
caring corporate culture. The Group also provides “Special Disease
Mutual Security Scheme for Working Female Employees” for female
employees and makes payment of claims to relevant female employees
in a timely manner. Specialized body check plans are also provided to
female employees, along with health seminars focusing on the body

check results to raise their safety awareness.

The Group has built a “reading corner” for the staff to encourage them
to learn culture, acquire knowledge and organized a variety of group

activities from time to time to enrich their spare-time life.
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The Group encourages and supports its staff to participate in physical
exercise, by occasionally hosting sports programs such as table
tennis, basketball and badminton competitions; holds yoga classes
and engages specialized teachers to guide employees; and provides

its staff with fitness equipment for exercise.

The Group attaches great importance to the provision of assistance
to employees in need and keeps improving the assistance system.
Emergency assistance is available to employees in need and education
subsidy is provided to employees with great difficulties in supporting

their children’s education.

The Group has set up its own staff canteen to promote the staff with
safety and convenient breakfast and lunch. All staff is entitled to the

food subsidies.

Employee Structure

The Group is mainly engaged in the wholesale and retail business of
fast-moving consumer goods. Therefore, a robust and stable team of
employees is the key to maintain a regular and stable operation. As of

31 December 2019, the Group had 5,669 employees.

The staff troops of the Group are of the different genders and
different spectrum of ages. The Group attracts the graduates and
the professionals with relevant work experience through campus
recruitment, social recruitment and online recruitment, so as to enrich
the variety of the corporation staff troops. The Group cultivates the
professional skills of the staff by work-study program and specialized
training courses, and injects fresh blood into the short-handed position
and specialized position. The Group upholds the idea of providing a

fair working environment.
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The Group upholds the idea of providing an equal working
environment. As at 31 December 2019, the proportion of male to
female employees was 38.18% to 61.82%. The principle of “equal pay

for equal work” has been strictly implemented as well.

Health and Safety

In accordance with the “Food Safety Law of the PRC” and relevant
laws and regulations referring to the health management for the
employees responsible for distributing food, the Group has established
a “Health Management System for Employees in the Circulation Field”
to ensure the health of employees and to purchase medical insurance

for employees.

The Group organizes regular body checks for all employees. There
were four “Physical and Emotional Health Education Session for
Employees” which involved first aid, mental health and other themes.
Seminars were also held by engaging professional doctors to give
precautionary and healthcare advice relating to common diseases in
workplace to employees in order to safeguard the health of employees

and to promote knowledge on workplace safety.

Healthcare seminars on occupational hazards and disease prevention
are regularly held in the Group so that employees can maintain an

awareness of health.
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The Group has strictly complied with relevant safety laws and
regulations including the “Safety Production Code of the PRC”, the
“Law on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases of the PRC”
and the “Rules on Supervision Labor Protection Articles”, designed
the “Administrative measures for Distributing Labour Protection
Appliances” for all the employees, builds and keeps high standard of
healthy and safe working environment that does not jeopardize the
health of employees, regularly inspects and maintains mechanical
equipment in use and provides protection appliances and protective
clothing to secure the occupational safety of employees. During the

Reporting Period, the Group was never prosecuted for any violation of

the relevant regulations on occupational safety.

Training and Development of Employees

The Group upholds the corporate spirit of “Connecting Hearts while
Making Profits with Chain Stores” and the corporate value of “integrity
before interest, give before take”. The Group views its employees as
family members and focuses on their long-term development to help

them realize their individual value.

With continuous innovation on the marketization of recruitment system
and improvement on remuneration and benefits, the Group adapts
to the keen competition of the labour market to achieve the goal of

recruiting and retaining talents.
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The Group provides various specified trainings for frontline staff,
headquarters staff, middle-ranking management and senior
management according to the development plan of the Company,
so as to provide a clear ladder of promotion for employees. Any
employees with ability can realize their value and achieve better
development. The promotion mechanism of the Group is linked with
performance assessment. By enhancing the management system of
human resources and offering room for employees to further develop,
the Group can inspire employees to be enthusiastic at work, thereby

enhancing their professional and career development.

In order to meet the needs of the functional departments, the
Group broadens the employees’ horizons, encourages employees
to participate in external training, enhances their professional
competence, and equips them with advanced concepts and skills in

the industry to improve their working performance.

During the Reporting Period, all the store managers obtained the store
manager permit through training, thereby becoming the backbone of

the Group.

Labour Standards

During the Reporting Period, there is no child and forced labour in our
Group as it strictly complies with the requirements of the relevant laws
and regulations such as the “Labour Law of the PRC” and the “Labour

Contract Law of the PRC”.
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To avoid employing child labour, the Human Resources Department of
the Group would strictly examine valid identity cards of job applicants
for verification of their actual ages, resolutely put an end to use of

child labor.

To safeguard the employees’ right, the Group has strictly complied
with relevant labour laws and regulations regarding the working hours
of the employees. The employees’ working hours, duty hours, resting
time and holidays are well respected and are strictly arranged in
accordance with relevant labour law and regulations. Any necessary
arrangements of overtime work must be mutually agreed between
the management and employees on a voluntarily basis and any extra
workload shall be fairly rewarded. There is no forced labour in the

Group.

To ensure the employment conduct in its compliance with the laws
and regulations, guarantee the employees’ full entitlement to the
right to be informed, to participate, express and supervise, prevent
and eliminate the behavior of violation, the Group has publicized the
current labour management system and established various channels
to gather and integrate the feedback and complaint from staff, handled

and resolved all kinds of employees’ problem on a timely basis.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group attaches great importance to environmental protection and
strictly abides by the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s

Republic of China and the principle of green operation.
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Emissions

The Group is not a manufacturing enterprise and therefore no
consumption of resources including gases, oil, packaging materials
and other raw materials is involved. No hazardous or non-hazardous
substances are produced or emitted to the water or land. Therefore,
there are no laws and regulations in these respects would have a
significant impact on the Group that requires special compliance; the
Group’s business activities did not have a significant impact on the
environment and natural resources. During the Reporting Period, it
was never prosecuted for any violation of the relevant regulations on

environment.

Use of Resources and Emissions

The Group supports environmental protection and strives to enforce
sustainable development and advocates resources conservation. It
adopts information-based operation to a great extent and promotes
low-carbon office. The Group has also prepared “Energy Management
Handbook” and “Carbon Emission Management Handbook” to
strengthen the management of energy and reduce carbon emission.
As a result, the impact of our operation on the environment can be
minimized. In terms of energy conservation and carbon reduction,
the Group performed well and received awards from the government

during the Reporting Period.
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Water Usage

Water consumption of the Group in 2019 was approximately 266,525

tons.

Water supply to the Group is sufficient and there is no problem in
obtaining suitable sources. The Group actively carries out water
conservation measures and encourages reutilization of water to
reduce water consumption. Furthermore, it spares no efforts in
conserving water and minimizing water usage to its best, so as to
avoid unnecessary usage of water resources. Due to the efforts of
the Group, over eighty thousand tons of water has been saved as

compared to last year.

Electrical Installations

Total power consumption of the Group was approximately 7,353

million kWh in 2019.

The Group attaches great importance to energy conservation and
emission reduction, reduces energy consumption, and promotes green
management. The Group has continuously improved the management
level of energy conservation and environmental protection and
achieved remarkable energy conservation and emission reduction with
great economic benefit by enhancing the low-nitrogen gas boilers, the
refrigeration equipment, the cold chain transformation by using PSG
(the supermarket refrigeration system energy-saving compressor), the
energy-saving renovation for elevators and lighting, etc. Due to the
efforts of the Group, about one thousand kWh of electricity has been

saved as compared to last year.
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RHSZ [2020] No. 01870101

To The Shareholders of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited:

o

102

*

QUALIFIED AUDIT OPINION

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of
Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited (the “Company”), which
comprise the consolidated balance sheets of the Group and
the balance sheets of the Company as at 31 December 2019,
the consolidated income statement of the Group and the
income statement of the Company, the consolidated statement
of changes in shareholders’ equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement of the Group and the statement of changes in
shareholders’ equity and the cash flow statement of the Company
for the year then ended at 2019, and other certain explanatory

notes.

In our opinion, except for the possible impact of matters
described in the section “Basis for qualified opinion” the financial
statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2019 and of
financial performance and cash flows of the Company and the
Group for the 2019 year then ended in accordance with the

Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

Jinan Chaopi Linda Trading Co., Ltd. (“Jinan Chaopi Company”)
is a second-level subsidiary of the Company. Since its
establishment, Jinan Chaopi Company’s financial statements
have been included in the Company’s consolidation scope.
According to the financial statements ended 31 December 2019
of Jinan Chaopi Company provided by the management of the
Company, the total assets and net assets of the Jinan Chaopi
company were RMB108.6571 million and RMB5.4677 million,
which account for the Company’s corresponding amounts in
the consolidated balance sheet on 31 December 2019 were
1.28% and 0.25% respectively; the operating income and net
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profit of 2019 were RMB 36.0441 million and RMB-7.7177
million respectively, which account for 0.31% and -7.95% of the
corresponding amounts in the Company’s consolidated income

statement for 2019 respectively.

Currently, there is an unresolved dispute between the minority
shareholders of Jinan Chaopi Company (formerly the general
manager of Jinan Chaopi Company) and the major shareholder of
Jinan Chaopi Company, Beijing Chaopi Trading Co., Ltd (“Chaopi
Trading”), which is a first-level subsidiary of the Company. Thus,
the minority shareholders refused to hand over the items and
materials such as the company’s business license, bank account
opening permit, company seal, financial seal, financial books and
vouchers, etc. As at the reporting date, the legal proceedings for
Chaopi Trading to request the minority shareholders to return the

misappropriated items and materials are in progress.

The financial data of Jinan Chaopi Company in December
2019 was not included in the consolidated financial statements
of the Company in 2019 due to the above actions of the
minority shareholders. Even through the management of the
Company made some adjustments to these consolidated
financial statements based on the bank statement of Jinan
Chaopi Company provided as at 31 December 2019, we cannot
guarantee the completeness and accuracy of data related
to Jinan Chaopi Company in the 2019 consolidated financial
statements of the Company; in addition, because the control
of the financial information of Jinan Chaopi Company is in the
hands of minority shareholders, and it refuses to accept the
audit and provide audit information, which has resulted in the
inability to perform some the audit procedures that are related to
Jinan Chaopi Company, such as issuance of letter of verification,
inspection of vouchers and inventory counting. It is necessary
for us to issue audit opinion on the Company’s 2019 financial

statements.
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Thus, we are unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence on the possible impact of Jinan Chaopi Company’s
2019 financial data on the Company’s 2019 consolidated financial
statements, nor can we determine whether it is necessary to
adjust its amount; at the same time, it is impossible to judge
whether there are other matters that may have an impact on the

financial statements.

We performed our audit in accordance with the Chinese Auditing
Standards for Certified Public Accountants. The Auditor’s
Responsibility for Auditing Financial Statements section of the
audit report further explains our responsibilities under these
standards. In accordance with the Code of Ethics for Chinese
Certified Public Accountants, we are independent of the Company
and fulfill other responsibilities in terms of professional ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that we based on the
professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the
matters described in the section “Basis for Qualified Opinion”,
we determine that the following matters as key audit matters are

required to be communicated in the audit report.
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3.1 Wholesale and retail income

Refer to IV (20) and VI (37) of Notes to the consolidated

financial statements.

3.1.1 Description

As stated in Note VI (37) “operating income and
operating cost” in Notes to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company’s wholesale income is
RMB6,411.7587 million which is 60.75% of operating
income and retail income is RMB4,104.8645 million
which was 38.89% of operating income (wholesale
income was RMB6,157.6469 million, which was
52.85% of operating income and retail income was
RMB4,251.2079 million, which was 36.49% of
operating income in the year 2018). Wholesale and
retail revenue are the key components of Company’s
operating income and the amount is significant. In
addition, due to revenue is one of the company’s key
performance indicators, there is an inherent risk that
management will manipulate the timing of revenue
recognition in order to achieve a specific goal or
expectation. Thus, we identify and measure wholesale

and retail income as the key audit matters.

31.2 How our audit addressed the key audit matter

In terms of wholesale and retail income, our procedures

included, amongst others:
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We checked accounting policies related to
recognizing wholesale income and retail income of
the Company and evaluated the design of internal
controls related to the revenue cycle and test the

effectiveness of key internal controls;

In terms of wholesaling business, along with
analytic review, we also checked signed sales
contracts, delivery records, customer acceptance
records, relevant accounting vouchers and
their supporting documents (including Notice of
Delivery, Invoices, Bank receipts, etc.), and we
also select some customers to conduct letters to
confirm whether the record of sales revenue is

true and complete;

In terms of retailing business, subsequent to
solid analytical review, we selected some stores
and observed the operation situation on the
spot, according to the distribution and operation
performances of retail stores. In addition, we
checked the sales list daily report of the retail
store, the commodity sales financial accounting

vouchers and check to the bank statement;

Our internal IT experts conducted company-
level IT audit, which including: IT general control
tests and application control tests. As information
system played an important part in wholesaling
and retailing business, our internal IT experts
performed a detailed check on the revenue

related stock movement data.
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3.2 Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

Refer to IV (23) and VI (11 and 28) of Notes to the

consolidated financial statements.

321 Description

As stated on VI (11)“Right-of-use assets” and
(28) “lease liabilities” in Notes to the consolidated
financial statements and the consolidated financial
statements of the Company, the company recognized
RMB1,137.6623 million right-of-use assets and
RMB977.4288 million lease liabilities in the year 2019.
The Company as a H-share listed company, “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 21-Leases
(Amended in 2018)” (hereinafter referred to as “New
Lease Standards”) issued by the Ministry of Finance,
which was implemented from 1 January 2019. New
Lease Guideline was the first year to implement and
according to the actual operation of the company, as
a lessee, the company rents a lot of real estate and
involves a large amount of rent. It also has a large
impact on the overall structure and proportion of the
financial statements for the year. Many factors in the
recognition and measurement of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities involve the management’s analysis
of the conditions agreed in the lease contract, the
current market environment and the current interest
rate, and judgments based on this. Thus, we identify
and measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities as

the key audit matters.
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3.2.2How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

In terms of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, our

procedures included, amongst others:

(1)

We checked accounting policies of recognizing
and measuring right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities of the Company and we assessed the
design of internal controls related to the right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities and tested the

effectiveness of their internal controls;

We obtained the detailed information of the lease
contract information prepared by the Company,
which can be used as the confirmation and
measurement of the right-of-use assets and lease

liabilities;

We checked and confirmed the lease value
determination (including but not limited to
consideration of the possibility of renewal
and termination of the lease option) and the
determination of lease payment items and the
selection of discount rate are in line with the
actual situation of the company, when calculating
the present value of lease payments and the initial

measurement of the right-of-use asset;

We checked whether the depreciation accrual
of the right-of-use asset and the calculation of

interest expenses on lease liabilities are accurate;
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(5) We checked whether there is any indication
of impairment of the leased right-of-use asset,
perform impairment test on the right-of-use
asset that shows signs of impairment, together
with other assets in the asset group to which it
belongs, and check the difference between the
recoverable amount and the book value of the

asset group Make provision for impairment;

(6) We checked whether the statements related to
the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities and the
disclosure of notes related to leases are sufficient

and appropriate.

3.3 Accounts receivable credit loss allowance

Refer to IV (9) and VI (2) of Notes to the consolidated

financial statements.

33.1 Description

As stated on VI (2)“accounts receivable” in Notes
to the consolidated financial statements and the
consolidated financial statements of the Company,
the Company’s net consolidated accounts receivables
is RMB1,197.3825 million on 31 December 2019,
which is mainly wholesale business and accounts
for 14.08% of total assets, the net wholesale
business accounts receivable on 31 December
2019 is RMB1,157.5628 million, (the Company’s net
consolidated accounts receivables is RMB1,490.823
million on 31 December 2018, which accounts for
19.39% of total assets, including the net wholesale
business accounts receivable on 31 December 2018
was RMB1,458.4655 million). Accounts receivable has
both the large balance and the large proportion of the
total assets, in addition, they also may face uncertainty

in the market environment. Finally, the assessment
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of credit impairment losses on accounts receivable

involves management’s comprehensive analysis of

all reasonable and evidenced information, including

historical and forward-looking information. Based

on the judgment below, we identify the accounts

receivable credit loss allowance as a key audit matter.

332 How our audit addressed the key audit matter

In terms of accounts receivable credit loss allowance,

our procedures included, amongst others:

(1)

We understood, evaluated and tested the
management’s assessment of the recoverability
of receivables and the validity of the design
and operation of the related provisions for the
provision of bad debts, including the basis for
determining the portfolio of accounts receivable,
and the accounts receivable. Regular assessment
of ageing analysis and recoverability of accounts

receivable balances;

As for accounts receivable with significant single
amount, we reviewed the relevant considerations
and objective evidence of management’s
assessment of recoverable amount, including
management’s assessment of customer credit
risk based on customer’s operating conditions,

market environment and historical repayment;

As for accounts receivable with provision for bad
debts according to the combination of credit risk
characteristics, we reviewed the management’s
setting of credit risk characteristics combination
and reviewed whether the account receivable age

division is accurate;
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(4) We carried out detailed tests on the basis of
accounts receivable and the record of payment
of major receivables, and checked whether the
balance of accounts receivable at the end of the

year is accurate;

(6) Samples are drawn from the procedures for the
execution of the receivables and the payment

after the balance sheet date;

(6) We obtained the detailed list of the credit loss
allowance of the Company, and checked whether
the accrual method is implemented according
to the credit loss allowance policy; in addition,
we recalculated whether the accrued amount of

credit loss allowance is accurate;

OTHER INFORMATION

Management of the Company is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in 2019 annual report of other than the financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our audit opinion to financial statements does not cover other
information and we do not declare any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements our knowledge obtained in the audit

or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we concluded that
there is a material misstatement of this other information we
are required to report that fact. As mentioned in the above
section “Basis for Qualified Opinion”, we are unable to obtain
sufficient and appropriate audit evidence on the possible impact
of the financial data of Jinan Chaopi Company for 2019 on the
consolidated financial statements for 2019. Thus, we are unable
to determine whether there is a material misstatement of other

information related to this matter.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management of the Company (“the Management”) is responsible for
the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with the CASs, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing these financial statements, management is
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing

the Company’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
these financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with CSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

6.1 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

6.2 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Company’s internal control.
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6.3 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by management.

6.4 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in these financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to

continue as a going concern.

6.5 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

6.6 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Company to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

114 ANNUAL REPORT 2019

w

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

(=) FHEEEEERSBORMRE EMIE
HEFHER RARKEN IR -

(W) HEREEAFHELCLERRNVBENS
g o Al - RIZFERNETER -
AR RTE QR FEL LS
ELERRENERANBERAREFHEE
ATHEEMF SR - MRBRAFLE
WRAFEERTHETEE - FHEUR
KEMEETHRETRBRREAET
EUMBBRTOABRE  IREET
Fo o BPEERRFEREER - R
e EmEREERERE A ESH
B8 - A - REWBERKIERATELE
HREFERARTRRELE -

(B) FEABHRRNAEIIER - SBTA
(BREEER)  TFBUBRREEAA
RERIARIZZ HINEIR o

o}

(RN) FRFEARDPERLEB BN
ERERRD EENETER - U
MBHREBRER - RMAEES &
BMATRER - HAIYETE R
ERHEE -

BPEAEEMABMBRTHE - BRI
MBABNEREFRETER  BREER
BAPERET BB e E SRR A A BRI
BRFG o



We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards (If applicable).

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication.

Ruihua Certified Public Accountants

Chinese Certified Public Accountants (The Project Partner): Zhou Huiyan
Chinese Certified Public Accountants: Zhang Youquan

Beijing, China

22 April 2020

(English translation for reference only. Should there be any
inconsistency between the Chinese and English version, the Chinese

version shall prevail.)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
afEERER

AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 12H31H
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

REEM  ERREEREERERNER QA

Currency: RMB

DRIEA  ARBT

2019.12.31 2019.1.1 2018.12.31
Notes —Z-hEF —E-NF —E-)\F
ltem IHH = | +t=A=+—H —A—H +=ZA=+—H
Current Assets: RENEE :
Cash and bank balances BEE® (Vi1 949,420,994 | 1,146,910,207  1,146,910,207
Accounts receivable FEURBR 3K V2 1,197,382,479 | 1,490,822,972  1,490,822,972
Prepayments TEfTFRIE (V)3 1,124,980,836 750,913,496 750,913,496
Other receivables H At EUR (V4 191,243,003 170,279,180 175,508,371
Inventories FE V5 1,564,435,396 | 1,668,923,611  1,668,923,611
Other current assets Hib B & E (V)6 135,917,567 163,337,161 177,117,099
Total current assets mEEEASE 5,163,380,275 | 5,391,186,627 5,410,195,756
Non-current Assets: ERBEE !
Other non-current financial HEMERBEmEE
assets V7 42,272,786 14,583,646 14,583,646
Investment properties K"EMNEiE (Vs 178,914,199 187,606,354 187,606,354
Fixed assets BEEE (V9 922,254,233 976,125,343 976,125,343
Construction in progress frETE (V10 141,980,011 114,152,339 114,152,339
Right-of-use assets EREEE (vh11 | 1,137,662,287 | 1,165,139,003 -
Intangible assets mEEE (V12 289,748,102 305,636,827 305,636,827
Goodwill EES (V13 86,673,788 86,673,788 86,673,788
Long-term prepaid expenses ~ =EIFEHEA (V14 331,353,470 381,346,700 400,087,980
Deferred tax assets BEXEFTSRHEE (V15 10,523,930 20,226,293 20,226,293
Other non-current assets HEMIERBEE (V)17 196,794,890 172,511,502 172,511,502
Total non-current assets ERBEESS 3,338,177,696 | 3,424,001,795 2,277,604,072
TOTAL ASSETS BEMA 8,501,557,971 | 8,815,188,422  7,687,799,828
Current Liabilities: REBEE
Short-term borrowings EEME R (V)18 | 2,232,003,496 | 2,757,649,469  2,757,649,469
Notes payable JER & (V19 433,117,591 631,264,431 631,264,431
Accounts payable FETBR IR (V20 907,047,722 | 1,001,433,347  1,001,433,347
Contract liabilities ERAE (V21 428,557,184 371,087,396 371,087,396
Payroll payable A1 58 T 255 (V22 1,735,030 1,741,169 1,741,169
Taxes payable ERTE (V23 101,920,932 90,160,465 90,160,465
Other payables H At fET R (V24 264,174,840 234,392,613 234,392,613
Including: Interest payable Hep : ERAE (V24 2,859,433 3,939,352 3,939,352
Dividends payable FET AR A (V)24 5,251,507 4,576,656 4,576,656
Non-current liabilities due —FRNEIHRIETE
within one year afE (V25 196,274,668 194,598,375 -
Other current liabilities Hib g atE V26 328,520,621 332,391,018 347,962,855
Total current liabilities RBAESE 4,893,352,084 | 5,614,718,283  5,435,691,745
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
aHEERRE

AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 12531H
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

REBEM  ERRETEHERERNERAF

Currency: RMB

DEEA AR

2019.12.31 2019.1.1 2018.12.31
Notes —E-hEF —E-NF —E-N\%F
ltem 1HE 7Z% | +t=ZA=+—H —A—H +=ZA=+—H
Non-current Liabilities: kRBAE:
Bonds payable JERTES V27 402,326,607 - -
Lease liabilities HEBE (V28 977,428,757 977,942,220 -
Deferred income B = (V)30 35,950,018 43,314,592 43,314,592
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFFSHAE VN5 8,142,767 1,413,622 1,413,622
Other non-current liabilities HEMIERBERE (V)31 - 800,000 30,380,164
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEES 1,423,848,149 | 1,023,470,434 75,108,378
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEA 6,317,200,233 | 6,638,188,717  5,510,800,123
Shareholders’ equity: RERER
Share capital [N (V32 412,220,000 412,220,000 412,220,000
Capital reserves BARRNTE (V)33 605,043,091 605,043,091 605,043,091
Other comprehensive income  E 4R 4 UizE (V34 309,414 82,125 82,125
Surplus reserves BERNIR (V)35 160,727,215 153,125,894 153,125,894
Undistributed profits Ko BLH)HE (VI)36 550,263,661 537,907,146 537,907,146
Total equity attributable to ~ HERBATRRERES
shareholders of the parent B
company 1,728,563,381 | 1,708,378,256  1,708,378,256
Minority interests DEBRRERS 455,794,357 468,621,449 468,621,449
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ RERERSE
EQUITY 2,184,357,738 | 2,176,999,705  2,176,999,705
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EENRREREST
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 8,501,557,971 | 8,815,188,422  7,687,799,828

The notes as set out from page 131 to 347 form an integral part of

the financial statements

The financial statements as set out from pages 116 to 130 have been

signed by

TEX
Legal Representative
JEEREA

Li Jianwen

BN EIBIBEEFEA7TENIM EHRERM T A
MR NAR I D

F116BEF130BEMTHREAUATALTESE

FHEK EX0))
Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
FEEGIIIEFERA - SETHBEERA
Li Chunyan Wang Panzhou
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BALANCE SHEETS OF THE COMPANY
NAEERER

AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 12H531H
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

REEM  ERREEREERERNER QA

Currency: RMB

DRIEA  ARBT

2019.12.31 2019.1.1 2018.12.31
Notes —Z-hF —E-NF —E-)\F
ltem 1HE =& | +=A=+—H —A—H +=ZA=+—H
Current Assets: REBEE :
Cash and bank balances BEEe 186,411,639 224,705,249 224,705,249
Accounts receivable FEWBR TR (XV)1 79,981,805 74,528,897 74,528,897
Prepayments TR FIA 1,705,589 7,522,174 7,522,174
Other receivables HoAth FEUR (Xv)2 550,830,771 556,335,826 556,335,826
Inventories FE 292,264,291 232,394,387 232,394,387
Other current assets HEMRBEE 569,098,951 592,668,835 599,182,485
Total current assets REEESE 1,680,293,046 | 1,688,155,368 1,694,669,018
Non-current Assets: FEREEE :
Long-term equity investments K EIARIEIRE (XV)3 | 1,246,991,571 | 1,246,991,571  1,246,991,571
Investment properties KEUFEHE 47,313,072 50,551,095 50,551,095
Fixed assets BEE&E 672,527,910 698,380,308 698,380,308
Construction in progress HEIRE 103,874,334 105,435,366 105,435,366
Right-of-use assets EREEE 566,751,247 664,385,904 -
Intangible assets | EE 81,465,430 86,508,544 86,508,544
Long-term prepaid expenses REAFEEE R 243,386,592 282,487,334 299,680,251
Deferred tax assets REMSREE 3,299,953 3,806,678 3,806,678
Other non-current assets EMIERBEE 4,076,924 3,527,400 3,527,400
Total non-current assets FRBEESE 2,969,687,033 | 3,142,074,200 2,494,881,213
TOTAL ASSETS BEMAS 4,649,980,079 | 4,830,229,568  4,189,550,231
Current Liabilities: =R
Short-term borrowings RS ERE R 650,000,000 | 1,200,000,000  1,200,000,000
Accounts payable FE{ERER 650,139,694 653,250,386 653,250,386
Contract liabilities ERBE 340,636,812 320,652,852 320,652,852
Payroll payable JRE {5 B T 357 B 1,307,163 1,378,172 1,378,172
Taxes payable ERRE 871,536 4,559,402 4,559,402
Other payables HE Mg 122,134,371 127,179,714 127,179,714
Including: Interests payable Hrh o ERALE 612,425 1,716,377 1,716,377
Dividends payab|e Jﬁgﬁ'ﬂﬁﬁj 18,907 1,134,156 1,134,156
Non-current liabilities due —FREEIER
within one year =N 94,696,356 114,104,884 -
Other current liabilities EMnBasi 315,053,032 318,516,893 327,752,218
Total current liabilities REBEEA 2,174,838,964 | 2,739,642,303 2,634,772,744

118 ANNUAL REPORT 2019

4

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED



BALANCE SHEETS OF THE COMPANY
NAAEERRE

AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 12531H
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

REBEM  ERRETEHERERNERAF

Currency: RMB

DEEA AR

2019.12.31 2019.1.1 2018.12.31
—E-NF —E-NF —E-)N\F
ltem ERE +=—A=+—H —A—H +=ZA=+—H
Non-current Liabilities: ERBAE:
Bonds payable ERES 402,326,607 - -
Leases abilities HEAE 478,351,796 540,009,778 -
Deferred income EEW S 26,865,191 25,215,578 25,215,578
Other non-current liabilities HMIERBAE - 800,000 5,000,000
Total non-current liabilities ERBEESS 907,543,594 566,025,356 30,215,578
TOTAL LIABILITIES aE4ast 3,082,382,558 3,305,667,659 2,664,988,322
Shareholders’ equity: BREERE
Share capital i@ 412,220,000 412,220,000 412,220,000
Capital reserves BARNFE 615,293,521 615,293,521 615,293,521
Surplus reserves B NTE 136,949,981 129,348,659 129,348,659
Undistributed profits FOEFE 403,134,019 367,699,729 367,699,729

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’
EQUITY

RREF ST

1,567,597,521

1,524,561,909

1,524,561,909

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

BEMRRESRATT

4,649,980,079

4,830,229,568

4,189,5650,231

The notes as set out from page 131 to 347 form an integral part of

the financial statements

The financial statements as set out from pages 116 to 130 have been

signed by

FTEX
Legal Representative
JEEREA

Li Jianwen

HERAERE D

Chief Financial Officer
FTESFLIEEEA -

E8M

BN EI1BTBEEFA7TENT EHRERM T AT

F116BEF130BMTHREAUATALERSE

Chief Accountant

I EERAA

Wang Panzhou
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
EXARAVEES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

BREM : ARREEAFRERNERAA

ltem

. Total operating income
Including: Operating income
Il. Total operating costs
Including: Operating cost
Taxes and surcharges
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Financial expenses
Add: Other income
Investment income
Gain on the changes in fair value
Impairment losses on credits
Gain on disposal of assets
lIl. - Operating profit
Add: Non-operating income
Less: Non-operating expenses
IV. Total profit
Less: Income tax expense
V. Net profit
()} Classified by business continuity
1.Net profit from continued operations

2.Net profit from discontinued operations

(I Classified by ownership
1. Net profit attributable to shareholders of the
parent company
2. Profit or loss attributable to minority interests

8

- VN
Ee BRI
~ o ERERA
He: BRAA
He kM
HEER
EEER
HBER
RN
BAKE (BRI - 585))
DA EEZSUNE (AR - JHES)
fERRERRREI - 585
AEREUNE (AR - [3RES))
EEME(BRI - 353
s ERHA
BRI
A - MESE(BRERA - I3ES))
B FERER
B BRBCRER - 3RE3)
(- REERRENE
1 REEEENE
(EBR - J5E31)
2 BIHEEERE
(BRI - J5RE3)
(Z)BHERBENE
1 BRREAARRAFNE
(RBRIA - J5E3)
2 bERRER
(RBRIA - J5iE31)

2019
20195

11,658,221,930
11,658,221,930
11,531,612,765
9,032,735,798
48,879,944
1,952,250,721
301,068,109
196,678,193
18,295,011
1,468,632
27,689,141
(8,242,579)
515,005
166,334,375
22,372,295
9,904,427
178,802,243
81,715,652
97,086,591

97,086,591

52,935,436

44,151,155

Currency: RMB
SBEN : \RET

2018
0185

11,650,283,772
11,650,283,772
11,587,908,194
8,942,576,073
19,175,630
2,075,079,026
298,378,649
172,697,916
27,812,795
13,141,947
(8,134,354)
(6,836,344)
(2,305,871)
136,053,751
50,973,120
18,437,293
177,580,578
71212617
106,376,961

106,376,961

63,312,317

43,064,644
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BREMN  ARREEBEEERNERAA

ltem

VI, Net value of other comprehensive income after tax
Net value of other comprehensive income attributable to
shareholders of the parent company after tax
Other comprehensive income which can be reclassified
into profit or loss subsequently
Balancing arising from the translation of foreign
currency financial statements
Net value of other comprehensive income attributable to
minority interests after tax
Total comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income attributable to shareholders of
the parent company
Total comprehensive income attributable to minority interests
VIIl. Earnings per share
() Basic earnings per share
(I) Diluted earnings per share

VIIL

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
EXARAVEES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

Notes
JBH HE

A EpEAREREEE
BESATRENRIEAKSNHEIE

REMBEREN LG RE
NEHBRRNEER
RN BRRMA S RENRE IR

t HekE8E
BRNSLARRNGA AR

SRNVERRNGANRES

N Sl
() ArEREE(T/R) (V51
(2 RESREE(T/B)

Currency: RMB
SBEN : ARET

2019 2018
20195 2018F
437,915 140,061
227,289 72,69
227,289 72,695
227,289 72,69
210,626 67,366
97,524,506 106,517,022
53,162,725 63,385,012
44,361,781 43,132,010
0.13 0.15

The notes as set out from page 131 to 347 form an integral part of

the financial statements

BN EIB1BEEFA7TENT B HRERN T AT
MR NARK B D

The financial statements as set out from pages 116 to 130 have been  F116EEF1S0EMFHEHREIAUATALES

signed by

FEX
Legal Representative
JEEREA

Li Jianwen

THER
Chief Financial Officer
FTESHIIFEEA -
Li Chunyan

M
Chief Accountant

BIEERAA

Wang Panzhou
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INCOME STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY

NCIRRIVEES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

BREM : ARREEAFRERNERAA

ltem

I, Operating income
Less: Operating costs
Taxes and surcharges
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Financial expenses
Add:  Other income
Investment income
Gain on disposal of assets
Il Operating profit
Add: Non-operating income
Less: Non-operating expenses
Ill. Total profit
Less: Income tax expense
V. Net profit
1. Net profit from continued operations
2. Net profit from discontinued operations

V. Net value of other comprehensive income after tax

V. Total comprehensive income

8

VERUA
o ERHA
B RHm
HERR
ERER
HBER
pIIREY
A (BRI - J5HE5)
BERENE (AR - FET)
EENE (BRI - 13E5)
IR 15N
BRI
FBLR(BREEN - 58
B EHER
RMECREIRL - R
(—)BEERFNBERN - 585
(DR IEBREHBORBRN - 583
Bt A REn Rk R
ottt

Notes
iTE

()4
(XV)4

(xVio

Currency: RMB

SEEWN: ARBT

2019
20195

4,185,589,695
3,241,096,981
20,974,139
673,135,435
168,212,833
50,200,472
13,515,407
33,263,682
50
78,751,974
13,204,262
3,008,944
89,037,292
13,024,080
76,013,212
76,013,212

76,013,212

2018
0185

4,303,204,527
3,374,437,660
24,840,994
701,926,225
162,462,606
46,510,940
21,745,537
25,099,305
(2,081,803)
37,789,141
34,374,259
5,913,086
66,250,314
12,477,345
53,772,969
53,772,969

53,772,969

The notes as set out from page 131 to 347 form an integral part of

the financial statements

The financial statements as set out from pages 116 to 130 have been

signed by

FEX

Legal Representative

JEERZEA -

Li Jianwen
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
ANy ANy i —

EHIREeRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF

All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

RHEM  HRREEEXKERDARLA)

ltem

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from selling goods and

rendering services
Taxes and surcharges refunds received
Other cash received relating to operating activities
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities
Cash paid for purchasing goods and

receiving services
Cash payments to and on behalf of employees
Taxes and surcharges paid
Other cash paid related to operating activities
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating activities
Net cash flow from operating activities

. Cash flows from investing activities

Cash received from investment
Cash received from investment income
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets
Other cash received relating to investing activities
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,
construction in progress, intangible assets
and other long-term assets
Cash paid for investment
Other cash paid relating to investing activities
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities
Net cash flow from investing activities

Currency: RMB
SBEBf : ARET

Notes 2019 2018
EH B 20195 201858
- EERBELNELHE:
HERD - RESBUEINES
13,532,629,803 13,493,952,839
WENHERE - 957,863
WEEELEERAENRE (V)52 249,331,119 312,129,776
TEEHRS TG 13,781,960,922 13,807,040,478
BERR  BI4SBIANRE
11,429,003,214 10,929,175 444
IARBINRARIS MRS 750,563,475 744,624,187
IRNRERE 315,280,973 294,965,735
IREMELEEHARNRS (V)52 870,665,424 1,077,004,786
EEHRL TG 13,365,513,086 13,045,770,152
REEPELANRERETE 416,447,836 761,270,326
O REFBELNELRE:
WEREREINE S 683,575,508 751,175,339
BERERGZRIMAE 5,337,249 4,055,147
BERTAE - EVEENENREY
BEWEMNES TS 2,177,837 4,329,728
WEEHEREEDEENRE (V)52 93,354,177 148,393,855
REEBRETANG 784,444,771 907,954,068
BRETAE EVEENEORY
BEIRNEE
63,345,156 83,494,620
REYROERE 683,520,000 716,916,539
IREMEREZHABNRS (V)52 43,410,184 129,108,573
REEBR ST 790,275,340 929,519,732
REEDEANRSRETE (5,830,569) (21,565,664)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

attiE

MER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

Currency: RMB

RABN  IRRERREEERNERAF SHEEN - ARET
Notes 2019 2018
ltem B e 20195 0185
lIl. Cash flows from financing activities = EETBELNRERE !
Cash received from investments e telliokka 3,000,000 -
Including: Cash received from capital contribution A FRARKS BREREWE
from minority shareholders of o
subsidiaries 3,000,000 -
Cash received from borrowings REETUEINERS 4,405,129,517 5,044,792,397
Cash received from other financing activities Hﬁl |EpEREEEDARNRS (V)52 1,095,649,057 3,499,846,858
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities ELEHREMANG 5,503,778,574 8,544,639,255
Cash paid for repayments of liabilities 1a BEEINNES 4,930,775,490 5,003,353,370
Cash paid for dividends, profits or interest payments 2 E&F - FIESERFSZFNES 193,016,506 202,421,394
Including: Dividends and profits paid by EF FREARRIBRERN
subsidiaries to minority shareholders R - 7B 27,262,325 52,987,180
Cash paid for other financing activates TEMASEEHERNRS (V)52 940,630,713 3,974,151,101
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing activities BLEHRE MM NG 6,064,422,709 9,199,925,865
Net cash flow from financing activities ELEYEANRENETE (560,644,135) (655,286,610)
IV. Effect on cash and cash equivalents due to ER2HHRSRASSENNTE
change in foreign currency exchange rate 648,748 300,989
V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents T RERBSEEMTEME (149,378,120) 84,719,041
Add: Balance of cash and cash equivalents at m: BIRERELEENLE
the beginning of the year 1,014,227,924 929,508,883
VI. Balance of cash and cash equivalents A BRBEERELSENSE
at the end of the year 864,849,804 1,014,227,924
The notes as set out from page 131 to 347 form an integral part of ~ FHMNE 1318 E 347 B 1) 8 15 W= M sE = AR 75
the financial statements MM E D

The financial statements as set out from pages 116 to 130 have been

signed by

FEX
Legal Representative

JEERZEA -

Li Jianwen
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY
NAIRERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

RHEM  HRREEEXKERDARLA)

ltem

. Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received from selling goods and

rendering services
Taxes and surcharges refunds received
Other cash received relating to operating activities
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities
Cash paid for purchasing goods and

receiving services
Cash payments to and on behalf of employees
Taxes and surcharges paid
Other cash paid related to operating activities
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating activities
Net cash flow from operating activities

. Cash flows from investing activities
Cash received from investment
Cash received from investment income
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets
Other cash received relating to investing activities
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,
construction in progress, intangible assets
and other long-term assets
Cash paid for investment
Other cash paid relating to investing activities
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities
Net cash flow from investing activities

- BERBHELORIRE:

HEAR  RESHIEINASE

WBIMBHERE
WEEBREREHERNRE
BEEBRERAG
BEAm  RRSBXAORE

IRARBINRARISHRNRE
IRNEBELRE
TREpELEESERNEE
BETHRL RN
BETHELNEERETFE

Z O RERBELNRERE

KERERIINRS

BERARENENES

REEFAE BVAENAGRY
BENENZSFR

e EBEREEHERNRE

REEBRSRAG

FRETEE BVAENEMEY
BEXfNEE

REXfNRE
SHEGEEERDARNR S
REEBRS R
REZHELNRERERR

Notes
HE

2019
20195

4,647,217,751
142,845,181
4,790,062,932

3,814,291,424
382,660,858
80,445,078
247,284,075
4,524,681,435
265,381,497

820,400,000
81,606,804

547,874
501,878,830
1,404,433,508

39,792,701
325,400,000
1,000,000,000
1,365,192,701
39,240,807

Currency: RMB
SBEBf : ARET

2018
201858

4,716,424,603
122,010
182,928,014
4,899,474,627

3,878,617,909
385,046,582
109,815,970
338,775,393
4,712,255,854
187,218,773

778,600,000
72,034,407

884,908
313,325,820
1,164,845,135

61,646,325
603,600,000
605,150,000

1,270,396,325
(105,551,190)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY

NARRETRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

BHEMN  LRRREAXEERNERAF

[tem

I1l. Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from borrowings
Cash received from other financing activities
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities
Cash paid for repayments of liabilities
Cash paid for dividends, profits or interest payments
Cash paid for other financing activates
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing activities
Net cash flow from financing activities

IV. Effect on cash and cash equivalents due to
change in foreign currency exchange rate

V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Add: Balance of cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the year

V1. Balance of cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year

Notes
] B

= BERBELNRERE !
BRETRHNRE
WA ARREDERNRE
EETHHEERA NG
EBEEHX AL
DEEAN - MEREMNE MRS
INEMEZEEDARNTS
ERRBRL R
EETHELNREREFE

M EXEBHASRALSENNGE

S

5 RERASEENTENE
n: AR kR SENRE

A BREERASEENEE

2019
20195E

900,000,000
1,095,649,057
1,095,649,057
1,450,000,000
84,496,999
804,143,817
2,338,640,816
(342,991,759)

75,845
(38,203,610)

224,705,249

186,411,639

Currency: RMB
BB ARET
2018

20185

1,663,000,000
3,500,000,000
5,153,000,000
1,320,000,000

113,439,661
3,950,000,000
5,383,439,661

(230,439,661)

226,841
(148,545,237)

373,250,486

224,705,249

The notes as set out from page 131 to 347 form an integral part of

the financial statements

The financial statements as set out from pages 116 to 130 have been

signed by

FEX

Legal Representative

EEREA

Li Jianwen
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

BB

tem

| Balance at the end of last year
Add: Changes in accounting policles
Correction of prior errors
Business combination under
common control
Others
Il Balance at the beginning of the year
Il Increase o decrease amount in
the year
) Total comprehensive income
(I} Contribution and recuction of
shereholders’ capital
1. Ordinary shares confrioution
from shareholders
2. Gapital contrloution from
holders of other equity
nstruments
3. Dividends payments
recognized in
shareholders' equty
4. Oters
(1) Proft contrioution
1. Appropriation to surplus
TESENES
2. Appropriation to general
risk reserve
3. Distrioution to shareholders
4. Others

(V) Internal transfer within shareholders’

equity
1. Capital reserves transferred to
capttal {or shares)

2. Surplus reserves transferred to

capital {or shares)
3. Surplus reserves mace up
for losses
4. Others
V. Balance at the end of the year

RREEEEREENNERLA

%8

- LEEFHR
I GiHRER
JEEREL
BT eEeG

&l
TEETHE
| REERREEE
(BM - )
(-) Fekzag
(2) BREAMR) &2

1~ BRRANERR

2 EfERTARE
FRNER

R VEGEA
feR

@
kﬂﬁﬁ’%
2 RE-HERER

3 HRRNAR
4 2
(B) FEangse

i~ ERLEERAT
(&5D)

2 ERLEERET
(25F)

3 ERLERRRE

4 El
I $¢¢$ﬁﬁ

m

4
(=) #Ea
R

BB

R

—u—\/

/ ~ II\I:III\ Eb EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

Currency: RMB
SHE: ARET

For the year ended at 31 December 2019

NI95E
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent company
EERBARRRER
Other

Share Capital ~ comprehensive Surplus  Undistributed
capital reserves income reserves profits Subtotal
i EEDE  EMARYE BR0E  AOEAE it
412,220,000 605,043,091 82125 153125804 537907146 1,708,378,256
412,200,000 605,043,091 82125 153125804 537907146 1,708,378,256
- - 227,289 7,601,321 12,356,515 20,185,125
- - 207,269 - 52,935,436 53,162,725
- - - 7,601,321 (do578921)  (32,077,600)
- - - 7,601,321 (7,601,321) -
- - - - (32,977.600)  (32,977,600)
412220000 605,043,091 300414 160727215 550,263,661 1,726,563 361

Minority
interests

HURRER

468,621,449

468,621,449

(12,827,092
44361781

3,000,000

3,000,000

(60,188,473

(60,188,873)

456,794,367

Total
shareholders’

equity
BRERAT

2,176,999,705

2,176,999,705

1,358,033
97,524,506

3,000,000

3,000,000

193166473)

(93,166,473)

2,184,357,738

ERRE

2019 E%&
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
SEHRRER R B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

Currency: RMB

RHBN L RRREEEARAERAR SEBN: ARET
For the year ended at 31 December 2018
W016EE
Equity atirioutable to shareholders of the parent company
EENLARRER
Other Total
Share Captl ~ comprehensive Surplus— Undistrouted Minority ~ shareholders’
capital TESEIVeS income T6SEIVES profits Subtotal interests ) equi}i
fem EH i ERDE  EfeNE N ROWAE g JERREE  BRERSS
| Balance at the end of last year - LEERRE 412,220,000 605,008,846 6,625,801 147748597 498,085,598 1,669,688,842 481937401 2,151,626.249
Add: Changes in accountng polcies - EHHRER - - b6 - 6,616,371 - - -
Correction of prior erars ISEREL - - - - - - - -
Busingss combination under A EAR
common control - - - - - - - -
Others i - - - - - - - -
Il Balance at the begining of the year =+ AEERE 412,220,000 605,008,846 9430 147,748,597 504,701,969 1,669,688,842 481,987407  2,161,626,249
NI, Increase or decrease amount n = BEERERLE
the year (AU - 583 - 3245 72,69 5311297 33,208,177 36680414 (13,315,958) 25,373,456
() Total comprehensive income (-) Bakses - - 72,6% - 63,312,317 63,385,012 483132010 106,517,022
(I} Contrbution and reduction of (2) RERAREAER
shareholders’ capital - 34,245 - - - 34,045 (3,460,786 (3,426,541)
1. Orcinary shares contrbution 1 RERADERR
from shareholders - - - - - - (3,469.426) (3,469,426)
2. Capital contrbution from 2 EMERIERE
holders of other equty ERNER
instruments - - - - - - - -
3. Dhidends payments 3 ROEMHARR
recognized in shareholders' EafeE
equly - - - - - - - -
4, Others 4 i - 3245 - - - 34245 8,640 42,88
(I Proft contbuton (2) #EAE - - SR UMY Q4TB)  RTAR) (IO
1. Appropriation to surplus 1 ROEHLE
T6SEIVES - - - 5311297 (5,377,297) - - -
2. Appropriaton to general 2 RR-REREE
risk reserve - - - - - - - -
3. Distiouton to shareholders 3 BRRNAR - - - - TR0 4TR20 (2987180 (77720382
4, Others 4 B - - - - 3,87 337 - 3,367
(V) Internal trangfer within shareholders’ (1) R MDEE
equly - - - - - - - -
1, Capita reserves transfered to 1+ ERDEEEEK
capital {or shares] (%) - - - - - . B} _
2. Surplus reserves ransfered to 2 BRNEEEER
captal (or Shares] (%) - - - - - - - -
3. Surplus reserves made up 3 BRNEREEE
for losses - - - - - - - -
4 Others i - - - - - - - -
V. Balance at the end of the year IR Mﬁﬁ?@g 412,220,000 605,043,001 82,12 163,125,804 531907,146 1708378206 468,621,449  2,176,999,70
The notes as set out from page 131 to 347 form an integral part of  HNFE131H E F347 B B IR KM 3T 2 A 75
the financial statements R MAERCE 5

The financial statements as set out from pages 116 to 130 have been

signed by
FEX B
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer
JEERERA FEBFILIEFERA :
Li Jianwen Li Chunyan
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY OF THE COMPANY
ARRRESEDE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

BREN IRREEEZEERNARLA

Currency: RMB
SEEM : ARET

For the year at 31 December 2019
W19
Other Total
comprehensive Undistributed ~ shareholders’
Capital share ~ Capital reserves income  Surplus reserves profits equity
[tem R R& BALNR Rtisa g BHLR AARAE RRERAH
I Balance at the end of last year - LEERHE 412,220,000 615,203,521 - 129,348,659 367,699,729 1,524,561,909
Add: Changes in accounting policies n:eHHREE - - - - - -
Correction of prior errors AEERET - - - - - -
Others Eft - - - - - -
Il Balance at the beginning of the year Z REEHBE 412,220,000 615,293,521 - 129,348,659 367,699,729 1,524,561,909
I Increase or decrease amount in the year = - REBEFEELE
(O IAT - J5851) - - - 7,601,822 35,434,200 43,035,612
() Total comprehensive income (=) BAkzeS - - - - 76,013,212 76,013,212
(I Contrioution and reduction of (Z) BEEATROER
shareholders’ capital - - - - - -
1. Ordinary shares contrioution 1 RERRAGSER
from shareholders - - - - - -
2. Capital contribution from holders 2 EfERIAR
of other equity instruments BERNER - - - - - -
3. Dividends payments recognized 3 R ARR
in shareholders” equity EReE - - - - - -
4, Others 4 Eft - - - - - -
(i) Proft contribution (2) FIE5R - - - TR0L32 (4057892  (32977,600)
1. Appropriation to surplus reserves 1 ROE#LE - - - 7,601,322 (7,601,322) -
2. Appropriation to general risk 2 RR-RERER
reserve - - - - - -
3. Distrioution to shareholders 3 UBRROHAE - - - - (32,977,600) (32,977,600)
4, Others 4 Eft - - - - - -
(V) Internal transfer within shareholders’ (m) BeEznsLe
equity - - - - - -
1. Capital reserves transferred to 1 BRLBELER
capital (or shares) (SHx) - - - - - -
2. Surplus reserves transferred to 2 BHLRELEAR
capital (or shares) (3EE) - - - - - -
3. Surplus reserves made up for 3 BRLREREE
losses - - - - - -
4, Others 4 Eft - - - - - -
(V) Special reserves () EEBRRE - - - - - -
1. Appropriation in the year 1 RERR - - - - - -
2. Usage in the year 2 TR - - - - - -
(V) Others (77) Eft - - - - - -
V. Balance at the end of the year REERBE 412,220,000 615,293,521 - 136,949,981 403,134,019 1,567,597,521
L ‘ 2019 5 1ng
IERREEREEERGARAR
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY OF THE COMPANY
ARRRESEDE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

Currency: RMB

RREf - L RRREAFEERNERAR SBEM \RET
For the year at 31 December 2018
0185F
Other Total
comprehensive Undistriuted shareholders'
Capital share  Capital reserves income  Surplus reserves profits equity
Item 13H e U Hials BHLE APRAE hRERAH
|, Balance at the end of last year - TEERHE 412200000 615,293,521 - 13971382 344083900 1495518783
Add: Changes in accounting policies n: ghkREsE - - - - - -
Correction of prior errors HSZHER - - - _ _ _
Others =0} - - - - - -
Il Balance at the beginning of the year =+ REFAIHE 412,220,000 615,293,521 - 123,971,362 344033900 1495518783
Il Increase or decrease amount in the year =« AEIEFEHAE
(BT - 58851) - - - 5,377,207 23,665,829 29,043,126
() Total comprehensive income (-) GAkmeEs - - - - 53,772,969 53,772,969
(I} Contrioution and reduction of (2) REBRARFAER
shareholders’ capital - - - - - -
1. Ordinary shares contribution 1 RERE AR LB
from shareholders - - - - - -
2. Capital contribution from holders 2 EMERTERA
f other equity instruments ERNER - - - - - -
3. Dividends payments recognized R ARR
in shareholders’ equity ERMeE - - - - - -
4, Others m - - - - - -
(1) Profit contribution (=) %IJ - - - 5,377,297 (30,107,140) (4,729,843)
1. Appropriation to surplus reserves HW%% NE - - - 5,377,297 (5,377,297) -
2. Appropriation to general risk 2 RO-HRERER
reserve - - - - - -
3. Distribution to shareholders 3 HRENAL - - - - (24,733,200) (24,733,200)
4. Others Eh - - - - 3,307 3,307
(IV) Internal transfer within shareholders’ (m) Hﬁf&ﬁm <151
equity - - - - - -
1. Capltal reserves transferred o 1 ERNRERER
capital (or shares) (F]RA) - - - - - -
2. Surplus reserves transferred to PR NV
capital (o shares) (%fx) - - - - - -
3. Surplus reserves made up for 3 BHLERREE
losses - - - - - -
4, Others 4 Efp - - - - - -
(V) Special reserves () ZEGEE - - - - - -
1, Appropriation in the year 1 AERE - - - - - -
2. Usage in the year 2\1@}%1?% - - - - - -
W) Otrers DEL - - ] ] . )
IV. Balance at the end of the year W AEERBE 412,220,000 615,293,521 - 129,348,659 367,699,729 1524,561,909
The notes as set out from page 131 to 347 form an integral part of HRE131EH EE347 B BT &R =W 7T 2 ANEF 7%
the financial statements REHBKE D

The financial statements as set out from pages 116 to 130 have been

signed by
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A

b e e

il

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194

All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited (the “Company”) is a joint
stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”). On 1 November 2004, with the approval by
Beijing Administration for Industry and Commerce, the Company
(formerly known as “Beijing Jingkelong Supermarket Chain
Company Limited”) was established and the registered capital
of the Company was RMB412,220,000. The company’s unified
social credit code is 91110000101782670P. The registered office
and the principal place of business of the Company are located
at Block No. 45, Xinyuan Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the retail and wholesale

distribution of daily consumer products.

On 25 September 2006, the H shares issued by the Company
were listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. On 26 February 2008, all the H
shares were transferred to the Main Board for listed trading. The
Company issued a total of 412,220,000 ordinary shares as at 31
December 2019.

The controlling shareholder of the Company is Beijing Chaoyang

Auxiliary Food Company (“Chaoyang Auxiliary”).

The consolidated financial statements of the Group and financial
statements of the Company, which are subject to consideration
at the general meeting pursuant to the Articles of Association of
the Company, were approved by the board of directors on 22

April 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS el b

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

il

Il. BASIS FOR PREPARASTION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements are presented on a going concern
basis. The financial statements are prepared based on the actual
transactions and events and in accordance with “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic Standard” (issued by
Ministry of Finance No0.33 and revised by Ministry of Finance
No.76), 42 specific accounting standards, implementation
guidelines and explanations of enterprise accounting standards
and other relevant provisions issued on 15 February 2006 and
those updated afterwards (Hereafter collectively referred to as
“ASBE”), and the disclosure requirements of Company Ordinance
of Hong Kong and the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

In accordance with ASBE, the Group has adopted the accrual
basis of accounting. Except for certain financial instruments,
the Company adopts the historical cost as the principle of
measurement in the financial statements. When assets are
impaired, provisions for asset impairment are made in accordance

with relevant requirements.

Ill. STATEMENTS OF COMPLIANCE WITH ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS FOR BUSINESS ENTERPRISES-BASIC
STANDARD

The financial statements have been in compliance with ASBE,
truly and completely reflecting the financial position of the
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2019 and of the
financial performance, cash flows and other relevant information

of the Company and the Group for the 2019 year then ended.

ol
L
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Accounting period

The Group adopts the calendar year as its accounting year

from January 1 to December 31.

Business period

The normal business period refers to the period from
the purchase of assets until it realization of cash or cash
equivalents. The Group uses 12 months as a business

period and as a criterion for liquidity of assets and liabilities.

Functional currency

RMB is the currency of the primary economic environment
where the Group and its domestic subsidiaries operate,
and the Group and its domestic subsidiaries used RMB as
the functional currency. The financial statements have been

prepared in RMB.

Accounting treatment method for business
combination under the same control and not under

the same control

Business combination refers to a transaction or event in
which two or more separate enterprises are combined to
form a reporting entity. Business combinations are divided
into business combinations under common control and

business combinations not under common control.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS e b

1:||||/

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

FERETBERNE S

1

gl

AEENEHFERREFE - AEF
1A1HEE12A31HIE °

EHERBHEHEASERERERRM
IWEEEREBR[CARSFEMN
HifE - AEEN12EAER—EZXE
B WUEEREEMABENREIEE

DIFLE o

FORRAS LS
ARERAEERERNFARKENRE
METBEBERFPNEE  AEELE

AFRARRARBREEAME - KE
EREAUBHRREARANEERA
R¥% -

B — 25 T MR —ZH T RS 6
HETTRER X

LEAH  BHEEMEXMEALEE
WEEAHTER —ERE RO FK
£H - PEAHOIRAEHTELEAS
PEMIER — 2 S T REA G -

2019 @%ﬁ 133

ErrREEREEERNARA

,_2

%
X

=



|

«

-
o

w

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R P o
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

 BERHRENR ()

B — =% T MR —ZH T XS
WETTEREBSE(E)

4. Accounting treatment method for business 4 -
combination under the same control and not under

the same control (Continued)

B —#E#| F EEE O

The enterprises participating in the merger are
ultimately controlled by the same party or the same
multiple parties before and after the merger, and the
control is not temporary. It is a business combination
under the same control. In a business combination
under the same control, the party that obtains control
of other participating companies on the combining
date is the combining party, and the other participating
companies are the combined party. The merger date
refers to the date on which the combining party

actually obtains control of the combined party.

The assets and liabilities acquired by the combining
party are measured at the book value of the
combined party on the combining date. The difference
between the book value of the net assets acquired
by the merger and the book value of the combined
consideration paid (or the total face value of the
issued shares) is adjusted for the capital reserve (share
premium); if the capital reserve (share premium) is not

sufficient to offset, the retained earnings are adjusted.

The direct costs incurred by the merging party for the

4.1 Business combination under the same control (1)

SEAHFNERER HARAZA
—HRMERNZ T HEKES - B
SR LIEERMERN - REA—ZE
HITOEEAH - F—ZH T
TLEEH  EEHARGHEMW
SEAHEEEGIEN T RAH
o 2HEAHNEMBIEREA
B - ABE - RIEAHIER
BUSHR A T EHIER R

W

BHITRENEENREDRE
RERAHITMEEEENE -
BHITBREGNFEEREEESR
AW E G EREEE(RET
BOEEARE)NER  HEERX
AR(BARE) + BARRTEBRA
HE) TR - BHEZFI

S o

Bk

BHITRETEXREHELNEIE

business combination shall be included in the current BEEER  RELERTAZHE
profit and loss when incurred. e
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

4.

Accounting treatment method for business
combination under the same control and not under

the same control (Continued)

4.2 Business combinations not under common control

Enterprises that participate in the merger are not
under the same party or the same multiple parties’
ultimate control before and after the merger, which is a
business combination not under the same control. For
a business combination not under the same control,
the party that obtains control of other participating
companies on the purchase date is the purchaser, and
the other companies participating in the combination
are the purchased party. The purchase date refers
to the date on which the purchaser actually obtains

control of the purchased party.

1:||||/

- EERH BB ()

B —ZH T MR —ZH T XS/
MNETREBELE(E)

(2) FE—ZHTEESG

SHEAHNEEERHARTEA
— AR Z T HEEHE
RIFFA—EH THEEAG - IF
—EHTHERAN  EBEE
BUSHEMS EAH DRI HIE
M- REBEY  2HEHNE
MBEEXESEEES -BER 2
ERBETERIUSHEEETEZ
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

N - EESRBERNSE AR (E)

4. Accounting treatment method for business 4~ E—EFTHER—ZHTEESH
combination under the same control and not under HETEEREE)
the same control (Continued)
4.2 Business combinations not under common control (2) FHE—Z#HTLELHE)

(Continued)

For a business combination not under the same
control, the cost of the combination includes the
assets paid by the purchaser to obtain control of the
purchased party, the liabilities incurred or assumed,
and the fair value of the equity securities issued on the
purchase date. Intermediary expenses such as audits,
legal services, evaluation and consulting, and other
management expenses are included in the current
profit and loss when incurred. The transaction cost
of equity securities or debt securities issued by the
purchaser as the merger consideration is included in
the initial recognition amount of equity securities or
debt securities. The contingent consideration involved
is included in the merger cost based on its fair value at
the date of purchase. If there is new or further evidence
of the existing conditions on the purchase date within
12 months of the purchase date and the adjustment
or consideration is required, adjust the merger
accordingly reputation. The merger costs incurred by
the purchaser and the identifiable net assets obtained
in the merger are measured at the fair value at the date
of purchase. The difference between the merger cost
and the fair value share of the identifiable net assets of
the acquired party acquired on the acquisition date is
recognized as goodwill. If the merger cost is less than
the fair value share of the identifiable net assets of the
acquired party acquired in the merger, first of all, the
measured fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the acquired party and the
measurement of the merger cost shall be reviewed. If
the merger cost is still less than the fair value share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets obtained in the
merger, the difference is included in the current profit

and loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

RS e b

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

- EERH BB ()

1:||||/

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

4.

Accounting treatment method for business 4 E-EHITRER—ZHTEESH
WETEERE(E)

combination under the same control and not under

the same control (Continued)

4.2 Business combinations not under common control

(Continued)

(2) HE—ZHTLELSGHE)

If the purchaser obtains the deductible temporary
difference of the purchased party and fails to confirm
the deferred income tax asset recognition condition
on the purchase date, within 12 months after the
purchase date, if new or further information is obtained
indicating the purchase The relevant situation on the
day already exists. If the economic benefit brought by
the deductible temporary difference on the purchase
date is expected to be realized, the relevant deferred
income tax assets are recognized, and the goodwill
is reduced, and the goodwill is not offset enough.
The difference is recognized as the current profit and

loss; in addition to the above, if the deferred income

BETESEBE T AENE R
MEZER EBERRIANAERELT
PriS B E E R R oR T HER
B EBERRI2EAN - AR
BHNSE-—FINEERABER
MIRABEREEFE - BEHRE
BN ERERAENEREZRES
KB EN SN EIRE - AIFE
RIEBENELERSHEE @ R
MR MENRRK - Z
BN ERSERRR - RLEAB
SLASN - HEREP KA HERR

EXFEHEEN st AEHE

o
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tax assets related to the business combination are

recognized, it is included in the current profit and loss.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

4.

Accounting treatment method for business
combination under the same control and not under

the same control (Continued)

4.2 Business combinations not under common control

(Continued)

Business combination under different control realized
step by step through multiple transactions, according
to the “Notice of the Ministry of Finance on Issuing the
Interpretation of Accounting Standards for Enterprises
No. 5” (Caihui [2012] No. 19) and “Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 33-Mergers”
“Financial Statement” Article 51 on the “package deal”
judgment criteria (see Note 4, 5 (2)), to determine

whether the multiple transactions belong to “package

|n |n

deal”. If it belongs to a “package deal”, refer to
the previous paragraphs of this part and the notes
V.11 “Long-term equity investment” for accounting
treatment; if it does not belong to a “package deal”,
distinguish between individual financial statements and
consolidated financial statements for related accounting

treatment:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

4.

Accounting treatment method for business
combination under the same control and not under

the same control (Continued)

4.2 Business combinations not under common control

(Continued)

In the individual financial statements, the sum of
the book value of the equity investment held by the
purchaser before the purchase date and the new
investment cost of the purchase date is taken as the
initial investment cost of the investment; the equity
of the purchaser held before the purchase date If
other comprehensive income is involved, the other
comprehensive income related to the investment will
be accounted for on the same basis as the purchaser ’s
direct disposal of related assets or liabilities (i.e. except
for Except for the corresponding share in the changes
caused by the net liabilities or net assets of the defined
benefit plan, the rest is transferred to the current

investment income).
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

 EERHBEAA 3 4)

4. Accounting treatment method for business 4 E—EFTMER—ZFTEEEH
WETEERE(E)

combination under the same control and not under

the same control (Continued)

4.2 Business combinations not under common control

(2) HE—#ZHTLESHE)
(Continued)
Eattigmkh  HRBEAR
ZHIFENHBEE HHRE %
RzREEEE N AR BEETT
EEHFE  AnBEEHEKEE
ENEREGTASHRE S  BE
HZ R A R HEE 5 ORES &
HAsr e Was ) - EEEBENHE

In the consolidated financial statements, the equity of
the purchased party held before the purchase date is
remeasured according to the fair value of the equity
at the purchase date, and the difference between the
fair value and its book value is included in the current
investment income; held before the purchase date

If the equity of the purchased party involves other

comprehensive income, the other comprehensive
income related to it should be accounted for on the
same basis as the purchaser ’s direct disposal of
related assets or liabilities (i.e. except for Except for the
corresponding share in the changes caused by the net
liabilities or net assets of the defined benefit plan, the
rest are converted into the current investment income

of the purchase date).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

5. Preparation of consolidated financial statements

5.1

5.2

Principles for determining the scope of

consolidated financial statements

The consolidation scope in consolidated financial
statements is determined on the basis of control. The
control refers to the power to influence the investee
and participate in its operating activities to obtain
benefits, the amount at which shall be effected by
the power. The scope of consolidation financial
statements includes the Company and all subsidiaries.
The subsidiaries refer to the entity controlled by the

Company.

The company will conduct a reassessment, once
control related elements involved in the definition
involved in the above cause the relevant facts and

circumstances have changed.

Method of preparing consolidated financial

statements

From the date of obtaining the net assets of the
subsidiary and the actual control of the production
and operation decision, the Group began to include
it in the scope of consolidation; the inclusion of the
scope of consolidation is suspended from the date of
loss of actual control. For the disposed subsidiaries,
the operating results and cash flows before the
disposal date have been properly included in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated cash
flow statement; subsidiaries disposed of in the current
period do not adjust the opening balance of the

consolidated balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 RaR M A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND - BEGTTBERME AR (E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

5 SOHMBHRRNERTEAE)

5. Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

5.2 Method of preparing consolidated financial (2) BOHHBREREN T2 (&)

statements (Continued)

For subsidiaries that are not consolidated under the
same control, the operating results and cash flows of
the future purchases have been properly included in
the consolidated income statement and consolidated
cash flow statement, and the opening and closing
figures of the consolidated financial statements are not
adjusted. Subsidiaries that have increased business
combinations under the same control and those that
have been merged under the merger, the operating
results and cash flows from the beginning of the
current period to the date of consolidation have been
properly included in the consolidated income statement
and consolidated cash flow statement, and adjust the
comparison of consolidated financial statements at the

same time.

In the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, if the accounting policies or accounting
periods adopted by the subsidiaries and the company
are inconsistent, the necessary adjustments shall be
made to the financial statements of the subsidiaries
in accordance with the accounting policies and
accounting periods of the company. For subsidiaries
acquired from business combinations not under the
same control, the financial statements are adjusted
based on the fair value of identifiable net assets at the

acquisition date.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

5.2 Method of preparing consolidated financial

statements (Continued)

All major current balances, transactions and unrealized
profits in the company are offset when the consolidated

financial statements are prepared.

The shareholder’s equity of the subsidiary and the
portion of the current net profit or loss that is not
owned by the Company are separately presented
as minority shareholders’ equity and minority
shareholders’ gains and losses in the consolidated
financial statements under shareholders’ equity and
net profit. The portion of the subsidiary’s current net
profit or loss that belongs to minority shareholders’
equity is presented as “minority shareholder gains and
losses” under the net profit item in the consolidated
income statement. The loss of a subsidiary shared by a
minority shareholder exceeds the share of the minority
shareholder’s equity at the beginning of the subsidiary,

and it still reduces the minority shareholders’ equity.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

5.

Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

5.2 Method of preparing consolidated financial

statements (Continued)

When the control of the original subsidiary is lost due
to the disposal of part of the equity investment or
other reasons, the remaining equity is re-measured
according to its fair value on the date of loss of
control. The sum of the consideration for the disposal
of the equity and the fair value of the remaining
equity, less the difference between the share of the
original shareholding and the share of the net assets
that the original subsidiary has continued to calculate
from the date of purchase, which is included in
investment income of loss of control in the current
period. Other comprehensive income related to the
original subsidiary’s equity investment shall be treated
on the same basis as the directly disposed of the
relevant assets or liabilities of the purchased party
when the control is lost, That is, in addition to the
re-measurement of changes in the net liabilities or
net assets of the defined benefit plan in the original
subsidiary, the rest will be converted into current
investment income. Thereafter, the remaining equity of
the part is subsequently measured in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the “Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises No. 2 — Long-term Equity
Investment” or “Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 22 — Recognition and Measurement
of Financial Instruments”. For details, refers to Note
IV., 11 “long-term equity investment” or this Note IV. 8

“financial instruments”.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

5.2 Method of preparing consolidated financial

statements (Continued)

If the Company disposes of the equity investment in the
subsidiary through multiple transactions until it loses
control, it shall distinguish whether the transactions
dealing with the equity investment of the subsidiary
until the loss of control are a package transaction.
The terms, conditions, and economic impact of each
transaction for the disposal of equity investments in
subsidiaries are consistent with one or more of the
following conditions, and generally indicate that multiple
transactions should be accounted for as a package
transaction: M These transactions are concluded at
the same time or with consideration of each other’s
influence; @These transactions as a whole can achieve
a complete business result; @The occurrence of a
transaction depends on the occurrence of at least
one other transaction; @A transaction alone is not
economical, but it is economical when considered
together with other transactions. If it is not a package
transaction, each of the transactions shall be partially
disposed of in the long-term equity of the subsidiary
in accordance with “without loss of control” (refers to
Note IV, 11, and (2) 4). The accounting principle is
applied to the principle that “the control of the original
subsidiary is lost due to the disposal of part of the
equity investment or other reasons” (mentioned in the

previous paragraph).
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

5. Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(Continued)

5.2 Method of preparing consolidated financial

statements (Continued)

Disposal of the equity investment in a subsidiary until
the loss of control is a package transaction, and the
transactions are treated as a transaction that disposes
of the subsidiary and loses control; However, the
difference between the disposal price and the disposal
investment before the loss of control and the share of
the net assets of the subsidiary is recognized as other
comprehensive income in the consolidated financial
statements, and it is transferred to the current profit

and loss of loss of control when the control is lost.

6. Recognition criteria of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group comprise cash,
deposits that can be readily withdrew on demand, short-
term (usually within a period of 3 months from purchase
date on) and highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to an

insignificant risk of change value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7.

Foreign currency transactions

The foreign currency transactions are, on initial recognition,
translated to the functional currency at the spot exchange
rate on the dates of transactions, foreign currency monetary
items are translated using the spot exchange rate at
the balance sheet date. The exchange difference arising
from the difference between the spot exchange rate at
the balance sheet date and the spot exchange rate on
initial recognition or at the previous balance sheet date is

recognized in profit or loss for the period.

Financial instruments

A financial asset or financial liability is recognized when the

Group becomes a party to a financial instrument contract.

8.1 Classification, confirmation and measurement of

financial assets

The Group classifies financial assets according to
the business model of managing financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of financial
assets: Financial assets measured at amortized cost;
financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income; financial assets measured at

fair value through profit or loss.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

8.1 Classification, confirmation and measurement of

financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets are measured at fair value on initial
recognition. For financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss, the related transaction expense
is directly recognized in profit or loss; for other
categories of financial assets, the related transaction
costs are included in the initial recognition amount. For
the accounts receivable or notes receivable arising from
the sale of products or the provision of labor services
that do not contain or consider the significant financing
components, the Group determines the amount of the
consideration to be received as the initial recognition

amount.

8.1.1 Financial assets measured at amortized cost

The business model of the Group’s management
of financial assets measured at amortized cost
is to collect contractual cash flows, and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of such
financial assets are consistent with the basic
lending arrangements, that is, the cash flow
generated on a specific date is only the payment
of the principal and the interest based on the
outstanding principal amount. The Group’s
financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.
The gains or losses arising from amortization or

impairment are recognized in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

8.1 Classification, confirmation and measurement of

financial assets (Continued)

8.1.2 Financial assets measured at fair value through

other comprehensive income

The Group’s business model for managing such
financial assets is to target both the collection
of contractual cash flows and the sale, and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of such
financial assets are consistent with the basic
lending arrangements. The Group’s financial
assets are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. The impairment losses or gains, exchange
gains and losses, and interest income calculated
using the effective interest method are recognized

in profit or loss.

In addition, the Group designates certain non-
tradable equity instrument investments as
financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. The Group’s
related dividend income of such financial assets
is included in the current profit and loss, and
changes in fair value are included in other
comprehensive income. When the financial
assets are derecognized, the accumulated
gains or losses previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are transferred from other
comprehensive income to retained earnings,

which are not recognized in profit or loss.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8. Financial instruments (Continued)

8.1 Classification, confirmation and measurement of

financial assets (Continued)

8.1.3 Financial assets measured at fair value through

profit or loss

The Group classifies financial assets that are
measured at fair value through financial assets
that are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. In addition, in the initial recognition, in order
to eliminate or significantly reduce accounting
mismatch, the Group designates certain financial
assets as financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss. For such financial assets,
the Group adopts fair value for subsequent
measurement, and changes in fair value are

included in profit or loss for the current period.

8.2 Classification, confirmation and measurement of

financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities
and other financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss. For financial liabilities measured at fair value
through profit or loss, the related transaction expense
is directly recognized in profit or loss. The related
transaction expense of other financial liabilities is

included in the initial recognition amount.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND - EEETTBERMETH AR (2)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8. Financial instruments (Continued) 8- @@MITAE)

8.2 Classification, confirmation and measurement of 2) =HEEHSE  BRATE(E)

financial liabilities (Continued)

8.2.1 Financial liabilities measured at fair value through O HarEE;E8EE8
profit or loss EHEm A R
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through NAEBEEFEBEEH
profit or loss, including financial liabilities (including AEHEENSMAE &
derivatives that are financial liabilities) and financial ERXtEcrBE(EBERS
liabilities that are designated at fair value through BEEOTTETR)MYRE
profit or loss. REEEABUNAAEENZ

BHEFHFTAZHERZNS
mMBE -
Transactional financial liabilities (including RoptcHEBE(EERESR
derivatives that are financial liabilities) are BEMNITETR)  ZRAR
subsequently measured at fair value. In addition BEETERENSZ  KREE
to related to hedge accounting, changes in fair HetA@EN  AnEEE
value are recognized in profit or loss. FETAE BEE -
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8. Financial instruments (Continued)

8.2 Classification, confirmation and measurement of

financial liabilities (Continued)

8.2.1 Financial liabilities measured at fair value through

profit or loss (Continued)

Financial liabilities designated as at fair value
through profit or loss, the change in fair value of
the liability caused by changes in the Company’s
own credit risk is included in other comprehensive
income. When this financial liabilities is
derecognition, the accumulated changes in fair
value arising from changes in its own credit
risk, which are included in other comprehensive
income, are transferred to retained earnings. The
remaining changes in fair value are included in
the current profit and loss. If adopted the method
mentioned before, the impact of changes in the
financial liabilities’ own credit risk will cause or
expand the accounting mismatch in profit and
loss, and the Group accounts for the entire
gain or loss of the financial liability (including the
impact of changes in the company’s own credit

risk) to the current profit and loss.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

8.2 Classification, confirmation and measurement of

financial liabilities (Continued)

8.2.2 Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities classified as financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost, except for financial
assets transferred to financial assets and
financial liabilities, Gains or losses arising from
derecognition or amortisation are recognised in
profit or loss. The recognition and measurement

of transfer of financial assets

8.3 The recognition and measurement of financial

assets

The transfer of financial assets is conformed to criteria
of derecognition, when one of following conditions
are met: DThe termination of a contractual right to
collect cash flow from a financial asset shall terminate
the recognition of the financial asset. @If the Group
has transferred almost all risks and rewards on the
ownership of financial assets to the transferee, it should
also derecognize the financial assets. @Although the
Group has not transferred or remained almost all risks
and rewards on the ownership of financial assets to
the transferee, they gave up the control of the financial
assets, thus, it should also derecognize the financial

assets.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

8.3 The recognition and measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

If the entity has neither transferred nor remained almost
all risks and rewards on the ownership of financial
assets, and they do not give up the control of the
financial assets, they confirm relevant financial assets
and financial liabilities in accordance with the extent
of continuing involvement in the transferred financial
assets. The extent of continuing involvement in the
transferred financial assets is the risk level faced by the
enterprise resulting from changes in value of financial

asset.

If the overall transfer of the financial assets meets the
conditions for derecognition, the difference between
the carrying amount of the transferred financial assets
and the combination of the consideration received from
the transfer and the accumulated changes in the fair
value of other comprehensive income is recognised in

profit or loss.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

8.3 The recognition and measurement of financial

assets (Continued)

If a partial transfer of the financial assets meets the
conditions for derecognition, the carrying amount of
the transferred financial assets is allocated between
derecognized portion and non-derecognized portion
based on respective fair values. In addition, the
difference between the carrying amount mentioned
above and the combination of the consideration
received from the transfer and the accumulated
changes in the fair value that are allocated to
derecognized portion and were recognized previously
in other comprehensive income is recognized in the

profit or loss.

For financial assets sold with recourse or endorsement
and discount of holding financial assets, the Group
has to determine whether almost all risk and reward
of ownership of these financial assets have been
transferred. If almost all risk and reward of ownership
of a financial asset have been transferred to transferee,
this financial asset is derecognized; if almost all risk
and reward of ownership of a financial asset have been
reserved, this financial asset is not derecognized; if
almost all risk and reward of ownership of a financial
asset have been neither transferred nor reserved, then
the Group has to further confirm whether the Group
keeps control of this asset, and carries out accounting
treatments based on the principles mentioned in each

paragraph above.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

8.4 The derecognition of financial liabilities

Once the present obligation of financial liabilities (or
parts of them) has been lifted, financial liabilities (or
parts of them) of the Group has been derecognized.
The Group (borrower) enters into an agreement with
the lender to replace the original financial liabilities
in the form of new financial liabilities, and the new
financial liabilities are substantially different from the
original financial liabilities, and the original financial
liabilities are derecognition and a new financial liability
is recognized. The Group makes substantial changes
on contractual terms of original financial liabilities (or
parts of them), then they derecognize the original

financial liabilities and confirm a new financial liability in

accordance with the revised terms.

The difference between the carrying amount of financial
liabilities (or parts of them) and consideration paid
(including transferred non-cash assets or liabilities) is

recognized in profit or loss, when financial liabilities (or

parts of them) are derecognized.

8.5 Offset of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Group has statutory rights to offset recognized
financial assets and financial liabilities, and currently
enforces this legal right, at the same time, the Group
plans to settle the financial assets on a net basis or
simultaneously and liquidate the financial liabilities,
financial assets and financial liabilities are presented in
the balance sheet at offsetting amounts. In addition,
financial assets and financial liabilities are presented

separately in the balance sheet and are not offset in

the other situation.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

8.6 Method for determining the fair value of financial

assets and financial liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
If the financial instructions have an active market,
the fair value will be evidenced by a quoted price in
an active market. Specifically, the quoted price in an
active market refers to price that are readily available
from exchanges, brokers, industry associations, pricing
services and others, and it represents the price of a
market transaction that actually occur in a fair trade.
If the financial instructions have no active market, the
fair value will be evidenced by a valuation technique
that uses only data from observable markets. Valuation
techniques include reference to the price used in recent
market transactions by parties familiar with the situation
and voluntary transactions, with reference to the
current fair value of other financial instructions that are
substantially identical, discounted cash flow methods
and option pricing models. When it is valuation, the
Group adopts valuation techniques that are applicable
in the current circumstances and that are sufficiently
supported by data and other information, which used
to select the characteristics of the assets or liabilities
to be considered in relation to the market participants’
transactions in the relevant assets or liabilities, and
use the relevant observable input values as much as
possible. However, unallowable values will be used, if
the relevant observable input values are not available

or are not practicable.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

8.7 Equity instrument

Equity instrument refers to a contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group issues (including
refinancing), repurchases, sells or writes off equity
instruments as changes in equity. Transaction costs
associated with equity transactions are deducted from

equity.

The Group’s various distributions of equity instrument
holders (excluding stock dividends) reduce
shareholders’ equity. The Group does not recognize

changes in fair value of equity instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

The financial assets that the Group needs to recognize
impairment loss are financial assets measured at amortized
cost, debt instrument investments measured at fair value
and whose changes are included in other comprehensive
income, lease receivables, which mainly includes notes
receivable, accounts receivable, other receivables,
debt investment, other debt investment, and long-term
receivables. In addition, for contract assets and parts of
financial guarantee contracts, impairment provision should
also be made and credit impairment losses recognized in
accordance with the accounting policies described in this

section.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

9.1 Recognized method for impairment provision

Based on the expected credit losses, the Group
makes provision for impairment and recognizes credit
impairment losses for each of the above items in
accordance with its applicable expected credit loss
measurement method (general method or simplified

method).

Credit loss refers to the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive (i.e. all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective
interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate
for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial

assets).
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9.

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

9.1 Recognized method for impairment provision

(Continued)

General approach for the measurement of expected
credit losses refers that the Group assesses whether
the credit risk of financial assets ((including other
applicable items such as contract assets, the same
below) has increased significantly since the initial
recognition on each balance sheet date. If the
credit risk has increased significantly since the initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss preparation
according to the amount equivalent to the expected
credit loss during the entire life period; if the credit
risk has not increased significantly since the initial
recognition, the Group measures the loss provision
based on the amount of 12-month expected credit
losses. The Group considers all reasonable and
evidenced information, including forward-looking

information, when assessing expected credit losses.

For financial instruments with lower credit risk on
the balance sheet date, the Group assumes that its
credit risk has not increased significantly since the
initial recognition, it choose to measure loss based
on 12-month expected credit losses/not choose
a simplified approach, according to whether the
credit risk has increased significantly since the initial
confirmation, the loss is prepared based on the
expected credit loss amount in the next 12 months or

the whole life period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9. Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

9.2

9.3

Judgment criteria for whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition

If the probability of default of a financial asset on the
estimated duration of the balance sheet is significantly
higher than the probability of default during the
estimated duration of the initial recognition, the credit
risk of the financial asset is significantly increased.
Except for special circumstances, the Group uses
the change in default risk occurring within the next
12 months as a reasonable estimate of the change
in default risk throughout the life period to determine
whether the credit risk has increased significantly since

the initial recognition.

Combined method for assessing expected credit

risk based on portfolio

The Group evaluates credit risk individually for financial
assets with significantly different credit risks, such as:
receivables from related parties; and has disputes with
the other party or receivables involving litigation or
arbitration; there are clear indications that the debtor is
likely to be unable to meet the repayment obligations

of the receivables.

In addition to individual financial assets that assess
credit risk, the Group classifies financial assets into
different groups based on common risk characteristics

and evaluates credit risk on a portfolio basis.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9. Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

9.4 Accounting treatment of financial assets impairment

At the end of the period, the Group calculates the
expected credit losses of various financial assets. If
the estimated credit loss is greater than the carrying
amount of its current impairment provision, the
difference is recognized as the impairment loss; if

it is less than the carrying amount of the current
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impairment provision, the difference is recognized as

the impairment gain.

9.5 Method for determining the credit losses of (5) BEWERHREMERNEFELY
BES %

accounts receivable and other receivables

O BN
HRIAEERREK D HE
WERFR - AEEZREER
BEFEHANEHEHE
KERERTERKRER -

9.5.1 Accounts receivable

For receivables that do not contain significant
financing components, the Company measures
loss provision based on the amount of expected
credit losses equivalent to the entire duration of

the life.

HRBESEAREXDHE
WHRK - AEBEIERERRIZ
REENRFERNERER
BROSRABEKRER -

For receivables with significant financing
components, the Company chooses to always
measure the loss provision based on the amount

of expected credit losses during the lifetime.

"
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND - EEETTBERMETH AR (2)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9. Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 9 SHMEEREE)
9.5 Method for determining the credit losses of (5) FEWERZRAMERS S FELL
accounts receivable and other receivables BEF (&)
(Continued)
9.5.1 Accounts receivable (Continued) D JEYERF(4E)
In addition to individual accounts receivable for br T BIEFTAE AR A E
assessing credit risk, they are classified into IR - EREERARRBR
different combinations based on their credit risk B BEEH A TRAESE

characteristics:

Item Determine the basis for the combination
A BEASHKE
Aging of accounts receivable portfolio This combination is based on the age of receivables
as a credit risk feature.
R R RIS A BYEIEN R (E R E B RBRFE -
Aging analysis method is used to a portfolio of FEWBEFRRREGEREX
Credit loss allowance TR A E

Receivables accrual
proportion (%)

ERBRER
Aging BRI 5T 12 b fBil(%)
Within 1 year (including 1 year, the same  1FLAA(E14E © TE)
below) 0
1-2 years 1-24F 3
2-3 years 2-3%F 10
3-4 years 3-44F 25
4-5 years 4-5F 50
Over 5 years 5F LA L 100

»
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND - BEGTTBERME AR (E)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9. Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 9 SREEREE)
9.5 Method for determining the credit losses of (5) YRR EMBENR S FEEL

accounts receivable and other receivables BELE(E)

(Continued)

9.5.2 Other receivable © AftrEwst
The Group measures the impairment loss based AN B R R E A FE UK S B
on the amount of expected credit losses in the BB EVEEREELRDL
next 12 months or the entire duration, based on BEN - WABERARK
whether the credit risk of other receivables has 12 AR - KBEFERKN
increased significantly since the initial recognition. EHERBANEENZER
In addition to other receivables that assess BEX - BT ERMNEER
credit risk individually, they are classified into B A LAt B WL FR AN - B
different combinations based on their credit risk HEARRER  BEES
characteristics: RTEAEE
Item Determine the basis for the combination
BH BEASHKE
Aging of other receivable portfolio This combination is based on the age of other receivables

as a credit risk feature.

HEUGKRARR A S AAE A DA At e WOk BV BR R 1F 15 R A 1L -
Aging analysis method is used to a portfolio of HEEWRFRERAESERE
Credit loss allowance KEBIRAE

Other receivables
accrual proportion (%)

ERBKRERE
Aging ARER FHR L B(%)
Within 1 year (including 1 year, 1FEUA(EIE - TR
the same below) 0
1-2 years 1-24F 3
2-3 years 2-3%F 10
3-4 years 3-44F 25
4-5 years 4-5% 50
Over 5 years 5% LA+ 100
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Inventories

10.1 Classification of inventories

Inventories include goods in stocks, raw materials,

goods in product and low value consumables.

10.2 The measurement of inventories received and

issued

The inventory is initially measured at the actual cost;
Inventory costs comprise costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs. Cost of sales is

determined using First in first out.

10.3 Recognition of the net realizable value and

measurement of provision for decline in value of

inventories

At the balance sheet date, inventories are measured
at the lower of cost and net realizable value. If the
net realizable value of the inventory is lower than the
cost, a provision for decline in value of inventories
is recognized. Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale and relevant taxes. The
Group determines the net realizable value of inventories
based on solid evidence obtained and after taking
into consideration the purpose for which the inventory
is held, and the effect of events occurring after the

balance sheet date.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND - BEGTTBERME AR (E)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

10. Inventories (Continued) 10 - FE(&)
10.3 Recognition of the net realizable value and (3) HFEUEEFENRRANKBES
measurement of provision for decline in value of HIFH#R T % ()

inventories (Continued)

For the inventory with tremendous number and HREBEEZL  BERENRT
relatively low unit price, the decline in value of B REEFEEENGFRFERE
inventories is provided according to the type of £ EMEFEEREEFEERAD
inventory; for other inventories, the decline in value of BASRE R ER FEMNERETIE
inventories is provided at the difference of the cost of a FEGEEE -SAREFELEE
single inventory item exceeding its net realizable value. 1&g - MRNAAREFEEED
After the provision of decline in value of inventories TERZELHEKL  BREFERN
is made, if the circumstances that caused the value AERFESNAKREBER -
of the inventory to be written down below cost no EREFROFERKEEESER
longer exist so that the net realizable value is higher FUAER - EOMSRET AEH
than the carrying amount, the original provision for B e

decline in value is reversed and the reversed amount is

recognized in profit or loss for the period.

10.4 The stock count system for inventories is the (4) FEHBREFEHESRKEBFS -

perpetual inventory system

10.5 Amortization methods of low-value consumables (5) 1EESFER#BET %
Low-value consumables are written off in full when R {E 5 REA R R T
issued for use. B o

-
o
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

11.

Long-term equity investments

A long-term equity investment is the long-term equity
investment of the Group that is able to control, jointly
control or significantly influence on the investee. The long-
term equity investment of the Group that is not able to
control, jointly control or significantly influence on the
investee is recognized as the held-for-sale financial asset
or the financial asset measured at fair value through profit
or loss. The related accounting policies refers to Note IV, 7

financial instruments.

11.1 Determination of investment cost

For a long-term equity investment acquired by a
business combination involving enterprises under
common control, the initial investment cost of long-
term equity investment is the share of the carrying
amount of the owner’s equity of the merged party
in the consolidated financial statements of ultimate
controlling party at the acquisition date. For a long-term
equity investment acquired by a business combination
involving enterprises not under common control, the
initial investment cost is the cost of acquisition. The
long-term equity investment through means other than

a business combination is initially measured at its cost.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

11. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

11.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit

or loss

The long-term equity investment that is able to jointly
control or significantly influence in the investee adopts
the equity method. In addition, the financial statement
of the Company adopts the cost method for the long-
term equity investment that is able to control over the

investee.

1121 A long-term equity investment accounted for

using the cost method

Under the cost method, a long-term equity
investment, on its initial recognition, is measured
as cost and adjusted according to the amount of
additional investment or disinvestment. Except for
cash dividends or profits which include in actual
payment or consideration as the Group obtains
the investment but have not been paid, the
investment income for the period is recognized
according to cash dividends or profits declared to

distribute by the investee.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Long-term equity investments (Continued)

11.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit

or loss (Continued)

1122 A long-term equity investment accounted for

using the equity method

Under the equity method, where the initial
investment cost of a long-term equity investment
exceeds the Group’s share of the fair value of the
investee’s identifiable net assets at the time of
acquisition, no adjustment is made to the initial
investment cost. Where the initial investment cost
is less than the Group’s share of the fair value of
the investee’s identifiable net assets at the time of
acquisition, the difference is recognized in profit
or loss for the period, and the cost of the long-

term equity investment is adjusted accordingly.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

11.

Long-term equity investments (Continued)

11.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit

or loss (Continued)

1122 A long-term equity investment accounted for

using the equity method (Continued)

Under the equity method, the Group recognizes
its share of the net profit or loss and other
comprehensive income made by the investee
as investment income and other comprehensive
income respectively, and adjusts the carrying
amount of the long-term equity investment
accordingly; The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced by the portion of any
profit distributions or cash dividends declared
by the investee that is distributed to the Group;
the share of changes in owners’ equity of the
investee other than those arising from net profit
or loss, other comprehensive income and profit
distribution are recognized in the capital reserves
the carrying amount of the long-term equity
investment is adjusted accordingly. The Group
recognizes its share of the investee’s net profit
or loss after making appropriate adjustments
based on the fair value of the investee’s individual
separately identifiable assets, etc. at the
acquisition date. Where the accounting policies
and accounting period adopted by the investee
are not consistent with those of the Group, the
Group shall adjust the financial statements of the
investee to conform to its own accounting policies
and accounting period, and recognize investment
income and other comprehensive income based
on the adjusted financial statements. For the
Group’s transactions with its associates and
joint ventures where assets contributed or sold
does not constitute a business, unrealized
intra-group profits or losses are recognized as
investment income or loss to the extent that those
attributable to the Group’s proportionate share of
interest are eliminated. However, unrealized losses
resulting from the Group’s transactions with its
investees which represent impairment losses on
the transferred assets are not eliminated.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

11. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

11.2 Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit

or loss (Continued)

11.2.3 Acquisitions of minority interest

11.24

When the Group prepares the consolidated
financial statements, the difference between the
long-term equity investment arising from the
acquisition of minority interest and shares of
the subsidiary’s net assets attributable to the
Company which are continuously calculated from
the purchase date (or the acquisition date) based
on new additional proportions of shares is used
to adjust capital reserves, if capital reserves are
not sufficient to be written down, the retained

earnings shall be adjusted.

Disposals of long-term equity investment

In consolidated financial statements, when the
parent company disposes a part of a long-term
equity investment without losing power of control,
the difference between its disposal price and its
subsidiary’ net assets attributable to the Company
corresponding to the disposal of long-term
equity investment is recorded in owner’s equity.
For other circumstances of disposing of a long-
term equity investment, the difference between
its carrying amount and actual purchase price is

recorded in profit or loss for the period.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

12. Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation, or both, including rented land use
right, land use right which is held and prepared for transfer

after appreciation, and rented building.

The initial measurement of the investment properties shall
be measured at its actual cost. The follow-up expenses
pertinent to the investment properties shall be included
in the cost of the investment properties, if the economic
benefits pertinent to this real estate are likely to flow into the
enterprise, and, the cost of the investment properties can
be reliably measured. Otherwise, they should be included in

the current profits and losses upon occurrence.

The Group adopts the cost model for subsequent
measurement of investment properties, and the depreciation
or amortization policies are consistent with that of building

and land use right.

When an investment properties is sold, transferred, retired
or damaged, the Group recognizes the amount of any
proceeds on disposal of the asset net of the carrying
amount and related taxes in profit or loss for the current

period.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

13. Fixed assets

13.1 Recognition of fixed assets

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for use
in the production of goods or supply of services, for
rental to others, or for administrative purposes and
have a useful life of more than one accounting year.
Fixed assets are only recognized when the related
economic benefits probably flow to the Group and the
cost can be reliably measured. Fixed assets are initially
measured at cost as well as taking into account the

effect of estimated disposal costs.

13.2 Method for depreciation of different fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated on straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives from the month after
they are brought to working condition for the intended
use. The useful lives, estimated net residual values and
annual depreciation rates of each category of fixed

assets are as follows:

Category k]
Buildings P E KR &)
Machinery and equipment WS AR A
Office equipment WA
Vehicles BN
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- EERH BB ()

13 -BEEEE

(1) BlEZEEZKMN

@)

Useful life

(year)
WEFR(E)

20-35
5-10
5

5-8

BEgEREREERM  REH
B HEIKEEEMIEH
W ERSTEe—EEFFE
MBVEE - BT EEEHRERHE
BRAMGHEMNIRATBERANE
B - BERAREHE FinG R
A TR - BIEEERKAL
ZREAREBARRNTEL
Mgt & e

EHEEEENFTER L

& 7E & B R TE T A AR AR By
RAR - EHBERTEESH
BEwRNERTE  SHETEE
WERASZH - BDFEEMFR
EXRT

Annual
depreciation
(%)
FIEER(%)

Residual
value (%)
BEZE(%)

3-4 2.70-4.85
9.50-19.40
19.00-19.40

3-5
3-5
3-4 12.00-19.40

Estimated net residual value is the amount which
would be obtained from the disposal of the assets after
deducting of estimated costs of disposal, if the asset
were already of the age and in the condition expected

at the end of its useful life.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

13. Fixed assets (Continued)

13.3 Recognition, measurement method of fixed assets

leased under finance leases

A finance lease is a lease that transfers in substance
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset. Title may or may not eventually be transferred.
Consistent depreciation policies are adopted to
finance leased fixed assets. Leased fixed assets are
depreciated over the estimated useful lives when it is
reasonably determined that the ownership of the asset
will be obtained after the lease term is over. Otherwise,
the leased assets are depreciated over the shorter
period between the lease term and the estimated

useful lives of the assets.

13.4 Other explanations

Subsequent expenditures incurred for a fixed asset
are recognized in the cost of fixed assets when the
associated economic benefits will probably flow
to the Group and the related cost can be reliably
measured, and the carrying amount of replaced part is
derecognized. All the other subsequent expenditures
are recognized in profit or loss for the period in which

they are incurred.

A fixed asset is derecognized on disposal or when
no economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. When a fixed asset is sold, transferred,
retired or damaged, the Group recognizes the amount
of any proceeds on disposal of the asset net of the
carrying amount and related taxes in profit or loss for

the current period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

13.

14.

15.

Fixed assets (Continued)

13.4 Other explanations (Continued)

The Group reviews the useful life, estimated net
residual value of a fixed asset and the depreciation
method at least at each financial year-end. A change
in the useful life, estimated net residual value of a fixed
asset or the depreciation method shall be accounted

for as a change in accounting estimate.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress is measured at its actual costs.
The actual costs include various construction expenditures
during the construction period, borrowing costs capitalized
before it is ready for intended use and other relevant costs.
Construction in progress is transferred to a fixed asset when

it is ready for intended use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest expenses, amortization
of discount or premium, auxiliary expenses, exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings etc.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying asset are capitalized
when expenditures for such asset and borrowing costs
are incurred and activities relating to the acquisition,
construction or production of the asset that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale have
commenced. Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases
when the qualifying asset being acquired, constructed or
produced becomes ready for its intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period

in which they are incurred.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

15.

16.

Borrowing costs (Continued)

Where funds are borrowed under a specific-purpose
borrowing, the amount of interest to be capitalized is the
actual interest expense incurred on that borrowing for
the period less any bank interest earned from depositing
the borrowed funds before being used on the asset or
any investment income on the temporary investment of
those funds. Where funds are borrowed under general-
purpose borrowings, the Group determines the amount of
interest to be capitalized on such borrowings by applying
a capitalization rate to the weighted average of the excess
of cumulative expenditures on the asset over the amounts
of specific-purpose borrowings. The capitalization rate is
the weighted average of the interest rates applicable to the

general-purpose borrowings.

The qualifying assets to be capitalized are fixed assets,
investment properties and inventories which need to be
acquired, constructed or produced through a long period of

time, in order to become ready for its intended use or sale.

Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during
periods in which the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset is suspended abnormally and when
the suspension is for a continuous period of more than 3
months. Capitalization is suspended until the acquisition,

construction or production of the asset is resumed.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include land use right, software

development costs and distribution network software.

Intangible assets are initially measured as cost. When an
intangible asset with a finite useful life is available for use, its
original cost is amortized using straight line method over its

estimated useful life.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

16.

17.

18.

Intangible assets (Continued)

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, the useful life
and amortization method shall be reviewed at the period

end, and the adjustments shall be made if necessary.

The useful lifes and the amortization method are as follows:

- EERH BB ()

16 - |BILEE(H)
HIR - ERSaARNETEENE
RS MBI RETER  BERE

T -

BIVEERBOERSS REHT AN

T

Item EHAB Useful lifes Amortization method
EREw #essE

Land use rights TP A 33-50 years Straight line method
33-504F Bk

Software HMHFREE 5-10 years Straight line method
5-10% BEA

Operating rights of 7 SH A4 A S 5-10 years Straight line method

distribution network 5-10%F B
Long-term prepaid expenses 17 - REGFHEER

Long-term prepaid expenses are expenses which have
occurred but shall be amortized over the reporting period
and subsequent periods of more than one year long-term
prepaid expenses shall be amortized evenly over expected

benefit periods.

Long-term assets impairment

For non-current and non-financial assets such as fixed
assets, work in progress, intangible assets with a finite
useful life, investment properties measured at cost, long-
term equity investment of joint ventures and associated
enterprises and leases right-of-use asset etc., the Group
assesses if any of them is impaired at the balance sheet
date. If there is any evidence indicating that an asset is
impaired, recoverable amounts shall be estimated for
impairment test. Goodwill and intangible assets with a
uncertainty useful life and intangible assets which have not
reach work condition shall be tested for impairment annually
regardless of whether there is any evidence indicating that

the assets have been impaired.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

18. Long-term assets impairment (Continued)

If the result of the impairment test indicates that the
recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying
amount, a provision for impairment and an impairment loss
are recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and the present value of the future cash flows expected
to be derived from the asset. An asset’s fair value is
determined based on the sales price agreed in an arm’s
length transaction. When no sales agreement but the active
market of an asset is available, its fair value is determined
according to a buyer’s bid. When no sales agreement and
the active market of an asset are available, its fair value
is estimated on the basis of best information which is can
be obtained. The disposal expenses include asset- related
legal expenses, relevant taxes, handling fees and direct
costs incurred for the asset intended sale. The present
value of expected future cash flows of an asset is the
amount that an asset’s expected future cash flows arising
from its continuous use and final disposal are discounted
at an appropriate rate. Provision for asset impairment is
determined and recognized on the individual asset basis.
If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the recoverable amount of a group of
assets to which the asset belongs is determined. A group
of assets is the smallest group of assets that is able to

generate independent cash inflows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

18.

19.

Long-term assets impairment (Continued)

Goodwill that is separately presented in the financial
statements is tested at least annually for impairment,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that it may
be impaired. In conducting the test, the carrying value of
goodwill is allocated to the related asset groups or groups
of asset groups which are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the business combination. If the result of the
test indicates that the recoverable amount of an asset group
or group of asset groups, including the goodwill allocated,
is lower than its carrying amount, the corresponding
impairment loss is recognized. The impairment loss is
first deducted from the carrying amount of goodwill that
is allocated to the asset group or group of asset groups,
and then deducted from the carrying amounts of other

assets within the asset groups or groups of asset groups in

proportion to the carrying amounts of other assets.

An impairment loss recognized on the assets mentioned

above shall not be reversed in the subsequent period.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits mainly include short-term employee

benefits, post-employment benefits and resignation benefits.

Short-term benefits include salaries, bonuses, allowance
and benefits, employee benefits, medical insurance,
maternity insurance, work injury insurance, housing fund,
labor union running costs and employee education cost and
non-monetary benefits etc. Actual short-term benefits are
recognized as liabilities during the accounting period when
employees render services and are charged into profit or
loss for the period or capitalized in costs of related assets.

Non-monetary benefits are measured at fair value.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

19.

20.

Employee benefits (Continued)

All post-employment benefits of the Group are defined
contribution plan. The amounts to be contributed under
defined contribution plan are recognized as liabilities
during the accounting period of when employees render
service and are charged into profit or loss for the period or

capitalized in costs of related assets.

Revenue

The revenue is recognized when the customer obtains
control of the relevant commodity, and the contract between
the Group and the customer meets the following conditions:
All parties have approved the contract and have committed
to perform their obligations; The contract identifies the
rights and obligations of the parties relating to the goods
transferred or the provision of services; The contract has a
clear payment terms associated with the transferred goods;
The contract has commercial substance, which means the
contract will change risk, time distribution or amount of
the future cash flows; The consideration that the Group is
entitled to for the transfer of goods to customers is likely to

be recovered.

From the effective date of the contract, the Group identifies
each individual performance obligations and allocates
the transaction price proportionally to each individual
performance obligation based on the relative proportion of
the individual selling price of the commodities promised by
each individual performance obligation. When determining
the transaction price, the impact of variable consideration,
major financing components in the contract, non-cash

consideration, and customer consideration are considered.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

20. Revenue (Continued) 20 ~ WA (%)

For each individual performance obligation in the contract,
the Group will recognize the transaction price allocated
to the individual performance obligation as revenue in
accordance with the performance progress period during
the relevant performance period, if one of the following
conditions is met: the customer obtains and consumes the
economic benefits of the Group’s performance as the Group
perform it; the customer can control the products under
construction in the course of the Group’s performance;
The goods produced during the performance of the Group
have irreplaceable uses and the Group has the right to
receive payments for the portion of the performance that
has been completed to date. In addition, the performance
of the contract is determined by the input method or the
output method according to the nature of the transferred
goods. When the performance of the contract cannot be
reasonably determined, if the expenses incurred by the
Group are expected to be compensated, the revenue will
be recognized according to the amount of costs incurred
until the performance of the contract can be achieved

reasonably.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)
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20. Revenue (Continued) 20 ~ WA (%)

|

«

‘,
b

*

If one of the above conditions is not met, the Group will
distribute the transaction price confirmation revenue of the
individual performance obligation when the customer obtains
control of the relevant commodity. When determining
whether the customer has obtained control of the
commodity, the Group will consider the following situations:
the Group has the current right to collect the goods, which
means that the customer has a current payment obligation
for the goods; the Company has transferred the legal title of
the item to the customer, which means that the customer
has already own the legal title of the item; the Group has
transferred the goods in kind to the customer, that is, the
customer has possessed the goods in kind; the Group has
transferred the main risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods to the customer, that is, the customer has obtained
the main risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; the
customer has accepted the goods. The other indications

that the customer has obtained control of the goods.

20.1 Revenue from sales of goods

The Group’s merchandise sales are mainly divided
into retail sales and wholesale sales. Revenues of
retail sales are recognized, when goods are sold to
customers, the customers receive the goods, and
the Group collects payments of goods or has a right
to collect payments of goods; in addition, revenue
of wholesale sales are recognized, when the goods
are sent to clients and the clients check, receive and
confirm the goods, and the Group collects payments

of goods or has a right to collect payments of goods.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

20. Revenue (Continued)

20.1 Revenue from sales of goods (Continued)

As for the business that selling goods with award
credits for customers, when selling the goods,
the Group will apportion the purchase price or the
receivables of the goods between the income from
the sale of the goods and the individual sales price
determined by the award credits, and The amount of
the purchase price or the receivables minus the bonus
points shall be recognized as revenue. The award

credits shall be recognized as deferred income.

When a customer redeems the award credits, the
Group reclassifies the amount associated with the
credits redeemed from deferred income to revenue.
The amount of revenue recognized is based on the
number of award credits that have been redeemed in
exchange for awards, relative to the total number of

award credits expected to be redeemed.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

 BERHRENR ()

20. Revenue (Continued) 20 ~ WA (%)

20.2 Revenue from rendering of services (2) REHEBEUA
When the amount of revenue from rendering of services EREBFRAR SRS A] S
can be reliably measured, the associated economic P2 HEMEERZRAER

benefits probably flow into the Group, the stage of AR RHWTIIEERMA

=

completion of the transaction can be measured reliably HUWHRE  KSHPEBEEMBE
and the costs incurred and to be incurred for the SRR AGEM ] SEHbET 2R -

RIRHEBRANER -

transaction can be measured reliably, the revenue from

rendering of services is recognized.

RIS TE X B AERTRES AT

Where the outcome cannot be estimated reliably,

revenues are recognized to the extent of the costs FHET - AR D B EWTEET 88
incurred that are expected to be compensated, and HERMENS KA BERIE

the service costs incurred are regarded as the current
cost; if the service costs incurred are not compensated

as anticipated, no revenue is recognized.

Revenue from service of the Group mainly includes the
promotional activities. When the various services have
been provided and related economic benefit probably
flow into the enterprise, revenue from provision of

service is recognized.

20.3 Rental Income

Primary rental income of the Group includes property
lease and sublease and counter rental income.
According to relative lease contracts and agreements
we make decision based on term that people have

leased property or counter and prices they agreed.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

21.

Government grants

Government grants are transfers of monetary assets and
non-monetary assets from the government to the Group,
which do not include any capital contribution from the
government as an investor. Government grants include
government grants related to assets and government
grants related to income. The Group defines government
grants that are acquired for the acquisition or otherwise
formation of long-term assets as government grants related
to assets, and the rest of them are defined as government
grants related to income. If the government documents do
not have a specific classification, the grants will be divided
into government grants related to assets and government
grants related to income by the following methods: (1) the
government documents confirm the specific programme
of the grants, according to the proportion, which based
on the grants expend on assets and expenses separately
in the specific programme’s budget, it is used to divide
the government grants. Meanwhile, the division ratio will
be reviewed at each balance sheet date and changed it if
necessary. (2) The government documents do not confirm
the specific programme and only have a general explanation
for the programme, which will be regard as government
grants related to income. If a government grant is a transfer
of a monetary asset, it is measured at amounts received
or receivable, otherwise, a non-monetary asset will be
measured at fair value. If the fair value is not accurate, the
grant is measured at nominal amount and credited to the

current profit or loss.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

21.

Government grants (Continued)

The government grants of the Group are normally
recognized and measured at the moment they are actually
received. However, if they have conclusive evidence to
prove that they can correspond the relevant provisions
of the financial support policies and they will receive the
financial support funds in the future, it is measured by the
amount of money receivable. The government grants that
measured by the amount of money receivable will meet
the following conditions simultaneously: (1) the amount of
receivables have been confirmed by the documents, which
issued by the related authorities of the government, or the
Group calculate reasonable receivables depending on the
relevant provisions of officially released Measures for the
Administration of Financial Funds, as well as, there is no
significant uncertainty about the amount; (2) According
to the regulations based on ‘Government Information
Disclosure Ordinance’ issued by local finance department
officially, the financial support project and Measures for
the Administration of Financial Funds should be initiative
publicly. The formulation of this management approach is
general and benefit for all enterprise, instead of a specific
enterprise, which means the company who meets the
specified conditions can apply it; (3) the approval of the
related grants has promised the disbursement period, and
the payment is guaranteed by the corresponding budget.
Thus, they have a reasonable guarantee about the grants

and will receive them within the prescribed time.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

21.

Government grants (Continued)

A government grant related to assets is recognized as
deferred income, it is allocated to the profit or loss for the
period over the useful life of related assets reasonably and
systematically, or offset the book value of related assets.
For a government grant related to income, if the grant is
a compensation for related expenses and losses to be
incurred in subsequent periods, the grant is recognized
as deferred income and charged in the profit or loss over
the period in which the related costs are recognized, or
offset the related cost; if the grant is a compensation for
related expenses and losses already incurred, the grant
is recognized immediately in profit or loss for the current

period, or offset the related cost.

At the same time, if the government grants contain both
assets related and income related, the accounting treatment
will depend on the different parts of government grants; if it
is difficult to distinguish, the whole government grants are

classified as the income-related government grants.

The government grants related to daily activities of the
Group relying on the essence of economic business,
the grant is recognized in other income or offset related
expenses of cost, otherwise, recognized in non-operating

income or non-operating expenses.

When the government grants that confirmed by the Group
required to be returned, if they have the balance of related
deferred income, they can offset the book value of them,
the other government grants are classified as current profits
and losses or adjust the book value of the assets. If not, the
government grants are included in the current profits and

losses directly.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

22. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities

22.1 Current income tax

At the balance sheet date, current income tax
liabilities (or assets) for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be paid
(or recovered) according to the requirements of tax
laws. The taxable income used for calculation of
current income tax is calculated based on the current
period adjusted taxable profit in compliance with the

regulation of taxation law.

22.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

For temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of certain assets or liabilities and their tax
base, or between the carrying amount of those items
that are not recognized as assets or liabilities and their
tax base that can be determined according to tax laws,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized using

the balance sheet liability method.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

22. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

22.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(Continued)

For taxable temporary difference which is related
to the initial recognition of goodwill and the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither accounting profits or
taxable income (or deductible losses), a deferred tax
liability is not recognized. In addition, for deductible
temporary difference arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, the Group
shall recognize a deferred tax liability for all taxable
temporary difference except to the extent that the
Group is able to control the timing of reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND - BEGTTBERME AR (E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

22 EEFEREE BEMESHAR

22. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities (Continued)
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22.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(Continued)

For deductible temporary difference which is related
to the initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
accounting profit or taxable income (or deductible
losses), a deferred tax asset is not recognized.In
addition, for deductible temporary difference arising
from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, the Group shall recognize a deferred tax
asset for other deductible temporary difference to
the extent that it is probable that taxable income will
be available against which the deductible temporary
difference can be deducted except to the extent that
it is not probable that the temporary difference will
reverse in the foreseeable future or taxable profit will
not be available against which the temporary difference

can be utilized.

For deductible losses and tax credits that can be
carried forward, deferred tax assets are recognized to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable income
will be available against which the deductible losses

and tax credits can be deducted.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured at the tax rates, according to
tax laws, that are expected to apply in the period in

which the asset is realized or the liability is settled.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

22. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

22.2 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(Continued)

At the balance sheet date, the carrying amount of
deferred tax assets is reviewed and reduced if it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be
available in the future to allow the benefit of deferred
tax assets to be deducted. Such reduction in amount
is reversed when it is probable that sufficient taxable

income is available.

22.3 Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.

Income tax is recognized as an income or an expense
and included in the income statement for the current
period, except to the extent that the current income tax
related to a transaction or events which is recognized
under other comprehensive income or directly
recorded in equity, deferred tax recorded under other
comprehensive income or equity, and deferred tax
arises from a business combination that have impact

on the carrying value of goodwill.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

22. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

22.4 Offsetting of income taxes

When the Group has a legal right to settle on a net
basis and intends either to settle on a net basis
or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, current tax assets and current tax

liabilities are offset and presented on a net basis.

When the Group has a legal right to settle current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis, and deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis or to realize the assets and
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities
are expected to be reversed, deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are offset and presented on a net

basis.

23. Lease

Leases are defined as a contract, or part of a contract, that
conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for

a period of time in exchange for consideration.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23. Lease (Continued)

23.1 The Group as a lessee

At the commencement date, a lessee shall recognise a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that simplify processing and low-value

asset leases.

The right-of-use asset measured Initially at cost,
the cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise:(D
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability; @ any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; @ any initial direct costs incurred by the
lessee;@ an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group
depreciates the right-of-use assets with reference to
the depreciation regulations of “Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises No. 4 — Fixed Assets”
(refer to Note IV 13 “fixed assets”); and the Group
determines whether the right-of-use asset is impaired
in accordance with the “Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No. 8 — Impairment of Assets”
and accounts for the recognized impairment losses (refer

to Note IV. 18 “Long-term asset impairment”).
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23. Lease (Continued)

23.1 The Group as a lessee (Continued)

A lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date. Lease payments is the payments made by
a lessee to a lessor relating to the right to use an
underlying asset during the lease term, comprising the
following: @ fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives; @ variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date; @ the exercise price of a
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option; and @ payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.®
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees. The Group calculates the
interest expense of the lease liability for each period
of the lease term according to a fixed periodic interest
rate, and it is included in the current profit or loss or

capitalized into the value of the relevant assets.

The variable lease payments that are not included in
the measurement of the lease liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss or related asset costs in the period in

which they are incurred.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23. Lease (Continued)

23.1 The Group as a lessee (Continued)

For short-term leases and low-value assets leases, the
Group has chosen to simplify the processing and to
include the relevant asset costs or current profits and
losses in a straight-line method or other systematically
reasonable method during each period of the lease

term.

When the lease scope, lease consideration, and lease
term change other than the original contract terms
occur, the Group will treat the lease change as a
separate lease or as a separate lease for accounting
treatment. When it is not a separate lease, the
company re-measures the lease liability based on the
present value of the lease payment and the revised
discount rate on the effective date of the lease change,
and adjusts the book value of the right-of-use asset
accordingly. The book value of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero. However, if the lease liability
still needs to be further reduced, the Company will
include the remaining amount in the current profit and

loss.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23. Lease (Continued)
23.2 The Group as a lessor

23.2.1 The classification of leases

A lessor shall classify each of its leases as either
a finance lease or an operating lease, based
on the substance of the transaction at the
commencement date. A finance lease refers to
that a lease transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset. An operating lease is the other lease that

except a finance lease.

23.2.2 Operating leases

A lessor shall recognise lease payments from
operating leases as rental income for each period
of the lease term on either a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis. The initial direct costs
related to operating leases are capitalized as
incurred, and it is included in the current profit
and loss in the same period as the confirmed
rental income, during the entire lease period. The
variable lease payments that are not included in
the lease payments related to the operating leases

are recognised in profit or loss when incurred.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23. Lease (Continued)

23.2 The Group as a lessor (Continued)

23.2.3 Finance leases

At the commencement date, the Group confirms
the financing lease receivable and terminates the

recognition of the finance lease assets.

The finance lease receivables are initially measured
at the sum of the un-guaranteed residual value
and the lease receivables that have not been
received on the lease beginning date, based on
the sum of the present value of the leased interest
rate, which comprises the following: A. fixed
payments and in-substance fixed payments, less
any lease incentives payable; B. variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date; C. the exercise price of a
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option; D. payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the lessee exercising an option to terminate the
lease; E. any residual value guarantees provided
to the lessor by the lessee, a party related to the
lessee or a third party unrelated to the lessor that
is financially capable of discharging the obligations

under the guarantee.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

-EESTBRNE A (E)
23. Lease (Continued) 23 ~HE#E)
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23.2 The Group as a lessor (Continued)
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recognised in profit or loss in the period in which o

23.2.3 Finance leases (Continued) ®

The variable lease payments received by the
Group that are not included in the measurement

of the net amount of the leased investment are

they are incurred.

24 - EREHHE - SIHATHNEE

24. Changes in significant accounting policies and

accounting estimates

(1) BHHREE

(1) Changes in accounting policies

Change in accounting policies due to the implementation AT E ST ER SN G5
of new ASBE BOR#
@  The reason of this change is the implementation O $rrFHEENERHEET

of new ASBE. BREE

On 7 December 2018, Ministry of finance
promulgated ‘NO. 21 of Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises-leases (Revised at
2018)" (CAIKUAI NO. [2018] 35, hereinafter
referred to “new lease guidelines”), and it is
required that enterprises listed at the same
time both domestically and overseas, as well as
enterprises that are listed overseas and use IFRS
or corporate accounting standards to prepare
financial statements. The implementation of the
financial statements will take effect on 1 January

2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

24. Changes in significant accounting policies and

accounting estimates (Continued)

(1)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

The Group begins to implement the new accounting
standards mentioned before, when the ministry
of finance required at 1 January 2019 (the date is
hereinafter referred to as the “First Implementation Day”
in this section), and change the relevant accounting

policies in accordance with the new lease guidelines.

According to new lease guidelines, for contracts that
existed before the first implementation date, the Group
chose not to reassess whether it is a lease or includes
a lease on the first execution date. Lease contract for
the Group as a lessee, The Group chose to adjust only
the cumulative impact of lease contracts that were not
completed on 1 January 2019. The cumulative impact
amount adjustment for the first time is executed for
the first time. The retained earnings at the beginning
of the current period (such as 1 January 2019) and
other related items in the financial statements are not
adjusted for the comparable period information. The

details are as follows:
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

24. Changes in significant accounting policies and

accounting estimates (Continued)

(1) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

For the operating lease on the first execution date,
the Group measures the lease liability based on the
present value of the residual lease payments at the
incremental borrowing rate on the first execution date;
the unpaid rent payable on the basis of the accrual
basis under the original lease standard, which inclusion

in the remaining lease payments.

The Group selects the right to use assets according to

one of the following depending on each lease:

i Assume that the book value of the new lease
criteria is adopted from the start date of the lease
period (using the incremental borrowing rate on

the first execution date as the discount rate);

i. The amount equal to the lease liability and the

necessary adjustments based on the prepaid rent.

On the first implementation date, the Group
conducted impairment test on the right-of-use assets
in accordance with the “Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No. 8 — Impairment of Assets”

and conducted corresponding accounting treatment.

200 ANNUAL REPORT 2019

w

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 BERHRENR ()

24 - EERSHEBE - SFAFNEEE)

(1)

BB EREE(E)
HERATHNEERE  ~&
BRBERASHEN KEIRERRIT
AR EERN RTERNRETE
HERE : RESERTRRESR
BAGGHENERNRNEE - &
ARIBHRENRES -

AEBERBESAEEREZRTY
MEZ—HEEREEE

i REREBEHRHESBADNEA
SRR M REEEGRA
BRHITRMIEEERA X
ERITERE):

i HEEEREMAENEE X
REBEFENESETURFHE

EERATH » AEEZRR(RE
SR EAES - EEREINR
E o HEREEEETRENR
WHEITHEETREE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR I

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

- EERH BB ()

IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

24. Changes in significant accounting policies and

accounting estimates (Continued)

(1) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

The impact of the implementation of the new leasing

guidelines on the Group is as follows:

Item

changes BERE WwERIEH

Other receivable

b FE UK

Other current assets

Hit R & E

Long-term prepaid
expenses

REFHER

Right-of-use assets

REEE

Leases liabilities

HEaE

Non-current liabilities
due within one year

—imﬂ%%%ﬁﬁﬁ
8

Other current liabilities

HimenasE

Other non-current
liabilities

HiSERSRE

IR E 2R
HE - HERE
A ENE

gafE -

The right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities
are recognized in
accordance with the
new lease guideline.

il

24 - BEETHE - SEMESNEEA)

(1) BifBREE(E)

MITHHERENE A EENZEN

T

2019.01.01
Amount

(after change)
—E-NEF
—A—H
(BER)EH
170,279,180

163,337,162

381,346,700
1,165,139,003

977,942,220

194,598,375

332,391,018

800,000

2018.12.31
Amount

(before change)
—T-)\F
+=—A=+—8
(ZEp)EEE
175,508,371

177,117,099

400,087,980

347,962,855

30,380,164

A

The weighted average of the incremental borrowing
rates used by the Group in the lease liability that is
included in the balance sheet on the first execution

date is 4.93%.
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IV. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

24. Changes in significant accounting policies and

accounting estimates (Continued)

(1)

2

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

The present value of the unpaid minimum lease
payments for the significant operating leases at the end
of 2018 disclosed in the Group’s 2018 annual financial
statements is RMB1,194,165,657 discounted at the
initial implementation date of the incremental borrowing
rate of 4.93%, and the difference from the lease

liabilities on the first execution date is RMB21,625,062.

@ On 9 May 2019, Ministry of finance promulgated ‘NO.
7 of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-
Non-monetary assets exchange (Revised at 2019)’
(CAIKUAI NO. [2019] 8,), and began to implement at
10 June 2019; On 16 May 2019, Ministry of finance
promulgated ‘NO. 12 of Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises- Debt reorganization (Revised
at 2019)" (CAIKUAI NO. [2019] 9,), and began to
implement at 17 June 2019.

The Group implements the two new revised standards
as required by the Ministry of Finance and changes
the relevant accounting policies in accordance with the

provisions of the new revised standards.

Changes in accounting estimates

None.
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V. TAXATION

Major taxes and tax rates

Tax types
BE

Value-added tax
AR

Consumption tax
HER

City construction and
maintenance tax

YT A R AR

Education surcharge

HE BN

Local education surcharge

#7738 E B KT A0

Corporate income tax

EMEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 RaR I R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

- HIE
FERERBIE

Tax basis Tax rates
TR =
Note 1 16%/13%/10%/

6%/5%/3%
A1
Taxable sales subject to consumption tax 5%
HEBERUA
Value-added tax, business tax and consumption tax 5%/7%
JER REET
Value-added tax, business tax and consumption tax 3%
FEAT R
Value-added tax, business tax and consumption tax 2%

FEImE

Taxable income

FE AN P 1S58

See table below

FHRTR

Taxable entities Tax basis Tax rate of income tax
MHERER s HARIE BB =
Chaopi Maolisheng Hong Kong Co., Ltd. Note 2 16.5%
XA B EBR A 2
Hong Kong Chaopi Asia Company Limited Note 2 16.5%
EEAHEMERAF T2
Others 25%
HigRa
Note 1: The value-added tax payable is the residual value of the 1 EAEESAEIBER R TS
output value-added tax after deduction of input value- AR R ERER - SHIEDFRIRAE R
added tax. The output value-added tax is computed on a BUEMEAEMHERAE -
basis of sales resolved by relevant tax laws.
Note 2: The Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Maolisheng Hong Kong 2 ARRZFRARBMEKAARES

Company Limited and Hong Kong Chaopi Asia Company
Limited were registered and established in Hong Kong and
in accordance with Hong Kong taxation law its corporate
income tax rate was 16.5%.

BRARREBARLTMNAERRER
BEREMEZRE - HREEH
WERRE  CEMBHRRXS
16.5% °

2019 F#f ;
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL VA
STATEMENTS

All AMOUNTS IN RMB UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

The beginning of the year is 1 January 2019, the closing of the
year is 31 December 2019, the end of prior year is 31 December
2018, the current year is 2019 and the prior year is 2018.
UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

1. Cash and bank balances

ltem HH
Cash on hand EFRE
Cash in bank RITIFR

Other cash and bank balances (Note 1) EfiE#E 4 (551)

A BRREREE

BREBEAIN  RBASHEELI/ARE

JC ©

NTHBER(ERARAMBHREXETEZERAT
B)RIERFRIEL [ F¥ 118201941 A1
A [FXRI#E2019F12H8318 [ EFF
K J462018F 12 31 H : [ AF |4520194F
& [ EF 4820185 % -

1. EES

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—g-nE | —F A
+=A=+-8 | +t=A=1-~

8,218,440 13,627,854
856,631,364 | 1,000,600,070
84,571,190 132,682,283

Total a5t
Including: Overseas deposits (Note 2)  EH& @ FRIERINOFIBLR

949,420,994 | 1,146,910,207
% (512) 7,884,922 4,383,236

Note 1: As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s margin deposits
with use restrictions was RMB84,571,190 (31 December
2018: RMB132,682,283), and details were referred to Note
(VI) 19 Notes payable.

Note 2: The overseas deposits were the deposits of the subsidiary
Chaopi Maolisheng Hong Kong Company Limited in The
Hong Kong and Shanghai Bank Corporation Limited and
China Everbright Bank Hong Kong Branch.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RIS RaR B e

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

Bt BEHRIEE ERE)

Accounts receivable 2 EUWERR
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—g-nE | 2R
+=A=+—-8 | +t=ZA=1+—H”
[tem EH
Accounts receivable JEUBR TR 1,197,382,479 | 1,490,822,972
Total A&t 1,197,382,479 1,490,822,972

(1) 31 December 2019

(1) 2019%12H31H

Presentation of accounts receivable by category FEUAR R D 2RI FR
2019.12.31
ZE-nEtZA=1-A
Carrying amount Credit loss allowance
FEBE RRERER
Net book
Amount  Proportion (%) Amount Rate (%) value
Category E5l 8 HH (%) SE  HRRA) REERE
Account receivable for single provision for ~ BIEHRERBRERNHERE
bad debts - - - - -
Accounts receivable for credit loss alowance A RERBARENENED
by combination 1,217,861,967 100 20,479,488 2 1,197,382,479
Total At 1,217,861,967 100 20,479,488 2 1,197,382,479
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N AU BERREAERAE)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(1) 31 December 2019 (Continued)

2 BWERRE)

(1) 2019%12531H(4#&)

The aging of accounts receivable is as follows FEUER AR B N T
2019.12.31
—E-NF+=ZA=+-H
Accounts Credit loss Net book
receivable  Proportion% allowance value
Aging R e X Hhl(%) EREXEE REEE
Within 1 year 1FE LA 1,131,410,849 93 - 1,131,410,849
1-2 years 1226 31,685,199 3 950,556 30,734,643
2-3 years 25 3F 14,234,768 1 1,423,477 12,811,291
3-4 years 3E4F 23,314,230 2 5,828,558 17,485,672
4-5 years 4555 9,880,047 1 4,940,023 4,940,024
Over 5 years 54 LA F 7,336,874 - 7,336,874 -
Total = 1,217,861,967 100 20,479,488 1,197,382,479
The detail of credit loss allowance ERIBREENBR
The amount change in this year
AEBHLH
Recovery Resale or
2019.1.1 Accrual or reversal write-off 2019.12.31
Category £ 088 it HESER LR EXBE
Payment &R 13,013,145 12,801,915 5,256,191 79,381 20,479,488
Total A 13,013,145 12,801,915 5,256,191 79,381 20,479,488

206 ANNUAL REPORT 2019

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED



o g X
— S W \ B4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A

il

b e e

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EHUBBRREEERE)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(1) 31 December 2019 (Continued)

In the portfolio, accounts receivable for credit loss

allowance by aging analysis

2 FEWERRGE)
(1) 20194125318 (%)
HEF - RERDITEIRER
BREHR IR

2019.12.31
—E-AF+=A=+—H
Accounts Credit loss
receivable allowance Proportion%
Aging RS YRR ERIEXEE  FHELEHI(%)
Within 1 year SN 1,131,410,849 - 0
1-2 years 1224 31,685,199 950,556 3
2-3 years 2FE 3 14,234,768 1,423,477 10
3-4 years 3E44F 23,314,230 5,828,558 25
4-5 years 455 9,880,047 4,940,023 50
Over 5 years 59 E 7,336,874 7,336,874 100
Total A&t 1,217,861,967 20,479,488
(2) 31 December 2018 (2) 2018%12F31H
Presentation of accounts receivable by category JEURBR TR SR I 7R
2018.12.31
“5-\F+-f=1-H
Carrying amount Credit loss allowance
SESE ERBXEE
Amount  Proportion (%) Amount Rate (%)  Net hook value
Category 55 28 H %) 2B HREHAI%) ERERE
Account receivable for single provision BEREREREENER
for bad debts ER - - - - -
Accounts receivable for crecit loss REATRERBRERNE
allowance by combination W 1,503,836,117 100 13,013,145 11490822972
Totadl At 1,508,836,117 100 13,013,145 1 1,490,822,972
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VI.

w

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2018 (Continued)

S

2 BWERRE)

N BHMBERREBTEE)

(2) 2018%12F31H(#&)

The aging of accounts receivable is as follows FEUER AR B N T
2018.12.31
—E2-N\E+ZA=1+—H

Carrying Credit loss

amount Proportion% allowance Net book value
Aging AR R ik LEBl(%)  (ERERER REEE
Within 1 year 1FELAR 1,426,024,294 95 - 1,426,024,294
1-2 years 1226 21,586,267 1 647,587 20,938,680
2-3 years 2E3F 30,184,046 2 3,018,405 27,165,641
3-4 years 3E45F 14,694,411 1 3,673,603 11,020,808
4-5 years 4E5F 11,347,099 1 5,673,550 5,673,549
Over 5 years 5F LAk - - - -
Total Azt 1,503,836,117 100 13,013,145 1,490,822,972
The detail of credit loss allowance ERIBREHENER

The amount change in this year

AERBLE
Recovery Resale or
2018.1.1 Accrual or reversal write-off 2018.12.31
Category EAl ke HE: KEZER AN ERBE
Payment &7 6,333,695 6,766,793 87,343 - 13,013,145
Total At 6,333,695 6,766,793 87,343 - 13,013,145
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Bt BEHRIEE ERE)

/
STATEMENTS (Continued)
2. Accounts receivable (Continued) 2 EWRERR(E)
31 December 2018 (Continued) (2) 2018412H31H (%)
In the portfolio, accounts receivable for credit loss Hew - BERDWEIRER
allowance by aging analysis B EE M R TR
2018.12.31
~F-N\Ft-A=+-8
Accounts Credit loss
receivable allowance Proportion%
Aging AR FEU AR TR ERBRER SHEEL (%)
Within 1 year 1A 1,426,024,294 - 0
1-2 years 1224 21,586,267 647,587 3
2-3 years 2E3F 30,184,046 3,018,405 10
3-4 years 3E4F 14,694,411 3,673,603 25
4-5 years 4EBF 11,347,099 5,673,550 50
Over 5 years 5% A - - 100
Total a5t 1,503,836,117 13,013,145
Top five entities with the largest balances of (3) BRI EBEHFRGHEIEEN
accounts receivable FEW R 18R
31 December 2019 2019412 H31H
Proportion of the amount  Closing balance
to the total accounts of credit loss
Name of entity Relationship with the Group Amount receivable (%) allowance
ERBXERE
eSS RASEERA &8 MR AR LBI%) EXEH
Beijing Wu-mart Store Co., Ltd. (‘Wu-mart’) Independent third party 374,980,009 31 2,060,210
ERMEGARTARAR I TEEE]) BUE=H
Beijing Jingdong Century Trade Co., Ltd. (“Jingdong’) Independent third party 166,215,407 13 165,330
IRRRELESERAA I TERRR]) BUg=5
Beiiing Carrefour Commercial Co. Ltd. (‘Carrefour’) Independent third party 61,711,993 5 85,625
IRFEREEARNA (AT HRB FLE]) BUEZH
Beiiing Yonghui Superstores Co. Ltd. (“Yonghul") Independent third party 53,793,454 4 52,416
KEFEERAF A TEREKE]) BUE=5
Wuhan Watsons Personal Products Store Co., Ltd. Independent third party 45,834,450 4 -
HEREREARREEARAA BUE=H
Total At 692,535,313 57 2,353,581
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N B BRREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
2. Accounts receivable (Continued) 2 FEWERR(E)
(3) Top five entities with the largest balances of (3) BRAGTEHEEWFARGEITEN
accounts receivable (Continued) FEW RS 185 (&)
31 December 2018 201812 A31H
Proportion of the amount Closing balance
to the total accounts of credit loss
Name of entity Relationship with the Group Amount receivable (%) allowance
| ERBkLEE
EAHR BAEEBRE i TR PR FR B b %) EXEE
Beiing Wu-mart Store Co., Ltd. ("Wu-mart’) Independent third party 425,044,386 28 1,009,193
tRMEGA BT ARAR (A TERE 1£)) BUgE=5
Beijiing Jingdong Century Trade Co., Ltd. (“Jingdong”) Independent third party 353,928,049 24 182,246
IRRRELESERAR A THRE RR)) BUE=H
Beiing Carrefour Commercial Co. Ltd., (‘Carrefour’) Independent third party 51,910,852 3 6,410
HRRERHERRAAATER FLE)) BUE=5
Beiing Hualian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (‘Hualian”) Independent third party 50,460,765 3 321,218
ERERGARTRAERA A TERE =) BiUE=H
Beiing Yonghui Superstores Co. Ltd. (“Yonghul") Independent third party 49,300,313 3 145,180
KBEEARAR (N TEREE]) BugE=5
Total At 930,644,365 61 1,614,247

On 31 December 2019, the total accounts
receivable due from Wu-mart, Carrefour, Beijing
Lotus Supermarket Chain Co., Ltd., Beijing Yonghui
Superstores Co. Ltd., Jingdong, Tianjin jumei.
com Technology Co., Ltd, Vipshop, and Lefeng
(Shanghai) Information Technology Company Limited
amounted to RMB280,963,340 (31 December 2018:
RMB407,663,837) were limited by being factored to

secure certain bank loans of the Group.

"
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Accounts receivable (Continued)

b e e

A

il

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194

S

/

(3) Top five entities with the largest balances of

2 BWERMR(E)

All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

Bt BEHRIEE ERE)

(3) BXAGEHERHFRGER L EH

accounts receivable (Continued)

Pursuant to the factoring agreement between the
Group and HSBC, HSBC provides a bank loan for
amount of not exceeding 70% of accounts receivable
factoring to the Group. HSBC collected the entire
amount of accounts receivable and is only required
to pay the Group any amount it collects in excess of
the loan amount. As the Group has not transferred
specifically identifiable cash flows, fully proportionate
share of all or part of the cash flows or part of
specifically identifiable cash flows, the Group cannot
apply the derecognition model to part of the factored

accounts receivable.

Since factored accounts receivable is on full recourses
basis, the Group has not transferred the significant
risks and rewards relating of these receivables, it
continues to recognize the receivables and has
recognized the cash received from the bank as
accounts receivable secured loan (Refer to Note (VI)

18).

FEWRR* 1557 (&)

RIBA LB HE QRITRBOMRIE
W& - EERITANEEREHERS
HBEMEREFRIRIZEE70%H) IR
TTER - (B RTUHRE W BR K
2HEHE  ERAEEXNESR
ERXREBEONE - ARKEBER
BRRERETHE - AIHRM
Do thARBEEHRSREN—
ELHPINBRERETEE - ATk
REOW—ELH - Bt - N
[ T B SE 1T IR IE B EU R AR
e L FERARAY o

RIRTHZREN RUKIERE
BRE AEBYAREBZEE
Yo BR 3K P A b O B KR B A 3R
B HitEEEREKER - I
A IRTT I B B0 3 & HERR B B W AR
RIRIBAE R (LR - 18) ©

Factoring accounts receivable
on full recourses basis

BERENERRRRE

2019.12.31 2018.12.31

—E-hEF —E=-N\F
Content of accounts receivable +=ZB=+—-H| TZA=+—H
Carrying amount of transferred assets BREENEREEE 280,963,340 407,663,837
Carrying amount of related liabilities B EMNERAEE 48,566,497 155,555,585
Net book value Pt 232,396,843 252,108,252
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N B BRREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Prepayments 3+ FENRIE
(1) Presentation of prepayments according to aging (1) FEREZERR T
analysis
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
“E-AE+ZA=+—H —Z-\FE+ZA=+—H

Amount  Proportion(%) Amount  Proportion(%)
Aging BRER £8 EEB31(%) G EE51(%)
Within 1 year 1ELR 1,124,980,836 100 750,913,496 100
Total B 1,124,980,836 100 750,913,496 100

(2) Top five entities with the largest balances of (2) BEANHREEFAGEIEEN
prepayments FETH1ER
31 December 2019 2019612A31H
Relationship Unsettled

Name of entity with the Group Amount reason
EER BAREEHE &8 KEERE
Yibin Wuliangye Liquor Sales Co., Ltd. Independent third party 281,127,051 Haven't received goods
HELRRERHEAREEAT BUE=F HARNEIEY
Guizhou Moutai Wine Sales Co., Ltd. Independent third party 118,342,190 Haven't received goods
BMNFREHEBRAR BUE=H HAKEIEY
Beijing Zhuolong Animal Husbandry Co., Ltd. Independent third party 77,179,746 Haven't received goods
IREFERERAT BUE=F HABEIED
Beijing Red Bull Vitamin Drink Co., Ltd. Independent third party 53,487,727 Haven't received goods
MLt RHERE R BUE=H ARG
Mondelez Shanghai Food Corporate Management Co., Ltd  Independent third party 50,967,964 Haven't received goods
EARRCEER(LE)ERAR BUgE=}H HARNEIEY
Total Bt 581,104,678
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Prepayments

b e e

il

A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

Bt BEHRIEE ERE)

S

/

(2) Top five entities with the largest balances of

prepayments

31 December 2018

3 FEMNFE

(2) BENHREEFRGHEINLEL

A AER

20185 12A31H

Relationship with Unsettled
Name of entity the Group Amount reason
B #H EREERE o REERE
Yibin Wuliangye Liquor Sales Co., Ltd. Independent third party 140,573,634 Haven't received goods
HERRRERHEERELAR BUE=H HAMEI SN
Beijing Red Bull Vitamin Drink Co., Ltd. Independent third party 38,639,815 Haven't received goods
ERTAGF IR EREA LT BUE=F HARME &
Shanghai Nestle Products Services Co., Ltd. Independent third party 29,241,492 Haven't received goods
LB ERRBERLA BUE=H EARYEI SN
JDB (China) Drinks Co., Ltd. Independent third party 28,570,951 Haven't received goods
MEE(PE)HEERDE BUE=H HARKEIED
Ferrero Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Independent third party 26,800,430 Haven't received goods
B5IRE 5 (LB BRAR BuE=5 HARMEI &N
Total At 263,826,222
4. Other receivable 4~ HitEEWR
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—E-NF —E-N\F
ltem HE +=BA=+—-H| tZA=+—H
Other receivables Hfth fE YR 191,243,003 175,508,371
Interest receivables YT B - -
Dividend receivables JE LA ) - -
Total &5t 191,243,003 175,508,371
2019 if& 213
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AR
STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. Other receivable (Continued)
Details of other receivables

(1) 31 December 2019

Presentation of other receivables by category

NCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMBHRREAEBTEE)

4~ HARWR(E)
AR 1ER

(1) 2019%F12/531H
HAth MR D SR R

2019.12.31
“E-NEtZA=1-H
Carrying amount Credit loss allowance
REHE ERBXER
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%) Net book value
Category EAl k2 HAI(%) ©F  HEEA%) REER
Other receivables for which credit loss BEARERBRERN
allowance s assessed individually Ef LR 5,051,377 3 4,224,750 84 826,627
Other receivables for which creditloss  1REAFHRERBREEL
allowance is assessed by combination Hi W 191,249,750 97 833,374 - 190,416,376
Total At 196,301,127 100 5,058,124 3 191,243,008

Presentation of other receivables according to aging

Hip Ul HRE T

analysis
2019.12.31
ZE-NEtZAZT-A
Credit loss
Carrying amount Proportion% allowance  Net book value
Aging R EL A (%) BRER REER
Within 1 year N 172,289,548 88 - 172,289,548
1-2 years 120F 15,180,649 8 455,419 14,725,230
2-3 years PEXE 3,779,553 2 377,955 3,401,598
3-4 years 3B4F - - - -
4-5 years 4255 - - - -
Over 5 years 5ELE 5,051,377 2 4,224,750 826,627
Total At 196,301,127 100 5,058,124 191,243,003
The detail of credit loss allowance EREBEEFENER
The amount change in this year
FEREEH
Recovery or Resale or
2019.1.1 Accrual reversal write-off 2019.12.31
Category LF] ) AR KEREE BRI ERBE
Rent and promotionl fee HeREHE 4,381,644 703,129 6,274 20,375 5,058,124
Total At 4,381,644 703,129 6,274 20,375 5,058,124
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VI.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

4.

Other receivable (Continued)

Details of other receivables (Continued)

(1)

31 December 2019 (Continued)

Other receivables for which credit loss allowance has

been assessed individually at 31 December 2019

Carrying Credit loss

Content of other receivables amount allowance
GRBX

At ERRAE RESE ERSE
Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Market Co., Ltd. 5,061,377 4,224,750

EREERRRETEERAR

A

il

N At BEHREEERE)

4 HAbFEWK(E)

AR ER ()

(1) 20194 12H31H (4)

Provision (%)
FHREAI(%)
84

FREFREMBRERNEM

FE WK

Reason

i

Full credit loss allowance for the part unrecovered,

according to the agreement

RESNHE - HRUERDHRERRRER

Aging analysis method is used to a portfolio of credit

loss allowance

Had BERIIEFIRER

18 IR A 1 1 HL A B IR

2019.12.31
—B-AE+=A=+-A

Other Credit loss
receivables allowance Provision (%)
Aging BRES H i FE UK EREXER FTREEB1(%)
Within 1 year 1F AR 172,289,548 - 0
1-2 years 1225 15,180,649 455,419 3
2-3 years 2E3F 3,779,553 377,955 10
3-4 years 3E4F - - 25
4-5 years 4Z5F - - 50
Over 5 years 5%+ - - 100

Total A5t 191,249,750 833,374

2019 if& 215P

R EEREEERNARAT
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N B BRREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. Other receivable (Continued) 4~ HtpEEWR(E)
Details of other receivables (Continued) EERIER (&)
(2) 31 December 2018 (2) 2018%12H31H
Presentation of other receivables by category H YR B R
2018.12.31
ZE-ETZA=TA
Carrying amount Credit loss allowance
) ERELEE
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%)  Net book value
Category 5 °F £ f71(%) °8 G RHER
Other receivables for which creditloss BB RERBAERHE M
allowance is assessed individually e 5,087,250 3 4,224,750 83 862,500
Other receivables for which credit loss  RBAHEERBREEHE
allowance is assessed by combination  #EMH 174,802,765 97 156,894 - 174,645,871
Total At 179,890,015 100 4,381,644 2 175508371
Presentation of other receivables according to aging H it e R AR N T~
analysis
2018.12.31
“E-)\#+-A=1-H
Carrying amount Proportion%  Credit loss allowance Net book value
Aging B8 4 Bk EREXEE EEEE
Within 1 year 1ELR 169,572,947 % - 169,572,947
1-2 years 1225 5,229,818 3 156,894 5,072,924
2-3 years 2%3F - - - -
3-4 years REYL:S - - - -
4-5 years 4Z5% - - - -
Over 5 years 5E + 5,087,250 3 4,224,750 862,500
Total At 179,890,015 100 4,381,644 175,508,371

L
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EHUBRREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
Other receivable (Continued) 4~ HttEWR(E)
Details of other receivables (Continued) BB 1EE (&)
31 December 2018 (Continued) (2) 2018%F12H31H (#&)
The detail of credit loss allowance EREREBNER
The amount change in this year
REEHLE
Recovery or Resale or
2018.1.1 Accrual reversal write-off 2018.12.31
Category EA ENRE R KEGED SEkE EXHE
Rent and promotional fee BeRiEHE 4,924,750 156,894 - - 4,381,644
Total A 4224750 156,804 - - 4,381,644

Other receivables for which credit loss allowance has

been assessed individually at 31 December 2018

Carrying
Content of other receivables amount
EtERBFAA RERE
Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Market Co., Ltd. 5,087,250

EREERRRETEERA

Credit loss
allowance

L VS

FREFTREMBRERNEM
FEH R

Rate%  Reason

EESR  GTRLOIC)

4,224,750

83 Full credit loss allowance for the part unrecovered,
according to the agreement

BEEH S - HARORAHRERRRER

2019 @%&
ErrREEREEERNARA 21 7 *

*
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N AU BERREAERAE)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. Other receivable (Continued) 4 -~

Details of other receivables (Continued)

(3)  Other receivables presented by nature

HibEWRK ()
AR ER ()

(3)  HIEEE DT E A fEHR

2019.12.31 2018.12.31

—E-hF —E-)N\F
Nature of other receivable Hih e S +=—BA=+—H +-—A=+—H
Promotional fee FENIESHE A 186,627,503 175,068,081
Security deposit and deposit JEWIRZE S RIRE 4,563,915 429,180
Other HAt 51,585 11,110
Total A&t 191,243,003 175,508,371

(4) Top five entities with the largest balances of other

receivables

31 December 2019

4) EXHK

R TFRGEI LR
b FEA X
2019%12A31H

Proportion of the amount

Closing to the total other  Closing balance of

Company name Nature of other receivables balance receivable (%) credit loss allowance
RN ERB%
ERvES HEtE EREH BRI E(%) EREABE
Mondelez Shanghai Food Corporate Service fee 11,081,715 6 -
Management Co.,Ltd.

BARROEER(LE)ERAR k%E
Beijing Aiboxin Cosmetics Trading Company ~ Manufacturer costs 6,933,375 4 -
FREBRIHAREEERAT BZRER
Henkel (China) Investment Co., Ltd.. Promotional fee 6,068,947 3 34,568
EE(TE)RERRAR
Beumg Guanyuan Wholesale Market Co., Ltd.  Receivables of prepaid rent 5,087,250 3 4,224,750
IR EEERETAER AT jelpLika
Wrigley Candy (China) Co., Ltd Promotional fee 3,566,394 2 -
e R(hE)ERAR RHE
Total 32,737,681 18 4,259,318
Ait

i
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VI.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

4.

Other receivable (Continued)

Details of other receivables (Continued)

(4)

Top five entities with the largest balances of other

receivables (Continued)

31 December 2018

b e e

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

A

il

N At BEHREEERE)

4 -

Htt YR (&)
AR ER ()

1t FEH K (B

201812 A31H

Proportion of the amount

(4) BRI ERENFRGFREF L HR

Nature of other to the total other Closing balance of
Company name receivables Closing balance receivable (%)  credit loss allowance
TEE AR RREX
B4 TEHE FREE BERLHI) ERERBE
Mondelez Shanghai Food Corporate Promotional fee 9,413,163 5 -
Management Co.,Ltd.
EARMEEER(LE)ARAR feHE
Ferrero Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Promotional fee 7,787,133 4 1,069
BIRES(L8)BRAR RHE
Shanghai Jahwa E-commerce Co., Ltd. Promotional fee 7,547,451 4 -
TERICEFERERLA RHE
Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Market Co., Ltd. Receivables of prepaid 5,087,250 3 4,224,750
rent
IREEARETEERAR A bpika
Su wine trade group Limited by Share Ltd Promotional fee 3,511,822 2 -
HEEXEESIROERLA feHE
Total 33,346,809 18 4,225,819
At
#
2019 %5 n1g

R EEREEERNARAT
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Inventories

Presentation of inventories by category

5. K

N BHMBERREBTEE)

FESE

2019.12.31

—®-AE+=A=t+-A

Carrying amount Impairment  Net book value
ltem R IREEAEE BEERE REEE
Merchandise inventory [T 78 1,553,777,817 - 1,553,777,817
Raw material JRA B 10,456,299 - 10,456,299
Goods in process EER 201,280 - 201,280
Low-value consumables KBS FEm - - -
Total =5 1,564,435,396 - 1,564,435,396

2018.12.31
—NF+=-A=+—H
Carrying amount Impairment Net book value
ltem 15H IREEREE B{EERE REEE
Merchandise inventory EFER 1,650,270,986 - 1,650,270,986
Raw material JRAT#E 18,159,997 - 18,159,997
Goods in process EEM 490,791 - 490,791
Low-value consumables KESFER 1,837 - 1,837
Total A 1,668,923,611 - 1,668,923,611

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, no

inventories were pledged or guaranteed.

The Group is principally engaged in retail and wholesale
business of fast moving consumer goods, which are daily
necessities. Inventories could be realized faster, and the risk
of inventory impairment is small. As at 31 December 2019, 7t
the inventory turnover was good, and the management

believes that there is no sign of impairment. Thus, there was

no need for accrual for impairment of the inventory at the

end of the period.

g
220 ANNUAL REPORT 2019
* BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

AEEEBEY
EHES
B AR
ERAH R

ERERR

ERAE

M2019F12 A31 H & 20184 12 A 31
B EAREESERNTE

IR BERR
BEFERE

- B#EZE2019412A318 -
ERERRAARLERE
Bx - Bt - AEEFHERFEIE
TFEREER




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 255 R P o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

VI.
STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

1:||||/

N At BEHREEERE)

6. Other current assets 6 HibRBEE
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—EB-NF —E—)\F
ltem HE +=ZA=+—-RB| +-—A=+—8H
Deductible input value-added tax FIIEER 118,208,231 122,864,461
Prepaid lease expenses FHHeEH 1,707,767 32,241,612
Prepaid heating expenses FEHEE R 4,144,498 3,566,527
Other prepaid expenses (Note 1) HE S ERGGE) 1,722,756 1,251,741
Receivable return cost JEWOR & AR 10,134,314 17,192,758
Total A&t 135,917,566 177,117,099
Note 1: Prepaid cooling fee, property fee, cleaning fee and security 1 BRI ER E“Tﬁﬁﬁﬁi\}%% -1
fee, etc. are the primary expenses of other prepaid ¥E  REB  RLES -
expenses.
7. Other non-current financial assets 7 HiERBEREE
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—E-NF —EF—)\F
ltem 1BH +ZA=+—-H | tZH=+—H
Classified financial assets at fair value DEANABEFEAHES
through profit or loss ABHERNSRERE 42,272,786 14,583,646
Including: Debt instrument investments Hreh (& ﬁ‘%IEljxﬁ - -
Equity instrument investments Rz T ERE(FE)
(Note 1) 42,272,786 14,583,646
Subtotal Nt 42,272,786 14,583,646
Less: Current portion that matures o —FAEIEREE Y
within one year - -
Total A&r 42,272,786 14,583,646
Note 1: Chaopi Trading, the subsidiary of the Company, 1 ARRZFRAHMEER20185F4 A

subscribed for the enjoyment of Wuliangye No. 1 fund

products by monetary funds of RMB11.67 million, and held
11,638,983.05 shares of the fund in April 2018.

NEBES ARK1167TEILR
AERRIFESER
/511,638,983.0517) °

ERRE

CRBENEESNER

2019 @&
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AN

il

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. Investment properties

Investment properties under the cost method

31 December 2019

Item

. Original carrying amount
1.2019.1.1
2. Increase in the period
(1) Transferred from the fixed assets
(2)Business mergers increased
3. Decrease in the period
(1) Transferred to the fixed assets
(2) Transferred to the intangible assets
4.2019.12.31
Il. Accumulated depreciation and amortization
1.2019.1.1
2. Increase in the period
(1)Accrual or amortization
(2) Transferred from the fixed assets
(3) Business mergers increased
3. Decrease in the period
(1) Transferred to the fixed assets
(2) Transferred to the intangible assets
4, 2019.12.31
[Il. Net book value
1. Net book value as at 31 December 2019
2. Net book value as at 1 January 2019

BH

RERE
1. 5088
2. KERMER
(1) HEEEEBA
(2 XA
3 AERLEH
() BAEEEE
Q BAETEE
4. FRHE
CBAHTENZEH
1. £988
2. REEMER
(1) FHHRSkE
(2 KEEEEBEA
(3) EEAHEM
3 RERLEE
(N BAEEEE
(Q BABVAE
4. FRBE
- IRE(E(E
1. ERREER
2. FYEHBE

N BHMBERREBTEE)

8 REMREHE

BT BELHRE NS E
2019128311

Buildings
EEREEY

139,248,884

139,248,884

54,770,944
5,258,953
5,258,953

60,029,897

79,218,987
84,477,940

Land use rights

TiERE

122,900,708

122,900,708

19,772,294
3,433,202
3,433,202

23,205,496

99,695,212
103,128,414

Total
At

262,149,592

262,149,592

74,543,238
8,692,155
8,692,155

83,235,393

178,914,199
187,606,354

i
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EHUBRREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. Investment properties (Continued) 8 REMEMEE)
Investment properties under the cost method (Continued) BT ERREMEHE (&)
31 December 2018 2018F 12 A31H
Buildings Land use rights Total
ltem HH FEREEN T ARE Ch
I. Original carrying amount - BERE
1.2018.1.1 1. 28 130,248,884 122,900,708 262,149,592
2. Increase in the period 2. REEMEHE - - -
(1) Transferred from the fixed assets ) KETEEEA - - -
(2) Business mergers increased 2) EAEM - - -
3. Decrease in the period L AER EE - - -
(1) Transferred to the fixed assets (1) BEAETEAE - - -
(2) Transferred to the intangible assets QBARFAE - N -
4. 2018.12.31 4, ERGE 139,248,884 122,900,708 262,149,592
IIl. Accumulated depreciation and amortization = « 2ETEM Z i
1.2018.1.1 1. FY&HE 51,295,182 14,539,814 65,834,996
2. Increase in the period 2. REHIMEE 3,475,762 5,232,480 8,708,242
(1) Accrual or amortization (1) EHHRe s 3,475,762 5,232,480 8,708,242
(2) Transferred from the fixed assets Q) REEEEEA - - -
(3)Business mergers increased Q) EAGHEM - - -
3. Decrease in the period 3. AFER L E - - -
(1) Transferred to the fixed assets N EABTEE - - -
(2) Transferred to the intangible assets Q) BARFEAE - - -
4. 2018.12.31 4, EREREE 54,770,944 19,772,294 74,543,238
lll. Net book value = RREE
1. Net book value as at 31 December 2018 1. FREAEE 84,477,940 103,128,414 187,606,354
2. Net book value as at 1 January 2018 2. FRHEEE 87,953,702 108,360,894 196,314,596
As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, there 2019412 A31H K2018%12A318 -
was no investment properties that were pledged to secure ERFRITRABREAYOREER
certain of the Group’s long-term bank loans. HE -
As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, all land 2019412 A31H K2018%12A318 -
use rights in the investment properties of the Group are AN G BI% & M i EE AR A L Hb (5 R S
medium-term lease. BRAEEE -

i
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VI.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AN et BEHRREEEEE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
Fixed assets 9 BEEEE
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—E-NF —E-N\F
ltem HE +=A=+—-8| +t=ZA=+—H
Fixed assets EEEE 904,648,539 976,125,343
Disposal of fixed assets BEEEEFE 17,605,694 -
Total &5 922,254,233 976,125,343
(1) Detail of fixed assets (1) BEEZHERR
31 December 2019 2019%12H31H
Electronic
Machinery and  devices and Transportation
Buildings equipment others vehicles Total
Item EEREEN HERE ETRERHM EgRE fif
I Original carrying amount - RERE
1, 2019.1.1 1588 1,086,476,737 874,952,818 179,239,587 58,851,271  2,179,520,413
2. Increase in the period 2. KEENE 10,222,452 20,519,334 24,785,899 10,645,384 66,173,069
(1) Purchase (1 EE 83,652 18,445,066 22,823,967 9,082,055 50,434,740
(2) Transferred from the construction Q) ERIEEA
in process 10,138,800 2,074,268 1,961,932 1,563,329 15,738,329
(3) Transferred from the investment (O BEEFEEA
properties - - - - -
(4) Business mergers increased (&) REAGHEM - - - - -
3. Decrease in the period 3 AEHD 20,483,953 30,621,691 15,039,086 19,862,794 86,007,524
(1) Disposal (1) AFRE 20,483,953 30,621,691 15,039,086 19,862,794 86,007,524
(2) Transferred to the investment QBAREUERE
properties - - - - -
4, 2019.12.31 4 ERBE 1,056,215,236 864,850,461 188,986,400 49,633,861  2,159,685,958
Il. Accumulative depreciation - Rt
1. 2019.1.1 1. 58 396,608,529 635,641,492 132,989,809 38,155,240  1,203,395,070
2. Increase in the period 2. KEENE 35,869,379 41,388,677 17,648,763 14,811,365 109,718,184
(1) Accrual (1) RE3R 35,869,379 41,388,677 17,648,763 14,811,365 109,718,184
(2) Transferred from the investment Q) REMEHEEA
properties - - - - -
(3) Business mergers increased (3) REAGHEM - - - - -
3. Decrease in the period 3 RERSE 2614930 26,537,086 12,852,099 16,071,750 58,075,835
(1) Disposal 1) AERE 2,614,930 26,537,056 12,852,099 16,071,750 58,075,835
(2) Transferred to investment Q) BAREMEHE
properties - - - - -
4, 2019.12.31 4 FRHE 429,862,978 650,493,113 137,786,473 36,894,855  1,255,037,419
Il. Net book value - BHEE
1. Net book value as at 31 December 1 EXGEER
2019 626,352,258 214,357,348 51,199,927 12,739,006 904,648,539
2. Net book value as at 1 January 2. FUBEEE
2019 669,868,208 239,311,326 46,249,778 20,696,031 976,125,343

204 ANNUAL REPORT 2019
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 255 R P o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

il

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EHUBRREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. Fixed assets (Continued) 9 BEEEE)
(1) Detail of fixed assets (Continued) (1) BIZEZEEERE)
31 December 2018 2018%12A31H
Electronic
Machinery and devices and  Transportation
Buildings equipment others vehicles Total
ltem R FEREEY EREE STREREM ERTE At
I Original carrying amount - RERE
1, 2018.1.1 1. E5E 1065915625  909,986266 166,200,498  80,995490 2,223,187,879
2. Increase in the period 2. TEEME 561,112 20,088,544 24,634,488 6,377,759 51,661,903
(1) Purchase 1) BE 561,112 17,647,556 24,634,488 6,377,759 49,220,915
(2) Transferred from the construction (0 EEIRBA
in process - 2,440,988 - - 2,440,988
(3) Transferred from the investment (8 REMFEHEEN
properties - - - - -
(4) Business mergers increased (@) EAGHEM - - - - -
3. Decrease in the period 3. MERED - 55121992 11685399  28521,978 95,329,369
(1) Disposal (1) AFRE - 55,121,992 11,685,399 28,521,978 95,329,369
(2) Transferred to the investment (2 BARAKEE
properties - - - - -
4. 2018.12.31 4 FRBE 1066,476,737 874,952,818 179239587 58,851,271 2,179,520,413
Il Accumulative depreciation — BB
1. 2018.1.1 1. FU%E 360,307,497 635,560,032 130,721,094 52,723,499  1,179,312,122
2. Increase in the period 2. RERNE 36,301,032 40298306 13260553 16321554 106,181,445
(1) Accrual (1) AF3R 36,301,032 40,298,306 13,260,553 16,321,554 106,181,445
(2) Transferred from the investment (0 REUFEHEEN
properties - - - - -
(3) Business mergers increased (3) DEAGEM - - - - -
3. Decrease in the period 3 KERIE - 40216846 10991838 30,889,813 82,008,497
(1) Disposal () AERE - 40,216,846 10,991,838 30,889,813 82,098,497
(2) Transferred to investment Q) BARAERNE
properties - - - - -
4. 2018.12.31 4, ERBE 396,608,529 635,641,492 132,989,809 38,155,240  1,203,395,070
Il. Net book value = KEERE
1. Net book value as at 31 December 1. EXEEER
2018 669,868,208 239,311,326 46,249,778 20,696,031 976,125,343
2. Net book value as at 1 January 2. FUBEEE
2018 705,608,128 274,426,234 35,569,404 28,271,991 1,043,875,757
As at 31 December 2019, and 31 December 2018, no 2019412 A31H ;2018512 A 31
fixed assets were restricted as they were been pledged B @AARERFRITRGME
to secure certain of the long-term Group’s bank loans. FOEEYMZERINETE
B o

.
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. Fixed assets (Continued)

(1) Detail of fixed assets (Continued)

Fixed assets of which issued certificates of title have

not been obtained as at 31 December 2019:

ltem HE

Room1-201 Unit 13, Chenxin ~ AKEEZEEE13-1-201F
Garden, Datong J23

9 BEEEE)

N BHMBERREBTEE)

(1) BZTEERR(E)
R2019%F12 8318 » KL ERE

BENBETEER

Reasons for
not obtaining
Net book certificates of

value title
RN ERE
REFE HEREA

379,672 In progress
EEHER

Expected time

of obtaining
certificates of
title

ARG ERERE
ERH

2020

20204

Fixed assets of which issued certificates of title have

not been obtained as at 31 December 2018:

R2018F12A318 » Kt ZERE

BENBEEEER

Reasons for

Expected time

not obtaining of obtaining

Net book certificates of certificates of

value title title

RIMLERE BRI EERES

ltem 15H BREFE HERA E

Room1-201,1-202,2-201,2- AREEIE13-1-201 - 2,820,147 In progress 2019

202,3-201,3-202, Unit 13, 13-1-202 * 13-2-201 - IETEfE A 20194
Chenxin Garden, Datong 13-2-202 - 13-3-201 -

13-3-202E
Xinyishangzhen-the office FoME —HRE KRR 17,867,185 In progress 2019
building and the factory FEHIEHR 20194
=4
(2) Disposal of Fixed Assets @ BEEREFE

2019.12.31 2018.12.31

—EB-NF —ZE-N\F

ltem T8 B +=A=+—H +=—A=+—8

Housing warehouse FEEERE 17,605,694 -

Total &5 17,605,694 -

o
w
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

b e e
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A

il

N At BEHREEERE)

10. Construction in progress 10 EEIRE

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—EB-hF —E-N\F
ltem ERE| +=B=+—-H| +ZA=+—H
Construction in progress EETRR 141,980,011 114,152,339
Engineer material TiRYE - _
Total &5 141,980,011 114,152,339

(1) Details of construction in progress (1) EBEIRHHAUT

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
ZE-AFTZAZT-H “E-\Ft-A=t-H
Carrying Net book Carrying Net book
amount  Impairment value amount  Impairment value
Item ER REHE HEREE REFE REHE RERE REEE
Shuanggiao Project gETE 50,232,653 - 50,232,653 | 50,232,653 - 50,232,658
Pingfang Project TRIR 43,853,852 - 43,853,852 | 43,758,178 - 43758178
Pingfang Refrigeratory Project ~ FRAEIRE 9,617,821 - 9617821 | 9,617,821 - 9,617,821
Logistics center transform MRPLEY 6,079,348 - 6,079,348 - - -
System Software Project ZEHMMHERTR 31,857,631 - 31,857,631 8,688,671 - 8,688,671
Airport Store-transform BBEER - - - | 1193428 - 1193428
Zhenzhi Road- change SHRR R - - - 603,156 - 603,156
Other HiEE 338,706 - 338,706 58,432 - 58,432
Total At 141,980,011 - 141,980,011 | 114,152,339 - 114,152,339
2019 5 o7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS el b

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

il

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N B BRREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. Construction in progress (Continued) 10 - ERBIREE)

(2) Changes in significant construction in progress in (2) EFEGBEIBEAXFEHER

the current year

For the year ended at 31 December 2019 201956 E
Transferred to
fixed assets,
intangible assets
Increase in the or long-term
[tem Budget amount 2019.1.1 period prepaid expenses  Other deduction 2019.12.31
E\BEEE
BN BYEER B2
HREH AL -A-H RERM REGHER EftHY  +t=A=1-H
Shuanggiao Project 108,988,036 50,232,653 - - - 50,232,653
RIR
Pingfang Project 73,655,986 43,758,178 95,674 - - 43,853,852
IRIR
Pingfang Refrigeratory Project 35,047,286 9,617,821 - - - 9,617,821
TRRETR
Airport Store-transform 1,361,640 1,193,428 168,211 1,193,428 168,211 -
BAEEY
Logistics center transform 10,789,236 - 7,422,043 1,342,695 - 6,079,348
mRFLEY
System Software Project 70,768,790 8,688,671 23,357,639 188,679 - 31,857,631
FREHIR
Others 58,453,284 661,588 22,052,444 18,410,096 3,965,230 338,706
EfpERIR
Total 359,064,258 114,152,339 53,096,011 21,134,898 4,133,441 141,980,011
At

o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 RaR I R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

Bt BEHRIEE ERE)

/
STATEMENTS (Continued)
10. Construction in progress (Continued) 10 - EEIRE(E)
(2) Changes in significant construction in progress in (2) EFGEIREAZXFEEHER
the current year (Continued) (%)
For the year ended at 31 December 2019 (Continued) 2019 E (&)
Amount i
injected as a Amount of Including: Interest
proportion of accumulated Capitalized  capitalization
budget amount  Construction capitalized  interest in the rate for the
Project name (%)  progress (%) interest period period (%) Source of funds
IBRAER HEERY Hb: AFHE RERE
BE AR BBl  IEEE%) RiteR EXLeE  BALEY%) HE%R
Shuanggiao Project 46.09 46.09 3,000,000 - - Own funds and bank loans
BT HEEEREBT-RER
Pingfang Project 59.54 59.54 425,988 - - Own funds and bank loans
IRIE BEEEREN-RER
Pingfang Refrigeratory Project 27.44 27.44 - - - Own funds and bank loans
TRREIR BEELRET-RER
Airport Store-transform 100.00 100.00 - - - Own funds and bank loans
BEEEY HEEERET-RER
Logistics center transform 68.79 68.79 - - - Own funds and bank loans
Lk REESREN-RER
System Software Project 45.28 45.28 - - - Own funds and bank loans
ZHEHTRE BEELRET-RER
Others 38.86 38.86 - - - Own funds and bank loans
EfERTR BEEEREN-RER
Total 3,425,988 -
A
2019 5 ong
ERREEREREROBRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS el b

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

il

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. Construction in progress (Continued)

(2) Changes in significant construction in progress in

the current year (Continued)

For the year ended at 31 December 2018

N BHMBERREBTEE)

10 HEEBIR(E)

(2) EELBEIBEBHAFELERER

(%)

20184 &

Transferred to
fixed assets,
intangible assets

Increase in the or long-term
[tem Budget amount 2018.1.1 period prepaid expenses  Other deduction 2018.12.31
E\EFEE
ZT-0\F BVAER E\E
RS BEH —A-H REEN REGERER Ay TZA=T-H
Shuanggiao Project (Note 1)* 108,988,036 50,232,653 - - - 50,232,653
gEIRGE)
Pingfang Project (Note 2) 73,655,986 43,547,031 211,147 - - 43,758,178
TRIE(GH)
Pingfang Refrigeratory Project 35,047,286 9,617,821 - - - 9,617,821
TRRELR
Airport Store-transform 9,672,935 - 5,165,345 2,901,822 1,070,095 1,193,428
BEERY
System Software Project 11,781,154 4,905,379 5,562,206 1,354,386 424,528 8,688,671
ZoEBnIR
Others 97,583,645 448682 8,975,861 6,816,779 1,946,176 661,588
AfpERIE
Total 336,729,042 108,751,566 19,914,559 11,072,987 3,440,799 114,152,339
At
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

RIS RaR B e

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

S

Bt BEHRIEE ERE)

/
STATEMENTS (Continued)
10. Construction in progress (Continued) 10 ERBIRE)
(2) Changes in significant construction in progress in (2) EFGEIREAZXFEEHER
the current year (Continued) (%)
For the year ended at 31 December 2018 (Continued) 2018F E (4#&)
Amount injected Amount of Including: Interest
as a proportion accumulated Capitalized capitalization
of budget Construction capitalized interest in the rate for the
Project name amount (%) progress (%) interest period period (%) Source of funds
) TREAEEE FMeasl e kEHE  AERE
EH AR £ %) THREE(%) 2iteE ARl eR Bk E2RR
Shuanggiao Project (Note 1)* 46.09 46.09 3,000,000 - - Own funds and bank loans
SRR BRASRET—RER
Pingfang Project (Note 2) 59.41 59.41 425,988 - - Own funds and bank loans
TEIE(H?) EREERBT-RER
Pingfang Refrigeratory Project 27.44 27.44 - - - Own funds and bank loans
TEREIR BEES RET—RER
Airport Store-transform 53.40 53.40 - - - Own funds and bank loans
BHERN EREERBITRER
System Software Project 88.85 88.85 - - - Own funds and bank loans
ZpEgHIR BEES RET—RIER
Others 210100 210100 135,008 - - Own funds and bank loans
EfERETE 22100 22100 BEASRET—RER
Total 3,560,996 -
fit

According to the revised budget amount for

subsequent years/periods, the project budget and

the proportions of project investments of the total

budget in respective periods were

Note 1:

restated.

The costs of Shuanggiao Project mainly consisted of

land compensation cost. Due the change in planning

policies on the requisitioned land, the Company

has not obtained the land use right certificate yet.

Pursuant to the Land Requisition and Compensation

Agreement between the Company and the People’s

Government of Guanzhuang Township, Chaoyang

District, Beijing and its supplemental agreement, the

amount prepaid to the latter shall be refunded in full

to the Company in case of any change in policies or

any other situation that may affect land requisition of

the Company. Therefore, the management believes

that there is no risk of impairment for the project.

o ZEHEABBRBERUEFESHME
BIRNEESREAENES
FHRMWER BERTREAME
TAERLLS -

ERIENBRATERTHMAE
& o REUR LS KRS
RELEBCERRA - RRFAHRK
RIS LibEAERE - RIEAAT
BIERH ARG REESARBA
AT LI R R A (8 1 3 ) I
RBENDE - WRFERRK
Bk Er e E R RHA L
pEMEER - ERTHAGRE
FEAEPARBUR S 2 W) £ 88
2HREHAATF - Bt - BEE
RRZATRETFEMERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 RaR M A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. Construction in progress (Continued)

N BHMBERREBTEE)

(2) Changes in significant construction in progress in

the current year (Continued)

For the year ended at 31 December 2018 (Continued)

Note 2: As at 31 December 2019, the costs of Pingfang

Project mainly consisted of civil engineering. The

Company was in process of obtaining the builder’s

license and predicted to start the project in 2020.

Therefore, the management believes that there is no

risk of impairment for the project.

10 HEEBIR(E)

(2) EELBEIBEBHAFELERER

(%)

2018F E (&)

2 - HE2019F12A31 B FELEN
BAFZALTETR - AQFIE
ERER GBI ABIRP - it
2020F BT - BERERBZIEAL
R FERERR

11. The right-of-use assets

Item 1HH
I. Original carrying amount —  EAERE
1.2019.1.1 15928
2. Increase in the period 2 NG INEE
Asset lease BEMAA
3. Decrease in the period 3ARFEREL
Early termination of asset lease BERMNEARLE
4.2019.12.31 4 FERENFE
II. Accumulative depreciation = BERE
1.2019.1.1 159858
2. Increase in the period 2RISR
Accrual REFTIR
3. Decrease in the period SAFERIE
Termination of asset lease BEMAKE
4.2019.12.31 4 FRERFE
IIl.Net book value = FRAEEE
1. Net book value as at 31 December 2019 1.FREMER
2. Net book value as at 1 January 2019 2EMREER

1 -EREEE
Buildings Total
EEREEY &t

1,165,139,003
167,765,301
167,765,301
20,590,238
20,590,238
1,312,314,066

178,063,257
178,063,257
3,411,478
3,411,478
174,651,779

1,137,662,287
1,165,139,003

1,165,139,003
167,765,301
167,765,301
20,590,238
20,590,238
1,312,314,066

178,063,257
178,063,257
3,411,478
3,411,478
174,651,779

1,137,662,287
1,165,139,003

Note:

The Group begins to implement the new leases guidelines
from 1 January 2019, according to the relevant provisions
of the new leasing guidelines, and lease contract signed by
the Group as a lessee, which used to calculate the right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities. In addition, the cumulative
impact amount adjustment for the first execution is the first
implementation of the retained earnings at the beginning of

the current period (1 January 2019) and other related items

in the financial statements, and the information for the

comparable period is not adjusted.

-
L
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR I

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

VI.

STATEMENTS (Continued)

12.

Intangible assets

31 December 2019

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

N At BEHREEERE)

12 »

2019%12A31H

A

il

Operation rights
of distribution
Land use rights Software network Total
Item R TibfERE Bt AERRCHE &it
| Original carrying amount - RERE
1, 2019.1.1 1. F8E 322,868,516 54,436,463 34,254,633 411,559,612
2. Increase In the period 2. REENEH - 882,005 - 882,005
(1) Purchase (1) BE - 693,326 - 693,326
(2) Transferred from the construction in process Q) ERIEEA - 188,679 - 188,679
(3) Transferred from the investment properties (3 RAKEHEEA - - - -
(4) Business mergers increase () CEAHHEN - - - -
3. Decrease in the period 3 KERDVER - - - -
4. 2019.12.31 4 EXHE 322,868,516 55,318,468 34,254,633 412,441,617
Il Accumulated amortization -2
1. 2019.1.1 1, EBE 58,773,407 23,825,078 23,324,300 105,922,785
2. Increase in the period 2. REENSE 9,045,172 4,727,374 2,998,184 16,770,730
(1) Accrual (1) 58 9,045,172 4,721,374 2,998,184 16,770,730
(2) Transferred from the investment properties ) REEEHEEN - - - -
(3) Business mergers increase (3) DEAMEN - - - -
3. Decrease in the period 3 KEROEE - - - -
4. 2019.12.31 4 ERBE 67,818,579 28,552,452 26,322,484 122,693,515
lIl. Net book value - REEE
1. Net book value as at 31 December 2019 1. EXEAEE 255,049,937 26,766,016 7,932,149 289,748,102
2. Net book value as at 1 January 2019 2. ENEEREE 264,095,109 30,611,385 10,930,333 305,636,827
2019 if& 233
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. Intangible assets

31 December 2018

[tem

I, Original carrying amount
1. 2018.1.1
2. Increase in the period
(1) Purchase
(2) Transferred from the construction in process
(3) Transferred from the investment properties
(4) Business mergers increase
3. Decrease in the period
4. 2018.12.31
II. Accumulated amortization
1. 2018.1.1
2. Increase in the period
(1) Accrual
(2) Transferred from the investment properties
(3) Business mergers increase
3. Decrease in the period
4. 2018.12.31
IIl. Net book value
1. Net book value as at 31 December 2018
2. Net book value as at 1 January 2018

RERE

1. FBE

2. REZNEE
(1) BE
0 ERIEREN
Q) FEURHEEA
4 LEAMEN

3 AEROEE

4 FRHE

BithiE

1. E5E

2. NEENER
(1) R
2 REERHEEA
8 LEAMEM

3 KBRS

4, EXBE

EHEER

1. EXEEEE
2. FNEREER

N BHMBERREBTEE)

12 »

Land use rights

R it

322,868,516

322,868,516

49,728,236
9,045,171
9,045,171

58,773,407

264,095,109
273,140,280

BILEE

2018512 A31H

Software

N

52,632,969
4,074,251
4,074,251

2,210,757
54,436,463

21,414,772
4,681,063
4,681,063

2,210,757
23,825,078

30,611,385
31,218,197

Operation rights
of distribution
network

GEE S L

34,254,633

34,254,633

20,443,300
2,881,000
2,881,000

23,324,300

10,930,333
13,811,333

Total
4t

409,756,118
4,074,251
4,074,251

2,210,757
411,559,612

91,586,308
16,607,234
16,607,234

2,210,757
105,922,785

305,636,827
318,169,810
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

13. Goodwill

Original book value of goodwill

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

Bt BEHRIEE ERE)

S

/

A

b e e

il

13 - HE

BERERE

Increased in this period Decreased in this period
REEm KEED
Formed by
business
2019.1.1 combination Other Disposal Other  2019.12.31
Name of the investee or BREEUEH RS
item resulting in goodwill FWREENSEE ENHE b2z Aty RE Hfh  EREE
Acquisition of Shouchao Group e REE 86,673,788 - - - - 86,673,788
At 86,673,788 - - - - 86,673,788

On 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the balance
was the goodwill arising from the acquisition of Shoulian
Supermarket and its subsidiaries (“Shouchao Group”) as well
as Beijing Jingchao Commercial Company Limited (Hereinafter

referred to as “Jingchao”).

The impairment tests of goodwill acquired through the
purchase of Shouchao Group and Jingchao were conducted
on the group of assets in relation to the retailing business
segment of the Shouchao Group after consolidation of

Jingchao.

The recoverable amount of the group of assets had been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-
year period approved by senior management. The discount
rate applied to calculate the present value of a future stream
of cash flows was 11% (2018: 11%). The growth rate used
to extrapolate the cash flows of the subsidiary beyond the

five-year period was 3% (2018: 3%).

72019412 431 H % 20184 12 A 31
B ZBEsKRBERED LA TR
(ATHEHEAIEREE]) KL R R EH
XAERAB(ATEREAI REBEEN

B -

AEBNREEBEE R NBREHNEE
NEaHRBRNEBRETETERH
HEMNEEFR—HEEAAETRE
AE - ZEEABNTEDH -

%A EEAE A AT U B < RE AR R EL B ET R 2R
RenenRERTE  BEREEEELE
MSFEMMBEEER FNReRE
TRIRMEE - StEHEFAKRRES TR
WEMBOFEERZ11% (20184 :
11%) ' 5FUAEMNRSHEMNLRER
3%(2018%F : 3%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R P o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

1:||||/

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N B BRREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

13. Gooduwill (Continued) 13 -H8B(#A)
As at 31 December 2019, and 31 December 2018, HEEBEEN2019F12A31H K
certain key assumptions are taken into consideration of 2018F 12 A1 AMTE A KB 2R E
the calculation of the present value of the cash flow of WMERATARRE - LTt TER
Shouchao Group. Below are the key assumptions made [EREITRENRENR - LT E
by the management in forecasting the present value of a RIRIB e M BIRERIELAOBRRMERR

future stream of cash flows to conduct impairment tests of

goodwill.

Expected gross profit- The estimation of gross profit is EEEMN-REEMREBEFEA —
based on the average gross profit realized in previous year, FERNFHEMERERE L - RIETET
and then appropriately increased according to the increase MEMRS LB TSRABEREEE
of expected efficiency and market expansion. 2 FHERE -

Discount rate- Using the discount rate before tax which WRE-HANTAERERREBER
reflects Shouchao Group’s specific risks. FEREAFAITRE -

%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

14. Long-term prepaid expenses

b e e

A

il

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

14 - REFEER

X AGIIBREEE RS

/

For the year ended at 31 December 2019 201956 E
Increase in  Amortization in Other
Item 2019.1.1 the period the period deduction 2019.12.31 Reason for other deduction
ZB-NF Zg8-0E

R -A-H AEEN AEEEY HtEY TZB=t-B HtESRR
Transferred from construction in progress to 381,346,700 26,508,017 76,004,182 497,065 331,353,470 -

leasehold improvements
TR EFEERTE
Total 381,346,700 26,508,017 76,004,182 497,065 331,353,470
it
For the year ended at 31 December 2018 20185 %

Increase in -~ Amortization in Other
Item 2018.1.1 the period the period deduction 2018.12.31 Reason for other deduction
ZZ-)\E ZI-)\f

L] —-A-H REEN KREERE HtEY  TZRAET-B EMESRR
Transferred from construction in progress to 446,635,695 28,268,155 83,864,157 9,692,993 381,346,700 Transferred to current assets

leasenold improvements EERgAE
TR EREESRTE
Rent 19,244,792 - 443,571 59,941 18,741,280 —
b
Total 465,880,487 28,268,155 84,307,728 9,752,934 400,087,980
At

2019 F#f '
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS el b

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 2019 &

il

All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

15. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities

(1) Deferred tax assets without offset

N BHMBERREBTEE)

15 ELEFBHEE BERESHAR

(1) FRAELHERELPSHEE R

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
ZE-AEtZA=t-H ZZ-\E+ZA=1-H
Deductible Deductible
temporary Deferred temporary Deferred
differences tax assets differences tax asset
Item EH ENEHEER EEFEHEE | UHENEREEZR BRFMEHEE
Deductible losses MEANEE 17,342,770 4,335,692 53,139,085 13,284,771
Taxable government grants FENT BT 35,683,351 8,920,838 43,781,259 10,945,315
Unrealized profits from internal  AEIZ SAEBFE
transactions 2,468,310 617,078 - -
Total =H 55,494,431 13,873,608 96,920,344 24,230,086
(2) Deferred tax liabilities without offset (2) R HIELFSHE BB
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
ZE-NE+TZA=t-H ZZ-N\E+ZR=t-H
Taxable Taxable
temporary Deferred tax temporary Deferred tax
differences liabilities differences liabilities
Ens 413 e B
ltem JEH HRHER FiEhas BRiEER FriEiak
Fair value adjustment of assets arising ~ JESHIEBETRBABEL A
from non-monetary asset exchange BERE 11,472,952 2,868,238 12,539,390 3,134,848
Changes in fair value of financial assets WAL EEFE EEEF:HAEH
at fair value through profit or loss BaNeREAENLABEED 30,602,786 7,650,697 2,913,646 728,411
Capitalized interest adjustment of ERBRTEERER
borrowing costs 1,925,761 481,440 3,475,782 868,946
Difference between the fair value and the GfiE7 A RIS EE(ER
carrying amount of subsidiary merger AR EEZE
and acquisition 1,968,280 492,070 2,740,842 685,210
Total At 45,969,779 11,492,445 21,669,660 5,417,415

i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI.

RS e b

1:||||/

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EHUBBRREEERE)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

15. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

(3) Net deferred tax assets or liabilities with offset

15 EEFREHREE BEREHARE)

(3) KEHEFHESTHELFEHE

ERAE

Amount after

Amount after  Offset amount offset of

Offset amount offset of of deferred deferred tax

of deferred deferred tax tax assets and assets and

tax assets and assets and deferred tax deferred tax

deferred tax deferred tax liabilities in the liabilities in the

liabilities at the liabilities at the beginning of beginning of

end of year end of year year year

BEMSEH HHBRBT BEFRSEH EKHBEL

EENEE FEHEED EENEE FEREEDR

ltem HH FREHSE SREAHE FUEEEE AEFUH%HE

Deferred tax assets ELF& SHEE 3,349,678 10,523,930 4,003,793 20,226,293

Deferred tax liabilities BEFEHEE 3,349,678 8,142,767 4,008,793 1,413,622

(4) Details of unrecognized deferred tax assets (4) KREZBELFTSHEEFH

2019.12.31 2018.12.31

—E-NF —T-)N\F

ltem 5B +=Z—B=+—-H8| +t=ZA=+—H

Deductible temporary differences AT IEE R 31,810,512 18,582,789

Deductible losses AT HE A 369,452,236 283,650,363

Total A&t 401,262,748 302,233,153
In the view of the management of the Group, deferred SEEERERR/ARKTE EE
tax assets are not recognized since it is not probable A RN Lt A RN ES B AN A 3R

that taxable profit will be available against which the

deductible temporary differences or deductible losses

can be utilized.

HEREZEENEATAGE -
R REER LA LB B MRS
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VL.
STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

15. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

(5) Deductible losses of unrecognized deferred tax

N BHMBERREBTEE)

15 EEFEHERE ELFS

SHEE#E)

(5) KR35 B A o 1 A

assets will expire in the following years BERUTEEDH
2019.12.31 201 8.12.31
—ZE-hF —Z—N
Year F1p +ZA=Z+—-H | tZH=+—H
2019.12.31 2019.12.31 - 23,531,996
2020.12.31 2020.12.31 39,299,786 39,299,786
2021.12.31 2021.12.31 70,528,769 70,528,769
2022.12.31 2022.12.31 69,530,693 69,530,693
2023.12.31 2023.12.31 80,759,119 80,759,119
2024.12.31 2024.12.31 109,333,869 -
Total At 369,452,236 283,650,363
16. Details of provision for asset impairment 16 ~ EEREEEHMA
For the year ended at 31 December 2019 20195 &
Decrease in the year
Y
Increase in
2019.1.1 the year  Reversal Written-off 2019.12.31
“E-hE “E-hF
Item 5H —-A—H AREZM o B +t=-A=t-H
Credit loss allowance ERELRAE 17,394,789 13,505,044 5,262,465 99,756 25,537,612
Impairment of financial assets WARBEFEBEZETAE
measured at fair value and its HERSREERBER
changes are included in the
current profit and loss 1,188,000 - - 1,188,000 -
Total At 18,582,789 13,505,044 5,262,465 1,287,756 25,537,612
For the year ended at 31 December 2018 20185 E
Decrease in the year
e
Increase in
2018.1.1 the year  Reversal  Written-off 2018.12.31
—E-)N\F —E-)N\F
ltem g —A—H ARELN & B T-A=t—H
Credit loss allowance 1 RIBKER 10,558,445 6,923,687 87,343 - 17,394,789
Impairment of financial assets NAREBEEBEEHHFAE
measured at fair value and its HERCHEERNEELR
changes are included in the
current profit and loss 1,188,000 - - - 1,188,000
Total At 11,746,445 6,923,687 87,343 - 18,582,789
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VI.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

17. Other non-current assets

RS e b

1:||||/

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

N At BEHREEERE)

17 - HfERBEE

18.

2019.12.31 2018.12.31

—EB-hF —T—)\F
ltem ERE| +=B=+—-H| +ZA=+—H
Long-term receivables due from HEBEBNRAAEYR(E)

Shoulian Group (Note 1) 135,600,000 135,600,000
Security deposit HERES 60,771,486 36,861,502
Prepaid construction fees FE TR 423,404 50,000
Total &5t 196,794,890 172,511,502
Note 1: As at 31 December 2019, such long-term receivables 10 201912 A318 « sz S RAIE WK

consist of borrowings lent by Shoulian Supermarket to

Shoulian Group due on 31 December 2022 as agreed

upon. The long-term receivables bear interest at 4.35% per

annum. Meanwhile certain buildings and land use rights

of Shoulian Group with a total fair value not less than the

balance of the long-term receivables have been pledged

for these long-term receivables in favor of Shoulian

Supermarket.

Short-term borrowings

[tem

Accounts receivable secured loan (Note 1) fEUERE
Guaranteed loan (Note 2)
Unsecured loan (Note 3)

REBETHEMEERENERIF
1ﬁ ' %ﬁﬁ’ﬁ%?ﬂm%zozzimﬂm
= B WIRF F % 4.35%51
B A ZERBFUARALEEBT
ERZERBTHRENEHERRER
TR R ER o

18  EHER

Total

EH

JARIE A (GET)
1% 1 W\(?Z)
EAER(GES)
ast

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—EB-NF A
t=A=+—-R| t=A=+—H
48,566,497 155,555,585
1,833,436,999 |  1,719,593,884
350,000,000 882,500,000
2,232,003,496 |  2,757,649,469

As at 31 December 2019, and 31 December 2018,

the short-term borrowings above bore annual interest

rates ranging from 3.90% t05.39% and 4.35% t05.99%

respectively without any due but unsettled ones.

72019412 431 H % 20184 12 A 31
B FlEHERNENES B A
3.90% %5.39% &% 4.35% %5.99% * B
A FEBRIH M AR EREOER o

i
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
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VI.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

18. Short-term borrowings (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

As at 31 December 2019, such short-term loan was
obtained by several accounts receivable factoring of the
Company totaling to RMB280,963,340 (31 December
2018: RMB407,663,837), and details were referred to Note
(V1) 2.

As at 31 December 2019, among such short-term
bank loans, RMB626,952,296 was borrowed by the
Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Trading upon a surety
provided by the Company; RMB50,000,000 was borrowed
by the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Trading upon
a surety provided by a subsidiary of Chaopi Trading;
RMB40,900,000 was borrowed by a subsidiary of Chaopi
Trading upon a surety provided by the Company; and
RMB815,584,703 was borrowed by a subsidiary of Chaopi
Trading upon a surety provided by Chaopi Trading;
RMB300,000,000 was borrowed by the Company upon a
surety provided by Chaopi Trading.

As at 31 December 2018, among such short-term bank
loans, RMB413,693,884 was borrowed by the Company’s
subsidiary Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by the
Company; RMB74,900,000 was borrowed by a subsidiary
of Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by the Company;
and RMB681,000,000 was borrowed by a subsidiary of
Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by Chaopi Trading;
RMB550,000,000 was borrowed by the Company upon a
surety provided by Chaopi Trading.
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TS EEER
RN E B A T AR 280,963,340
(2018 F12 A31 H: AR ¥
407,663,837 7C) )% T W R B 1B
RELZHES  25Ma7x 20

M2019F12A31 8 + ZERHERH
B ARM626,952,206 T BA QA Z T
RAAPFENER - AADARE
RBER - AR 50,000,000 A&
RAIZFARIBAMEENER - AH
HEE 2 FRARERERLR : ARE
40,900,0007T 25 B 2 F A FHE
o BARAAHREREER AR
815,584,703 T AFHL B 2 F A B
B RPEEBERMRELER AR
#300,000,0007C A4 A A HIER - B
BB IRMRBIER o

201812 A31H « ZERBERF
B AR®413,693,884 L AR RRZ T
DA ENER - AARFHRER
FIER + ARMT74,900,0007T AFHLR
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

18. Short-term borrowings (Continued)

Note 3: As at 31 December 2019, the credit loans included

RMB50,000,000, RMB150,000,000 and RMB150,000,000
respectively granted by Mizuho Bank (China), Ltd.
Beijing Branch and Industrial, Commercial Bank of China
Co., Ltd Beijing Chaoyang Sub-branch and Bank of
Communications Co., Ltd. Sanyuan Bridge Branch on an

unsecured basis.

As at 31 December 2018, the credit loans included
RMB50,000,000, RMB300,000,000 and RMB300,000,000
respectively granted by Mizuho Bank (China), Ltd. Beijing
Branch and Industrial, Commercial Bank of China Co., Ltd
Beijing Chaoyang Sub-branch and Bank of Communications
Co., Ltd. Sanyuan Bridge Branch on an unsecured
basis; the credit loans included RMB110,000,000, and
RMB100,000,000 respectively granted by China Everbright
Bank Co., Ltd. Fucheng Road Sub-branch and Baoshang
Bank Co., Ltd. Beijing Branch on an unsecured basis.
The credit loans included RMB22,500,000 borrowed by
the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Trading that granted
by HSBC Bank (China) Co., Ltd. Beijing Branch on an

unsecured basis.

N At BEHREEERE)

18 ~ EHIfER (&

#3 1 R2019F12A31H « EHRER+T AR
MRIT(RE)ARARLERDIT - A
Bl TR iR1TAR D AR A Al mREAS 21T
KRB BETRHER AR =T
TRADR D BIE R G BERAREE
50,000,0007¢ + A R#150,000,0007C
K AR#150,000,0007T © BARFZE
fERARNEEEFIREER -

2018 12A318 © ERERB AR
BIRIT(PE)ARAFRILRDIT -
Bl T iR1TIR D AR A AL RS 1T
EHABEZBRITROHER AT =THX
TRARRRSDBIERNERERAR
#50,000,0007C + A R#300,000,000
7. & AR #300,000,0007T - B R # %
FEAMAEBRERKRBHIER: AR
Bl RERITR D B R R B RIS 7T
RO ERITRHNERR R RDTTA
ARRRZFRARHAMEE DRI R
R EE R AR 110,000,000 + AR
#100,000,0007T + BARFEZEERRA
REBEZFRUER - AELHET(R
BED)BERAFIERSITREALEE 2 F
N EVEH R B ER AR 22,500,000
T BARZSERAAEEZRIRMH
R o
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

19. Notes payable 19 - B EE

N BHMBERREBTEE)

2019.12.31 2018.12.31

. —E-NF —E-N\F

Category 15 +=ZA=+—H +=-—A=+—H
Bank acceptances SRITEGES 433,117,591 631,264,431
Total o1 433,117,591 631,264,431

As at 31 December 2019, security deposit for the issuance
of bank acceptances above amounted to RMB84,571,190 (31
December 2018: RMB132,682,283).

MN2019F12A31 8 » AR A FutiR
THREEZNRE
84,571,19070(2018F 12 A31H : AR

EFERBARE

#132,682,2837T) ©

All of the bank acceptances of the Group will be due within
one year.

28 -

20. Accounts payable =
unts pay 20 - E{H IR

(1) R

(1) Accounts payable are listed below according to the

nature of the amount:

AEEWRITEALEROHMIFZA

RHRAMEESRAT

2019.12.31 2018.12.31

—E-NE —T-N\F
ltem 15 5 +=—A=+—8 +—A=+—H
Purchase FEE 907,047,722 1,001,433,347
Total S 907,047,722 1,001,433,347

(2) The aging of accounts payable is as follows: (2) FEFERFERRET :

2019.12.31 2018.12.31

—E-hF —T-N\F
ltem 1HH +=A=+—H +=A=+—H
Within 1 year 1FEAR 877,018,680 985,132,303
1-2 years 1&:24F 19,551,627 7,094,374
2-3 years 2E3F 2,339,944 2,479,769
Over 3 years 3FEM F 8,137,471 6,726,901
Total A&t 907,047,722 1,001,433,347
The majority of accounts payable aging over one year RERBR1IFNENERTERE
consist of the final payments for suppliers. EEENERER °
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

21.

22.

Contract Liability

A

b e e

il

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

N At BEHREEERE)

21 - EREEE

Details of Contract liability AEABERL
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—E-NHF —E-)N\F
ltem 1HH +=ZA=+—H | +TZHA=+—H
Procurements received in advance FERER 428,557,184 371,087,396
Total &5t 428,557,184 371,087,396
Payroll payable 22 - [T T3
(1) Details of payroll payable (1) FEBIHMT
For the year ended at 31 December 2019 201956 E
Increase in Decrease in
2019.11 the period the period 2019.12.31
ZE-NE “E-NE
Item EH -A—H AEEM KEHD +ZA=t-H
1. Short-term remuneration 1 BEE 1,741,169 677,515,884 677,522,023 1,735,030
2. Post-employment benefits-defined 2 ~ BEB /4127 — Rz 12775t &
contribution plans (Note 1) (5%1) - 69,710,878 69,710,878 -
3. Dismissal compensation 3 BHEREA - 3,330,574 3,330,574 -
4. Other welfare due within one year 4 ~ —EREZ|EEE &7 - - - -
Total A3t 1,741,169 750,557,336 750,563,475 1,735,030
For the year ended at 31 December 2018 2018F &
Increase in Decrease in
2018.1.1 the period the period 2018.12.31
—E-N\F —E)N\E
ltem J5H —A—H ARELE KERY +ZA=t-8H
1. Short-term remuneration 1 EEE 1,605,114 674,988,705 674,852,650 1,741,169
2. Post-employment benefits-defined 2 - B2 187 — iz 12z a2l
contribution plans (Note 1) (71) 44,009 73,000,134 73,044,143 -
3. Dismissal compensation 3 BLURAEF - 956,676 956,676 -
4. Other welfare due within one year 4 « —ERXE|HE H g - - - -
Total & 1,649,123 748,945,515 748,853,469 1,741,169
»
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

22. Payroll payable (Continued)

(2) Short-term remuneration

N BHMBERREBTEE)

22 - FEfTEE THEN(42)

(2) EEFMH T

For the year ended at 31 December 2019 201956 E
Increase in  Decrease in
2019.1.1 the period the period 2019.12.31
ZB-hE ZE-nE
ltem EH -A-H KEEM XEHY TZRA=t-H
1) Wages or salaries, bonus, alowance, — - I8 - #% - 2HMEL
subsidies - 558,492,391 558,492,391 -
2) Staff welfare - H%’&IE%IJE - 21,340,618 21,340,618 -
3) Social security = He2RR - 49,074,508 49,074,508 -
Including: Medical insurance He: EF REE - 43903,963 43,903,963 -
Work injury insurance If%{%ﬁﬁ% - 1,662,634 1,662,634 -
Maternity insurance EERBRE - 3,507,911 3,507,911 -
4) Housing funds m - FE1ESR - 35,568,999 35,568,999 -
5) Labor union expenses and T IeRBANBIHELE
employees’ education expenses 1,741,169 13,039,368 13,045,507 1,735,030
Total At 1,741,169 677,515,884 677,522,023 1,735,030
For the year ended at 31 December 2018 20185 /2
Increase in -~ Decrease in
2018.1.1 the period the period 2018.12.31
—E-N\E —T-N\E
ltem BH —R—A REHEM AERY +ZA=t-8
1) Wages or salaries, bonus, alowance, — » T& - #4  2BiAIEE
subsidies - 555,502,880 555,502,880 -
2) Staff welfare - %%IE%UE - 24,448,594 24,448,594 -
3) Social security = HERKRE - 48,014,197 48,014,197 -
Including: Medical insurance Hib: BERRE - 42,799,585 42,799,585 -
Work injury insurance IERRE - 1,793,537 1,793,537 -
Maternity insurance EERRE - 3,421,075 3,421,075 -
4) Housing funds M- FEAEE - 33,826,319 33,826,319 -
5) Labor union expenses and 1 IERENRIHELE
employees’ education expenses 1,605,114 13,196,715 13,060,660 1,741,169
Total At 1,605,114 674,988,705 674,852,650 1,741,169

i
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

22. Payroll payable (Continued)

(3) Details of defined contribution plan

N A BHREEERE)

22 - ENTEE TN (42)

(3) REEF:BZT

A

il

For the year ended at 31 December 2019 201956 &
Increase in  Decrease in
2019.1.1 the period the period 2019.12.31
—E-hE “E-hE
Item EH -A—H REEM AEHY +=A=t-H
1) Basic retirement insurance 1 EARERR - 66,757,466 66,757,466 -
2) Unemployment insurance 2 KERRE - 2953412 2,953,412 -
3) Annuity 3 EFEEE - - - -
Total At - 69,710,878 69,710,878 -
For the year ended at 31 December 2018 20185
Increase in - Decrease in
2018.1.1 the period the period 2018.12.31
—F-N\F —E-N\fF
ltem JEH —R—H REE AERDP +ZA=+—H
1) Basic retirement insurance 1 BAEERR 44009 70,101,635 70,145,644 -
2) Unemployment insurance 2 RERBE - 2898499 2,898,499 -
3) Annuity 3 EEEHE - - - -
Total Azt 44,009 73,000,134 73,044,143 -
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

22. Payroll payable (Continued)

(3) Details

Note 1:

%
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of defined contribution plan (Continued)

The Group participated in social security contributions
and the unemployment insurance plan established
by government institutions as required. According to
such plan, the Group contributes 20%,1% monthly
to such plans based on the employee’s basic salary
each month. Besides above monthly contributions,
the Group will not take responsibility for further
liabilities. Corresponding payment occurred shall be
accrued in current period profit or loss or related

assets cost.

In the current year, the Group should contribute
RMB66,757,466 and RMB2,953,412 (2018:
RMB70,101,635 and RMB2,898,499) to social
security contributions and the unemployment
insurance plan accordingly. As at 31 December 2019
and 2018, there is no unsettled retirement insurance
and the unemployment insurance in the accounting

period.

N BHMBERREBTEE)

22 - EBE T3 BN (42)

3

RERTFBIST (&)

=

D AR EIR AR E 200 i BUF R

U HEZRR - KERBRETE -
REZSTE - AEEHRIKRE
IEAIEM20% 1% FAM
EENEHFER KR ENEA
BEEBRI  KEBTHAEE
—HRNEB o RN R
R AR PIBE A EER
PRAR o

REBAFED F MEEZR
B RERBABMTER
A R % 66,757,466 70 & A K
# 2,953,412 7T(2018 F: A
R ¥ 701016357t X A R
2,898,4997T) ° 12019412 A31
H 7R 5 8 e 70 3R 5 BT B B ifn
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Bt BEHRIEE ERE)

23. Taxes payable 23 - EXHE
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—E-hF —E-N\F
ltem 1HE +=ZA=+—H | TZHA=+—H
Value-added tax ER 79,927,439 59,895,283
Corporate income tax TERRBR 18,855,004 27,579,073
Personal income tax BAFTSH 915,905 306,106
City construction and maintenance tax T R AR 1,060,573 812,739
Education surcharge HE BN 457,032 355,419
Stamp duty ENIERR 289,839 132,256
Local education surcharge 7 20E BTN 305,643 63,828
Consumption tax HBR 80,158 142,532
Other HAth 29,339 873,229
Total &5 101,920,932 90,160,465
Other payables 24 - H AR
(1) Presentation of other payables by the nature of (1) EFEEEIT
accounts
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—EB-NF —E-N\F
ltem 1HH +=ZA=+—H| +TZHA=+—H
Other payables E R 256,063,900 225,876,605
Interest payables FERTAILE 2,859,433 3,939,352
Dividend payables JE AT AR ) 5,251,507 4,576,656
Total &5 264,174,840 234,392,613

(2) Details of other payables

Presentation of other payables by nature of accounts

(2) EftEMKER

AR E DR E AR R 5K

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—Z2-hE —E-N\F
ltem 1HH +=RA=+—H +=—A=+—H
Construction fees payable FEN TR 45,296,344 64,361,389
Deposit e 64,445,135 66,557,134
Rent received in advance W EE 8,743,295 19,502,772
Others Hith 137,579,126 75,455,310
Total &5t 256,063,900 225,876,605
2019 @%ﬁ 249

ErrREEREEERNARA



L W

v |

RIS B et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 2019 &

v . re

[ e ' 8

All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

24. Other payables (Continued)

(3) Details of interest payables

kY
VAN

24 - HERRE)

(3 ENFEER

Y i \aills

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BHMBHRREAEBTEE)

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—B—h¥F —z2— N\
ltem 1HH +=—HA=+—H +=-A=+—8H
Short-term debts interest payables e HE SRR AR 2,859,433 3,939,352
Total A&t 2,859,433 3,939,352

(4) Details of dividend payables (4) ENRFIEXR
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—E-NF AN S
ltem 18 B +tZA=+—-H | +tZH=+—H

Ordinary shares dividend LR (RER)
(domestic-owned shares) - 1,134,156
Other minority shareholders’ dividend H it D B AL F 5,251,507 3,442,500
Total &t 5,251,507 4,576,656
25. Non-current liabilities due within one year 25 - —FREHNFERBEE

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
=F-NEF A
ltem ERE +ZA=+—-H | +tZHA=+—H
Leases liability due within one year 1FERNIENEEEE 196,274,668 -
Total &zt 196,274,668 -

%
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VI.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

A

il

N At BEHREEERE)

26. Other current liabilities 26 ~ HitREBEE
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—EB-hF —T—N\F
ltem HE +=ZA=+—-RB| +=-—A=+—8H
Short- term financing bond (Note 1) EHEmESGGE) 300,000,000 300,000,000
Payable return FEIEER 11,654,063 19,594,656
Accrued expenses TEIRE A 16,866,558 28,368,199
Total A&t 328,520,621 347,962,855
Accrued expenses A&
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—E-NF —T)\F
ltem HE +=ZA=+—-R8| +t=ZA=+—H
Accrued interest expenses TEIRA B & 9,165,000 3,823,750
Accrued rent expenses ERREH 34,268 15,571,837
Accrued audit expenses TEIRERT & 1,341,455 1,226,415
Others Eith 6,325,835 7,746,197
Total = 16,866,558 28,368,199
Note 1: On 21 March 2019, the Group completed the issuance 1 EHRBERITETISR SEBE (P TR
of corporate bonds with a value of RMB300 million and JE[2018]CP1535% ) #L /& + 7201943
a term of one year in China, which approved by the A218 - AEBZTKEFEIEA R
China Association of Banking Market Dealers (CPI No. BITARMSET - BIRA1FHEEH
[2018] CP153). The issuance rate of the corporate bonds BhE % - BITHIE3.90% - EEHEE
was3.90% and the lead underwriter was Bank of Beijing RIAIERBITRDBR AT ©
Co., Ltd.
27. Bonds payable 27 - E{HES
(1) Bonds payable (1) FEffE#S
2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—Z2-hE AN
ltem HE +=ZA=+—-HB| +=—A=+—H
Corporate bonds NElEH
(2019.8.26-2024.8.25) (2019.8.26-2024.8.25) 402,326,607 -
Total &5t 402,326,607 -
2019 if& 251;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN

pvE e

il

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 2019 &

All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

27. Bonds payable (Continued)

(2) Changes in the bonds payable

N BHMBERREBTEE)

27 ~ B EH (&)
(2) [EfHERAEHEE

Term of Issue in

Bonds Par value Issue date the bond Issue amount 2018.1.1 the period
“Z-N\F
EHAE EfE TR BEHHR BIEH —A—H RHRT
Corporate bonds 400,000,000 2019.8.23 5 years 400,000,000 - 400,000,000
RAE 5%
Total 400,000,000 400,000,000 - 400,000,000
At
Accrued interest Bond discount/
Bonds for the period ~ premium amortization  Paid during the period 2019.12.31
“E-RF

EHEHE REEEANE SRR AHEE +=ZA=+-H
Corporate bonds 5,288,329 2,326,607 - 402,326,607
REME
Total 5,288,329 2,326,607 - 402,326,607
At

Pursuant to the “Approval on Issuance of Corporate

Bonds of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited” (Zheng
Jian Xu Ke [2019] No. 303) issued by the CSRC, on

26 August 2019, the Company issued the corporate

bonds aggregated to RMB400,000,000 with a term

of maturity of 5 years. The corporate bonds were

jointly secured by Beijing Chaoyang District National

Capital Operating Management Center, a state-owned

enterprise, bearing coupon rate at 3.77% per annum.

The issuance expenses of RMB3,150,943 had been

included in bonds payable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

28. Lease liability

29.

b e e

il

A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

N At BEHREEERE)

28 -HEEE

Increase in the period
Em
Interest in this Decrease in
2019.1.1 New lease year Other the period 2019.12.31

Item L EN6RE MEHE KERIE Efty rEHYD EXRGE
Assets leased BEAA 1,172,540,595 174,525,440 54,613,272 - 207975882 1,173,703,425
Less: Lease liabilties due B —ERIBNEEAE

within one year 194,598,375 - - 196,274,668 194,598,375 196,274,668
Total At 977,942,220 174,525,440 54,613,272 (196,274,668) 33,377,507 977,428,757
Note: For details of the changes to the implementation of the new ORI MERENE AT RN

lease guideline, see Note VI. 11 The right-of-use assets. N VERERE

Government grants 29 - BN #BY
Details of government grants BB ELER

Amount included
in current profit

Classification Amount Presentation project and loss
EE o H$REE STAEHBRENSE
Government reserve cost subsidy 783,000 Other income 783,000
T R E AL Hib e
Ease the employment pressure 3,569,376 Other income 3,569,376
kil Hob e
Government grants related to assets 9,197,474 Other income 9,197,474
are amortized this year
B 72 A I ) BT 458 B AR SR 8 HAb Wz
Other 4,745,161 Other income 4,745,161
H A 78 A &
Safety production environment 5,750,000 Non-operating income 5,750,000
upgrade subsidy
e EEIRIE AL EEEINIA
Total 24,045,011 24,045,011
Ait
2019 if& 253
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS el b

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

il

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N B BRREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

30. Deferred income 30 B
Increase in  Decrease in
2019.1.1 the period the period 2019.12.31 Reasons
—E-NEF ZE-NE
Item HE —A—-H A rERY +ZA=t+-H ERRE
Government grants BT 6 Bh 43,314,592 1,832,900 9,197,474 35,950,018 —
Total Bt 43,314,592 1,832,900 9,197,474 35,950,018 —
Including, the project related to Government grants: Heh - B RBITRBIRIER -
Included
Increase in  non-operating Included other Related to assets/
2019.1.1 the period income income  Other changes 2019.12.31  income
Item REHE  AEGAER REGA
BEER EN5E BHLE  MRASE EfthEeE 25 FABE HEE/WEAE
Agricutural Super Matchmaking Pilot 4,631,699 - - 1,050,066 - 3,581,633 Related to assets
Project
ERNEHZEE  HEDHRRRIE HEEND
REERITRY
Central Finance promotes the 3,896,205 - - 840,706 - 3,004,499 Related to assets
development of special funds for the
service industry (2016.01-2023.12)
hANDRERBSRRERES HEERD
(2015.01-2023.12)
Logistics standardization pilot project 3,681,832 - - 913,961 - 2,667,871 Related to assets
in 2015
01 FRE BB IR E HEEND
Chaoyang District Finance Bureau life 3,580,047 - - 421,182 - 3,158,865  Related to assets
service industry development guidance
funds
HEEHBREERE$ERIEES HAERE
Logistics standardization pilot project in 3,206,161 - - 398,797 - 2,807,364  Related to assets
2017
DTFREIBFHBIREEL
Other 24,419,648 1,832,900 - 5,572,762 - 20,679,786 Related to assets
A HATRY HAERH
Total 43,314,592 1,832,900 - 9,197,474 - 35,950,018
it

%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

30. Deferred income (Continued)

Government grants include:

(1)

Deferred income was the government grants totaling
RMB4,000,000 received in 2005 from Beijing
Municipal Development and Reform Commission and
Beijing Chaoyang District Finance Bureau to support
the construction of fresh distribution center, fresh
procurement center and distribution center logistics
system. The deferred income was recognized upon
receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile the
deferred assets were divided by ratio of the initial
entry value of assets, and deferred income would be
amortized in the estimated useful life (15 years) of
the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2014, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB14,186,700 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance Bureau
as a special funding for agriculture-supermarket
jointing program. The deferred income was recognized
upon receipt of the financial allocations. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by ratio of the initial entry value of assets, and deferred
income would be amortized in the estimated useful
life (11 and 5 years) of the related assets, recorded in
the profit and loss in current period and subsequent

related periods.

RS e b

1:||||/

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

N At BEHREEERE)

30 ~EFE W ()
B B B4

(1)

XA B 2005 4 U B 3k BT 3%
RN EZEGRIERTHEGRERE
B BB R AT AR #654,000,000
TR A5 1 HE B A B RX R
O EEREBR O REXF L
MRASFREREBEENEER
& o AN B 71 U B 3% B BUB R
BRECE K - BREEABRE
EMEGFERASmIsFRTH
B BHESEAEHRNES
PRI -

ARBR2014FE W B mH i
BZEg  tRmHBEBERL
T AR#14,186,7007 AR R B Y
BERNRSEAMNEEES o K
55 B2 Uk B 5% B B R R SR

Wik - RBEIEEBEENTE
EASMIIFEREFRITHY - #
WEE AR BRAE A BERIE

.
£ o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R P o

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

VI.

1:||||/

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

30. Deferred income (Continued)

®)

In 2014, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB8,820,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance Bureau
and as a special funding for service development
program. The deferred income was recognized upon
receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile the
deferred assets were divided by ratio of the initial
entry value of assets, and deferred income would be
amortized in the estimated useful life (11 and 5 years)
of the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2014, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB3,000,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce as a special funding for
renovation of energy-saving lamps. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by ratio of the initial entry value of assets, and deferred
income would be amortized in the estimated useful life (5
years) of the related assets, recorded in the profit and

loss in current period and subsequent related periods.
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N BHMBERREBTEE)

30 ~ AEFE W ()

©)

RARR2014F WL RT
BZEE - RmMEBERHL
5T AR #8,820,0007T AR 2 i iR
BEZREANZEEES - A&
B 1E Uk B 57 B IR 9B R R R SRR

Wi - RBEBEBBEEENE
FEASMIIFEREFRITHY - &
BEET AR BRI EEEERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

30. Deferred income (Continued)

©)

In 2014, Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company,
received government grants totaling RMB5,000,000
from Beijing Municipal Commission of Commerce as a
special funding for group building sorting equipment.
The deferred income was recognized upon receipt of
the financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (10 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.

In 2015, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB8,310,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce as a special funding
for logistics standardization project. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by ratio of the initial entry value of assets, and deferred
income would be amortized in the estimated useful
life (10 and 5 years) of the related assets, recorded in
the profit and loss in current period and subsequent

related periods.

RS e b

1:||||/

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

N At BEHREEERE)

30 ~EFE W ()

)

RRARZFRBHIEER2014
FEKIERTEBZEGRK
#£ 5 A R ¥ 5,000,000 7T AR &
BEXERDRO I BEOHEIE
E® o NEBE LD Z I B
FERERIEE M 25 - 1R IR S TH A A
EEMBEMEREm10FETE
B BHSEAEHRNES
PRI -

ANAAR2015F E W E 4L R
MEBEZEGRARFARKE
8,310,000 7T A I XX # ¥ ik 12 %
THRBEANEEES - A5&E
TE U B % B IBH R T SRR A R
W RBEHEBBAEENTEE
FRSG10F RoFEITHE - B
SHT AL R AR EEBMHIE

9
£ o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

VI.

1:||||/

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

30. Deferred income (Continued)

7

In 2015, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB5,865,700 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance Bureau
and as a special funding for upgrading business
facilities program. The deferred income was recognized
upon receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile
the deferred assets were divided by ratio of the initial
entry value of assets, and deferred income would
be amortized in the estimated useful life (5 years) of
the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2015, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB2,080,000 from Beijing Finance Bureau
as a special funding for renovation of energy-saving
lamps. The deferred income was recognized upon
receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile the
deferred assets were divided by ratio of the initial
entry value of assets, and deferred income would be
amortized in the estimated useful life (10 years) of
the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.
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30 ~ AEFE W ()
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KA A HR2015F E W E 4 =
TEBZEGRAHFARKE
5,865,7007T F 70 X 45 8 £ SR e 7T
MBGEEEMZEEES - A5H
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AR R HR20165F Z W EI 4L = 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

30. Deferred income (Continued)

©

In 2015, Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company,
received government grants totaling RMB8,730,000
from Beijing Municipal Commission of Commerce as
a special funding for logistics standardization project.
The deferred income was recognized upon receipt of
the financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (10 and 5 years) of the related
assets, recorded in the profit and loss in current period

and subsequent related periods.

In 2016, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB3,000,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance
Bureau and as a special funding for Chaoyang district
Cailanzi project. The deferred income was recognized
upon receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile
the deferred assets were divided by the initial entry
value of assets, and deferred income would be evenly
amortized in the estimated useful life (10 and 5 years)
of the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

RS e b

1:||||/

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

N At BEHREEERE)

30 ~EFE W ()

©)

KRR ZFRBHIEER2015
FEMIERTEBE 8RR
T AR¥8,730,000t AR 2 ## W
HEREECHBEBENEEELES -
A& BB BB S R R

T - RBEEEBEENTE
FHEARMI10F REFRITHES -
BT AR B RUEE B

2% -

E\\

AR AR 2016 F F Y B4 R
MEBEZEGRARFARKE
3,000,000t AR Z 5 R KL
FIRBZREAMNZEEES - K
55 B2 Uk B 5% B B R R SRR

Wi - RBEEEBEENTE
EAEM10F RoFEITHY - &
WEE AR BRAR A BIRIE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

VI.

1:||||/

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

30. Deferred income (Continued)

(1)

(12)

In 2017, Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company,
received government grants totaling RMB12,647,900
from Beijing Municipal Commission of Commerce as
a special funding for logistics standardization project.
The deferred income was recognized upon receipt
of the financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred
assets were divided by the initial entry value of assets,
and deferred income would be evenly amortized in
the estimated useful life (8 and 5 years) of the related
assets, recorded in the profit and loss in current period

and subsequent related periods.

In 2017, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB3,140,000 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Jingkelong energy-saving emission
reduction technology innovation project. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by the initial entry value of assets, and deferred income
would be evenly amortized in the estimated useful life (8
years) of the related assets, recorded in the profit and

loss in current period and subsequent related periods.
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1) RRABZFARPAIEER2017

FREWRIRTAKE S GRERE
ST ARE12,647,90007C AR T3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

30. Deferred income (Continued)

(13)

(14)

In 2017, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB4,011,200 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance Bureau
and as a special funding for Commercial circulation
development of agricultural ultra-docking project. The
deferred income was recognized upon receipt of the
financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (9 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.

In 2017, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB1,199,000 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Jingkelong Commercial convenience
service investment project. The deferred income was
recognized upon receipt of the financial allocations,
meanwhile the deferred assets were divided by the
initial entry value of assets, and deferred income would
be evenly amortized in the estimated useful life (7
years) of the related assets, recorded in the profit and

loss in current period and subsequent related periods.
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RNAFRR2017 FE W E 4 =
MEEZEERARTARKE
4,011,200t AR R BERR
HMEZEENZEELS - ~&H
TE U5 B 3% B B R B SRR A R
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AR A 2017 4F 2 U B 4k T g
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

VI.

1:||||/

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

30. Deferred income (Continued)

(15

In 2018, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB1,155,200 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Jingkelong Store renovation project. The
deferred income was recognized upon receipt of the
financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (8 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.

In 2018, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB3,681,500 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Energy-saving technical transformation
project. The deferred income was recognized upon
receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile the
deferred assets were divided by the initial entry value
of assets, and deferred income would be evenly
amortized in the estimated useful life (10 years) of
the related assets, recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

30. Deferred income (Continued)

a7

In 2018, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB4,211,820 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance
Bureau and as a special funding for Life service
industry development guidance project. The deferred
income was recognized upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by the initial entry value of assets, and deferred income
would be evenly amortized in the estimated useful life (10
years) of the related assets, recorded in the profit and

loss in current period and subsequent related periods.

In 2018, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB1,471,800 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Energy saving carbon reduction project. The
deferred income was recognized upon receipt of the
financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (10 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.
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KA A R2018F £ W El 4k =
TEBEESBRRATARE
4,211,820 7T AP A4V 1 PR 765 3 3%
RSIGEANEELES A5H
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B E R UL B R IE S -

A B RA201845F F U B 3b =T #
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

VI.

1:||||/

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

30. Deferred income (Continued)

(19) In 2019, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB1,832,900 from Beijing Municipal
Development and Reform Commission as a special
funds for Energy saving carbon reduction project. The
deferred income was recognized upon receipt of the
financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets
were divided by the initial entry value of assets, and
deferred income would be evenly amortized in the
estimated useful life (10 years) of the related assets,
recorded in the profit and loss in current period and

subsequent related periods.

31. Other non-current liabilities

N BHMBERREBTEE)

30 ~ AEFE W ()

(1

9) ARQFA2019F E I EHL " &

RMNEZESRAHAFARYE
1,832,900 T FA A &7 BE R B T8 B )
BEEAES  AEETEWRZM R
BRI R - REBEME
A ETEACASmI0F#THE
o BHSEAENRNES
BEEER -

31 HituERBHaEE

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—E-AF —ZE-)\F
ltem HH +=A=+-—H +=-RA=+—8
Long-term rent payable RHENES - 29,580,164
Special payable HIFE K - 800,000
Total &t - 30,380,164
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R EEREEERNARAT

32. Share capital 32 ~ |jRA&
Changes in the period
KR
Capitalization
Opening  New issue of of surplus Closing
balance shares  Bonus issue reserves Others Subtotal balance
Item ER E9% BOHR ®R o AERER Hith N EXH
For the year ended at 31 2019% [
December 2019
1. State-owned legal 1. BBEARR
person shares
Chaoyang Auxiliary ECE Y 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,409,808
Subtotal of state-owned  EBEASS RN
legal person shares 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,409,808
2. Other domestic-owned 2. EtAE K
shares
Shares held by domestic  BREEEEAE
non-state owned &
legal person 5,210,428 - - - - - 5,210,428
Domestic indvidual RN T
shareholders 57,439,764 - - - - - 57,439,764
3. Foreign listed shares 3, S EHHARH
denominated in RMB MNER 182,160,000 - - - - - 182,160,000
Total shares Bt 412,220,000 - - - - - 412,220,000
For the year ended at 31 20185
December 2018
1. State-owned legal 1. BEEARR
person shares
Chaoyang Auxiliary EilCEloy 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,409,808
Subtotal of state-owned BB EAR /NG
legal person shares 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,409,808
2. Other domestic-owned 2. EHAAREMHR
shares
Shares held by domestic  BRFEREEA
non-state owned Bk
legal person 5,210,428 - - - - - 5,210,428
Domestic individual RN €
shareholders 57,439,764 - - - - - 57,439,764
3. Forsign listed shares 3. 4l LA ARHS
denominated in RMB INER 182,160,000 - - - - - 182,160,000
Total shares BRirs 412,220,000 - - - - - 412,220,000
2019 £ a5 *
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VI.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

N BHMBERREBTEE)

33. Capital reserves 33 - EXNE
For the year ended at 31 December 2019 20195 E
Increase in the Decrease in the
2019.1.1 period period 2019.12.31
—E-NF —E-hF
ltem HH —HB—H ARE BN KEFL +=H=+-—H
Capital premium I8 A (B 609,790,884 - - 609,790,884
Equity transaction HTNADH
with minority P& B AR i 22
shareholders of 2
subsidiaries (10,443,286) - - (10,443,286)
Other capital reserves HEARATE 5,695,493 - - 5,695,493
Total At 605,043,091 - - 605,043,091
For the year ended at 31 December 2018 2018 E
Increase in the Decrease in the
2018.1.1 period period 2018.12.31
—Z=—)\F —Z=—)\F
[tem HE —H—AH RGN KEFRLY +ZA=1+—H
Capital premium [ A5 B 609,790,884 - - 609,790,884
Equity transaction BT AR
with minority AR R AR AT
shareholders of 5 (3E1)
subsidiaries (Note1) (10,477,531) 34,245 - (10,443,286)
Other capital reserves Hi &R A& 5,695,493 - - 5,695,493
Total A&t 605,008,846 34,245 - 605,043,091

Note 1:

with minority shareholders of subsidiaries was
RMB34,245. The reason is that Chaopi Trading as a
subsidiary of the Company acquired its subsidiary,

Tangshan baishun, minority shareholders of 11.25%

in the current year, the increase of equity transaction

equity interest, which invest cost is lower than the

related net asset of Tangshan baishun.
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

B BBRREREEE)

1:||||/

34. Other comprehensive income 34 ~ HfhimE W=
For the year ended at 31 December 2019 201956 E
Changes in the period
KERER
Less: Amount
that is previously
included in other
comprehensive Attributable
income is to the Attributable
transferred to shareholders of to minority
Amount  profit or loss for Less: Income ~ parent company shareholder
[tem &R 2019.1.1 before tax the period tax expense after tax after tax 2019.12.31
230 B ST AL HABER HABER ZE-0fF
-f-B RERERAEEE QUEEHEAEE W HBHER BhakEE YERR 2RIt
Other comprehengive income~ HEBE 2 B BANE
that wil be reclassfied to -~ HSANE
profit or loss - - - - - - -
Differences of foreign curency  SAEEIRERITEZS
financial statements
convert 82,125 437915 - - 207,269 210,626 309414
Total it 82,125 437915 - - 201,289 210,626 309414
For the year ended at 31 December 2018 20185 E
Changes in the period
KEREE
Less: Amount
that is previously
included in other Attributable
comprehensive fothe Attrbutable
income is fransferred shareholders of fo minory
Amount to profit or loss for Less: Income ~ parent company sharenolder
ftem L 2018 11 before tax the period tax expense after tax aﬁer 2018.12.31
)& B AR % R HEEE ) E
-A-B REREROREE olmEdENER W HAHER §AFHRE %{Hﬁ +ZR=t+-A
Other comprehensive income Sl E R EEERIE
that wil be reclassified to -~ HEANE
orofit or loss - - - - - - -
Diferences of foreign curency MG AR FEZE
financial statements
convert 9430 140,061 - - 72,69 67,366 82,125
Total A 9430 140,061 - - 72,69 67,366 82,125
,fi
2019 541 oW
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il

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

N BB EREABERE)

35. Surplus reserves 35 - BER AR
Opening Increase Decrease
balance in the period in the period Closing balance
Item A FAH AN KEFD FRE
For the year ended 20195 %
at 31 December
2019
Statutory surplus EERBATE
reserve 153,125,894 7,601,321 - 160,727,215
For the year ended 20185
at 31 December
2018
Statutory surplus ETREBATE
reserve 147,748,597 5,377,297 - 153,125,894

In accordance with Company Law and Company’s Articles
of Association, the Company should appropriate 10% of
net profit for the year to the statutory surplus reserve, and
the Company can cease appropriation when the statutory
surplus reserve accumulated to more than 50% of the paid

in capital.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for the

loss, expanding operation or increase the paid in capital.
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EHUBRREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

36. Undistributed profits 36 ~ KA BFIE

Proportion of

Amount appropriation
Item EH Xl 1R B 2 B bk Bl
For the year ended at 31 20195 & :
December 2019
Undistributed profits at the FORDBEAE ()
beginning of year (Note 1) 537,907,146
Add: Net profit attributable to the 1l : AERBERE QRIFAAED
shareholders of the parent A
company for the year 52,935,436
Less: Appropriation to statutory A IREUETE BB AR
surplus reserve 7,601,321 10%
Ordinary shares’ dividends JEAS B I AR F)
payable 32,977,600
Other HAtb -
Undistributed profits at the end of R A& H ELFH
the year 550,263,661
For the year ended at 31 20185 & :
December 2018
Undistributed profits at the FHARDEFE
beginning of year 504,701,969
Add: Net profit attributable to the i : AFFBREF QG B ED
shareholders of the parent FHE
company for the year 63,312,317
Less: Appropriation to statutory A RBUETE BB AN
surplus reserve 5,377,297 10%
Ordinary shares’ dividends JE A B AR AR
payable 24,733,200
Other Hith (3,357)
Undistributed profits at the end of Rk 5 e F1);H
the year 537,907,146

(1) Cash dividend approved and subject to be

approved in the annual general meeting

(1) BREASEHENFELMENES

BRF

M2019F 57248 - REAAFMN
R ERE - ARRHBE20184F
ERRFIAFRARK0.08T + A5t
& F 2 AR #382,977,6007T °

According to the notice of the annual general meeting
on 24 May 2019, a final dividend of RMBO0.08 per
share in respect of year ended 31 December 2018 was
declared and paid to the shareholders of the Company.
The aggregated amount of the final dividend declared

and paid was RMB32,977,600.

l
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

36. Undistributed profits (Continued)

(1) Cash dividend approved and subject to be

2

approved in the annual general meeting (Continued)

According to the notice of the annual general meeting
on 25 May 2018, a final dividend of RMBO0.06 per
share in respect of year ended 31 December 2017 was
declared and paid to the shareholders of the Company.
The aggregated amount of the final dividend declared

and paid was RMB24,733,200.

On 22 April 2020, the directors of the Company
proposed the payment of a dividend of RMBO0.08
per share to shareholders in respect of year ended
31 December 2019. The proposal of dividend
distribution mentioned above is subject to be approved
by the shareholders at Annual General Meeting of
the Company. This recommendation has not been
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
as a liability. The estimated amount of dividends in

aggregate is RMB32,977,600.

Surplus reserves of subsidiaries

On 31 December 2019, the undistributed profits of the
Group included surplus reserves of subsidies totaling
in the period RMB19,961,951 (31 December 2018:
RMB19,242,475).

N BHMBERREBTEE)

36 ~ RO EABE(E)

(1) REAEBEBHENFTEMENREE

(&

BRF(E)

720185250 » RIEANQFN
REERE - NRFIHE20174F
BT ABRARB0.067T + &5t
f&F) B A R#24,733,2007T °

MR2020F4 228 - AARIMESE

CRBOE2019FERF - T
AR¥0.087T « ZIRF 9 & &
FERRANGHAE - ZRF R
ERBEI ARG MU BERE -
FEE XN HRAEERARE
32,977,6007C °

FRABIRRY B AE
2019128318 * NEBASER
MESRERBE T AR AFIRI
WEBRATERARK19,961,951
(2018 12 A31H: AR
19,242,4757%) °

-
o
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STATEMENTS (Continued)

37. Operating income and operating costs

A
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

N At BEHREEERE)

37 ~ ERWAMERKAE

(1) Operating income and Operating costs (1) EXUARAEE
2019 2018
20195 % 20185 [Z
Income Costs Income Costs
ltem HE ['ON %N WA AR
Principal operating 3 &4 %7 10,555,189,765  9,020,909,087 | 10,445,548,498  8,930,704,196
Other operating HEM %% 1,103,032,165 11,826,711 | 1,204,735,274 11,872,777
Total A5t 11,658,221,930  9,032,735,798 | 11,650,283,772  8,942,576,973

)

Principal operating income and principal operating

costs (classified by industry segments)

(2) FEFEHB(FTHF)

2019 2018
20195 & 20185 &
Principal Principal

operating Principal operating Principal

income operating costs income  operating costs

ltem EHE FEEBBA FEEBRA FEEBUA Bk 307N
Retail =5 4,104,864,537  3,382,667,386 | 4,251,207,905  3,526,168,118
Wholesale #eEE 6,411,758,686  5,608,200,678 | 6,157,646,906 5,377,846,186
Others EAh 38,566,542 30,041,023 36,693,687 26,689,892
Total A&t 10,555,189,765  9,020,909,087 | 10,445,548,498  8,930,704,196

The principal operating income mainly consists of

selling food, non-staple food, daily consumer goods,

beverages and wines etc.

TEEBRATIERBERR
BREER - R AE
FEEHIA -

BRMm -

.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

37. Operating income and operating costs (Continued)

(3) Operating income of the Group’s top five customers

For the year ended at 31 December 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 R I

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

BHMBHRREAEBTEE)

37 ~ ERWANMEREA(E)

RAFIEEEFHERRAER
20195 B

Proportion of the
total operating

Operating income of the

income Group (%)

LGRS

ltem EERA A B (%)

JingDong 1,5632,931,058 13

Wu-mart 874,291,966 7

Shanghai Tianyi E-commerce Co., EEBABEFEHEAER AT

Ltd. 328,494,407 3

Yonghui Commercial Co., Ltd. B ERR AR 184,534,575 2

Carrefour 148,829,777 1

Total 3,069,081,783 26
For the year ended at 31 December 2018 20185 E

ltem

Jingdong
Wu-mart

Shanghai Tianyi E-commerce Co.,

Ltd.
Vipshop

Yonghui Commercial Co., Ltd.

PERBEFEHBEERLQA

KEREEAR AT

Proportion of the
total operating
income of the

Total

Operating income Group (%)
(PNl

EERA AHIEL51(%)
1,507,898,378 13
1,037,315,790 9
328,072,505 3
297,572,316 3
209,013,033 2
3,379,872,022 30
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EHUBRREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

38.

39.

Taxes and surcharges 38 ~ Bl KM
2019 2018

ltem HE 20195 & 2018 &
Consumption tax SHE 1,704,043 2,398,496
City construction and maintenance 3 T 4 rEiE R

tax 283,726,317 22,573,060
Building tax BER 15,836,222 15,738,729
Land tax 3 AR 818,274 818,177
Vehicle and vessel use tax BEAERR 351,961 375,390
Stamp tax ENTERS 6,370,119 7,215,847
Environmental protection tax IRIZIRET 72,990 3,082
Others H 18 52,849
Total & 48,879,944 49,175,630
Selling expenses 39 - HEEH

2019 2018

ltem 1BH 2019 E 2018%F &
Wages and salaries Bk T 35 494,426,139 497,795,878
Promotional expenses SE(HE 421,640,033 421,781,699
Depreciation and amortization WwEMEHEBR

expenses 375,084,804 194,551,502
Service fee AR & 224,410,115 306,698,031
Shipping fee BRE 172,501,572 179,282,278
Utility fee KESE 68,630,295 76,864,603
security fee REE 35,606,105 33,980,383
Repair fee (ES=E=y 31,644,944 41,499,710
Warehousing fee PRER 22,498,524 21,529,960
Coal fee Je 18,651,660 16,310,628
cleaning fee 1%/,%;%3 15,402,723 14,905,755
Advertising fee BEEEEE 14,767,504 14,300,739
Lease expenses HEE 10,833,052 216,412,897
Telephone, postal and BiE o BERBEAE

communication fees 7,615,386 6,585,744
Packaging fee BESE 6,263,238 3,368,864
Property costs LEE= 6,196,506 3,745,955
Computer supplies SHE s 5,436,941 5,402,530
Travel expenses ERE 4,510,715 5,396,836
Stationery printing fee X EAHIRIE 4,023,799 2,819,149
Shop opening fee i & & A 3,892,017 3,016,271
Commodity loss or loss P mRERIE s R 2,540,309 2,305,932
Insurance IR B 2,533,216 2,445,547
Labour protection fee BERER 571,518 1,011,740
Custody fee REE 154,104 -
Book information fee E2RERIE 152,435 31,963
Low value consumables EEZFEMOGEE MBS EE) 142,933 115,754
Meal fee REB 80,796 59,712
Consulting fee kN - 8,400
Others Hi 2,039,338 2,850,566
Total A& 1,952,250,721 2,075,079,026
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL Bt BRRBE TR E)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
40. Administrative expenses 40 - EEEH
2019 2018
ltem EH 20195 & 2018 &
Wages and salaries B T 5B 250,531,255 250,463,027
Depreciation and amortization WEX#EE R
expenses 11,535,206 8,960,376
Consulting fee BHE 4,410,637 6,198,457
Business hospitality ERBEE 4,201,474 2,892,020
Audit fee Fit B 3,949,342 3,209,794
Inventory count loss FEREIEL 3,755,817 2,175,696
Low value consumables EEZFEM 3,538,356 4,634,481
Termination benefits B iRAEF 3,330,574 956,676
Service fee REE 2,907,941 2,341,780
Repair fee (ES=E=y 2,129,956 725,934
Travel expenses EIRE 1,318,233 587,050
Conference fee FEE 1,138,999 2,185,515
Office fee I R/N= 601,620 465,322
Utility fee IKEE 581,518 1,625,736
Telephone, postal and Bt B REME
communication fees 433,204 408,495
Insurance fee IR B 380,273 372,643
Heating costs g & 205,665 19,957
Others Eith 6,118,039 10,155,690
Total A&t 301,068,109 298,378,649
41. Financial expenses 41 - -BEER
2019 2018
ltem EH 20195 & 20185 &
Interest expenses B H 195,455,144 162,009,879
Including: Lease liability interest Hep - HEAENEXE
expense 54,613,270 -
Less: Capitalized interest expenses i : M| B &KL &% 57,317 53,172
Interest income B U A (13,444,260) (15,340,219)
Bank charges HITFEE 15,172,691 26,121,607
Exchange losses (gains) PEH B (448,065) (40,179)
Total A&t 196,678,193 172,697,916
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

42, Other income

(1)

)

Details of other income

N B BRBRREEERE)

42 -~ Hibss
(1) B mmT

The amount

included in the

current year non-

recurring gains

2019 2018 and losses

STABFILE N

ltem 1ER 2019 E 2018 = BRIt

Government grants AT #EB) 18,295,011 27,812,795 18,295,011

Total A&t 18,295,011 27,812,795 18,295,011

Details of government grants (2) BFF#EI84

2019 2018

item HE 20195 & 2018F &

Government reserve expenses RIS e B AR AR 783,000 -

Ease the employment pressure 1R AR T 2 R D AR Ry 3,569,376 5,416,352
Asset-related government grants  H2& ZEME R ) B B

amortization for the current year — 2G4 9,197,474 10,474,693
Compensation for house EREWIRBHE ()

demolition (Note) - 8,331,300

Other H b BL 4,745,161 3,590,450

Total BET 18,295,011 27,812,795

Note: According to the relevant agreement, that
Compensation Agreement for Non-residential Houses
of the Panjiayuan West Station Project of Beijing
Metro Line 17, between the Company and the
Beijing Chaoyang District Housing Collection Affairs
Center and Beijing Hongchao Weiye State-owned
Assets Management Co., Ltd., Beijing Chaoyang
District Housing Collection Center (on behalf of the
government) paid compensation of RMB8,331,300 for
the decoration of the house and the attachment of

equipment and facilities.

o REAARELRTHBERE
BUREHHR O - L RAFAEER
BEEREEREETAA=ZFE
ATH L R 7R AR B RE T
I TRRERFEERE BB E
ek I RARBEAYE - 20184 E L
B EREBEHREBLP LR
RET) ZREARA R B ERE
ENEMEEREERENIED
#187£8,331,3007T ©
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N B BRREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

43. Investment income 43 ~ BE W
2019 2018
ltem EH 20195 & 20185 [F
Investment income from purchasing & & 52 Hi38 Bf & 1% & W ek
short-term financial products 525,874 1,272,141
Investment income obtained from  EE AR fﬁ Eit2 B E# st
the disposal of financial assets )\”‘Hﬁ;@ & E B E ERUSHY

measured at fair value and whose &&=

changes are included in the

current profit and loss - 11,869,806
Investment income from the financial AR R BEETE BEEZHTAE

assets measured at fair value and  HRIBz= M & RVEEE A HiR

whose changes are included in IS E W2k
the current profit and loss during
holding period 942,758 -
Total A&t 1,468,632 13,141,947
44. Gains from changes in fair values 44 ~ RREESB RS
2019 2018
Sources of gains from changes in  E4 QA BEZS S KR
fair values 20195 E 20185 [F
Trading financial assets RMERMERE 27,689,141 (8,134,354)
Including: classified financial assets H e : S4B RAA EEA 8 EH
measured at fair value HEETAZHERNE
and whose changes mﬂﬁﬁ(milﬂgiﬂ’]
are included in current N EEZE ISR
profit and loss (exclude
gains from changes in
fair value of derivative
instruments) 27,689,141 (8,134,354)
classified financial assets SERAABEAEAER
measured at fair value S AZHBENE
and whose changes are BEEMTESRIA
included in current profit FEE’J“‘MTTE )
and loss (gains from %)
changes in fair value of
derivative instruments) - -
Total &5t 27,689,141 (8,134,354)

o
L
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N EHUBRREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

45, Credit impairment loss 45 ~ ZARERL
2019 2018
Item IEE 20195 E 20185 E

Credit impairment loss of notes FEUR ZE I K pE Uk SRR (S 1B R
receivable and accounts

receivable 7,545,724 6,679,450
Credit impairment loss of other E b fEU R E AR K

receivable 696,855 156,894

Total A&t 8,242,579 6,836,344

46. Gain on disposal of assets 46 - EEREB W&

The amount

included in the

current year non-

recurring gains and

2019 2018 losses

STABFIELE N

ltem EH 20195 E 20185 & B

Gain on disposal of non- JERBNEER E WS
current assets 515,005 (2,305,871) 515,005
Total A& 515,005 (2,305,871) 515,005

2019 F#f '
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VI.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

N BB EREABERE)

47. Non-operating income 47 ~ EEIIMRA
(1) Details of non-operating income (1) EEIPRABHMT
The amounts
included in non-
recurring gains
and losses for the
2019 2018 year
AR FIELE N
ltem R 20195 E 2018 & B SR
Total gains on spoilage and JEGENEERIB
obsolescence of non- WMEEFS AT
current assets 34 1,706 34
Including: Gains on Hep  BFEE
spoilage and FIEW
obsolescence REF1S
of non-current
assets of fixed
assets 34 1,706 34
Government grants T8 Bh 5,750,000 31,188,721 5,750,000
Default compensation (Note :E#)ES (3X1)
1) 7,736,960 24,933,746 7,736,960
Less payment due to tax ~ BiERFFE DL
rate adjustment =18 3,305,879 - 3,305,879
Disposal of waste materials FZI2EEEYE 604,400 - 604,400
Others HAh 4,975,022 3,848,947 4,975,022
Total &t 22,372,295 59,973,120 22,372,295
(2) Details of government grants (2) BB
2019 2018
ltem A 20196 E 20184 [Z
Compensation for house EEFRBENGHE
demolition - 15,988,721
Safety production environment e A ERBREM(GE2)
upgrade subsidy (Note 2) 5,750,000 15,200,000
Total At 5,750,000 31,188,721

i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VI.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

47. Non-operating income (Continued)

(2) Details of government grants (Continued)

Note 1: According to the relevant agreement, that cancellation
of contract and dismantling of illegal construction
agreement, between Beijing Langshan Nursery (Beijing
Environmental Elegancy and Virescence Engineering
Company) and Beijing Jingkelong Shouchao
Commercial Co., Ltd., which is a subsidiary company
of the Company, Beijing Langshan Nursery paid
Beijing Jingkelong Shouchao Commercial limited of
RMB5,000,000 for releasing the contract liquidated
damages and supporting the dismantling work

subsidy.

Note 2: (1) According to the provisions of Chao guoziwen
No. [2019] 97 “Reply on the allocation of 2019
state-owned capital operating budget funds”, the
subsidy funds for rectifying and upgrading the
safety production environment received by the
Company was RMB4,950,000.

(2) According to the provisions of Chao guoziwen No.
[2018] 97 “Reply on the allocation of 2018 state-
owned capital operating budget funds”, the special
compensation for the SASAC received by the
Company was RMB10,000,000, they transferred
RMB9,200,000 in 2018 and RMB800,000 in 2019.

RIS RaR B e

EI

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

B BERREBERE)

N

/\

47 ~ BEIMRA(E)

@)

BT BB (45

A1 REBIAERTRIVEB(GERTR
BEISETEDR)EADF
ZFRALRREREBEXE

72

R

A BEAR - K&

BHEE IDHEBEOE  AFE
IERARLEBXMRIERRE
EEBRERRARFRRARE
HeMEA SRR TIEmB &
5,000,0007T °

=

1B 4% ¥ B & X [2019]97 5%
[BREN2019FHAE R
KETEEESMILE MR
E AR AR B AR RS
REAEREAREHES
4,950,0007T

1R 5 80 B & 3[2018]97 %% [ 8
RERF2018F R B A AL
BEHEASHILE INMEE - &

AR EI WS E HIAME
#10,000,0007T * 720184
# A 9,200,000 7T ' 20194
4 A 800,0007T °

2019 @%ﬁ 279

ErrREEREEERNARA

&

%
X

=



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RS el b

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

il

VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL N B BRREEFTRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

48. Non-operating expenses 48 ~ EENTH
The amounts
included in non-
recurring gains and
2019 2018 losses for the year
FFAEFIEEE N
ltem = 2019 & 20184 [F B=meH
Total losses on spoilage IERENE ERIEWR
and obsolescence of non- BEIBRART
current assets 4,037,672 6,921,956 4,037,672
Including: Losses on Heh: AEEER
spoilage and BREE
obsolescence of ES
fixed assets 4,037,672 6,921,956 4,037,672
Fine ik 1,979,531 1,392,694 1,979,531
Others HAith 3,887,224 10,122,643 3,887,224
Total A&t 9,904,427 18,437,293 9,904,427
49. Income tax expense 49 - FTEHiEA
(1) Details of income tax expense (1) FEBERZ
2019 2018
ltem BH 201956 E 20185 [Z
Current income tax EHIMENE R 65,284,144 70,824,364
Deferred income tax RIEFSHER 16,431,508 388,253
Total A& 81,715,652 71,212,617
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RN AU HRREETRE)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

49. Income tax expense (Continued) 49 - FREBIEAE)

(2) Reconciliation between income tax expense and (2) EFFEHEFEHEAARBERE

accounting profits

2019 2018
ltem 1HH 201956 E 2018%F E
Total profit M 4azE 178,802,243 177,689,578
Income tax expenses calculated Hzﬁa‘m/ RABEAERNE
at statutory/applicable tax rate mEH 44,700,561 44,397,395
Effect of subsidiary companies to /2 &l F TN E B R Hy g/ £
adapt different tax rates 818,038 194,960
Effect of deductible temporary TEE AR TS 2
difference or deductible losses
of unrecognized deferred tax
assets in the period 931,361 425,433
Effect of non-taxable income JEEFEWARNZE (889,804) (321,674)
Effect of non-deductible costs, TAEMM AR - BRFIEX
expenses and losses o) 12,814,762 4,944,512
Effect of deductible losses recover {F A BIEIARERIELFFEHE
of previously recognized ErrEIEENTE
deferred tax assets (1,418,755) (990,781)
Effect of using deductible losses — ARFARIERIRILFEHEER
of previously unrecognized AT 0B B M 2 Rosl TR 40
deferred tax assets BT E 24,759,489 22,662,772
Total &t 81,715,652 71,212,617
2019 @%& 281
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VI.

i

w

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

50. Net profit

The Group’s net profit is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Item

Cost of goods sold

Depreciation of investment properties

Depreciation of fixed assets

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of leasehold
improvements

Total of depreciation and amortization
Net losses on disposal of non-current

assets

Net rental income of investment
properties
Staff costs

Including: Directors and supervisors’

emoluments
Other staff costs:
Wages or salaries and
social security costs

Basic retirement insurance

Audit expense

BH

8 n 8H B AR
REMEMETE
Bl BEFE
EREEENE

B EERH
RETRNBEE B ERR

S

FERBHA
FRBEEREFEAR

REUFEHERDF
WA

BIHFMER

Hb &%  EFHe

HA 8 TR :

T8 #Hak

HERERA

ERRZRBE
B ER

N BHMBERREBTEE)

50 ~ FAIHE
AEBEEFMBIEMERGEA)AT

(Notes)
{iF

(VI) 37
(VI) 8
(V1) 9
(V1) 11
(VI) 12

(V1) 14
(V1)
46,47,48

(VI) 22

£IH

2019
20195 E

9,020,909,087
8,692,155
109,718,184
178,063,257
16,770,730

76,004,182
389,248,508

3,522,633

(20,874,221)
750,557,336

5,741,182
678,388,909

66,427,245
3,949,342

2018
2018F

8,930,704,196
8,708,242
106,181,445
16,607,234

83,864,157
215,361,078

9,226,121

(16,021,273)
748,945,515

4,135,054
675,057,076

69,753,385
3,209,794
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL ASR
STATEMENTS (Continued)

51.

Calculation process of basic earnings per share and

AU BRKRERERE)

51 - EXBREENHESRUSENTE

diluted earnings per share e
While calculating basic earnings per share, net profit FTEERNFRKER - BEN T B
attributable to ordinary shareholders for the current year is RO EBFMNEA
as follows
2019 2018
ltem = 20195 E 20185 E
Net profit attributable to ordinary BN T ERREMNE BFRE
shareholders for the current year 52,935,436 63,312,317
Including: Net profit from continuing H R : BB E LKL H)E ) E
operations 52,935,436 63,312,317
While calculating basic earnings per share, the denominator AEERGRINER - 5 AZEITEIN
is the weighted average number of ordinary shares TERNETIOE - STEBIZANT
outstanding and its calculation process is as follows
2019 2018
ltem = 20195 E 20185
Number of ordinary shares BTN L BT L
outstanding 412,220,000 412,220,000
Earnings per share =24
2019 2018
Iltem HE 20195 20184 &
Calculated based on net profit REBRIARRERN
and net profit from continuing @%‘J/FEJ& FER
operations attributable to TJ&?E’]HE%&%
shareholders of the parent ﬁrﬂ MRt E
company:
Basic earnings per share EXRGRKE 0.13 0.15
Diluted earnings per share wEgRkE N/ATE A N/AZ 3 FB
At date of report, the Company had no dilutive potential HEHRRB  AeEEEREEMNEBL LA

ordinary shares.

o

ERRE

fEREEERNARA

K .
*®

=
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Items in the cash flow statements

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(1) Other cash received relating to operating activities

52 -HEREXREHR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO BEREBTRE)

(1) UEHERMEELZHEBYEE

2019 2018
ltem HH 201956 E 20184 &
Income of rent el A 213,227,101 214,715,053
Income of scrap sales RERIA 2,873,907 2,244,765
Income of franchise IneRE A 1,599,547 1,977,442
Income of government grants ESEEENLON 7,852,201 52,957,657
Recovered deposit ek 12,732,939 7,195,539
Compensation for house BEEFERE

demolition 5,000,000 24,933,746
Others Eph 6,045,424 8,105,574
Total A&t 249,331,119 312,129,776

Other cash paid relating to operating activities

(2) XMNEMEELIHEHNEE

2019 2018
ltem pERS 201956 E 20185 [Z
Selling expenses (except rent) HEER(TEHES) 789,076,905 776,856,481
Administrative expenses BEEEH 43,122,300 55,474,761
Rent S 8,589,532 212,746,211
Deposit and margin SRS FRE S 7,151,700 10,249,104
Bank charges HITFEE 15,168,584 15,492,907
Others H 7,556,403 6,185,322
Total A&t 870,665,424 1,077,004,786

Receive other cash related to investment activities

(3) WUEHEMEREZBHEHNEE

2019 2018

ltem 1HE 20195 E 20185 [Z

Margin notes ERRE 91,521,277 135,120,735
Government grants related to 818 2 ME R R T 4 B

assets 1,832,900 13,273,120

Total At 93,354,177 148,393,855
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52. Items in the cash flow statements (Continued)

(4) Paying other cash related to investment activities

(5)

(6)

N

A BEHRIER ERE)

52 - REREBRIFA (#)

(4) XHEMEREZBEHNEE

2019 2018
ltem HH 20195 E 20184 &
Margin notes ERRIEE 43,410,184 129,108,573
Total =X 43,410,184 129,108,573

Receive other cash related to fundraising activities

(5) UEERMBEELZZBHEHNEE

2019 2018
ltem =RE| 20195 E 2018 &
Chaoyang SASAC operating HEHEZ L EREES

turnover funds 400,000,000 3,200,000,000
Issuing bonds BATES 695,649,057 298,800,000
Borrowings FIRfER - 1,046,858
Total At 1,095,649,057 3,499,846,858

Paying other cash related to fundraising activities

(6) XMHEMEZELEZIBHEHNEE

2019 2018
ltem 1HE 2019 E 2018F &
Chaoyang SASAC operating HIERELZEEREES

turnover funds 400,000,000 3,200,000,000
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAELrS KFE

principal and interest 217,187,125 -
Repayment of bonds BEES 300,000,000 750,000,000
Borrowings ERIER 23,443,588 24,151,101
Total BET 940,630,713 3,974,151,101

2019 F#f '
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VI.

w

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

53. Supplementary information to the cash flow

statement

N BHMBERREBTEE)

(1) Supplementary information to the cash flow

statement

Supplementary information

1. Reconciliation of net profits and cash
flow from operating activities:

Net profits

Add: Provision for impairment losses on

assets

Credit impairment loss

Depreciation of fixed assets

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Depreciation of investment
properties

Amortization of intangible assets

Amortization of long-term prepaid
expenses

Losses on disposal of fixed
assets, intangible assets and
other long-term assets

Loss from retirement of fixed
assets

Losses from changes in fair values

Financial expenses (including
exchange losses(gains))

Losses arising from investments

Amortization of government grants
related to assets

Decrease in deferred tax assets

Increase in deferred tax liabilities

Decrease in inventories

Decrease in operating receivables

Increase in operating payables

Other

Net cash flows from operating activities

2. Net changes in cash and cash

equivalents:

Closing balance of cash

Less: Opening balance of cash

Net increase(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

HREM
1 BENERSREEEDRERE:

R
e BERERER

ERRERE
BEEENE
EREEENE
REMRWERE

BIVAERH
ROGEEREH

REETEE  BYEEME
tRABENRR

BEEEERBEX

DABEEHBRX
MHER(SELRE)

RAER%
EEERBNBAREEY

ELASHEERD
ERFSRAEEN
FERRED
i YR R HR
it ENIER M

Kt
AEEDELNRERE

FE 3
BERALSRYRE

et ERRE
B BSHE R
B4 RESEENIENE)E

53 HEREXRBRER

(1) REREBRFHZEH

2019
20195 F

97,086,591

8,242,579
109,718,184
178,063,257

8,692,155
16,770,730

76,004,182

(515,005)

4,037,672
(27,689,141)

196,678,193
(1,468,632)

(9,197,474)
9,702,363
6,729,145

104,488,215
(96,361,479)
(264,533,699)

416,447,836
864,849,804

1,014,227,924

(149,378,120)

2018
20185 &

106,376,961

6,836,344
106,181,445

8,708,242
16,607,234

83,864,157
9,226,121

8,134,354

172,697,916
(13,141,947)

(10,467,992)
2,586,883
(2,198,630)
120,796,384
(215,892,171)
360,955,025

761,270,326
1,014,227,924

929,508,883

84,719,041
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

53. Supplementary information to the cash flow

statement (Continued)

(2) Cash and cash equivalents

[tem

Cash
Including: Cash on hand
Bank deposits on
demand

==
Closing balance of cash and cash fﬁi\&fﬁb%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ?%‘ﬁ

equivalents

N AU BEHRERERE)

53 - HEREXRBERER (&)

2) BHERBLEEYHIBA

B H 2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—E—hE —2—N\%F
t=ZHA=Z+—-B | +tZA=+—H

e
Her: BEHRE ~ 8,218,440 13,627,854

A BERE A S HYERTT

EoN 856,631,364 1,000,600,070
864,849,804 1,014,227,924

54. Net current assets

55.

56.

54 - BREBEE

[tem I5H 2019.12.31 2018.12.31

ZE-NEF —T-N\F

t=B=+-R| +t-A=t+-"

Current assets MEIEE 5,163,380,275 5,410,195,756

Less: Current liabilities B ORBBE 4,893,352,084 5,435,691,745

Net current assets FmBEE 270,028,191 (25,495,989)
Total assets less current liabilities

55 - AEERBRARBERS

[tem IEH 2019.12.31 2018.12.31

—E-hfF —EN\F

t=A=+—-R | TZA=1+—H

Total assets BERTE 8,501,557,971 7,687,799,828

Less: Current liabilities o B AE 4,893,352,084 5,435,691,745

Total assets less current liabilities EEERRDERE 3,608,205,887 2,252,108,083

Assets that ownership or usufruct is restricted

Item

Cash and bank balances

Accounts receivable

&Y BR R

56 - FiAESEAEIRENEE

Carrying amount at
31 December 2019
FRIEEER

84,571,190

280,963,340

Restriction reasons
ZRERE

Bank acceptance margin
deposits that are restricted
f?%ﬁ%gﬁgﬁREmEﬁ{%uﬁ@ﬁ
Bank loans are obtained through
factoring arrangement that are
restricted
IMHLﬂ%ﬂt%E SIRTTE
= B PR

Total

365,534,530

i
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VI. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

57. Foreign currency monetary items

N BB EREABERE)

57 SN EMMHIER

2019.12.31 2018.12.31
“E-hAF+-A=t-H —E-N\FF+ZA=1—H

Closing Closing
balance Closing balance Closing
in foreign  Exchange balance in in foreign Exchange balance in
currency rate RMB currency rate RMB
REARY TEARE
ltem EH SNEBRE HEER 232 INERRER FEEX FRAR

Cash and cash &#&4%

balances 12,846,374 8,535,784
Including: USD  Ef : ET 1,181,638 6.9762 8,243,340 539,291 6.8632 3,701,259
EUR BT 366,858 7.8155 2,867,175 492,793 7.8473 3,867,096
HKD BT 1,945 0.8958 1,742 12,619 0.8762 11,057
GBP R 193 9.1501 1,762 193 8.6762 1,671
NzZD il | 368,798 4.6973 1,732,355 207,751 4.5954 954,701

VIl. CHANGES IN THE CONSOLIDATION SCOPE

There is some change in scope during this year as follows:

1. Beijing Chaopi Xinyi Shangzhen Food Co., Ltd., which is
a subsidiary of Chaopi Trading, and chaopi Trading is a
subsidiary of the Company, established a wholly-owned
subsidiary Tangshan Chaopi Shangzhen Food Co., Ltd
on 19 April 2019, thus, it was included in the scope of

consolidation this year.

2. Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company, established
a subsidiary company Baoding Chaopi Trading Co.,
Ltd. on 16 August 2019, which accounts for 70% of the
capital contribution, thus, it was included in the scope of

consolidation this year.

"
L
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VIIIl. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES N EEMEFERAERS
Equity in subsidiaries EFRATPHER
Components of the Company PTEEFHEAL
Place of Nature of Registered

Subsidiary Type incorporation business Capital

FARERE FARER = fift it HEMME ZMELR

Beijing Jingkelong (Langfang) Co., Ltd. Limited company  Langfang, PRC  Retail 80,000,000
(Jingkelong Langfang)

IRRER(BH)ERAGATERI R  BRETAA 52 TE¥E
ErERLH )

Beijing Jingkelong Supermarket Chain Co., Limited company  Beijing, PRC Retall 29,000,000
Ltd. (Jingkelong Tongzhou)

bR R EEBTEE AR QA (AT RE EREERATA ik TEHE
[REEEMN])

Beijing Xinyang Tongli Commercial Limited company  Beijing, PRC Manufacture 10,000,000
Facilities Co,.Ltd. (Xinyang Tongli)

bR R 8 P KR A R AR (AT BREFEAF bm FUEZE
MRS 1)

Beijing Jingkelong Shouchao Commercial  Limited company  Beijing, PRC Retail 398,453,439
Co., Ltd. (Shoulian Supermarket)

IRREEEEHEGR AR (A TEHE BREFEAR] bR TE¥
[ SR )

Beijing Jingkelong Haotian Hotel Limited company  Beijing, PRC Hospitality 5,000,000
Management Co., Ltd. (Haotian Hotel)

it?%gﬁéiﬂiiﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ(tﬂ? BEREERATA bR BE R 3
EE2XEE])

Beijing Jingkelong Vocational Training Institutional Beijing, PRC Training 500,000
School (Training School) organization

b5 T $ 5 [ I B S S BE AR FI BB AR BEEA i) =l
(BAT R sl 2 )

Beijing Lianchao Company Limited (the Limited company  Beijing, PRC Retail 10,000,000
“Lianchao Limited”)

EREEEEARAR(UTEHRBEELS BREEAR bR TEXE
all)

Beijing Jingkelong Fresh convenience store Limited company  Beijing, PRC Retail 10,000,000
Company Limited (Jingkelong Fresh)

AR EREHENEARETAF A BREERATA ik TEHE
TR EEERE]D

Beijing Chaopi Trading Co., Ltd. (Chaopi  Stock corporation  Beijing, PRC Wholesale 500,000,000
Trading)

RSB ERNDBRAG (A TEBEIE  ROBRAAE i) BrEez
#HEED

Beijing Chaopi Shuanglong Alcohol Sales  Limited company  Beijing, PRC Wholesale 110,160,000
Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Shuanglong)*

R EE X HERRET AT BREFEAR] bR R

(ATl et | )

l
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Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

Components of the Company (Continued)

Subsidiary
FREER

Beijing Chaopi Huaqging Beverage Co,.Ltd.
(Chaopi Huaging)*

LA EFHE AR AR AT EHE A
#HEE)

Beijing Chaopi Flavourings, Co,.Ltd.
(Chaopi Flavouring)*

IR AR B EREERR AT
MBI RRm )

Beijing Chaopi Jinglong Oil Sales Co,.Ltd.
(Chaopi Oil Sales)*

IR R R P S E AR A A (AT
MBI EARL R AE 1)

Shijiazhuang Chaopi Xinlong Trading Co,.
Ltd.*
AREHIEBEREBR AR

Qingdao Chaopi Jinlong Trading Co,.Ltd.*
EEPUREREFRAR"

Beijing Chaopi Zhongde Trading Co,.Ltd.
(Chaopi Zhongde)*

PR EHEFRA T CATETE A
#piE1)”

Beijing Chaopi Huilong Trading Co,.Ltd.
(Chaopi Huilong)*

bR AR R B A R A A (JA T R [ &
HEEERZ |)*

Taiyuan Chaopi Trading Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi
Taiyuan)*
KE%H%EE@QE@H@%@%MK

Tianjin Chaopi Trading Co,.Ltd.*
REPUHEBER AR

Chaopi Yuli Trading Co,.Ltd.**
LR T B B R A & (JAT fa[ &
BEAEH 1)

Chaopi Fangsheng Trading Co,.Ltd (Chaopi
Ii?ngsheng).**
bR TR E AR QA

Jinan Chaopi Linda Trading Co,.Ltd.
(Chaopi Jinan)*

B MER EBR AR (AT R[5
#BEE )
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

Type
FARER

Limited company

BREMERA

Limited company

BREERA

Limited company

BREMERA

Limited company
BREFERF]

Limited company
BREFERF]

Limited company

BREERQA

Limited company

BREERQA

Limited company

BREFERF]
Limited company
BREFEAT]
Limited company

BREERQA

Limited company
BREMELQA
Limited company

BEREERA

[

HE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.
i il &

N EEMERPHERSE)

EFARHRNERE)

PHEEEYEL(E)
Place of Nature of
incorporation business
it 33 E3=1
Beijing, PRC Wholesale
i HrEEE
Beijing, PRC Wholesale
i BEEE
Beijing, PRC Wholesale
bm BrEesx
Shijiazhuang, Wholesale

PRC

ARG HrEEx
Qingdao, PRC ~ Wholesale
55 HEe
Beijing, PRC Wholesale
bm BrEExE
Beijing, PRC Wholesale
B HEE
Taiyuan, PRC Wholesale
AR Hraez
Tianjin, PRC Wholesale
RE BrEx
Beijing, PRC Wholesale
I HEE
Beijing, PRC Wholesale
I HEz
Jinan, PRC Wholesale
pidea] BrEe

Registered
Capital
HEMEZR

80,000,000

50,000,000

36,000,000

5,000,000

5,000,000

50,000,000

24,000,000

15,000,000

15,000,000

24,000,000

20,000,000

26,000,000
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N EHEMERPEER )

VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued) EFARHRHNERE)
Components of the Company (Continued) PEEFHEL (E)
Place of Nature of Registered

Subsidiary Type incorporation business Capital

FARER FRARER EEiig:u) XBMUE HERER

Beijing Chaopi Shenglong Trading Co,.Ltd. Limited company  Beijing, PRC Wholesale 20,000,000
(Chaopi Shenglong)*

AR BREIEARAR(ATEHE I  ARETAR dbx Hraz
HRRRE 1)

Beijing Chaopi Tianhua Trading Co,.Ltd. Limited company  Beijing, PRC Wholesale 20,000,000
(Chaopi Tianhua)*

IR REREBR AT (LA TEBEIE  BRAEAQT bm HrEez
HRE )

Datong Chaopi Beichen Trading Co,.Ltd.  Limited company  Datong, PRC Wholesale 26,000,000
(Chaopi Datong)*

ARABHIEREEERABI(ATEHESE  BREFQT KA BrEzk
HARE D

Datong Chaopi Ant Trading Co,.Ltd. Limited company  Datong, PRC Retail 5,000,000
(Chaopi Ant)**

AR ISEFEARAB(ATHEEH  ARETAR KA TEX
il Dl

Tangshan Chaopi Baishun Trading Co,. Limited company  Tangshan, PRC  Wholesale 30,000,000
Ltd. (Chaopi Baishun)*

FILFHEIERZEERARIATEEIEH  BRETAF E Brae
HBHIED*

Beijing Chaopi Maolisheng Trading Co,. Limited company  Beijing, PRC Wholesale 75,000,000
Ltd. (Chaopi Maolisheng)*

ERPIEFABEBR AR AT EHE BRELRA i R
[FRHEEE AT 1)

Hong Kong Chaopi Asia Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi  Limited company  Hong Kong, Wholesale HKD10,000
Hong Kong)** PRC

%éi’éé)?ﬁtﬁﬁid‘\‘lﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ(DAT%%%%FEH%E\ BREEAT H5E BrEe 710,000
b D

Beijing Qumeiba Information Technology Limited company  Beijing, PRC Wholesale 1,000,000
Company Limit ted (Qumeiba)*

IREEREFEEREER AR (AT EHE BREFERFA bl BB
[FAHE B )"

Beijing Chaopi Shengshi Trading Co,.Ltd.  Limited company  Beijing, PRC Wholesale 25,000,000
(Chaopi Shengshi)*

IR EREEEER AT (A TEREIE ARETAR bl gz
HeExtt |)~

Beijing Chaopi Zhaoyang E-commerce Limited company  Beijing, PRC Wholesale 20,000,000
Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Zhaoyang)*

IR REGEEE TSR AE (B BEREMERAT] iy Az
T EITE ERAEES 1)

&
2019 if& 201

R EEREEERNARAT

%
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Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

Components of the Company (Continued)

Subsidiary
FREER

Beijing Chaopii Xinyishangzhen Food Co.,
Ltd. (Xinyishanghen)*

IR M RmAR AR (AT
B2 e )"

Beijing Shangzhen Food Co., Ltd.
(Shangzhen Food)** B
IERHERMARAR(ATEHE mER

fn )"

Tangshan Chaopii Shangzhen Food Co.,
Ltd. (Tangshan Shangzhen)**

FELSBimERMER AT (AT EEE
i )

Chaopi Maolisheng Hong Kong Co., Ltd.
(Maolisheng Hong Kong) **

PR ABTBERDFUATEBEIES
BT )+

Beijing Chaopi Tianshi Information
Technology Co., Ltd. (Chaopi Tianshi)*

LR RS ESRRBR AT (AT
TR )~

Chaopi International Trade (Shanghai) Co.,

Ltd (Chaopi International Trade)*
AR E 5 (E8)ARAT (A TEHE
[FHEEE 5 )

Beijing Chaopi Jiushengmingpin Trading
Co., Ltd (Chaopi Jiusheng)*

IR ARE LR ERR AR A TE
AR 1)

Beijing Chaopi Huansheng international
Trading Company Limited (Chaopi
Huansheng)*

IR IR R E 5 AR AR (AT
TSR )

Baoding Chaopi Trading Co., Ltd (Baoding

Chaopi)*
f%ﬁ%ﬁt?éﬁﬁﬁﬁi/&i(L‘AT%%%%H%EEH
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

Type
FARER

Limited company

BREFERA

Limited company

BEREMERAA

Limited company

BREERQA

Limited company

BREERA

Limited company

BEREMERAA

Limited company

BREERA

Limited company

BREERA

Limited company

BEREERA

Limited company

BREERA

5

[ 8

.
Ol g

N EHMERPES(E)

EFARHNER(E)

PESEREL(E)
Place of Nature of
incorporation business
it 3 E3=1
Beijing, PRC Wholesale
Bl HrEE s
Beijing, PRC Wholesale
bm HrEez
Tangshan, PRC  Manufacturing
B SRS
Hong Kong, Wholesale

PRC

S HrEx
Beijing, PRC Wholesale
s ez
Shanghai, PRC  Wholesale
lni! HEEE
Beijing, PRC Wholesale
bR B
Beijing, PRC Wholesale
bR HEE
Baoding, PRC Wholesale
o Hraez

Registered
Capital
HEMER

40,000,000

5,000,000

4,000,000

HKD10,000

710,000

20,000,000

9,800,000

30,000,000

15,000,000

10,000,000
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

Components of the Company (Continued)

Subsidiary
FARERE

Beijing Jingkelong (Langfang) Co.,
Ltd. (Jingkelong Langfang)

IERRFE(BY)BER AR AT
BRI REEED )

Beijing Jingkelong Supermarket
Chain Co., Ltd. (Jingkelong
Tongzhou)

R R EEETEHAR AR (A
TRETE RN )

Beijing Xinyang Tongli Commercial
Facilities Co,.Ltd. (Xinyang
Tongli)

ARMEBIBEREERAF
(AT R RE@ A ])

Beijing Jingkelong Shouchao
Commercial Co., Ltd. (Shoulian
Supermarket)

ErREEEGEREFRAR (A
TR BT )

Beijing Jingkelong Haotian Hotel
Management Co., Ltd. (Haotian
Hotel)

IRREERXEEEEARAR
(ATHREIZRBE]D

Beijing Jingkelong Vocational
Training School (Training
School)

bR T ARG R R B PR B B A
BR AT HHEEIIER])

Beijing Lianchao Company Limited
(Lianchao Limited)

I RBBEEAERAE AT HE
[BER A )

Beijing Jingkelong Fresh
convenience store Company
Limited (Jingkelong Fresh)

It EREHENERREER
BIAT I s ERE D)

Scope of business
ReEE

Retail of general
merchandise

TEFE  HAML R
m o HBmE
Retail of general
merchandise
R

TERY HAMS -
[} [}

an \Iz ,\\AE‘&DD%J'

Production of plastic
packing materials
and installation and
maintenance of
commercial equipment

MIBEE : RE - ¥R
AW - ZReRR R
EUA R EHER

Retail of general
merchandise

TERE HAER R
m o M E

Hotel management, food
and beverage, and
leasing

BEER  BRER - I
HEERE

Training of shop assistant
BXBEY

Sales of daily necessities,
Wuijinjiaodian, such as
needle textiles

HEBMA®m ARXE
HEHmE

Wholesale of food

HERM

N EHM PR (E)
EFARPNER(E)
PREEEHEA ()

Proportion Proportion of Whether
of ownership voting power Consolidated

interests (%) (%) or not Notes
RRIE =BE

R L (%) £ (%) B et
100 100 Yes
iz
100 100 Yes
&
55.66 55.66 Yes
iz
100 100 Yes
NEZ
100 100 Yes
%
100 100 Yes
XEE
100 100 Yes
XEE

100 100 No Note 4

A a4

2019 %5 ng3

R EEREEERNARAT

%
X

=
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

Components of the Company (Continued)

Subsidiary
FRARER

Beijing Chaopi Trading Co., Ltd.
(Chaopi Trading)

IR EROERART AT
LR A== )]

Beijing Chaopi Shuanglong
Alcohol Sales Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi
Shuanglong)*

IR S 2R HE B R A A
(AT T 2t &z 1)

Beijing Chaopi Huaging Beverage
Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Huaging)*

IR EEHEERAT (AT
Wi AEE )

Beijing Chaopi Flavourings, Co,.
Ltd. (Chaopi Flavouring)*

TR BERMBREERF
(VAT R 8 [ #AsE3A R am 1)

Beijing Chaopi Jinglong Oil Sales
Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Oil Sales)*

IR REREHEER DA
(VAT 7R [ At B g 1)

Shijiazhuang Chaopi Xinlong
Trading Co,.Ltd.*
AREALEEREERAR

Qingdao Chaopi Jinlong Trading
Co,.Ltd.”
SERHLREMERRAR"

Beijing Chaopi Zhongde Trading
Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Zhongde)*
IR PEHEERATUAT

LR ek S Dy
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Scope of business

RegEE

Wholesale of general
merchandise
HELE  HAML B

m o Ak

Wholesale of beverages

BB

Wholesale of drinks and
food

HERR - REFCRR
ﬁ)ﬁﬁlﬁ%ﬁfﬂ@lﬁﬁ SN0

Wholesale of edible oil
and food

MERHES  BRMS -
‘AW - #ARE - X
Z(REBHIBF A
BBRSN)

Wholesale of edible oil
HEETEBERR - 128

S R IR

Wholesale of alcoholic
beverages

HEBERAAE Rm A
EREF(RNEHE

FTAIEVIE B BRI
Wholesale of alcoholic

HEAMAE Rm A
EREFCRIMGHER
AFATHOIE B RSN

Wholesale of consumer
sanitary products

HEBRAMm - RE - 5%
mw ITERERERE

MRRERS

5_als

L

el

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N EEMERPHERSE)

Proportion
interests (%)

B LE Bl (%)

79.85

4711

42.66

42.03

43.30

79.85

79.85

79.85

EFARHRNERE)
PEEEEL(F)
Proportion of Whether
of ownership voting power Consolidated
(%) or not
RRE =AEH
EE (%) Hx
79.85 Yes
=
59.00 Yes
=
53.43 Yes
&
52.63 Yes
=
54.23 Yes
=
100 Yes
=
100 Yes
=
100 Yes
=
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N EHEMERPEER )

VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued) EFARHRHNERE)

Components of the Company (Continued)

Subsidiary Scope of business interests (%) (%) or not Notes
RFE =&BE
FARER regE R EEB(%) Ee (%) B E
Beijing Chaopi Huilong Trading Wholesale of alcoholic 79.85 100 Yes Note 7
Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Huilong)* beverages
IRHAHEEREARAGIUAT HBEEEHRD iz 57
[ EA LR | )
Taiyuan Chaopi Trading Co,.Ltd. Wholesale of general 79.85 100 Yes
(Chaopi Taiyuan)* merchandise
ARBALHERRRAAATEE  #tEEeEeH  AHRE =
[FARL KR ])* 5 hexsE - B
o R R RERE
e RS
Tianjin Chaopi Trading Co,.Ltd.* Wholesale of general 79.85 100 Yes
merchandise
REAREERRAE" HEBHREE Am & iz
SREE(CRIGER
FFAIEYIE B BRAN)
Chaopi Yuli Trading Co,.Ltd. Wholesale of general 30.31 70 Yes
(Chaopi Yuliy* merchandise
IRBHAFEEERAB AT  HEBRAE - BRRHE =
T EAHEARF] ) E
Chaopi Fangsheng Trading Co,. Wholesale of general 55.90 70 Yes
Ltd (Chaopi Fangsheng).** merchandise
IR TR E AR A A HEAAAE - HRA b=
m o B RER RS
Jinan Chaopi Linda Trading Co,. Wholesale of general 51.90 65 Yes
Ltd. (Chaopi Jinan)* merchandise
PRAIMEMERRARAT  HERABRE  BRRS P
A FARL AR 1)
Beijing Chaopi Shenglong Trading ~ Wholesale of package 47.11 59 Yes
Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Shenglong)* service, packed food
and storage service
IR BREREERAT AT #EEEERM  BER b=
[ EA LAk e ] ) % - B REIRTS
Beijing Chaopi Tianhua Trading Wholesale of package 42.66 53.43 Yes
Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Tianhua)* service, packed food
and storage service
IEREBHREREERATDNUAT #HEEEERL - BER b
R AR REE ] ) % BRERTS
2019
ERRFEREEEROBRAF 295* *

PREEEHEA ()

Proportion Proportion of

Whether

of ownership voting power Consolidated

=
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

o

Pl

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N EHMERPES(E)

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued) EFARHPHNERE)
Components of the Company (Continued) PEEFHEK (E)
Proportion Proportion of Whether
of ownership voting power Consolidated
Subsidiary Scope of business interests (%) (%) or not
RARE =ABE
FARER re&EE R EE (%) EE (%) Hx
Datong Chaopi Beichen Trading Wholesale of package 55.90 70 Yes
Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Datong)* service, packed food
and storage service
RAAHARFEBERADAT  #EEBERR  BERK P
SR N % BRERTS
Datong Chaopi Ant Trading Co,. Wholesale of package 55.90 100 Yes
Ltd. (Chaopi Ant)** service, packed food
and storage service
RRAAMISEIEER AT AT TERE  Rm - AR# =
T AR ) m - BREREE
Tangshan Chaopi Baishun Trading  Wholesale of package 65.12 81.55 Yes
Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Baishun)* service, packed food
and storage service
BB EIEREERATUAT #HEEAR BABER P
R A alE) moEREE  BRg
ELEEREE
Beijing Chaopi Maolisheng Trading  Wholesale of general 51.90 65 Yes
Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Maolisheng)* merchandise
IRBHEFMAFEERLFGA  HEERR - HHBH - e
TESTE FARFIA ) fR - ieRE LT
Em(TERRILER)
F
Hong Kong Chaopi Asia Co,.Ltd. Merchandise trading 42.03 100 Yes
(Chaopi Hong Kong)**
ERARDMNERAB(ATERE BmES iz
[FARLEE )
Beijing Qumeiba Information Wholesale of cosmetics 51.90 65 Yes
Technology Company Limit ted
(Qumeiba)*
IREZBEERBAERARCA  {bmitEs 2
TR R ARl )
Beijing Chaopi Shengshi Trading Wholesale of cosmetics 51.90 65 Yes
Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi Shengshi)*
IRPARBEEHEERABTAT fmltESE iz

AR SRRt 1)

a
L
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

Components of the Company (Continued)

Subsidiary
FARERE

Beijing Chaopi Zhaoyang
E-commerce Co,.Ltd. (Chaopi
Zhaoyang)*

I REAREEEEFEBEERA
BI(A TSR FA8LRERS 1)

Beijing Chaopi Xinyishangzhen
Food Co., Ltd. (Xinyishanghen)*

SRR HERABRAA
(AT EREHZmP )

Beijing Shangzhen Food Co., Ltd.
(Shangzhen Food)**

tRHERMAER AT (AT EHE
[HZRmI)™

Tangshang Chaopi Shangzhen
Food Co., Ltd. (Tangshan
Shangzhen)**

ELURHHZRBERARAT
R ELEZ D

Scope of business

Wholesale of general
merchandise

HEEMR  H8E -
BE  RORE (LT
ER(TARRILES)

=T

Wholesale of food,
packed food and dairy
product

HERM HBEAER
SN . TR
oR ~ FLEROoRSF

Wholesale of nuts
products (baking
class), candied fruit,
and fruit products (dried
fruit products)

SENERMEBREM
(HPH]) - =gg - kR
HmOKRTEM)E

Processing of fruits and
nuts, vegetables;
convenience food
manufacturing, food
sales; conference
services; exhibition
display services;
design, production,
road general cargo
transportation, etc.

KRABR - BT
FREERMHE  Rm
HE @Rk BE
BRIRY ¢ iRt - &
fiE CEBREREMER
=T

N EHEMERPEER )

EFARIPHERE)
PEFERIEH(E)
Proportion Proportion of Whether
of ownership voting power Consolidated
interests (%) (%) or not Notes
RFE =&BE
R EEB(%) Ee (%) & =
79.85 100 Yes
=
47.91 60 Yes
b
47.91 100 Yes
&
47.91 100 Yes Note 1
= 71

.
2019 F#f 297 *
I RRREEEEERNERAF] *

=
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued) N EHMERPHERE)

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued) EFARHPHNERE)

PEEEEHIEA ()

Components of the Company (Continued)

Proportion Proportion of Whether
of ownership voting power Consolidated

Subsidiary Scope of business interests (%) (%) or not Notes
RARE =ABE
FARER re&EE R EE (%) EE (%) Hx E
Chaopi Maolisheng Hong Kong Wholesale of nuts 51.90 100 Yes
Co., Ltd. (Maolisheng Hong products (baking
Kong)** class), candied fruit,
and fruit products (dried
fruit products)
PHEAABTBERLFCATE  EHOEBS fthm R’ 2
Al &R ) % - BEEH &
Al BIESR
Beijing Chaopi Tianshi Information ~ Wholesale of cosmetics, 79.85 100 Yes
Technology Co., Ltd. (Chaopi food and general
Tianshi)* merchandise
It RABREEERERERAF] HEMMm - BAm R’ =
(AT RERE[ B REF 1) e
Chaopi International Trade Goods and technology 79.85 100 Yes Note 2
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd (Chaopi import and export
International Trade)* business and food
circulation
PHBEBRES (L) ARARA  REEYREMOELD E 2
TEE AR ES ) % RmneE
Beijing Chaopi Jiush engmingpin Wholesale of general 79.85 100 Yes Note 3
Trading Co., Ltd (Chaopi merchandise
Jiusheng)*
IERARREELMEEFRDF HEBRM -« HHEm - = i3
(VAT s =t ARk 1) RE - XAR®m - BF
e
Beijing Chaopi Huansheng Wholesale, retail food, 40.72 51 Yes
international Trading Company health food; import and
Limited (Chaopi Huansheng)* export goods; import
and export agents
I RBAHBRRBRESERAQA e TERM - RER I
(VAT s = R A% 1) mo BEYEL O R
EHO%
Baoding Chaopi Trading Co., Ltd ~ Wholesale of general 55.90 70 Yes Note 6
(Baoding Chaopi)* merchandise
REAUHERRRACATEHE  #HERL bim KA = 6

[MRESRE )"

% ARESE

0
L
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

Components of the Company (Continued)

Note: * Chaopi Trading holds more than 50% of the equity interest of
those companies which are deemed to be the subsidiaries. As the
Company holds 79.85% of Chaopi Trading, the holding percentage
is different with the voting rights percentage.

*Chaopi Trading’s subsidiary holds more than 50% of the
equity interest of those companies which are deemed to be
the subsidiaries. As the Company holds 79.85% of Chaopi
Trading, the holding percentage is different with the voting rights

percentage.

1:||||/

N EHEMERPEER )

BT

DR PR (E)

PREEEHEA ()

G

CRELQA MBI E R BIBS0% MR
U HRERPRBEZFAR - HRARF
BEEFAPAIEET.85%M s - AR
RPN HEMEREZS ARNFRLY)
HFRAELLPIRE -

SARHABNEEZ FAREABIB50%
m@* THRERPRBEZ FRAAZT
NF] - HRARREEFAPIUEET9.85%
MR - MADRBAPHEEMEREZ
LR AR L O] B FORBE L IR

nn

ErrREEREEERNARA

,fi
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VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

Components of the Company (Continued)

The details of the movement in registered capital of subsidiaries
and the proportion changes of ownership interests and of voting
power held by the Company in subsidiaries during the accounting

period are as follows:

Note 1: On 19 April 2019, Xinyi Shangzhen the subsidiary of the
Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Trading, established Tangshan
Shangzhen as a wholly-owned subsidiary, with registered
capital of RMB4,000,000. The Company indirectly hold 47.91%
equity of Tangshan Shangzhen through Chaopi Trading.
Tangshan Shanzhen has obtained business license with NO.
91130229MAODG50L1E. As at 31 December 2019, Tangshan
Shangzhen has been paid fully by Xiyi Shangzhen.

Note 2: On 27 February 2018, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi
Trading contributed additional registered capital amounted
to RMB4,800,000 into Chaopi International Trade. The
registered capital of Chaopi International Trade increased from
RMB5,000,000 to RMB9,800,000, all of additional registered
capital amounts has completed by Chaopi Trading. Upon
completion of the capital increase, the Chaopi Trading directly
held 100% equity interest in Chaopi International Trade, and
indirectly held by the Company through Chaopi Trading as to
79.85%.

Note 3: On 12 August 2016, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Trading,
established Chaopi Jiusheng as a wholly-owned subsidiary, with
registered capital of RMB30,000,000. The Company indirectly
hold 79.85% equity of Chaopi Jiusheng through Chaopi Trading.
Chaopi Jiusheng has obtained business license with NO.
91110105MAO007KEC70. As at 31 December 2019, Chaopi
Trading invested registered capital of RMB30,000,000 to Chaopi
Jiusheng and its residue capital has been paid by Chaopi
Trading.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued)

Equity in subsidiaries (Continued)

Components of the Company (Continued)

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:

Jingkelong Fresh was cancelled on 27 September 2019 due to

management needs.

On 30 November 2018, according to ‘Reply to the approval
of the company by the Chaoyang Company to approve the
partial shareholding of the natural person shareholder of
Baishun Trading Co., Ltd.” (JKLBZ[2018]N0.50), Chaopi Trading
purchased 11.55% equity of Tangshan Baishun hold by the
natural people, who is Kong yushun. After equity acquisition
Chaopi Trading directly hold 81.55% equity of Tangshan
Baishun, that is, the Company indirectly holds 65.12% equity of
Tangshan Baishun through Chaopi Trading.

On 16 August 2019, the subsidiary of the Company, Chaopi
Trading, established Baoding Chaopi with registered capital
of RMB10,000,000, which accounts for 70%. The Company
indirectly hold 55.90% equity of Baoding Chaopi through Chaopi
Trading. Baoding Chaopi has obtained business license with
NO. 91130605MAODXUBKA4L. As at 31 December 2019, Chaopi
Trading has paid RMB7,000,000 for Baoding Chaopi, which has
been paid fully.

Due to operational management needs, Chaopi Huilong
Company was cancelled on 12 December 2019, and the
company was absorbed and merged into Chaoyang Zhaoyang

Company as a whole.
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1:||||/

VIII. EQUITY IN OTHER ENTITIES (Continued) N -EHMFEPIERE)
Equity in subsidiaries (Continued) EFARHPHNERE)
(2) Details of significant non-wholly owned subsidiaries: (2) EZENHE2EFLAAFERFENEE
Fo3INS
Proportion
of minority  Profits and losses attributing ~ Dividends to minority
interests (%) to minority interests interests Minority interests
SHRRFR FRERDBRRH
Name of subsidiaries FRE4E FEA1(%) Wi (B %) BAERED BRI DPERFES
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

20196F | 2018FE | 2019%E | 20185% ERBE FHHE
Chaopi Trading and its BHEEREFL  20.15 (Note)

subsidiaries a (F) | 43,358,906 | 42,478,581 | 59,302,028 | 52,765,471 |447,657,338 | 460,389,879

Note: The proportion of ownership interests and voting of the i FRADEBRRAFFR b f 82 R R I 5148
minority shareholders of subsidiaries are of equal. @ e
Significant assets and liabilities FE2EEAR
ltem HH 2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—EB-NF —Z=—)\F
+t=A=t—-RA | +t=A=t—H
Current assets mEEE 4,445,997,469 4,683,768,070
Non-current assets ERBEE 703,607,690 228,527,896
Current liabilities mENEE 3,678,604,993 3,856,118,897
Non-current liabilities FEMBBE 492,626,152 35,193,402
Financial performance and net cash flow KBRS FRE
ltem HH 2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—EB-NF —ZE—)\F
+=-A=+—-8 | +=ZA=+—H

Operating income %%Hﬂz)\ 7,551,299,510 7,497,621,076
Operating cost and other expenses BENARER 7,473,868,199 7,411,212,063
Net profit and total comprehensive FAERARE W BT

income 45,633,094 45,466,718
Cash flows from operating activities Z‘“%EE))E@@&% 114,797,378 534,196,617
Cash flows from investing activities BAEHHESFRE 37,958,459 27,669,228
Cash flows from financial activities :;ﬁéibi%féﬁhﬁt% (253,182,080) (357,547,767)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s financial instruments mainly comprise cash and
bank balances, accounts receivable, other receivables, short-
term investments, available-for-sale financial assets, other non-
current assets, other non-current assets due within one year,
accounts payable, other payables, bonds payable, notes payable,
short-term borrowings, long-term borrowings due within one year
and long-term borrowings. Details of the financial instruments
are set out in Note (VI). The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the risk management policies on how to mitigate
these risks are detailed as below. These risk exposures are
managed and monitored by the management to ensure that such

risks are within a limited range.

1. Risk management objectives and policies

The Group engages in risk management with the aim of
achieving an appropriate balance between risks and returns,
where the negative effects of risks against the operating
results of the Group are minimized, in order to maximize the
interests of shareholders and other stakeholders. Based on
such objective of risk management, the fundamental strategy
of risk management of the Group is to ascertain and analyze
various risks exposures, establish appropriate risk tolerance
thresholds, carry out risk management procedures and
monitor these risks in a timely and reliable manner, thus to

confine risk exposures within a prescribed scope.
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1:||||/

IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

1. Risk management objectives and polices (Continued)

1.1 Market risk

1.1.1Exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss resulting
from changes in foreign currency exchange rates.
All of the Group’s transaction are denominated
in its functional currency RMB, except for Beijing
Chaopi Trading’s subsidiary Chaopi Maolisheng
Hong Kong Company Limited which incorporated
in Hong Kong, PRC and used EUR as the
Functional currency.As at 31 December 2019,
the total assets and total liabilities of Chaopi
Maolisheng Hong Kong amount to approximately
EUR 6,955,391 and EUR7,199,083 denominated
in foreign currency. The management does not
expect that a change in foreign exchange rate will
have a significant impact on the Group’s gross

profit and shareholders’ equity.

1.1.2Interest rate risk — risk of changes in cash flows

The risk of changes in fair value from financial
instruments as a result of interest rate change
mainly relates to fixed interest securities (see Note
(VI) 26 Other current liabilities). The Group’s policy
has not taken any action to eliminate fair value

risk from fixed interest securities.
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management objectives and polices (Continued)
1.1 Market risk (Continued)

1.1.2Interest rate risk — risk of changes in cash flows

(Continued)

The risk of changes in cash flows from financial
instruments as a result of interest rate change
mainly relates to floating-rate bank loans (see
Note (VI), 18 Short-term borrowings). It is the
Group’s policy to maintain floating interest rate of
these loans in order to eliminate fair value risk due

to interest rate change.

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis is based on
the assumption that a change in market interest
rates would have an impact on interest income or

expense of floating-rate financial instruments.

The management believes that the Group’s
exposure to interest rate risk in bank deposits
is not significant, therefore did not disclose
the sensitivity analysis of bank deposit interest
rate. On the basis of the above assumption
and supposing that other parameters remain
constant(Without regard to the influence of
capitalized interest), an 1% increase/(decrease) of
interest rate would lead to a (decrease)/increase
of RMB22,320,035and RMB27,576,494 (before
taxation) in current profit or loss and shareholders’

equity in 2019 and 2018 respectively.
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

1.

Risk management objectives and polices (Continued)

1.2 Credit risk

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018,
the largest credit risk exposure related to a potential
financial loss mainly derived from the failure in
performance of contractual obligations by counterparty,
which would result in a loss in financial assets, and
the guarantees provided by the Group, including: the
carrying amount of financial assets recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet. The carrying amounts
of the financial assets, which are recorded at fair
value, represent the current risk exposure but not the
maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future

as a result of the change in fair values.

To reduce credit risk, the Group trades only with
recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the
Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, balances of accounts
receivable are monitored on an ongoing basis to
ensure that the Group’s exposure to bad debt is not

significant.
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il

IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT RS T BMEBHRRE)

(Continued)
1. Risk management objectives and polices (Continued)

(—) RBREEBREMBEE)

1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 1.2 =ARKE)

In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at each balance sheet
date to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. Therefore, the
management believes that the Group’s exposure
to credit risk has been effectively monitored and
managed. The Group has adopted necessary policies
to ensure that all customers have a good credit
record. At 31 December 2019, except for the amounts
included in account receivables top five (Note (VI) 2)
and individual significant long-term receivables, the
Group has no other significant concentration of credit

risk.
The Group’s working capital is deposited at banks
with higher credit ratings, and hence the credit risk in

working capital is insignificant.

Maturity analysis of the financial assets overdue but
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R VAREAR Bt X B A SRIE R
RASHEHBRER - Bt -
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RBEIE -

BERBERACBHERBENS

unimpaired: BEEMEBR ST T
31 December 2019 2019%F12H31H
Overdue but unimpaired
B A KR E
Within 1
month 1-3 months Over 3 months Total
BEHIEAR BE1-3BA BHEAMNL &5t
Accounts receivable EUBR TR 103,909,573 50,124,653 65,971,630 220,005,856
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT N ReRmTIAMBENREE)

(Continued)
1. Risk management objectives and polices (Continued) (—) BREEBEMEEE)
1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 1.2 FRRRGE)
31 December 2018 2018%12H31H
Overdue but unimpaired
EEHARRE
Within 1 month 1-3 months Over 3 months Total
BER1ME AR B ER1-31E A B HASME A A £ &5t
Accounts FEMER TR
receivable 130,787,765 47,767,871 107,280,499 285,836,135
On 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, M2019%12 A31H k2018412 A
the accounts receivable that were past due but 318 - BE@HERBENEWER
not impaired related to a number of independent TERKENHNAEERERTFRFHD
customers that have a good track record with the ENBYURFEAER - B 2@
Group. Other receivables that were past due but not HAMB R B (B B EL A JE U FREE AN £ ()
impaired related to other amounts payable to the ESBRFOHEMERTIEER -
Group as a prevailing party in litigations. Based on past BENELER BN EEEEX
experience, the Group believes that no impairment wEBANEBLRBDWR AR 2FER
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as B NEBEREETHEEIER
there has not been a significant change in credit quality BERE o
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
1.3 Liquidity risk 1.3 REEK
In managing liquidity risk, the Group maintains and EEREARE  ANEBEREE
monitors cash and cash equivalents that are adequate BERAETIHNRESRIREEEY
in the opinion of the management, to meet the needs W EEITEEE - IR R AREE
of the Group’s operations and mitigate the impact from REZE  WHEREBSAERD
cash flow fluctuations. The management monitors the e REFEETEEBYHIRTE
utilization of bank loans and ensures compliance with R BRI TEE I W IR IE T
loan covenants. Meanwhile, the Group adopts banking ERXHE - B AEERAIR
instruments to meet short-term funding needs. TIERHBEEHNESENK -
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Risk management objectives and polices (Continued)

1.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group manages its risk to deficiency of funds
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool
considers both the maturity of its financial instruments
and the projected cash flows from the Group’s

operations.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s net current
liabilities amounted to RMB494,545,918 (31 December
2018: RMB940,1083,726). The Company uses bank
loans and bonds as its major sources of funding. As
at 31 December 2018, the Company had unutilized
bank loan facilities of RMB14 billion. Based on the
Company’s unutilized bank loan facilities, profitability
and cash flow forecast within the next 12 months,
the management believes that the Company will have
adequate funds in the future for timely repayment of
the existing debts and maintaining its normal business

activities.

The following is the maturity analysis for financial
liabilities held by the Group which is based on

undiscounted remaining contractual obligations:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A

b e e

il

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

o EEmT AMEENEREE)

(—) RREEBREMBEE)

1.3

REER(E)
AEBRBRERADESTAE
BELERRAR -2 TEAREE
HeBMTAMIBAE  ©EER
SEELZELNEFRDRE -

R20194F12A381H « AR &EF
REBBERARMKA494545918
7T(20185F 12 A31H: AR
940,108,7267T ) ° AR A IRAT
ERAREHEREZESHR o
B1E2019F 1243810 - KA AM
REAHRITEREERARE
144870 o ERZARD B M AR5 A A
WIRTTEREE « BRENAR
RF12EAANBRERETEA
REBERERBRRAIESEN
& & RRFEEREAENERAK
N EREEES -

AEEFAERABERATRRG
ERBEBHIHHRAFTNAT -

2019 if& 309'

R EEREEERNARAT

%
X

i

=



%

x’

«

w

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

pvE e

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 2019 &

AN

il

All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

1.

Risk management objectives and polices (Continued)

hoEBERT BEMENEREE)

(—) RBREEBREMEEE)

1.3 Liquidity risk (Continued) 1.3 RERK(E)
31 December 2019 2019%12A31H
Within 1 3 months
month 1-3months to 1 year 1-2years  Over 2 years Total
REEPY 1238 SfEAZIE 122% 2L CH
Bank loans (including ~ $R71E (4 78)
interest) 48,243,294 338,071,610 1,900,861,453 - - 2,287,176,357
Notes payable ERZE 187,368,731 107,338,860 138,410,000 - - 433,117,591
Accounts payable NER 676,140,339 171,556,585 29,321,757 19,551,626 10477415 907,047,722
Bonds payable (including  fEff &% (£7128)
interest) - - - - 402,326,607 402,326,607
Other payables HEAR(RE
(excluding rent BES)
received in advance) - - 151,983,358 17,101,886 78,235,360 247,320,604
Total At 911,752,364 616,967,055 2,220,576,568 36,653,512 491,039,382  4,276,988,881
31 December 2018 2018%12H31H
3 months
Within 1 month 1-3months to 1 year 1-2 years  QOver 2 years Total
TEAR 1238A RIEREE:3 1526 2ENU L Bt
Bank loans (including ST (& H8)
interest) 260,375,648 489,774,829  2,270,044,693 - - 3,020,195,170
Notes payable ERER 430,724,013 86,526,018 114,014,400 - - 631,264,431
Accounts payable JERER 951,990,595 49,442,752 - - - 1,001,433,347
Bonds payable (including EES(27F28)
interest) - - 303,823,750 - - 303,823,750
Other payables HpERR(TE
(excluding rent BhEe)
received in advance) 105,455,310 - 110,918,523 - - 216,373,833
Total At 1,748,545,566 625,743,599  2,798,801,366 - - 5,173,090,531
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DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE T AREENKE

Financial assets measured at fair value and whose changes are
included in the current profit and loss (Note (VI) 7 (Note)), fair
value of which determined in accordance with quoted market
price of their investment unit fund products, are classified as
Level 1, known as quoted price (unadjusted) of similar assets and

liabilities in active market.

The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized costs in the

financial statements approximate their fair values.

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND t-
TRANSACTIONS

1. Parent of the Company

Registered
capital(10
Name of the parent Place of Legal thousand
company Type incorporation  representative  Nature of business yuan)
ifhas
BRIER bERE HEft EARR EHitE (En)
Chaoyang Auxiliary State-owned  Beijing Mr.Wang Weiln -~ Sales of food and ~ 21,306.10
oil products
e 2RAAH LR T HERmIERED

URARBEFERRZHFTALHBENE
BEE(MEN 7R NEREENESE
mEMS ENREERAABEBNAAE
BEFFENFIER  ARBEEEXABLLR
i ECREHE)WIRE -

AEBETEEBRA - MERRTIZEHRRAN
AEMNSREERSRABRNKREEERD
ZEEEMBENAR(ER -

BB L REBRS

1 FEEWZARER

Proportion

of the  Proportion

entity’s of the

ownership entity's  The ultimate

interests  voting power  controlling
held by the  held by the  party of the Uniform social
parent (%)  parent (%)  Company credit code
§ARsAt §ORERL

EMER  ENRME  ARERA

ghle) %) ) F-HEEARE

40.61 4061 Chaoyang ~ 9111000010163706X9
Auxiliary
EREY

2. Subsidiaries of the Company

Please refer to Note (VIII) Equity in subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 RaR M A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 2019 &

All Amounts in RMB Unless

XI.

Otherwise Stated (BR¥FIHBGS) » L BEENBARKT)

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3.

Related party transaction

3.1 Related party’s lease transaction

t- BB EREE XS (2

3

BB 51BN

(1) BHEEREXR

Pricing basis
of related
party
Lessor Leasee Type of lease transaction Notes 2019 2018
B2 5
HAETT ESiya) RHEER EEKE fisE 20195 & 20184 &
Amount Amount
x| G|
Chaoyang Auxiliary The Company  Rental Price Note 1 1,366,135 1,366,135
expenses negotiated
HSEIR ARA] Hexi ?&i%%ﬁ%?éﬁﬁ’] B
= §
Note 1: On 30 April 2004, the Company and its subsidiary i1 :R2004F 4 A30H « AR A K

Chaopi Trading leased several properties in Beijing
from Chaoyang Auxiliary, pursuant with annual rent
incremental on every five years for a term from 1
January 2004 to 31 December 2023. From 2006
to 2009, the Group entered into lease contracts or
supplemental agreements on several properties. As at
30 June 2011, the annual rents under the contracts
with Chaoyang Auxiliary were RMB7,344,499 and
RMB920,853 respectively for the Company and its
subsidiary Chaopi Trading. On 30 June 2011, except
for the properties used by 10 stores of the Company
(including 5 properties still owned by Chaoyang
Auxiliary and 5 properties for which lease agreements
were terminated), the State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of Beijing Chaoyang
District (“SASAC Chaoyang”) approved the transfer of
the land and properties used by the Company from
Chaoyang Auxiliary to Beijing Hongchao Weiye SOE
Management Company Limited (“Hongchao Weiye”).
The Company continued to lease the properties
owned by Chaoyang Auxiliary for its 5 stores at annual
rent of RMB162,758 with incremental once every
five years. On 18 June 2012, the Company entered
into a property lease supplemental agreement with
Chaoyang Auxiliary, pursuant to which the annual
rent for the aforesaid five properties were adjusted
to RMB1,111,9383 effecting from 1 July 2012 with
incremental by 3% every five years; and 1 additional
property was leased at annual rent of RMB214,412
with incremental by 3% every five years for a term
from 1 July 2012 to 31 December 2023. The rental
expenses payable to Chaoyang Auxiliary for the year
ended at 31 December 2019 and for the year ended
at 31 December 2018 were both recognized at
RMB1,366,135.
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RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Related party transaction (Continued)

3.1 Related party’s lease transaction (Continued)

On 1 July 2011, the Company entered into lease
contracts with Hongchao Weiye to renew the leasing
of properties under the original contractual terms at
annual rent of RMB7,344,499 effecting from 1 July
2011. On 1 July 2012, the Company entered into
supplemental agreements to the aforesaid lease
contracts with Hongchao Weiye, pursuant to which
the annual rents for such properties were adjusted
to RMB26,997,108 effecting from the same day with

incremental by 3% every five years

On 1 July 2011, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi
Trading entered into lease contracts with Hongchao
Weiye to renew the leasing of properties under
the original contractual terms at annual rent of
RMB920,853 effecting from 1 July 2011. On 1 July
2012, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Trading
entered into supplemental agreements to the aforesaid
lease contracts with Hongchao Weiye, pursuant to
which the annual rents for such properties were

adjusted to RMB2,808,259 effecting from the same

day with incremental by 3% every five years.
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+- BIES REHRS ()

3 FEIXBERGE)
(1) BBEHEERER(E)

M20114F7A18 - AQF EA
FREEFITHESGR  ®BE
ERGERATEREEREE &
0MFE7TAIBRFHERAR
#7,344,4997T ° 20127 A1
H ARAHELFEER LA
EERET THAME - 8B
EFMEEMEFESAZERA
R#26,997,10870 © & A FiEHE
3% °

M201167A18 » ARARIZFA
RSB B LR ERIT THE
&R - BREREHHREERS
HEE - H2011F7A1ARFH
© A AR920,8537T ° 20124
TATH  BHtEEELAEES
MEEARE THAHZ
BZAR NS EFRS AL
A AR®?2,808,2597C + FRFIR
#3% o
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XI.

1:||||/

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3.

Related party transaction (Continued)

3.1 Related party’s lease transaction (Continued)

On 18 December 2013, the Company entered into
supplemental agreements to the aforesaid lease
contracts with Hongchao Weiye. Considering the
Company paid relevant construction fees on the rebuild
project of certain of the properties in previous years
and the renovation project conducted by the Company
on behalf of Hongchao Weiye, Hongchao Weiye will
compensate the Company for the cost of construction
costs and related taxes paid (“agent construction fees”)
on property renovation project and re-build project of
RMB86,742,211, including RMB41,265,838 recorded
in other receivables and RMB45,476,373 recorded in
long-term receivables. Meanwhile, agent construction
fees receivables of RMB22,197,108 recorded in other
receivables will immediately offset the rent payable to
Hongchao Weiye at the end of 2013 as agreed by both
parties. From the 1 January 2014 to 31 December
2023, the fees on the rebuild project of certain
properties in previous years and the renovation project
conducted by the Company on behalf of Hongchao
Weiye will offset the rent to the Hongchao Weiye at

end of every year.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
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XI.

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3.

Related party transaction (Continued)

3.1

3.2

Related party’s lease transaction (Continued)

On 25 November 2014, the Company entered into
supplemental agreements again to terminate the
two supplemental agreements assigned on 1 July
2012 and 18 December 2013 respectively. From 1
July 2014 to 31 December 2023, the annual rents
of such properties were adjusted to revert to the
amount in the agreements on 1 July 2011, which
were RMB7,344,499 and RMB920,853 respectively
with incremental by 3% every five years. Meanwhile,
for the rest of agent construction fee amounted to
RMB58,164,490 on 30 June 2014, Hongchao Weiye
won’t take the responsibility of paying the funds
back when the original agreement and supplemental
agreements are executed efficiently. The aforesaid rest
of agent construction fee is undertaken and amortized

by the Company.

1:||||/

+- BIES REHRS ()

3

BB S ER(E)

(1) BHHEERER(E)

2014511 F258 + AN EH 5
HEER LAHEARBAETHE
FeaE 1 Eili2012F7 A1 H
K2013F 12 18 A 5 BIEFT K M
MEFTHE - B2014F7A1BE
2023%F12A31H « LSy
FREWREK2011F7A1BER]
MEEARSE IDRAAR
7,344,499 & A R 920,853

CBARFIRES3% - FF - STH
Pl EIRRN2014F6A30H
# 5 A R #58,164,4907T * 54 %A
BETFRBERZERAFBRIBES
BB BERITEV IR T R BRI ER
B - ERMRBIRKKEIER
BN ERERSRE S HMN TS
8 °

Compensation for key management personnel (2) FREEASIHH
2019 2018

ltem BB & 2019 E 2018F &
Compensation for key RAREIE A BB -

management:

Short-term employee benefits HHEEET 8,899,303 6,309,394

Post-employment benefits BREREF 535,794 586,955
Total & 9,435,097 6,896,349

i
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XI.

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3.

Related party transaction (Continued)

3.2 Compensation for key management personnel

(Continued)

Key management members are personnel having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the Group, including
directors, supervisors and other personnel to exercise
similar functions. Emolument paid to key management
includes wages or salaries, bonus, allowance,

subsidies.

According to the requirements of Company Ordinance
of Hong Kong and the Listing Rules of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, emoluments of

directors and supervisors for the year are as follows:

(@) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

directors during the year were as follows

- BBMAIRBEXS(E)

3

BB BER(E)
(2) FBREZENSHH(E)

MREEABREAENLARE
fTat &l - FEEBAMEH R EEIHH
AB BREF ESREMT
FEEUBRRBENAR - X446
BREBASNERMNEEELRT
B B RBIAMM -

REBERBMES EMRARE
BRABHED  FREZENEEH
E (N

(@) BuIBTTEEGH
EERAINBIYERNTES
W

RMB’000

ARET T

Independent non-executive 2019 2018
directors BYIERMITES 20195 E 2018
Onward Choi 2R 155 155
Chen Liping PR 42 42
Wang Liping FFIF 42 42
Total aat 239 239

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during 2019

and 2018.
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(Continued)

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Related party transaction (Continued)

3.2 Compensation for key management personnel

+- BIES REHRS ()

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors,

3

BB S ER(E)
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1:||||/

(2) BREZASHH (&)

b) BITEFE FHTEF

supervisors and the chief executive EER AT
RMB’000
ARET T
Salaries, Post-
allowances Performance employment
and benefits related benefits
Fees in kind bonuses * contributions Total
e %e
RUEREY RUKEF
2019 20194 [F ik B ENRE = HEe
Executive HITES:
directors:
Li Jianwen FEX - 340 646 50 1,036
Shang Yongtian 7k H - 340 646 50 1,036
Li Chunyan = - 262 497 50 809
Liu Yuejin Ellss - 52 41 23 116
Zhang Liwei R fE - 159 - 23 182
Subtotal NET - 1,153 1,830 196 3,179
Non-executive FEHTT
directors: -
Li Shunxiang ZIERE - - _ _ _
Zhang Yan RE - - _ _ _
Subtotal NEF - - - - -
Supervisors: [
Liu Wenyu b §i| - 262 519 50 831
Niu Hongyan 4T - 163 50 45 258
Li Chunyi =HFn - 168 125 40 333
Chen Zhong R $E 35 - - - 35
Fu Yanjun (T HEER 35 - - - 35
Subtotal e 70 593 694 135 1,492
Total = 70 1,746 2,524 331 4,671
.
o 2019 @%ﬁ 317 *
IRRREEEEERODERAD *

=



%

x’

«

w

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

pvE e

AN

il

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

XI.

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3.

(Continued)

Related party transaction (Continued)

3.2 Compensation for key management personnel

- BBMAIRBEXS(E)

3 BBXIXSZERE)

(2) FBREZENSHH(E)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors, b) FTEF FHTEF -
supervisors and the chief executive (Continued) EEE R AAAEIE (42 )
RMB’000
ARET T
Salaries, Post-
allowances Performance employment
and benefits related benefits
Fees in kind bonuses * contributions Total
e o=
& EMK RRAEF
2018 20185 e BWER BasEe H e
Executive HITESE:
directors:
Li Jianwen FEX - 458 146 55 659
Shang Yongtian &7k H - 458 145 55 658
Li Chunyan FEM - 378 182 55 615
Liu Yuejin 2R - 244 212 51 507
Subtotal INEE - 1,538 685 216 2,439
Non-executive IEHTT
directors: FE
Li Shunxiang =1y - - - - -
Wang Weilin FEM - - - - -
Zhang Yan wE - - - - -
Subtotal PNEF - - - - -
Supervisors: B
Liu Wenyu 233 - 378 181 55 614
Niu Hongyan HAT S - 256 86 38 380
Li Chunyi =En - 233 121 38 392
Chen Zhong PR 4E 35 - - - 35
Fu Yanjun (T HEIR 35 - - - 35
Subtotal /INEE 70 867 388 131 1,456
Total A&t 70 2,405 1,073 347 3,895

Performance related bonuses of these executives

and supervisors are related to the profit of the

Group of last year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Xl. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3.

Related party transaction (Continued)

RS e b

1:||||/

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

+- BIES REHRS ()

3

3.2 Compensation for key management personnel

(Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors,

(c)

supervisors and the chief executive (Continued)

In 2019 and 2018, there was no arrangement

under which a director or a supervisor waived

or agreed to waive any remuneration, and no

remuneration was paid by the Group to a director

or a supervisor as bonuses or unemployment

compensations for their entry to the Group.

Five highest paid employees

Details of the remuneration of the five highest paid

BB S ER(E)

(2) BREZASHH (&)

b) BITEFE HFHTEF E

FEREEIE(E)

R2019FF M2018FfE » &
EREEMERENXRE N
BEIMME  mMEBETES

e TES  BEF - NUIE
RINBRERINBEE R

BRI R A TIERRE o

) IlREFeER B2
AEEARN AuGEHER

employees during the year are as follows: HEEEE oM
RMB’000
AREFIT
2019 2018
ltem BH 20195 & 20185 &
Salaries, allowances and benefits  #& - 84 IR EW
in kind &7 5,450 6,481
Performance related bonuses Z%%Jb%ﬁ 3,994 4,910
Post-employment benefits RRE R
contributions 262 115
Total A&t 9,706 11,506
.
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Xl. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3. Related party transaction (Continued)

3.2 Compensation for key management personnel

(Continued)

(c) Five highest paid employees (Continued)

3

t- BB REHRS ()

BB BER(E)
(2) FBREZENSHH(E)

) DfIREHAIER LB 2

(%)
The number of employees whose remuneration FMARATIEENEES
fell within the following bands is as follows H=E
2019 2018
20195 E 20184 [F
HKD1,000,001 to 1,000,001 % 1,500,000/ 7T,
HKD1,500,000 1 1
HKD1,500,001 to 1,500,001 %2,000,000/% 7T
HKD2,000,000 1 1
HKD2,000,001 to 2,000,001 % 2,500,000/ 7T
HKD2,500,000 2 -
HKD2,500,001 to 2,500,001 % 3,000,000/ T
HKD3,000,000 1 -
HKD3,000,001 to 3,000,001 % 3,500,000/ 7T
HKD3,500,000 - 1
HKD3,500,001 to 3,500,001 % 4,000,000/ 7T
HKD4,000,000 - 2
Total a5t 5 S

The above related party transactions under paragraph 3 of

Note (XI) constitute continuing connected transactions of the

Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are

fully exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual review and

all disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

4. Receivables and payables of related parties

The Group had no receivables or payables balance with

related parties on 31 December 2019 and 31 December

2018.
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Xl. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5. Related party commitments

The Company had signed a lease contract with Chaoyang

Auxiliary for operation and storage.

The anticipated future rent by the Group

+- BIES REHRS ()

5 BABET AR

ARREPABARRTTEEHES

il

R - ARPIERALE

AEBFEARARFEENNES A

A

ltem EH 2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—E-NE —E-)N\F
+=A=+—H +=-A=+—8
The 1st year after the balance BEEBERBREEIF
sheet date 1,366,135 1,366,135
The 2nd year after the balance EEBBERBEBE2F
sheet date 1,366,135 1,366,135
The 3rd year after the balance BEABRAKEIF
sheet date 1,386,627 1,366,135
Future year LAEFE 1,407,119 2,793,746
Total A&T 5,526,016 6,892,151
XIl. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES T AERIEEE
1. Significant commitments 1 BEREAHBE
Capital commitments BXRFE
ltem 5H 2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—E-NF —E-N\F
+=ZA=+—8 +=-A=+—8”
Acquisition of fixed assets BEBETEEE
Authorized but not contracted ERBEEREL 359,743,503 336,830,011
Contracted but not provided BELNEREE 209,264,504 202,213,145
Total &5 569,008,007 539,043,156
2. Contingencies 2 XBEEHE

As at 31 December 2019, no material contingencies should

be disclosed by the Company.

HZE2019F12A31H ' ARAEZTE
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XIIl. SIGNIFICANTE SUBSEQUENT EVENTSAFTER = - EEEEBRARSEE

BALANCE SHEET DATE

i

x’

«

w

Repayment of short-term financing bonds

Approved by the China Association of Banking Market
Dealers (CPI NO [2018] CP153), on 21 March 2019, the
Group completed the public issuance of short-term financing
bonds of RMB300 million and a term of one year in China
issuance interest rate is 3.90%, the value date is 25 March
2019, and the interest payment date is 24 March 2020. The

lead underwriter is Bank of Beijing Co., Ltd.

As of 24 March 2020, the above-mentioned short-term
financing bond principal of RMB300 million and interest
expenses of RMB11.668 million have been paid by through
the settlement account at the Clearing House Financial

Market Co,. Ltd and were fully settled.

Other significant non-adjusting event after balance

sheet date

Except for the issue disclosed in Note (VI) 36, no other
significant non-adjusting event should be disclosed by
the Group by the end of the approval date of the financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS

1. Disclosure of fair value

On 31 December 2019, The Group, using the assets at fair

value, subscribed the fund products of Junxiang Wuliangye

No.1 for subsidiary Chaopi Trading

A

b e e

il

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

tH HitbEEEH

1 AR

BEENKRE

MR2019F12A31H » XEBENUARE
B ENEEAARRZ T AREHIE
ERENEZTARRIGESER

1.1 Assets measured at fair value 1 HUAREBEFTENEE
The end of the fair value
FRANEE
First level Second level Third level
fair value fair value fair value
measurement measurement measurement Total
E—BRAR EZBRAA E=BRAAR
Item HAB EEE BEE EEE &%
Continuous fair value HE8 AR
measurement BETE - - - -
Other non-current EIERE
financial assets SREE 42,272,786 - - 42,272,786
Total liabilities BHEARNAR
consistently BEH=
measured at fair MEER
value i) 42,272,786 - - 42,272,786
1.2 Basis for determining the market price of 2 [FHENFEIEE-BRALEET

continuous and non-sustainable first-level fair value

measurement projects

The market price of the project is determined based

on the transaction statement provided by the securities

company.
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XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

2.

Segment reporting

For the purpose of management, the Group classified the
operations into three segments according to the product

and service:

(@) The retailing segment mainly engages in the distribution
of food, untagged food, daily necessities, drinks and

cigarettes, hardware and household appliances;

The wholesaling segment mainly engages in the
wholesale supply of daily consumer products, including
food, untagged food, beverages, drinks, cigarettes and

daily necessities;

(c) The “others” segment comprises, principally, selling
plastic packing products, hotel services and school

training services.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately aiming at making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment

performance is evaluated based on reported segment profit.

The segment report information is disclosed according to
the accounting policies and measurement standard adopted
by each segment when reporting to the board of directors
and these principles of measurement should be consistently
with the accounting policy and measurement standard of

this financial statement.

All the assets and liabilities have been allocated to
respective segment, no unallocated asset and liability which

are centrally managed by the Group.
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XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

2.

Segment reporting (Continued)

tH HtEESHE)

The transfer pricing of inter-segment is based on the market

price as well as the actual transaction price.

2RI & ()

I

SEDRENEBE
BB ZETHENERETT

1:||||/

B 2EmMSEHRE

For the year ended at 31 December 2019 201956 E
Inter-segment
Retailing Wholesaling Others offset Total

Item EH 2E AR Efh%%  SBEERER &it
Operating income LN
External revenue HNZHMA 4,511,162,015 7,101,964,766 45,095,149 - 11,658,221,930
Inter-segment revenue APHERZMA 23,099,897 433,285,811 14,478,694 (470,864,402) -
Total =i 4,534,261,912 7,535,250,577 59,573,843 (470,864,402)  11,658,221,930
Total profit Gl 61,377,676 112,617,087 4,807,480 - 178,802,243
Income tax expense FiEHER 16,764,135 63,396,895 1,554,622 - 81,715,652
Net profit Egilped 44,613,541 49,220,192 3,252,858 - 97,086,591
Total assets EEES 4,150,982,077 5,138,764,949 305,568,944 (1,093,757,999) 8,501,557,971
Total liabilities BESE 3,235,154,829 4,140,864,538 43,295,888 (1,102,115,022) 6,317,200,233
Supplementary information:  #%E8
Depreciation and FENBHER

amortization expenses 301,833,541 78,041,685 9,373,282 - 389,248,508
Credit impairment loss ERRERR 99,149 8,053,152 90,278 - 8,242,579
Capital expenditures BRMTH 90,843,973 202,193,093 252,439 - 293,289,505
For the year ended at 31 December 2018 20185 E

Inter-segment
Retailing Wholesaling Others offset Total

Item EH ZE i A%l HUEELER ait
Operating income BEPA
External revenue Ep T ON 4,643,970,617 6,962,959,353 43,353,802 - 11,650,283,772
Inter-segment revenue AHERHUA 31,243,357 497,502,132 21,342,054 (550,087,543) -
Total a nJr 4,675,213974 7,460,461,485 64,695,856 (650,087,543)  11,650,283,772
Total profit ﬂ Shit 74,926,618 97,745,863 4,917,097 - 177,589,578
Income tax expense NEHER 21,704,303 47,719,152 1,789,162 - 71,212,617
Net profit ‘}%%‘I‘}Fzﬁ 53,222,315 50,026,711 3,127,935 - 106,376,961
Total assets EEER 3,568,667,353 4,898,429,845 330,806,559 (1,095,103,929) 7,687,799,828
Total liabilities aEeE 2,705,349,570 3,864,206,943 36,347,539 (1,095,103,929) 5,510,800,123
Supplementary information: %WU:. B
Depreciation and ﬁ%ﬂ]ﬁfﬁgﬁ

amortization expenses 177,272,580 28,725,668 9,362,830 - 215,361,078
Credit impairment loss ERREEX 54,879 6,781,465 - - 6,836,344
Capital expenditures BAEZH 78,048,853 14,766,371 30,659 - 92,845,883
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XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

2. Segment reporting (Continued)

The Group’s businesses principally comprise retail and

wholesale in Beijing, the People’s Republic of China. The

majority identifiable assets are all located in Beijing.

Main customers of the Group are as follows

tH HEthEREH(E)

2

2019
20195

Proportion of the
total operating

2 EBERE ()
AEETEEPEARIMEIL RHE
BT EEMAEE - FEAHR
EHZ LR -

AEENEIZEPBERWT

2018
20184
Proportion of the
total operating

Operating income of the income of the
income Group (%) |Operating Income Group (%)
(R el
ltem = EERA WA L Bl (%) BN WA B f51(%)
Customer 1 ®F1 1,532,931,058 13 1,507,898,378 13
3. Transaction and balance between the Group and 3 AEEHEBEB2RXZ RHE

Shoulian Group

(1) Major transaction between the Group and Shoulian

Group

[tem

Interest income from borrowings

Lease expenses

THH

BRIFENE
Hﬂl)\
HEE

(1) FEEHEEHEBYETEIZUT

Notes

e
Note 1

Note 2
T2

2019 2018
20194 20184
5,946,761 5,824,672
3,000,000 3,000,000

Note 1: Interest income from borrowing is derived from

interest expenses charged on the borrowing of

Shoulian with reference to loan interest rate stipulated

by bank for the same period.

Note 2: On 1 January 2009, the Company leased a property

and land located at Kaifang Road, Huairou District,

Beijing (“Huairou Hypermarket”) from Shoulian with
annual rent of RMB3,000,000 for a term from 1
January 2009 to 31 December 2028.

o
w
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

3. Transaction and balance between the Group and

Shoulian Group (Continued)

(1) Major transaction between the Group and Shoulian

)

Group (Continued)

On 1 January 2009, Shoulian Supermarket leased a
property and land located at Xihongmen Road, Daxing
District, Beijing from Shoulian Group with annual rent
of RMB1,134,088 for a term from 1 January 2009 to
31 December 2028. On 24 December 2010, Shoulian
Supermarket was acquired by the Company and the
lease contract remained valid. On 30 September 2017,
the Company acquired the Lianchao Company, the
subsidiary of Shoulian Group, which owned a property
and land located at Xihongmen Road, Daxing District,

Beijing.

For the year ended at 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018, the recognized lease expenses was

RMB3,000,000 and RMB3,000,000 respectively.

Accounts receivable and accounts payable between

the Group and Shoulian Group

ltem BH
Long-term receivables (Note(VI) 17)

Prepaid rents* EMHEe

RHEAGR(HIFEN ~ 17

RS e b

1:||||/

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

tH HtEESHE)

)

3

FEEREHEB IS RBEE)

(1) FEFHEHEBHEEZZUNT

@)

(%)

F2009F1A18  BHBETEE
B &= B AE A b R Th K B [ P AT Y
JEH) B B R b - T & B E 2009
F1HA1AE2028F12A31H * &
EFHE/ARE1,134,0887T ©
M2010F 124248 - HHBHH
RARWE  ZHEAREES
W e 2017FQAB0AARNARIET
EMEE FRRABBEAR

FBA R AL R A B AT PR
MEERTHFAEHE

R2019F ZE 2018 F E » A&
ERANESEAIIABARE
3,000,0007T }.3,000,0007C °

755 8] 58 B B R 49 FE WK R FE A 5
BaF

+=A=+—8H

2019.12.31

2018.12.31
—E—nF -

—E-N\F
t=-A=+—H

135,600,000
12,000,000

135,600,000
15,000,000

The amounts are associated with one-off prepaid rents
for 15 years by the Group to Shoulian Group under the
lease contract of Huairou Hypermarket. That prepaid
rents are disclosed in long-term prepaid expenses
and other current assets as at the relevant balance
sheet dates. Details are referred to Note 3 of the major

transactions between the Group and Shoulian Group.

* REREEAEEREBEZAE
SHEARY EHER —RIEE
M15GEHNEEREAH - HHhE
RELEFEAEEREERE
RAORPFEBERARAMRDE
Ef o F2R Dl RS EE T
EENFERS 23 -

%
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

AN

il

(1) The Group as lessee

Note (VI) 11, 28.

XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

@ Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities refer to

Details of included in the current profit and loss

and related asset costs

[tem

Short-term lease
expenses
(applicable to
simplified)

Lease fees for low-
value assets
(applicable to
simplified)

Variable lease
payments not
included in
lease liability
measurement

Income from
sublease of right-
of-use assets

Sale and leaseback
transaction

HH

EHEE
EBACHE
AR
)

BEEEE
HEEM
(GEME
(- 3EY

AMAEE
BERE
CORIE il
SR

EAR(E
BERSF
ZOFLON

FERBEDR
%

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

tH HMEEEHE)

4 HE

(1) ZFEFEBERBEA

Included in the current profit and

loss
FFARFER

Presentation

item Amount
HI¥RIEE ]
Selling expenses 10,833,052
HEEMA

Other operating 34,388,822

income

HAEBWA

O [FHELE MHMEAEREX
RE AR 11 2 28 °

@ FAXFERWEHEEK
RNy

Included in related asset costs

T AR E ERA
Presentation
item Amount
HI|¥R1E B TR

Note: The “short-term lease expenses” in the table

above do not include lease-related expenses with

a lease term of less than one month; the “low-value

asset lease expenses” do not include the short-

term lease expenses of low-value assets included

in the “short-term lease expenses".
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

4. Lease (Continued)

(1)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

@  Lease-related cash flow outflows

A

b e e

il

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

4

tH HtEESHE)

HE#E)
(1) FEEEBEBA(E)
® HEEMHBANHEERE R

houses, which are basically used in retail stores

and commodity warehouses. The lease term is

generally 5-20 years, and no lease renewal option

is stipulated in the lease contract.

&7
Amount for
Types of cash flow the year
ltem B H RE K= RELHE
Cash paid for principal and EEHERBEALMFE  Cash outflow 217,187,125
interest on lease liabilities I eRe of financing
activities
SHEHREMT
Payments for short-term HRBHEMEKEEERE Cash outflow 9,045,167
leases and low-value assets SRR EECERRE from operating
(applicable to simplified) 1LEEIE) activities
geEESRe R
Variable lease payments paid TR ARMAREARZD Cash outflow -
that are not included in the ARHEENKE from operating
lease liability activities
LEESHREMEY
Total &5t 226,232,292
@  Other information @ A8
Nature of lease activity HEEBHEE
The main leased assets in this period are AT ENHEAEERE

E EARREEMEMD
mERE - HEHR KA
5-20% - HEARFTHKRL

EEMSEEE -
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XIV.OTHER SIGNIFICANTE EVENTS (Continued)

4. Lease (Continued)
(2) The Group as lessor

Information related to operating leases

@® Included in the current profit and loss

tH HMEEEHE)

4~ HE#E)
(2) AEEERBHBA
HEEHE BRI
O FAXFRZHWER

Included in the current profit and loss

FFARFEE
Presentation item Amount
ltem A 5| ¥R1E B ik}
Rental income HERA Other operating 161,571,858
income
EAhZEBUA
Revenue related to variable BEAMNAREWRZEAER
lease payments that are not  AJ & & R EEMERFHI
included in the measurement )\
of lease receipts - -
Total A&t 161,571,858

®@  Collection of lease payments

® MERFENERER

Amount of undiscounted
lease payments to be
received

ltem HAM TSI B R ITIR T E U GREE
1st year subsequent to the balance EEBERAEREIF

sheet date 90,273,330
2nd year subsequent to the balance BEAGBERAKEF

sheet date 64,963,666
3rd year subsequent to the balance BEBBERAKEIF

sheet date 41,063,256
4th year subsequent to the balance BEEBEBERARELF

sheet date 26,113,547
5th year subsequent to the balance BEAGBKRHEFESF

sheet date 12,758,373
Subsequent periods FIRFEE 22,898,082
Total &5t 258,070,254

®  Other information @ HfbEE

Nature of lease activity MEEEMEE
The main leased assets in this period are houses AHFBENHEEEEARER
(including the lease of own property and the (BEEEREELHEMBAR

sublet of leased property). The lease term is
generally 3-10 years, and no lease renewal option

is stipulated in the lease contract.

o
w
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY

1.

Accounts receivable

(1) 31 December 2019

b e e

A

il

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

T AEMBRREIERATE

1 EWERR

(1) 2019%12531H

Presentation of accounts receivable by category JEWBR 7 25 1 75
2019.12.31
“Z-AE+ZA=t—H
Carrying amount Credit loss allowance
IREEAE EREXER
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%) Net book value
Category il kx| EE61(%) &8 SR A(%) REERE
Accounts receivable FIEHIRER
for which credit loss BREEN
allowance is assessed  JEURER X
individually - - - - -
Accounts receivable BEAHRE
for which credit loss IERERE
allowance is assessed  HIEUEE
by combination 79,981,805 100 - - 79,981,805
Total &t 79,981,805 100 - - 79,981,805
Presentation of accounts receivable according to aging FEU AR AR AN T
is recognized
2019.12.31
—E-AF+=HA=+—H
Credit loss
Carrying amount Proportion (%) allowance Net book value
Aging BR i -} EE il (%) ERBRKRERE IREEE
Within 1 year 1F AR 79,981,805 100 79,981,805
1-2 years 1524 - - - -
2-3 years 25 3F - - - -
3-4 years 3&E4F - - - -
4-5 years 4Z5%F - - - -
Over 5 years 5F A+ - - - -
Total &5 79,981,805 100 - 79,981,805
e
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

1. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(1) 31 December 2019 (Continued)

T RRAPBHRREIRRETERE)

1 BYRR(E)

Presentation of accounts receivable by category

(Continued)

Accounts receivable of related parties

Relationship
between other
related parties and

(1) 2019%12531H(4#&)

JENRR K 7 SR 77 (4

FE U BE RS JT By FRIR G T

Proportion of the
total accounts
receivable of the

the Company Amount Company (%)

1E FE YRR R AR ZE BY

Company name v HIZR N BB (R T EEA51(%)

Jingkelong Langfang RERE R Subsidiary 34,842,761 44
FRA]

Shouchao Group BHHER Subsidiary 9,710,811 12
FATA]

Jingkelong Tongzhou RERREBMN Subsidiary 5,308,547 7
FATA]

Total At 49,862,119 63

Aging analysis method is used to a portfolio of credit

e RERSIEIRER

loss allowance B R FE IR X
2019.12.31
—E-hAFE+=HA=+—H

Accounts Credit loss Provision ratio

receivable allowance (%)
Aging BRER FE UK BR X ERIBXRERE s B (%)
Within 1 year 1F AR 79,981,805 - 0
1-2 years 1224 - - 3
2-3 years 25 3F - - 10
3-4 years 3E4F - - 25
4-5 years 4EBF - - 50
Over 5 years 5F LA - - 100
Total A&t 79,981,805 -

L
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il

XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

1 BEERMR(E)

1. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2018 (2) 2018%12531H

Presentation of accounts receivable by category JEMARTA IR TR
2018.12.31
—E-\FTZA=1-FH
Carrying amount Credit loss allowance
REHE EREXER
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%) Net book value

Category il i £l (%) £k FTHELLBI(%) FEEE
Accounts receivable BEMRER

for which credit loss BREEN

allowance is assessed  JEUNEE X

individually - - - - -
Accounts receivable REAGHRE

for which credit loss BELEE

allowance is assessed  EIEUTER I

by combination 74,528,897 100 - - 74,528,897
Total &t 74,528,897 100 - - 74,528,897

Presentation of accounts receivable according to aging

JEWRR K E RN 3B F B REE A9

is recognized BT
2018.12.31
—E-A\FEt+A=+—H
Credit loss

Carrying amount Proportion (%) allowance Net book value
Aging IR #R k] EEA51(%) ERBRERE REEE
Within 1 year 1F LA 74,528,897 100 - 74,528,897
1-2 years 1224 - - - -
2-3 years 2FE3F - - - -
3-4 years 3E4F - - - _
4-5 years 4E5F - - - -
Over 5 years 5% E - - - -
Total At 74,528,897 100 - 74,528,897
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

1. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2018 (Continued)

Accounts receivable of related parties

T RAIPBERTERBFERE)

1

Relationship
between other
related parties and

FEWERR ()
(2) 2018%12HF31H (#)
JEYSBFE 77 By sk A0 T

Proportion of the
total accounts
receivable of the

the Company Amount Company (%)

G REMR R AR ER R

Company name B A EVAN/NE]|EaR S EA] EE1l(%)

Jingkelong Langfang RS Subsidiary 39,009,420 52
FRA]

Shouchao Group BHHEER Subsidiary 8,289,326 11
FATA]

Jingkelong Tongzhou REREREM Subsidiary 4,216,333 6
FAT]

Total &at 51,515,079 69

Aging analysis method is used to a portfolio of credit

MEF - RS ITAEEIEA

loss allowance TR ZE I FENAR
2018.12.31
“E-N\Ft+ZHA=+—H

Accounts Credit loss

receivable allowance Provision ratio (%)
Aging IR FEU AR R ERERERE SR 151(%)
Within 1 year 1F AR 74,528,897 - 0
1-2 years 1224 - - 3
2-3 years 2FE3F - - 10
3-4 years 3E4F - - 25
4-5 years 4EBF - - 50
Over 5 years 5F LAk - - 100
Total At 74,528,897 -
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Accounts receivable (Continued)

accounts receivable

31 December 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194

il

All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(3) Top five entities with the largest balances of

Relationship with

Tt RAPBERETERBERE)

1 BWERMR(E)
(8) BRHULEENFERGHI T EEE
BRI IER
2019612H31H
Proportion of the

amount to the
total accounts

Closing balance
of credit loss

Name of entity the Group Amount receivable (%) allowance
16 FEMER R ERBRER
BRI AT BN BIRAR SR BFERLLOI(%) FREH
Jingkelong Langfang Subsidiary 34,842,761 44 -
REREBY FRAE
Shouchao Group Subsidiary 9,710,811 12 -
Bk E FRA]
Beijing Chaoyang District Independent third 7,993,740 10 -
Detention Center party
5 RE T BAE=F
Jingkelong Tongzhou Subsidiary 5,308,547 7 -
REEEIM Fa]
Beijing Haidian District Independent third 3,766,125 5 -
Detention Center party
BB EE TP BYE=F
Total A&t 61,621,984 78 -
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

1. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(3) Top five entities with the largest balances of

accounts receivable (Continued)

31 December 2018

Relationship with

T RAIPBERTERBFERE)

1 BYERR(E)

(38) BRHALEENFERGHEINTEHE
FERRR 18R (&)

2018%12H31H

Proportion of the
amount to the
total accounts

Closing balance
of credit loss

Name of entity the Group Amount receivable (%) allowance
B 1 EYER TR ERBREE
B A BN FIRAR SR EFEELLDI(%) FREH
Jingkelong Langfang Subsidiary 39,009,420 52 -
R FAR]
Shouchao Group Subsidiary 8,289,326 11 -
Bl S
Beijing Chaoyang District Independent third 4,812,591 6 -
Detention Center party
5@ E P BNE=T
Jingkelong Tongzhou Subsidiary 4,216,333 6 -
REREBEM FRE]
Beijing Haidian District Independent third 1,979,206 3 -
Detention Center party
= F ST BNE=F
Total A&t 58,306,876 78 -
2. Other receivables 2~ HpnEWR
[tem 15 H 2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—E-hF —ZT-)\F
+t=A=+—~H +=ZA=+—-H
Other receivables H{th fE MR 550,830,771 556,335,826
Interest receivables FEYLAI B - -
Dividend receivables JE LS AR - -
Total A& 550,830,771 556,335,826

i
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2. Other receivables (Continued)

Details of other receivables

(1)

31 December 2019

A

il

T RRAMBRREIRRETERE)

2

Htt YR (&)
At ERAER

(1) 2019%F12H31H

Presentation of other receivables by category: E s o B R
2019.12.31
“E-N\f+=A=1-H
Carrying amount Credit loss allowance
RESE EREXERE
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%) Net book value
Category 5 5 EL (%) 8 STREA(%) REEE
Other receivables for which — EIE;HEERELEEN
credit loss allowance s Hit e
assessed individually 5,051,377 1 4,224,750 84 826,627
Other receivables for which A REREBLEE
credit loss allowance s MEhEKT
assessed by combination 550,004,144 99 - - 550,004,144
Total At 555,055,521 100 4,224,750 550,830,771
Aging analysis of other receivables is as follows Eith EUGREREC N T
2019.12.31
—E-NF+ZA=+—H
Carrying Credit loss
amount Proportion% allowance Net book value
Aging BREe &8 Ee il (%) ERIBRER IREEE
Within 1 year 1F AR 550,004,144 99 - 550,004,144
1-2 years 1226 - - - -
2-3 years 2E3F - - - -
3-4 years 3E4F - - - -
4-5 years 4E5F - - - -
Over 5 years  5fFLAE 5,051,377 1 4,224,750 826,627
Total AFF 555,055,521 100 4,224,750 550,830,771
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2. Other receivables (Continued)
Details of other receivables (Continued)

(1) 31 December 2019 (Continued)

[

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pl Ll

T RRAPBHRREIRRETERE)

2

Other receivables for which the credit loss allowance is

assessed as at 31 December 2019:

Content of other Carrying
receivables amount
HisERFHAR BREERER
Beijing Guanyuan 5,051,377

Wholesale Market
Company Limited

R EEAMLETSAR

NG|

Credit loss

allowance

ERIEXEH

4,224,750

Hitt R (&)

EmERIIER (&)

(1) 2019%F12531H (&)
FARBIEFHRERBEREH HAb
e

Rate (%) Reason
sHRLEBI(%) EH
84  Full Credit loss

allowance for the
part unrecovered,
according to the
agreement

RIEE T - HRIK
B S EHREREX

Other receivables according to Credit loss allowance

MEP  BERERDITARIRER

by aging analysis BB E AL IR
2019.12.31
“E-AF+ZA=t+—H
Other Credit loss
receivables allowance Proportion%
Aging BRER Hth e R ERIBRER SR EE(%)
Within 1 year 1F AR 550,004,144 - 0
1-2 years 1224 - - 3
2-3 years 2&E3F - - 10
3-4 years 3ZE4F - - 25
4-5 years 4EBF - - 50
Over 5 years 5F LAk - - 100
Total A&t 550,004,144 -
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL Tt ARMBHRRTEEETRE)
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2. Other receivables (Continued) 2 HfthpEEWR(E)
Details of other receivables (Continued) HEmERIER(E)
(1) 37 December 2019 (Continued) (1) 2019%F12H31H (#)

Other receivables of related parties H e YR F R IR I T
Relationship Proportion of
between other the total other
related parties and receivables of the
the Company Amount Company (%)

15 EAth FEURBR TR 48

Company name BRI BN FEE ol EE A EL11(%)

Chaopi Trading HitEE Subsidiary 500,000,000 91
Fr7A]

Jingkelong Tongzhou REREBEM Subsidiary 16,864,628 3
FRA]

Training School bl [E==Y 50 Subsidiary 201,370 -
FRA]

Total &5 517,065,998 94

(2) 31 December 2018 (2) 20184 12H31H
Presentation of other receivables by category EM Uy B EE
2018.12.31
“E-\F+=-A=+—H
Carrying amount Credit loss allowance
IR ERBARE
Net book
Amount  Proportion(%) Amount Rate(%) value
Category 2l X Eb1(%) 28 FHREAI%) FREEE
Other receivables for BIBFHREHBA R
which credit loss fE IR
allowance is assessed
individually 5,087,250 1 4,224,750 83 862,500
Other receivables for REATHRERBRE
which credit loss B R EYGR
allowance is assessed
by combination 555,473,326 99 - - 555,473,326
Total At 560,560,576 100 4,224,750 556,335,826

48
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL T RAMBHERETEHBZEA)
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2. Other receivables (Continued) 2 HthpEEWR(E)
Details of other receivables (Continued) EERIER (&)
(2) 31 December 2018 (Continued) (2) 2018%12H31H(#)
Aging analysis of other receivables is as follows H A R ER BRI T
2018.12.31
—F-N\Ft-A=t-1
Credit loss
Carrying amount Proportion% allowance Net book value
Aging AR Eax:] EEA51(%) ERBRERE FREEE
Within 1 year SN 555,473,326 99 - 555,473,326
1-2 years 1224 - - - -
2-3 years 2E3F - - - -
3-4 years 3FE4F - - _ _
4-5 years 4Z5F - - - -
Over 5 years  5&F A E 5,087,250 1 4,224,750 862,500
Total A&t 560,560,576 100 4,224,750 556,335,826
Other receivables for which the credit loss allowance is FREIEFIREABEREROHA
assessed individually as at 31 December 2018: FEUR
Content of other Credit loss
receivables Carrying amount allowance Rate (%) Reason
HAb W AR REfSE [EREXeE FHEREEBI(%)  IRER
Beijing Guanyuan 5,087,250 4,224,750 83  Full Credit loss
Wholesale Market allowance for the
Company Limited part unrecovered,
according to the
agreement
IR ERERtETSE BEET M - HARW
[N E%B%E+?%1§ﬁﬁ?§5§
A

%
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

2.

Other receivables (Continued)

Details of other receivables (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2018 (Continued)

2

Other receivables according to credit loss allowance by

aging analysis

T RRAMBRREIRRETERE)

Hib WK ()
AR ER ()

(2) 20184 12H31H (4)
MAEF - RERBEDIEAIRER
B E AL U R

2018.12.31
—E-\F+=—A=+—H

Credit loss
Other receivables allowance Rate(%)
Aging BR A H At FEUIR ERBEXEE FHREL51(%)
Within 1 year 1F LA 555,473,326 - 0
1-2 years 1224 - - 3
2-3 years 2E3F - - 10
3-4 years 3E4F - - 25
4-5 years 4555 - - 50
Over 5 years 5F A E - - 100

Total At 555,473,326 -

Other receivables of related parties Hh pE U B 5 RO IB N T

Relationship Proportion of

between other
related parties and
the Company

the total other
receivables of the
Company (%)
15 EAth FEURBR TR 48

Amount

Company name BAIETE =PI/ |7EES x| FHAYLL171(%)

Chaopi Trading B EE Subsidiary 500,000,000 90
FRA

Jingkelong Tongzhou REREBEM Subsidiary 23,468,191 4
Fad

Training School BB Subsidiary 247,300 -
FRa

Total &5 523,715,491 94
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

T RAIPBERTERBFERE)

2. Other receivables (Continued) 2 - HttpEEWR(E)
Details of other receivables (Continued) BRI IER (&)
(3) Presentation of other receivables by nature (3) HEHEMEZTFAMER
Nature of other receivables H b RIS E 2019.12.31 2018.12.31
—E-NEF —Z=-\F
+=HA=+-—8 +=—RA=+—8
Receivables of promotional FEUIR 3 &
activities 28,445,648 29,218,936
Receivables of related parties FE Ui BAES 5 0B 517,065,998 523,781,533
Others Hith 4,492,498 3,335,357
Total A&t 550,004,144 556,335,826
(4) Top five entities with the largest balances of other (4) BRZTGEBEWFERGHEITEN
receivables H R 1ER
31 December 2019 2019%12H31H
Proportion of
the amount to Closing balance
Nature of other Closing the total other of credit loss
Company name receivables balance receivables (%) allowance
i B At FE IR ERBRER
BURE MEME FREHE HEHLHI(%) FRENER
Chaopi Trading Receivables of 500,000,000 91 -
subsidiary
borrowing
HHtEE FRAMER
Jingkelong Tongzhou Current account 16,864,628 3 -
PR M 2R
Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Receivables of 5,087,250 1 4,224,750
Market Company Limited prepaid rent
IEREEEmtEMIEERAR BNES
Beijing Yuquan Xingye Current account 3,000,000 1 -
Investment Management
Company
IREREEREERNA R
Beijing Urban and Rural Current account 800,000 - -
Housing Construction
Develppment Co., Ltd.
IFHBEERRFAEAEREME KK
NCH
Total A&t 525,751,878 96 4,224,750

-
L
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Other receivables (Continued)

receivables (Continued)

31 December 2018
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Details of other receivables (Continued)

(4) Top five entities with the largest balances of other

Nature of other

T RRAMBRREIRRETERE)

2~ HAEWER(AE)

AR ER ()

(4) BRFTGEHEEFRGHEILEL
AWK ER(E)
2018%12H31H

Proportion of

the amount to  Closing balance
the total other of credit loss

Company name receivables Closing balance  receivables (%) allowance
15 E A & R ERBREE
BIEHE FIALE FREE  HEENLH(%) FRERE
Chaopi Trading Receivables of 500,000,000 90 -
subsidiary
borrowing
PEE FRBER
Jingkelong Tongzhou Current account 23,468,191 4 -
RN ERFK
Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Receivables of 5,087,250 1 4,224,750
Market Company Limited prepaid rent
EREEEmtETSAERAR ENES
Jingdong arrived home Current account 1,314,414 - -
REIR ERK
Ele.me Current account 658,426 - -
BT HRH
Total A&t 530,528,281 95 4,224,750

&
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XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL T ARMBHRRTEEETRE)
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

3. Long-term equity investment 3. RERERE
31 December 2019 2019%12H31H
Initial
Accounting investment Change in the
methods cost 2019.1.1 year 2019.12.31
“E-nE —2-hE
Investee HREEN RELE DRBERE —A-H BH2Es +t-A=t-H
Long-term equity EIR/NCIE-S-i
investment in iR E
subsidiaries
Jingkelong Langfang REERES cost method 8,000,000 83,980,000 - 83,980,000
FAE
Chaopi Trading BltEE cost method 55,733,000 436,505,594 - 436,505,594
AE
Xinyang Tongli R&®EN cost method 832,500 5,565,775 - 5,565,775
A%
Shoulian Supermarket — EEET cost method 121,160,000 422,484,500 - 422,484,500
PRAE
Jingkelong Tongzhou REE AN cost method 29,000,000 29,000,000 - 29,000,000
PAE
Training School B cost method 500,000 500,000 - 500,000
FAE
Lianchao Limited G TN cost method 268,955,702 268,955,702 - 268,955,702
A
Total &t 1,246,991,571 - 1,246,991,571
Description of
the difference Provision for
Proportion Proportion of  between the  Provision for impairment of Cash
of ownership voting power former and impairment of assets in the dividend in
interests (%) (%) the latter assets year the year
ERREEN
ERBREEN BREFER
ERBEEN  RRELH RERHT- AEFRAE
Investee WREEN BREBI(%) (%) G REEE £E AERSAA
Long-term equity HFDARER
investment in BRE
subsidiaries
Jingkelong Langfang & Fi4 100 100 - - - -
Chaopi Trading AHHE 79.85 79.85 - - - 31,940,720
Xinyang Tongli k@ 55.66 55.66 - - - 1,113,155
Shoulian Elizéhil
Supermarket 100 100 - - - -
Jingkelong Tongzhou R&ME &M 100 100 - - - -
Training School 2 IIER 100 100 - - - -
Lianchao Limited YN 100 100 - - - -
Total = - - 33,053,875

"
L
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

3.

Long-term equity investment (Continued)

31 December 2018

b e e

A

il

FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 ZF
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaBA5) » £EEE B RET)

T RRAMBRREIRRETERE)

3 REIREREH)
2018%12A31H

Accounting Initial investment Change in the
methods cost 2018.1.1 year 2018.12.31
BREEL - e “-NE
Investee VERE MiaRERA —-A-A 28 +t-A=1-H
Long-term equity investment in ¥ FRARIRHARERE
subsidiaries
Jingkelong Langfang REERS cost method 8,000,000 83,980,000 - 83,980,000
RAE
Chaopi Trading BHER cost method 55,733,000 436,505,504 - 436,505,594
A
Xinyang Tongl REEEN cost method 832,500 5,565,775 - 5,565,775
RAVE
Shoulian Supermarket BERT cost method 121,160,000 422,484,500 - 422,484,500
RAE
Jingkelong Tongzhou REERN cost method 29,000,000 29,000,000 - 29,000,000
A%
Training School o0 cost method 500,000 500,000 - 500,000
R
Lianchao Limited NG cost method 268,955,702 268,955,702 - 268,955,702
A
Total At 1,246,991,571 - 1,246,991,671
Description of
the difference Provision for
Proportion between the Provision for ~ impairment of
of ownership Proportion of  former and the  impairment of assets in the  Cash dividend in
interests (%) voting power (%) |atter assets year the year
ERREEN
i AR |
\ ERREENS ARREELR  HOA-EN REGHRAE
Investee BREEN BREBI%)  REL%) ok REEH BE  AERLAH
Long-term equity H7RAIR AR E
investment in
subsidiaries
Jingkelong Langfang ~ REEEH 100 100 - - - -
Chaopi Trading 79.85 79.85 - - - 23,955,540
Xinyang Tongli 55.66 55.66 - - - 278,289
Shoulian Supermarket 100 100 - - - -
Jingkelong Tongzhou ~ REE @M 100 100 - - - -
Training School 100 100 - - - -
Lianchao Limited 100 100 - - - -
Total - - 24,233,829
2019 %5 345
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 20194 &F
All Amounts in RMB Unless Otherwise Stated (Br4ZFIaB55) » £EEE B RKT)

XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

3.

Long-term equity investment (Continued)

On 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, no
restriction appeared on the capability of transferring fund

from investee to the Company.

Operating income and operating cost

T RRAPBHRREIRRETERE)

3

Cost
2%

3,229,407,062

11,689,919

REBRERE (E)

2019412 A 31 H % 20184 12 A 31
BAQBRAENRBRERE 2 HIZE
BRURARTEEESMEIRZIR
il e

BRWA - BERAE

2018
20185
Income Cost
WA BN

3,950,398,780
352,805,747

3,364,226,857
10,210,803

2019

20195
Income
[tem EH PN

Principal FEE

operating 3,821,290,698
Other operating  Hh %75 364,298,997
Total A&F 4,185,589,695

3,241,096,981

4,303,204,527 3,374,437,660

The Company’s business principally comprises retailing, so

the top five customers are not disclosed.

The principal operating mainly engages in the distribution of
food, untagged food, daily necessities, beverage and wine,

etc.
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T RRAMBRREIRRETERE)

XV. NOTES TO MAIN ITEMS IN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

5. Investment income 5 BEWSR
2019 2018

ltem EH 20195 & 2018F &
Long-term equity investment income FXANE X E )R EIARAE IR B Uiz

accounted by using the cost

method 33,053,875 24,233,829
Investment gain from buying B ERITERA

financial products 209,807 865,476
Total &5 33,263,682 25,099,305

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, no
significant restriction appeared on the Company’s remittance

of investment income.

XVI.APPROVAL FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and the
financial statements of the Company were approved by the board

of directors on 22 April 2020.

2019412 431 H & 20184 12 A 31

B AREMEREREELRNEFEER

BRI o

TR IRz

RRATHA G RRA B HEHERN 202054 A
22AEREARNREESHE -
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AP E

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and equity of the

Group for last five financial years, as extracted from the Company’s

annual reports, is set out below:

NTAREAREERNEERBEMBFE 2EE
BE  BEMEAZRHE :

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZEB-AE T N\F T+ F  —TRF —T-0%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREBFT ARETR AREFT AREFT
Results E4
Revenue EEEBIRA 10,555,190 10,445,548 10,786,227 10,847,005 10,572,672
Profit before tax Fllp=Rt o 178,802 177,590 148,189 134,450 113,379
Income tax expense FISHER (81,716) (71,213) (53,347) (59,129) (41,033)
Net profit SEFIS 97,087 106,377 94,842 75,321 72,346
Attributable to shareholders EENEARMEE
of the parents )EolbE 52,935 63,312 47,485 26,686 24,865
Minority interests DEREERE 44,151 43,065 47,357 48,635 47,481
97,087 106,377 94,842 75,321 72,346
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hE —E-N\F —E—+F —E-RF —T-AhF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREBFT  ARETRT AREFTT AREFT
Assets, Liabilities and Equity &% - 8&RKAK
Non-current assets FRBEE 3,338,178 2,277,604 2,433,597 2,371,224 2485217
Current assets MENEE 5,163,380 5,410,196 5,266,655 6,011,224 5,885,554
Current liabilities RENEE (4,893,352)  (5,444,706)  (5,486,421)  (5,463,543)  (5,458,029)
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE/(8E)
peek 270,028 (34,510) (219,766) 547 681 427 529
Total assets less current liabilities #2&ER TS AE 3,608,206 2,243,094 2,213,831 2,918,905 2,912,746
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (1,423,848) (66,094) (62,205) (800,627) (803,232
Net assets EEE 2,184,358 2,177,000 2,151,626 2,118,278 2,109,514
Equity attributable to shareholders EZ@R A A
of the parents BT e 1,728,563 1,708,378 1,669,689 1,643,354 1,636,512
Minority interests DER RS 455,794 468,622 481,937 474,924 473,002
Total equity FETN 2,184,358 2,177,000 2,151,626 2,118,278 2,109,514

Note: The data of 2015 to 2019 is prepared in accordance with Accounting

Standard for Business Enterprise.
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